SPECIAL CORPORATE AND ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES COMMITTEE
Round 1 Budget Meetings

Tuesday, February 5, 2019
SCRD Boardroom, 1975 Field Road, Sechelt, B.C.

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER 9:30 a.m.
AGENDA

1. Adoption of Agenda
PRESENTATIONS AND DELEGATIONS

1. Heather Evans-Cullen, Library Director (with Board Members: Janet
Hodgkinson, Rob Flux and Allison Sawyer)
Gibsons and District Public Library

Regarding: i) 2019 Budget Request Annex A
i)  Communications: Correspondence dated Pages 1-82
November 12, 2018, 2019 Budget, Notes to 2019
Budget, 5 Year Budget Plan 2019 — 2023 and Library
Strategic Plan
(Received at December 1, 2018 Pre-Budget)

2. Ann Hopkins, Library Board Chair and Shelley Archibald, Chief
Librarian
Sechelt Public Library

Regarding: i) 2019 Budget Request Annex B
i)  Communications: 2019-2020 Budget (with pp. 83-104
2018 Budget), Five-Year Agreement Proposal,
Technology and Automation in Sechelt Public
Library, Funders 2013-2017 Per Capita Results
(New Information)



Special Corporate and Administrative Services Committee Agenda — R1 Budget

February 5, 2019 Page 2
3. Mike Clement, Board President (with Directors Angela Gursche
and Lorraine Goddard)
Sunshine Coast Museum and Archives
Regarding: i) 2019 Budget Request Annex C
i)  Communications: Correspondence dated pp. 105-109
January 16, 2019, 2019 Budget Summary with
2018 Budget vs. Actuals, 2019-2023 Financial
Plan
(New Information)
4. Billy Griffiths, President and Sam Hughes, Manager
Egmont Heritage Centre / Skookumchuck Heritage Society
Regarding: i) 2019 Budget Request
i)  Communications: Correspondence dated Annex D
November 14, 2018, 2019 Budget revised pp. 110-113
January 8, 2019 and Budget Proposal for Special
Project Request
(New Information)
5. Sue Lamb, Wendy White and Stephanie Anderson, Coordinators
Halfmoon Bay — Chatelech Community School Association
Regarding: i) 2019 Budget Request
i)  Communications: Correspondence dated Annex E
November 13, 2018, 2019 Budget (July 1, 2018 to pp. 114-121
June 30, 2019) and Profit Loss Statement (July 1,
2018 to October 31, 2018)
(Received at December 1, 2018 Pre-Budget)
6. Francine Clohosey, Manager
Pender Harbour Community School Society
Regarding: i) 2019 Budget Request
i)  Communications: 2019 Budget Request for Annex F
Community Recreation Program, 2019 Budget pp. 122-142

Request for Youth Programs, Community
Recreation Program Final Report dated
December 30, 2018, Community Recreation
Program Quarterly Report dated December 31,
2018

(New Information)



Special Corporate and Administrative Services Committee Agenda — R1 Budget

February 5, 2019 Page 3
7. Paul Kamon, Executive Director
Sunshine Coast Tourism
Regarding: i) 2019 Budget Request
i)  Communications: Correspondence dated Annex G
November 13, 2018, Introduction to Sunshine pp. 143-186
Coast Tourism, 2016-2017 Financials Fiscal,
2017-2018 Financials Fiscal, Budget - Fiscal
2018-2019, Destination BC Provincial Coop
Marketing - Post Project Report 2017-2018.
Destination BC Provincial Coop Marketing -
Interim Project Report 2018-2019
(New Information)
8. Linda Williams, Director (with Directors, Verna Chan and Deanne
Mineau)
Coast Cultural Alliance
Regarding: i) 2019 Budget Request Annex H
i) Communications: Correspondence dated pp. 187-198
November 9, 2018, 2018 Sunshine Coast Art
Crawl Information, Statistic for Art Crawl
(New Information)
COMMUNICATIONS
9. Sunshine Coast Community Services — Youth Outreach Worker Annex |
Program pp. 199-206
Regarding: Program Introduction, 2019 Budget with Five
Year Plan and Letters of Support for Program
(Received at December 1, 2018 Pre-Budget)
10. Gibsons and District Chamber of Commerce Annex J
Regarding:  Correspondence dated January 28, 2019 pp. 207-208
(New Information)

11. Roberts Creek Community Library Annex K
Regarding: 2019 Budget with 2018 Budget vs. Actuals p. 209
(Received at December 1, 2018 Pre-Budget)

12. Pender Harbour Reading Centre Annex L
Regarding: 2019 Budget Proposal and 2019 Budget with pp. 210-214

2018 Budget vs. Actuals
(Received at December 1, 2018 Pre-Budget)



Special Corporate and Administrative Services Committee Agenda — R1 Budget
February 5, 2019

Page 4

13. Sechelt Community Archives
Regarding: 2019 Budget including 2018 Budget vs. Actuals
(Received at December 1, 2018 Pre-Budget)

14. Pender Harbour Health Centre
Regarding: Correspondence dated November 12, 2018,
Current 2018-2019 Budget and Projections, 2019 Proposed
Budget, Five Year Operational Plan and PHHC Overview
(Received at December 1, 2018 Pre-Budget)

15. Sechelt Community Schools
Regarding: Correspondence dated November 13, 2018
(Sechelt Youth Centre), 2018-2019 Budget for Sechelt
Youth Centre, 2017-2018 Budget for Sechelt Youth Centre,
Correspondence dated November 13, 2018 (Youth
Programs), 2018-2019 Budget for Youth Programs, 2017-
2018 Budget for Youth Programs, June 2017 to June 2018
Annual Report
(Received at December 1, 2018 Pre-Budget)

16. Roberts Creek Community School
Regarding: Nights Alive Program Introduction, 2019
Budget (July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019), 2019 Budget with
Five Year Plan
(Received at December 1, 2018 Pre-Budget)

17. Pender Harbour and District Chamber of Commerce
Regarding: Correspondence date November 11, 2018
(Received at December 1, 2018 Pre-Budget)

REPORTS

18. General Manager, Corporate Services / Chief Financial Officer —
Rural Areas’ Grant-in-Aid and Economic Development 2018 Carry-
Forwards
(Voting — A, B,D,Eand F)

NEW BUSINESS

IN CAMERA

ADJOURNMENT

Annex M
p. 215

Annex N

pp. 216-225

Annex O
pp. 226-243

Annex P
pp. 244-247

Annex Q
pp. 248-266

Annex R
pp. 267-271



Gibsons & District Public

Librﬁry

470 South Fletcher Road, Box 109
Gibsons, BC VON 1V0 Stories To Tell

A

T: 604.886.2130 / gibsons.bclibraries.coop

November 12, 2018

Tina Perreault, Chief Financial Officer
Sunshine Coast Regional District
1975 Field Road Sechelt, BC VON 3A1

RE: Gibsons & District Public Library Association 2019 Budget Submission

Dear Tina,

Please find enclosed the Gibsons & District Public Library (GDPL) detailed 2019
budget plus the 2019 - 2023 proposed financial plan and accompanying
documents. On behalf of the GDPL Association, this submission is presented for
your consideration and support.

In 2019, GDPL will begin implementing a new 4 year Strategic Plan for 2019 to
2022 which is attached for your reference. With the support of our funders, the
Library Foundation, a dedicated library board, staff and volunteers, GDPL wiill
continue to connect our community to the world of culture, information and
ideas, and improve quality of life. As you will see in our strategic plan, GDPL is
a forward thinking, progressive library that aims to meet the diverse range of
needs and interests of our patrons. We are committed to providing excellence
in the quality, accessibility and diversity of the resources and services we offer.
With the ongoing support of the Sunshine Coast Regional District, in 2019, we
will continue providing the valuable Library services that are so cherished by
our community.

In 2019, GDPL will continue to build upon partnerships with local, regional and
provincial agencies to enable the Library to offer services in more efficient and
economical ways. The Gibsons & District Public Library Board would like to be
notified and present at the upcoming budget talks to answer any questions that
the Regional Board may have.

If you require further information or if you have any questions please do not
hesitate to contact me at 604-886-2130.



We request that all the Budget Notes, Library Service Summary, Annual Report,
and Strategic Plan accompany the Budget figures to the Area Directors for
budget information and discussion.

Sincerely,

f

Heather Evans-Cullen, Library Director

Enclosure:

Notes to the 2019 Budget with Service Summary and Key Statistics
2019 Annual Budget

2019 to 2023 5 Year Projected Budget

2017 Annual Report

2019 to 2022 GDPL Strategic Plan

Sample Monthly Events Calendar for October 2018



Gibsons and District Public Library 2019 Change

Budget 2016 Budget |2017 Budget |2018 Budget 2019 Budget Amount |% Change

REVENUE

Description

Public Support Tax Requisition $568,964 | $583,636 | $595,309 [ $610,309 | $15,000 2.5%

Grants $61,500 $67,000 $67,000 | $66,166

Library Revenue $20,950 $20,500 $21,000 | $22,200

TOTAL REVENUE $651,414 | $671,136 | $683,309 | $698,675 | $15,366 2.2%
Change

OPERATING EXPENSES 2016 2017 2018 2019 Amount |% Change

Materials & Services $88,160 $91,400 $94,773 | $95,037 $264 0.3%

Programming $10,500 $10,300 $12,000 | $15,700 | $3,700 23.6%

Office $24,350 $23,800 $24,000 $24,500 $500 2.0%

Equipment & Maintenance $4,100 $4,400 $4,400 $3,900 -$500 -12.8%

Facility $49,714 $48,900 $48,900 $49,850 $950 1.9%

Personnel $466,490 | $478,736 | $484,536 | $499,894 | $15,358 3.1%

Development $3,600 $3,600 $4,200 $4,694 $494 10.5%

Other Expenses $0 $5,000 $5,500 $0 | -$5,500 0.9%

CAPITAL ASSET PURCHASES $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,100 $100 0.4%

Total Operating $651,914 | $671,136 | $683,309 | $698,675 | $15,366 2.2%




SPEAKING NOTES TO THE 2019 BUDGET

Highlights:

| would like to begin by highlighting that the Gibsons and District Public Library flourished as a
community hub and promoter of lifelong learning in 2018. As our statistics demonstrate, GDPL
experienced increases in circulation, in person visits and program participation. The library
serves as our community’s great equalizer: a place where everyone has the same rights and
access to resources that improve quality of life, reduce social isolation, enhance civic
engagement and promote literacy of all kinds: emotional, digital and print. The trend is that
the library is busier than ever with an increasing demand on its resources, staff time and space.

BUDGET BREAKDOWN 2019 KEY POINTS:

e The 2019 budget reflects an overall increase of 2.2% in total operating expenses- a
significantly lower percentage than the B.C. cost of living increase

e For 2019 the library has focused on stabilizing costs in all but 4 areas:

1)

2)

3)

4)

Programming requires additional support as we now offer a diverse range of
programs for children, youth, and older adults. In 2018, our youth participation
increased by 95%, and our adult program participation increased by 25%. The library
has expanded beyond its known offerings of story times and author events to
include a diverse range of programs such as robotics, conversational language
groups, open microphone nights, environmental forums, writing groups, LGBTQ2
and ally support groups, and computer training.

Staff Development has increased as GDPL is committed to ongoing training for staff
in customer service excellence and in the effective management of the very latest
digital and online resources.

The increase in costs for book purchases has resulted in a slight increase to
materials.

In 2018, GDPL successfully negotiated a new 4 year collective agreement with CUPE
391. This agreement requires a cost of living pay increase for all staff, and the
implementation of a job review that will result in the professional staff at the library
being classified and compensated appropriately. This long awaited review has
resulted in necessary increases to the personnel budget. Beyond the percentage
increases negotiated in the collective agreement- four key staff classifications will
evolve to match the level of professionalism and skill required for the library to
meets its strategic objectives, and this rise in classification will require a pay scale
increase. There will also be additional staffing implemented in our Technical and
Reference area so that individual tech tutoring and assistance will be offered
consistently.



REVENUE:

e We continue to maintain our revenue even as we reduce costs to patrons. There are no
longer fines on Juvenile items to promote usage of the library by children and youth
who may otherwise not be able to access resources.

e The library’s public computers are free to use to ensure there are no barriers for people
with low income.

e GDPL now offers a limited access card to people who may be living with homelessness.
This card does not require the patron to have an address or phone number, and enables
the user to check out up to 5 items at a time rather than the usual 40. With the Raincity
Shelter in Gibsons being located just a block from the library, there has been an increase
in the number of people seeking day shelter at the library, and this card has ensured the
library is accessible to everyone.

e British Columbia Provincial Per Capita Operating grant: It is assumed that the Provincial
government will maintain or hopefully increase provincial funding to libraries in 2019.
However, since the population in our community has increased, our rate of funding has
decreased slightly: the rationale from the province is that an increased population will
result in a higher level of public support tax requisition funds.

e |tis expected that we will maintain the same levels for our Federal library grant.

e The library continues to seek funding for special projects through grants such as the SC
Community Foundation, the SC Credit Union and Law Matters.

EXPENSES:
Programming:
e We have experienced a major increase in in person library visits and program
attendance. As such we have increased our programming budget so that we meet the
needs of our growing community.

Office:

e We continue to find efficiencies in the purchasing of office supplies and library
processing materials and reduced membership fees.



Equipment and Maintenance:

e The library has negotiated a reduced maintenance plan for our computers, self-check
out systems and digital printer resulting in a reduced budget for this line item.

Facility:

e The SCRD and GDPL are working with a building lease that includes a more
comprehensive division of building maintenance responsibilities. GDPL has increased
janitorial service to four days a week to maintain a hygienic and clean space for the
public. The library is very appreciative of the professional care the SCRD have taken in
their maintenance of the building, and there has been a lot of positive feedback from
patrons on the improved air and temperature quality in the library since the installment
of a new HVAC system this summer. During the wildfire crisis, many people including
vulnerable older adults sought refuge in the library from the poor air quality.

Personnel:

e In 2018 the Library successfully negotiated a new 4 year collective agreement. The
negotiated increases are: Year 1 =1.75% Year 2 =1.85% Year 3= 1.95% Year 4 =2%

e |n addition to the negotiated COL increases, the library is undertaking a long overdue
job review process to ensure our staff have the professional classifications appropriate
to their expected performance. This review will result in a required wage increase to
four positions. For example, the move for a key position from being a Tech Assistant to
a Technical and Reference Services Coordinator.

e Benefits: The collective agreement has resulted in an increase to dental and medical
benefits. There has also been an increase in Municipal Pension Plan fees.

e In 2018 Federal Government grants were obtained for a Summer Student. This position
not only provided valuable work experience for local youth, it also allows the library to
better serve our residents by offering more programming to children in the summer. An
application for this grant will be submitted for 2019 and has been included in the
proposed budget.

e Asthe community need for Technical and Reference Services grow, the library wil
increase staffing in this area- this would include tech tutoring services.

Materials & Databases:

e These costs have remained stable: GDPL continues to cost share as a member of the BC
Library Cooperative and InterLINK, and seeks to cost share with the Sechelt Public
Library whenever possible.



e There has been a major increase in the use of the Library’s Wi-Fi service by residents
and visitors- the library has effectively expanded this service while maintaining costs.

e Interlibrary loan fee represents a higher usage of this service by our members.
Equipment:

e We predict our current computer inventory will suffice for the coming year.



LIBRARY PROGRAMS & SERVICES

With the support of the SCRD and other funders the Gibsons Library is able to provide a
number of services and programs for residents of all ages: from infants to seniors.
Please see a sample monthly program guide for October, 2018 attached.

In addition to programs and services the Gibsons Library is a free public space that’s
open to everyone, regardless of age, gender, race or socio-economic standing. There are
people living with homelessness or substandard housing who use the library as a safe,
warm space to seek shelterin.

Residents recognize the value that libraries provide as safe and trusted gathering places.
No other free public space is better equipped to bring our community together to share,
learn and grow. We are non-partisan, non-commercialized and maintain the highest
standard of being an accessible and welcoming space to all.

A strategic priority of the SCRD is to facilitate community development — the public
libraries on the sunshine coast play an important role in this goal by engaging and
connecting community: a place where everyone has the same rights and access to
resources regardless of income or background.

The Library is a hub for community connection and participation, inclusion and sharing.
The Gibsons Library partners with local organizations to host programs and meetings on
topics of shared interests, facilitating conversations on matters our community cares
about. Some examples of the many collaborative services we offer are a support group
for caregivers with the BC Alzheimer’s Society; Naloxone training and Elder abuse
prevention with VCH,;Homework/ Research and Online Database orientations with SD46;
free legal aid with SC Community Resource Centre; and special events with the Gibsons
Arts Building and SC Museum such as the Halloween Block Party which attracted over
600 people to our “Cultural Corner” to enjoy free theatre, music, interactive storytelling,
and community celebrations. The library is an objective and trusted purveyor of
information, and we disseminate crucial information to our community on many topics.

We provide personalized information assistance and conversational circles, supporting
newcomers to make connections and feel welcome and included. We also support our
long-standing residents with tools and resources to pursue personal passions and
learning that improve their quality of life. Public libraries support ongoing self-directed
learning and the pursuit of personal passions. The demand for these services will only
increase in the years ahead.

Another strategic priority of the SCRD is to support sustainable economic development;
public libraries can help play a role in this goal by supporting the development of human
capital in our community for long-term, economic sustainability.



e Astechnologies change, workplaces are in constant transition, demanding employees to
participate in continuous training and development to be competitive. Our local library is
supporting our community to adapt to the challenges, and new opportunities by providing
opportunities for community members to develop new skills in using technology, self-
directed training on applications and access to authoritative online knowledge resources.

Many people use the library as a place to work, and use our free public computers, chrome books
and Wi-Fi to conduct their business.

Lastly | wanted to mention the integral role libraries play in bridging the digital divide and
supporting digital literacy while also serving as a respite from the digital world by promoting
human connection, quiet reading and conversation.

Technology is a major force driving social and economic change, People are seeing, consuming and
creating an overwhelming amount of information. Public libraries help ‘level the playing field’,
ensuring that all individuals have equal opportunity to prosper in an ever changing and expanding
world of knowledge and information There are still many people who do not have access to
technology, and many require significant assistance on the basics of connecting online. Public
libraries play a critical role in bridging this gap. Many services are now only available online —and
the Gibsons Library ensures that every member of the public has access. Our Lego robotics,
coding, computer training and other programs increase digital literacy in our community.

Amidst all the technological progress in our world, people are craving and needing authentic
connection, intellectual stimulation and quiet reflection. The library embraces its dual role in being
the ambassador and gateway to the digital world while equally providing opportunities for people
to engage with others and themselves in authentic, in person ways.

The SCRD’s support for our community’s public libraries is helping the Coast to thrive. The Gibsons
Library’s digital infrastructure ensures that everyone has public access to online connectivity; its
welcoming and vibrant physical space serves as a sanctuary and gathering place; and the diverse
range of resources and services the library offers dramatically increases the quality of life for our
community giving individuals the tools they need to move forward.



Some statistics

In Person Visits
2017 vs. 2018

Library In person Visits
tember 2017 79,134
mber 2018 79,579

m Jan- September 2017  m Jan- September 2018

10



Public Computer Usage
2017 vs. 2018

Computer Usage

- September 2017

5319

5337

m Jan- September 2017

m Jan- September 2018

Program Attendees

2017 vs. 2018

Story Time Participants

Bouncing Babies
Participants

Youth Participants

eptember 2017

304

281

84

ptember 2018

306

241

1683

w Jan- September 2017

w Jan- September 2018

11




Program Sessions
2017 vs. 2018

8 |

.
Youth events
Story_t|me EounC|ng including Commum_ty/ total v proctored
sessions Babies sessions|  summer Adult Sessions exams
programs
m Jan- September 2017 18 18 18 251 305 16
w Jan- September 2018 18 17 78 262 375 27
w Jan- September 2017  m Jan- September 2018
Circulation 2018 vs 2017
140000
120000
100000
80000
60000
40000
20000 II
ebook
Adult = Adult Magazi Juv. Audio Digital Music & in-
- . & Juv. Fic, Non- = Teen DVD € ILLs audio
Fiction Nonfic ne . books Games Cds house
Fic. Downl
oad
M Jan- September 2017 35244 15771 6261 19836 3621 3507 1402 16530 264 804 576 12520 6440
M Jan- September 2018 35140 16104 @ 5677 21166 3175 4546 1601 19602 184 504 910 13891 6721

M Jan- September 2017

12

M Jan- September 2018

Equip. | TOTAL

131
89

122907
129310



Gibsons and District Public Library 5

Year Budget 2019-2013 2018 Budget |Actuals to Sept 30,2018 2019 Budget Chg. % Chg 2020 2021 2022 2023 2019 Notes
REVENUE
Description
Public Support Tax Requisition
SCRD - $595,309 $495,976 $610,309 $15,000 2.5% $625,567 $641,206 $657,236| $673,667.00
SCRD one time grant
Total Tax Requistion $595,309 $495,976 $610,309 $15,000 2.5% $625,567 $641,206 $657,236 $673,667
Grants
As our population has increased, our provincial grant has been
reduced: the rationale is that a larger population will bring
Libraries Branch: operating & resource sharing grants $42,000 $40,911 $41,017 -$983 -2.4% $42,000 $42,000 $42,000 $42,000(additional tax dollars from the SCRD.
Libraries Branch: one card & equity grants $19,000 $19,149 $19,149 $149 0.8% $19,000 $19,000 $19,000 $19,000
Other grants $6,000 $4,400 $6,000 $0 0.0% $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000
Subtotal, Grants $67,000 $64,460 $66,166 -$834 -1.3% $67,000 $67,000 $67,000 $67,000
Library Revenue $0
Fundraising & Donations $6,000 $6,043 $7,200 $1,200 16.7% $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000
Fees & charges $15,000 $12,421 $15,000 $0 0.0% $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000
Subtotal, Library Revenue $21,000 $18,464 $22,200 $1,200 5.4% $21,000 $21,000 $21,000 $21,000
Previous Year's Operating Surplus $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Total Library Generated Revenue $88,000 $82,924 $88,366 $366 0.4% $88,000 $88,000 $88,000 $88,000
TOTAL REVENUE $683,309 $578,900 $698,675 $1,098 0.2% $713,567 $729,206 $745,236 $761,667
OPERATING EXPENSES Budget 2018 | Actuals to Sept. 30, 2018 2019 Chg. % Chg 2020 2021 2022 2023
Materials & Services
The overall cost of online and physical resources has increased.
Materials/databases $82,873 $62,237 $83,237 $364 0.4% $89,000 $91,000 $93,000 $94,000{ GDPL makes every effort to cost share with other libraries.
Public Internet $1,500 $500 $1,200 -$300 -25.0% $1,500 $1,575 $1,575 $1,650|We have successfully negotiated a reduced cost of our internet services.
Courier to Sechelt $1,400 $1,388 $1,600 $200 12.5% $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,600|Increase in gase and mileage costs for transport.
Inter-library loans $1,500 $1,168 $1,500 $0 0.0% $1,200 $1,300 $1,300 $1,450
Integrated library system and RFID $7,500 $3,556 $7,500 $0 0.0% $7,800 $7,801 $7,800 $8,000|Annual costs are incurred in November.
Total Materials & Services $94,773 $68,847 $95,037 $264 0.3% $101,000 $103,176 $105,175 $106,700
Programming
There has been a dramatic increase and need for library
programs and services. Our programming offers extremely
progressive and comprehensive services to meet the diverse
Programming $6,500 $5,074 $9,000 $2,500 27.8% $11,000 $11,200 $11,100 $11,100{needs and interests of the community.
InterLINK $4,200 $27 $4,200 $0 0.0% $4,400 $4,400 $4,400 $4,550[Our Interlink expenses are incurred in October
A main strategic objective is to implement regular annual events
where board, staff, volunteers and stakeholders can gather to
connect and build cohesion. These connections further the
Volunteer & Staff appreciation $1,300 $2,403 $2,500 $1,200 48.0% $1,300 $1,300 $1,300 $1,300 [ strategic objectives and the achievement of service excellence.
Total Programming $12,000 $7,504 $15,700 $3,700 23.6% $16,700 $16,900 $16,800 $16,950
Office 12
o
Advertising & Promotion $1,800 $1,979 $2,100 $300 14.3% $1,800 $1,800 $2,000 $2,100[ Advertising costs have increased with newspapers.




Accounting fees $7,500 $5,862 $7,500 $0 0.0% $7,800 $7,800 $7,800 $8,200

Dues & Fees $800 $693 $800 $0 0.0% $900 $950 $950 $1,000

Telephone & Internet $2,900 $1,815 $2,900 $0 0.0% $2,900 $2,900 $2,900 $3,100

Library processing supplies $5,000 $3,492 $5,000 $0 0.0% $5,082 $5,300 $5,100 $5,500
Increased costs of office supplies and increase number of books

Office supplies & Postage $6,000 $6,062 $6,200 $200 3.2% $6,200 $6,400 $6,400 $6,400| being borrowed and loaned from other libraries: cost of postage.

Total Office $24,000 $19,903 $24,500 $500 2.0% $24,682 $25,150 $25,150 $26,300

Equipment and Maintenance
We have moved out of an annual contract and will now pay per

Maintenance $3,200 $435 $2,600 -$600 -23.1% $3,200 $3,400 $3,200 $3,500(service

Photocopier $1,200 $1,295 $1,300 $100 7.7% $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,327

Total Equipment and Maintenance $4,400 $1,729 $3,900 -$500 -12.8% $4,400 $4,600 $4,400 $4,827

Facility

Hydro & Gas $25,000 $7,228 $25,000 $0 0.0% $27,000 $28,000 $28,000 $29,000|Majority of Hydro payment comes out after Sept. 30

Water/Sewer $600 $761 $800 $200 25.0% $600 $650 $650 $675

Maintenance & Repair $21,000 $17,128 $22,000 $1,000 4.5% $23,000 $23,500 $23,500 $24,500

Security $900 $539 $750 -$150 -20.0% $900 $1,000 $1,100 $1,100

Insurance $1,400 $1,300 -$100 -7.7% $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,650

Total Facility $48,900 $25,656 $49,850 $950 1.9% $53,000 $54,650 $54,750 $56,925

Personnel
The library successfully negotiated a new four year collective
agreement that requires a COL increase to all staff wage rates
and an increase to benefits. In addition to these across the board
COL increases, the library has committed to a long overdue job
review process. . This review will result in necessary increases to
the personnel budget. Four key staff classifications will evolve to
match the level of professionalism and skill required for the
library to meets its strategic objectives, and this rise in
classification will require a pay scale increase. There will also be
additional staffing implemented in our Technical and Reference
area so that individual tech tutoring and assistance will be

Wages & Salaries $396,536 $274,808 $411,894 $15,358 3.7% $414,885 $424,703 $433,371 $443,898| offered consistently.

El, CPP & WCB $26,000 $19,283 $26,000 $0 0.0% $26,260 $26,523|  $26,787.83 $27,756

Benefits & Pension $62,000 $40,617 $62,000 $0 0.0% $63,240 $64,504.80 $65,795 $68,111

Total Personnel $484,536 $334,708 $499,894 $15,358 3.1% $504,385 $515,730 $525,954 $539,765

Development
The library is committed to ongoing training and professional
development for staff to achieve excellence in service and the

Staff $3,000 $1,442 $3,494 $494 141% $2,900 $3,000 $3,200 $3,200|attainment of the highest standard of library resources.

Board $1,200 $1,136 $1,200 $0 1 4 0.0% $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000

Total Development $4,200 $2,578 $4,694 $494]  105% $3,900 $4,000 $4,200 $4,200




Other Expenses

Union Bargaining/AMORTIZATION $5,500 $4,692 $0 -$5,500 0.9% $0 $0 $5,000 $0
Other Grant $0 $0

Total Other $5,500 $4,692 $0 -$5,500 0.9% $0 $0 $5,000 $0
CAPITAL ASSET PURCHASES $5,000 $5,040 $5,100 $100 2.0% $5,500 $5,000 $3,807 $6,000
Total Operating $683,309 $470,655 $698,675 $15,366 2.2% $713,567 $729,206 $745,236 $761,667
Less Library Revenue/Grants $88,000 $82,924 $88,366 $366 0.4% $88,000 $88,000 $88,000 $88,000
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES $0 $0 $0 0.0% $0 $0 $0 $0
TOTAL TAX REQUISITION $595,309 $610,309 $15,000 1 52.5% $625,567 $641,206 $657,236 $673,667

—
TOTAL EXPENSE $683,309 $698,675 $15,366 2.2% $713,567 $729,206 $745,236 $761,667




STRATEGIC PLAN
EXPANDING HORIZONS

Gibsons & District Public

LibrEry

Stories To Tell

-
I

2019-2022

16



STRATEGIC PLAN
2019-2022

EXPANDING HORIZONS

Gibsons & District Public

L1briry

St To Tell

17



STRATEGIC

PAGE

1

PLAN:

2019-2022

TABL

cO

F

E O
NT

s o, o,

ENTS

PAGE 3
INTRODUCTION

PAGE 4
HISTORY

PAGE 7
COMMUNITY

PAGE 10
FUNDING

APPENDICIES

A. PAGE 23
Community Profile

B. PAGE 31
Town of Gibsons Strategic
Priorities

C. PAGE 32
Social Media Audit

D. PAGE 33
SWOT Analysis

18

PAGE 11
PREVIOUS STRATEGIC PLAN

PAGE 13
MISSION, VISION & VALUES

PAGE 15
2019-2022 STRATEGIC ACTIONS

PAGE 17
2019-2022 STRATEGIC GOALS

E. PAGE 39

2018 Survey: Summary
Map of Respondents
Survey Results
Survey Questionnaire

F. PAGE 50
Stakeholder Questionnaire
Stakeholders Interviewed

G. PAGE 56
Wayfinding Images

H. PAGE 58
2013-2018 Strategic Plan



The Library is one of the
last examples of a true
community facility that is
accessible, for everyone...
((( Yy it is what we should be
fighting to protect in
terms of publicly-funded
institutions. It expands
horizons. It is the only
place like that on the
Sunshine Coast.

Dion Whyte, Community Member

19\ | _N -

s &_




INTRODUCTION

Strategic Plan: Expanding Horizons

The Gibsons and District Public
Library (GDPL) 2019-2022
StrategicPlan: ExpandingHorizons
is designed to ensure the Library
maintains its information services
and learning opportunities while

adapting to the changing needs
of the community, the world of
onlineinformationandeducation,
and its growing importance as a
publicly-funded community hub
in the heart of Gibsons.

“I' LOVE GIBSONS LIBRARY AND

ITS STAFF.” - SURVEY RESPONDENT

s



HISTORY

Since 1914

The Gibsons Library was founded by the
Howe Sound Farmer’s Institute in 1914.
It started as a wooden box of books that
circulated among various homes and
stores. In 1952, the library association
was formally incorporated, and in
1955 the first library building opened
on Winn Road (thanks to fundraising
efforts by the Gibsons Kiwanis Club).
The Library is independently governed
by an elected board of trustees, and

is established under part 4
of the library act. The current
building was funded by a public
referendum and opened in
1996. In 2016 there was a major
reconfiguration of the interior
space, and in 2017 the children’s
area was redesigned to create a
more welcoming, open and user
friendly space.

Photo of the Elphinstone Co-operative Store, Marine Drive
in Gibsons, c. 1930. Sunshine Coast Museum & Archives.

21

PAGE 4



STRATEGIC PLAN: 2019-2022

PAGE 5

COMMUNITY

The Gibsons and District Public Library
(GDPL) serves the residents of the
Town of Gibsons, and the Sunshine
Coast Regional District (SCRD) Areas
D (Roberts Creek), E (Elphinstone)
and F (West Howe Sound)—a total
population of approximately 13,700.
Any resident in these areas may
join the library at no cost by simply
requesting a Library card. Library cards
are renewed every two years. In 2017
the Library had nearly 5000 active
members. In other words, almost 40%
of all local residents have a current
library card.

22

Over the last 5 years the Library has
developed and expanded its public
engagement through events and
outreach. Currently a library staff
member facilitates monthly visits to
Christenson Village, a care facility
for seniors, with library books and
audiobooks for residents. Library staff
also work with the teachers, staff and
parents of School District 46 to ensure
students are familiar with the Library
and the online databases that are
available forresearch and information.




Number of Programs

500
450
400
350
300
250
200
150
100
50
0

Each month in 2017 the Library hosted an average of 25 events for
adults, with approximately 250 people attending monthly. In 2017,
between 10-20 events for children and youth were hosted each month,
with attendance ranging from 50 to 900 (school presentations).

Adult programming includes:

e Support groups for caregivers of people
with dementia

e Conversational language groups

e Legal information workshops

e Repair clinics for small household items

e Linux information sharing

e \Writers groups

.

Children and youth programming includes digital literacy, story times,
book clubs, writing workshops, intergenerational knitting groups and
more.

Library Programs 2002-2016

2000 2002 2004 2006 2008 2010 2012 2014 2016 2018

Year

23

PAGE 6



STRATEGIC PLAN: 2019-2022

PAGE 7

COMMUNITY

Meeting the Needs of a

Changing Community

The Library is committed to equitable access and
creating a welcoming environment. A library
membership includes access to the services of
Centre for Equitable Library Access Collection
(CELA) and National Network of Equitable Library
Service (NNELS). These organizations offer more
than 230,000 materials for people unable to read
conventional print.

In the last few years the Sunshine Coast has
experienced an increase in unaffordable housing. A
growing number of community members in Gibsons
are living with impermanent or no housing. There
are also a significant number of residents who
live alone (approx. 39%) which makes isolation a

24

Photigf Library Director, Heather Evans-Cullen
and Science World presenter Kirsten Lee, 2012,

Coast Reporter

o e
2\

social issue impacting the community.
The Library is increasingly becoming
one of the few places of comfort and
community interaction for people
who may be facing housing issues,
loneliness, or both (see ‘Community
Profile’, Appendix A). The Library has
also ensured that people without
an address or phone number can
have access to the Library’s services




STRATEGIC PLAN -

2019-2022

FUNDING

In 1994, a by-law was passed to fund the
Library through regional taxation. This by-law
applies to residents in the Town of Gibsons
and SCRD Areas E and F only. The revenue
from Roberts Creek residents’ library tax is
shared between the Sechelt and Gibsons
libraries (46.5% each) and the Roberts Creek
Reading Room (7%).

Most of the Gibsons library budget comes
from regional taxation. The Library also
receives small grants from the Library
and Literacy Branch of the B.C. Ministry of
Education, and other minor incomes such as
fines. The Library’s largest two expenses are
wages and acquisition of materials.

In 2001 a generous bequest was left to the
Library to be administered by the Library
Foundation. The Library Foundation is a
not-for-profit independent of the Library
with its own Board of Trustees. Annually the
Library Foundation allocates approximately
$5000 toward supporting initiatives of the
Library to meet its Mission and Vision.
The Library Board can make a request to
the Library Foundation for any additional
funding.

The Library building is owned by the taxpayers
of Areas E, F and Gibsons and maintained by the
SCRD, and sits on unceded traditional land of
the Skwxwu7mesh-Squamish Nation, currently
leased from the Town of Gibsons. The Library
is independently governed by an elected board
of trustees.

Community outreach for the 2018 Survey.

PAGE 8



STRATEGIC PLAN: 2019-2022

PAGE 9

PREVIOUS STRATEGIC PLAN

2013-2018

This is the second Strategic Plan for the Library. The first was a five-year plan adopted in
2013 (to 2018). The key background research for this plan was an extensive public survey
where 1500 community members were surveyed, 74% of them Library users. There were
nine recommendations made based on the results of this survey, including:

e Expand print and electronic resources

e Expand programming

e Consider additional hours for opening

e Update the communications strategy including an
improved website

e Consider strategies to engage youth
and younger adults

26



&
A
L
Y A
A8
Y
YA
VA
4N
N
N
Y
N
A S

University Life Panel at

~  the GDPL, August 2018

2013-2018 STRATEGIC PLAN

The 2013-2018 Strategic Plan
included a number of these as
part of the eight Strategic Goals
including ‘Reaching Out’ and
‘Raising Awareness.” In total, 36
Actions were recommended in
the 2013-2018 Strategic Plan,
with 22 being the responsibility of
staff, 12 being the responsibility
of the board, and 2 falling to both
staff and board. Outcomes from

the first strategic plan included
a reorganization of the interior
space of the Library; increased
programming for adults,
children and youth; evening
hours during one evening a
week; an updated website; and
improved partnerships between
the Library and other community
organizations. (For more, see

Appendix H).

27

PAGE 10



STRATEGIC PLAN: 2019-2022

MISSION

~
P

<

00 5AOO

AO0I AAAVS FHL

PAGE 11

Connecting our
community to the
world of culture,
knowledge and
ideas through our
resources, expertise
and inspiration.

28

“The library
is a space
where we all
feel welcome.
My drug
using clients
who don’t
feel welcome
anywhere

in the world
feel welcome
there.”

Brent Fitzsimmons,
Vancouver Coastal Health



VISION

All residents
enrich their lives
and communities

through the

library.

VALUES

The board, staff
and volunteers
of the Gibsons
and District
Public Library
value: integrity,
community
engagement,
learning and
intellectual
freedom.

29 PAGE 12



STRATEGIC PLAN: 2019-2022

2019-2022

PAGE 13

STRATEGIC GOALS & ACTIONS

The Strategic Goals & Actions for the GDPL 2019-2022
Strategic Plan evolved from a process of research
(Appendix B, C, G & H), community and stakeholder
engagement (Appendix D,F), public survey (Appendix E),
a community profile (Appendix A), and review of best
practices (internal and external).

N &
| d - ' =

30




*

5
.

K4
\ QJ .‘
s \

Expanding Horizons

Underlying the Strategic Plan is the awareness
of the changing role of the Library. In Gibsons as
throughout North America, libraries are shifting
from organizations that lend hard copy materials
(books, magazines, CDs, etc.) to welcoming
places that encourage learning, engagement and
imaginationthrough accesstohard copy materials,
online resources, and connection to others in the
community and elsewhere.

31

ME
* y

~

.’ g
Al ‘\ 4

PAGE 14



STRATEGIC PLAN: 2019-2022

STRATEGIC GOALS

The following 4 Strategic Goals and 24 Actions
provide direction to the Library Board and Staff
as they continue to enhance the role of the
Library in Gibsons and surrounding community.
The Strategic Plan is a living document that will
bereviewed andrevisedinanongoing mannerto
ensure the Library meets its priority objectives
efficiently.

Develop
Internal

Capacity

Formalize
and Develop
Community

Partnerships

Evolve to
the Changing
Needs of the

Community

Maintain and
Strengthen the Role
of the Library as

a Publicly-Funded

Community Hub

PAGE 15 32



DEVELOP

INTERNAL
CAPACITY

|
STRATEGIC ACTION RESPONSIBLE TIMELINE
Year 1 2
a. Complete a full job review for staff with
appropriate pay scale, including clarifying
responsibility for the newsletter, website Library Director ()
updates, social media, volunteers and
community partnerships.
b. Develop job descriptions for the Vice- Board Manual ®
Chair and Board Liaisons. Committee
c. Develop the library’s role as a digital Library Director and ®
literacy hub for all levels. Staff ®
d. E‘nsurte an .annua:j Sta;f/tBo;rd S\:lortkm.g Library Director
session to review and update the Strategic
. - p 8 & Chair of the Board ® o o
Plan in a positive, proactive format.
e. Ensure ongoing communications with
the Library Foundation, including an annual Library Director ®
presentation to their board on the Strategic & Chair of the Board ‘ ‘
Plan and ongoing activities.
f. Develop job descriptions, training and
expectations for volunteers in order
to maximize the skills and expertise of Library Staff ()
members of the community who can
support the Library’s work.
g. Develop and implement an evaluation
process that demonstrates the impact Library Director and ® °
of library services and programs on the Staff ®
community.

33

PAGE 16



STRATEGIC PLAN: 2019-2022

STRATEGIC GOAL

FORMALIZE AND
DEVELOP COMMUNITY
PARTNERSHIPS

STRATEGIC ACTION RESPONSIBLE TIMELINE

Year 2

a. Work with School District 46 to solidify a partnership

in terms of shared interests — presentations at schools, | Library Director & ®

students’ orientation to the Library, access to online Staff

databases, and other collaborative opportunities.

b. Formalize the relationship with Vancouver Coastal

Health and Sunshine Coast Community Services with

regard to supporting marginalized members of the| Library Director & ®

community including lower income users, children Staff

living in poverty, First Nations and newcomers to British

Columbia.

c. Continue to provide opportunities for the community

to participate in Truth and Reconciliation, and continue Library Director PY

to work with the Skwxwu7mesh-Squamish Nation on & Staff

Reconciliation and partnership.

d. Formalize a working group of the Sunshine Coast

Museum and Archives, Gibsons Art Building, and Gibsons Library Director

Public Market to encourage a downtown Cultural & Staff ®

Precinct and partnership opportunities.

PAGE 17 34




EVOLVE TO THE
CHANGING NEEDS
OF THE COMMUNITY

STRATEGIC GOAL

STRATEGIC ACTION RESPONSIBLE TIMELINE
Year 2 4q
a. Ensure the collections are up-to-date, relevant and . .
. . L . Library Director &
accessible, with a priority focus on Young Adult literature Staff () ()
a
and materials.
b. Develop programming and communications targeting .
. Library Staff [ ) (]
remote and independent workers.
c. Provide clear information and orientation to online
resources including inter-library loans, data bases, and Library Staff [ )
e-books.
d. Renovate the library’s web presence to make it more
accessible and user friendly, and include staff photos
with short, personal insights in the “About Us” section. Library Staff [ )
Staff photos and caption could also be replicated on a
wall in the Library.
e.Allocate additional resources to and expand community
programming in order to strengthen the development of Library Staff [
a Cultural Precinct.
f. Build communications and relationships with local
. . Library Director &
businesses to reach new residents and others who may Staff ()
a
not know of the Library.

35

PAGE 18



STRATEGIC PLAN: 2019-2022

MAINTAIN AND STRENGT
THE ROLE OF THE LIBRA
AS A PUBLICLY-FUNDED

COMMUNITY HUB
STRATEGIC GOAL

STRATEGIC ACTION

RESPONSIBLE

TIMELINE

Year

2

F =Y

a. Revise the tracking of internal metrics to ensure priority objectives are
being monitored effectively including circulation trends, participation
demographics, and programming activities that align stakeholders’
and GDPL’s strategic objectives. Metrics may be of use for staff,
board, funders, governmental organizations, partners and other key
stakeholders. Include quantitative and qualitative data to ensure the
impact of the library is measureable and personalized.

Library Director &
Staff

b. Increase library membership with the aspiration to achieve over
40% of the population having active library cards.

Library Director,

Board & Staff

c. Ensure that the Sunshine Coast Regional District and Town of
Gibsons elected officials are kept up-to-date with the work of
the Library as a publicly-funded community hub through annual
presentations, ensuring alignment with local government strategic
priorities (see Appendix B).

Library Director &
Board

d. Explore opportunities to have a presence in community events
such as the Farmers Market and the Sunshine Coast Festival of the
Written Arts to expand the public’s awareness and understanding
of the Library.

Library Staff

e. Explore introducing Library services such as a drop box and/or
pick up site in Upper Gibsons, potentially at the Recreation Centre
and/or as part of the amenity contributions of a new development.

Library Director, Staff
& Board

f. Work with the Library Foundation to explore the funding of new
initiatives that could be supported by the Foundation on its own or
in partnership with other funders.

Library Director &
Board

g. Work with the Town of Gibsons to improve and add creative
directional and wayfindng to the Library within the Cultural
Precinct. (See examples Appendix G.)

Library Director &
Staff

PAGE 19

36




“The Gibsons Library is
recognizing the changing
role of municipal library.
It is a centre of learning,
knowledge and community
gathering—the ideal of
what a library should be,
especially for a small town
with limited resources.”

Patrick Bocking,
Superintendent School District 46

37

PAGE 20



CONTRIBUTORS

We are grateful to the Gibsons & District
Library staff, Board of Trustees, volunteers
and community for their thoughtful
contributions to this strategic plan.

Staff

Heather Evans-Cullen, Library Director
Andrea Routley, Outreach Coordinator
Amanda Nichol, Technical Assistant
Jocelyn Stewart, Technical Assistant
Lynda Carlson, Administrative Assistant
Sue Larose Cloherty, Circulation Assistant
Danielle Arsenault, Children’s Assistant
Tammie York, Circulation Clerk

Keely Park, Circulation Clerk

Justin French, Staff

Andrea Trevett, Staff

Carole Doerksen, Staff

Lorraine McMillan, Staff

Zia Van Blankentstein,

Summer Student

Board of Trustees

Matt Thomson, Chair

Janet Hodgkinson, Co-Vice Chair
Alison Sawyer, Co-Vice Chair
Robert Flux, Trustee

Janine Young, Trustee

“What can | say, the
Gibsons Library is a great
place to kick back and Marah Farmer, Trustee

relax! The new model has Robert Bennie, Trustee

allowed for a more open Joyce Bradbury, Trustee

concept that all ages can Tim Southam, Trustee

enjoy. So much to choose Lorne Lewis, SCRD Representative

from. The library is more Silas White, Gibsons Representative

than checking out a book. Consultants

Drop by, stay a while, Maria Stanborough,

and read a newspaper Principal, C+S Planning Group
or magazine, use a Julia Hulbert, Arts and Culture Planner

computer or wifi. There is
so much more. Just reach
out to the staff - friendly,
helpful they will be.” -
Survey Respondent




APPENDICES

Appendix A

COMMUNITY PROFILE, SUMMER 2018
Appendix B

TOWN OF GIBSONS STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
Appendix C

SOCIAL MEDIA AUDIT
Appendix D

SWOT ANALYSIS
Appendix E

2018 SURVEY: SUMMARY,

MAP OF RESPONDENTS

RESULTS

QUESTIONNAIRE
Appendix F

STAKEHOLDER QUESTIONNAIRE

LIST OF STAKEHOLDERS INTERVIEWED
Appendix G

WAYFINDING IMAGES
Appendix H

2013-2018 STRATEGIC PLAN

39

T T T

T T

PAGE 22



STRATEGIC PLAN: 2019-2022

Appendix A

GIBSONS & DISTRICT PUBLIC LIBRARY
COMMUNITY PROFILE

Gibsons and District ( Sunshin
Public Library s
(GDPL) serves the "

southern region of -

the Sunshine Coast. N

This area includes the

Town of Gibsons,

Elphinstone, West Howe Sound

(Keats & Gambier Islands), and Roberts
Croek. The regional library is situated in the
Town of Gibsons on the unceded land of the
Skwxwu7mesh-Squamish Nation, who have
occupied the present-day Sunshine Coast
Photo of Gibsons & District Library staft. for a millennium.

Demographlcs
Town of Gibsons Population
4.800 The Town of Gibsons' population was 4,605
: in 2016, a 3.8% increasse from 2011. The

4.4¢ larger region that the Library serves had a
1,20 total population of 13,733 in 2016, a growth
1,000 of 3.9% from the previous census year of
I 2011.

H In 2016, the median age of Gibsons

population was 64 and 62.8 in the southem

Figure 1: Population growth from 2001-2016, from the region of the Sunshine Coast.

national census.

Projected population: Gibsons and area has experienced an historical growth rate estimated
between 1.1% - 1.4.%. Based on a 1.2% growth rate, the population of Gibsons for 2023 will be
6,130 (based on 2016 statistics).

Community Profile 1

40



Prepared by C+S Planning Group June 11,2018

Projected population: Gibsons and area has experienced a historical growth
rate estimated between 1.1% - 1.4.%. Based on a 1.2% growth rate, the
population of Gibsons for 2023 will be 5,130 (based on 2016 statistics).

I . Key observations and trends from 2011-2016 years include:

Il 1. More than 1 in 4 Gibsons residents are 65 years or older. For the Province as a
whole it is expected that the provincial population will not reach this ratio until
2038. The population of Gibsons shows an over-representation of people older

than 49 and an under-representation of younger people, relative to the population
of British Columbia.

2. The 50 to 64 age group remained at 26% of the population between 2011-2016
and the 65+ age group increased from 26% to 31% in the same period. That is a
substantial increase compared to other age cohorts, and this will have an impact
on housing type demand, social services, health care, and general retail trends in
the local area.

. While the 20-34 age group has
remained at 13% of the population,
those 35 to 49 of age have dropped
from 17% in 2011, to 15% in 2016,

continuing a trend since 2011 of

SD46 Enrolment Trends

losing the population base of more

Ty =N 02N TN = N
. SRR e OENCEN = B
w

w—F-Year
established community members. ERIOIAE 79
4. The 0-19 age cohort declined from
18% to 15% of the total population.
This declining population has been
shown in a significant decline in Figure 2- Sunshine Coast School District 48 Enrolment
school enrolments. Trends, 2000-2017. Credit: Ministry of Education, School

District Proflle, October 17, 2017.

41 PAGE 24



Prepared by C+8 Planning Group June 11,2018

building permits of the last 3 years = = ‘<

r S

Development Trends

The 2015 OCP prioritizes the

Harbour area and Upper Gibsons 285 H a0

for development in the short term, | o W R |
and Gospel Rock (Elphinstone) in ~ [li: 0 0 Skl Stcam A5y 9
the medium to long term. The at ‘v,{ a ¥ b

-
!
-

7

. . A

indicate the majority of new
development in Upper Gibsons and
the Harbour area, but there is new
development being proposed in
Elphinstone during the last year.

?
,v
YD N

Three sites are being considered
for affordable housing and are in

the very early stages of planning.

In the first quarter of 2018 there
were 7 new development
applications as compared to 16 in
Q1 of 2017. 2017 may have just
been a blip, as Q1 2016 was only 7.

Short term rentals have been
identified as a concern and options
for legislation of this use is being
Gibsons arial photo, 2014. Credit:
currently evaluated. Town of Gibsons OCP, 2015.

“The number of people spending more than half their income on
rent is 40 per cent higher on the Sunshine Coast than the B.C.
average. As a result, the Canadian Rental Housing Index rates
the Sunshine Coast as “severely unaffordable.” The average rent
on the Sunshine Coast is $1,031, but that figure is a poor

reflection of what is actually available.”
- Ray Shore, Vancouver Sun, May 15, 2018
Community Profile 3

42



Prepared by C+S Planning Group June 11,2018

The Library Today

“MISSION: The Library offers
the resources, expertise, and
inspiration to connect the
Gibsons and District
community to the world of
culture, knowledge and
ideas.”

- Strategic Plan 2013-2018

The library is a place that is open and
welcoming to the public, a place of equal
access and intellectual freedom, with
programming that inspires and motivates the
community.

The Library’s vision is to have all residents
enrich their lives and communities through
their Library.

The GDPL currently has 6,255 members, Detail of Tiaamin Totem by Annie

approximately 52% of the area’s residents. ‘:‘“-t GRS
088

Of these, 48% are active users of the library. Tourism, 2018.

Across B.C. on average 42% of residents have a library card.
GDPL serves 10% more than the average.

As part of the Library’s first strategic
plan for 2013-2018, a survey was

Library Programs 2002-2016

S0
conducted and found that the Library %
is valued and appreciated by the g -
community and meets the needs of % ::
its membership. s 150
100
Survey participants were asked to o
identify areas for future improvement wwe. amr - ams s ’°°‘: “m M2 204 06 08
Community Profile Figure 3: Library programs from 2002-2016 4

43



Prepared by C+$8 Planning Group June 11,2018

and highlighted the desire for more programs, events and workshops. Since the survey
report was released to staff and board in 2012 there has been a marked increase in the
number of programs offered by the Library (see Figure 3).

As Figure 4 and 5 illustrate, the
Total Program Attendance

4000 total number of program
:: attendance has fluctuated and
} s000 significantly increased over the
s
¥ oo past 13 years. Most recently,
: - between 2016 and 2017 there
0 was a 25% increase in program
2000 2002 2004 2006 2008 2000 2002 2004 2006 2048
Year attendance at the Library. New
Figure 4: Library program attendance from 2002-2017. proglammlng such as Inter-
generational Knitting Circles,

Open Mic Nights and Reading with Dogs have brought youth, children and families
into the Library.

Total Total Total adult Attendance Children's Attendance Young Attendance
library program programs at adult programs atchildren's adult at young
programs attendance programs offered programs programs adult
offered programs
2016 467 5.361 323 3,615 9 1.564 28 182
2015 397 5805 286 3,529 65 2040 24 236
2014 339 4,799 230 3376 62 1325 15 a8
2013 248 3.207 147 1310 7 1,796 9 101
2012 257 2553 92 1175 81 1,204 5 84
2m 119 3085 24 825 80 2215 3 45
2010 77 3676 20 2,325 45 1312 4 3%
2009 126 3.136 47 1,660 50 1428 8 48
2008 142 3824 30 1,320 98 2480 2 24
2007 86 2913 27 1,485 59 1428
2006 m 3.466 32 2,086 79 1380
2005 73 2945 23 2,055 50 890
2004 73 2240 15 1,275 58 265
2003 73 1,680 17 700 56 980
2002 73 1.680 17 700 56 980
Figure 5: Library programming overview, 2002-2016.
Community Profile 5

44



Prepared by C+8 Planning Group June 11,2018

Looking Forward - Trends to Consider

= The majority of households i
Coast Regional District are one person
household (39%), followed b

withnuit childran (20 and ranciic familicc wi
-~ AN Wy

FFIU VUL VIR Wil (VW /U)W W

children (24%).

» As of the 2016 census, 27.5% of children in
the Town of Gibsons between 0-5 years old were
living in low income households.

E
:
|
;

Photo credit: Gibsons & District Public Library = Income is identified as one of the top
Facebook Page. challenges to people in the Sunshine Coast
Regional District. The median income on the
Sunshine Coast is $34,894, 25% lower than the average for B.C.

. Immigrants living in Gibsons are approximately 6% of the population as compared to
11% for the province as a whole. However, immigration to Gibsons increased from
2% between 2006-2010 to 3% from 2011-2016.

. Eighty-six per cent (86%) of residents
identify English is their mother tongue, 2%
French and 12% other, inciuding Tagaiog,
Geman, Dutch and Korean (2016).

. Of the working population, 16% work from
home, 15% have no fixed workplace
address, while the remainder have a usual
place of work

. 34% of people working commute to work
outside of the Town of Gibsons

Photo credit: Gibsons & District Public Library
. Since the last census in 2016, there has Newslettor

been informal recognition of more young
families moving to the Sunshine Coast area. The GDPL has focused on children’s
programming, increasing it by 40% from 2015 to 2016, with an average of 1800
children attending programs over the past two years.

Community Profile 6

45



Prepared by C+S Planning Group June 11,2018

»  The development and unaffordability trends seen across the region have had an
impact on homelessness. On February 5, 2018, RainCity Housing opened a cold
weather shelter 600m from the Library. The Library is one of the few public spaces
in Gibsons and with its close proximity to the shelter, the Library has experienced
an increase in vulnerable visitors. This presents both opportunities and challenges
to the Library’'s service delivery.

*  There are a number of larger residential and mixed use development n nll
projects in the area which may present an opportunity for a community n laa
amenity contribution toward public library services in areas away from
the downtown.

References

BC Ministry of Education. (2017). Student Statistics — 2016/17 [Various School Districts]. Victoria:
Government of British Columbia.
Eckford, Sean. (February 3, 2017). “Gibsons shelter aims for Feb. 5 opening.” CoastRaportar Net

Ministry of Education. (2016). Overview of Class Size and Composition in BC Public Schools
2016/17. Victona: Government of British Columbia.

myhealthmycommunity.org. (2017). “Sunshine Coast Community Health Profile.” My Health My
Community.

Ministry of Education. Number of Schools by Grade Range & School Type. 1998/99 to 20156/16
inclusive. Victona: Government of British Columbia.

Statistics Canada. 2017. Gibsons, T [Census subdivision], British Columbia and Sunshine Coast, RD

[Census division], British Columbia (tabls). Census Profile. 2016 Census. Statistics Canada
Catalogue no. 98-316-X2016001. Ottawa. Released November 29, 2017.

Statistics Canada. 2017. Sunshine Coast F, RDA [Census subdivision], British Columbia and
Sunshine Coast, RD [Census division], British Columbia (table). Census Profile. 2016 Census.
Statistics Canada Catalogue no. 98-316-X2016001. Ottawa. Released November 29, 2017.

Statistics Canada. 2017. Sunshine Coast E, RDA [Census subdivision], British Columbia and British

Columbia [Province] (table). Census Profile. 2016 Cansus. Statistics Canada Catalogue no.
98-316-X2016001. Ottawa. Released November 29, 2017.

Statistics Canada. 2017. Roberts Cresk [Population centrg], British Columbia and Bntish Columbia
[Province] (table). Census Profile. 2016 Census. Statistics Canada Catalogue no. 98-316-
X2016001. Ottawa. Released November 29, 2017.

Town of Gibsons, Community Development, (2015). Official Community Plan.

Community Profile 7

46



Appendix B

Social Media Audit

Comparison libraries selected based on similarity to the total population size served in 2016.

Gibsons & District Salt Spring Whistler Creston
Public Library Island Public Public Library
Library Association
Total population served in 2016 | 11,761 10,476 10,485 13,321
548 894 1,728 880
Facebook
Twitter 350 562 907 177 (not
active)
Instagram 214 334 677 70
Newsletter v X v X
Website v v v 4
Recommendations
Facebook:

e Aim to post 3-5 times/week

e Add a pop-up message to welcome people to the Library

e Cross link all three postings to develop your followers across all three platforms

e Consider having speakers or staff create custom posts to highlight their work and program offerings

e Create Facebook event pages for all events 3 months in advance (or as early as they are confirmed). Cross
post these event listings to local Facebook pages.

e Consider posting the survey results on Facebook. People love to see what they have shared!

¢ If not already doing so, follow other regional libraries and repost some of their interesting content with links,
to build relationships and show that the Library is part of a network of people and communities

Instagram:
e Aim to post 3 times/week
e Use IG Stories and create Highlights
o Highlight ideas:
= interior of building, walk through
= exterior, views and around the building
=  how to check out a book
= |ego building
= kids’ area walkthrough
= seed library
= staff book recommendations / interviews / favourite thing about the library
e Create a hashtag campaign — what are you reading? Then turn into a highlight
e Add address to description
e Swap out icon for a higher resolution and centred logo
Twitter:
e Aim to post 3 unique tweets/week and retweet 3 times/week = 6 interactions

e Use platforms like hootsuite to preprogram and cross post to all three platforms
e Link to other local organizations to increase retweets and to reach new people within the Gibsons area

47 PAGE 30



STRATEGIC PLAN: 2019-2022

Appendix C

2016 TOWN OF GIBSONS
2018 STRATEGIC PLAN

Nature is our most
valuable asset

-

\.




June 20, 2018

Stakeholder Workshopa | Gibsone and District Public Library
Staff & Baard ol Tnstees

SWOT ANALYSIS

Strengths
« wolunieers do sheling
«  SETES poprulaiion
« saaff
« online resources are huge SDD-2D00 {(whp was thie?) = theye data
« chiidren and youth programs - more than Sechel
«  intepencraional place
« nice aimasphen
« hrary s a HUB — commmurity-minded
« good space, windows, ciose tp the heart of Giheans
« siaff recommendations help palons
« siaff comrmunicatkm
« comecied © ibrary syskeam (access)
« books, magazines
« programming s free
« gt teen, childsen programs at the Bbrary
« nterbsary ocals means that things are avadable from anywhere
« npdwd gxre
« wolunieers
« something for everyone
« community hub
« new director
« good reputation - buik in credibiity for programming
« Jiiveciive Space
«  wviewll
« semive 1 nancal challenges
« gecepling ol “uniqueness”
« Erary neutmlty means that it B easy 1D engage other organizatkns as callshoraons
« ¢uest staff
« open { welnaming amnvirorment

«  sapportive and fosgiving with Ines

o Eray clhse B very accepling - comes from Baard and staif

«  nonudgmental
« small W
« daw for programming apporuniies - preseaiers want i come here. [t s a destination.

Fage 107

49



June 20, 2018

« The only de-sigmalized space available 1 the public on the Sunshine Coast (camment
made by a patron).

« Direciors that are very accepting

« Naloxone raming was very well altended

= enpaged staff

« commited Bpasd

« fmendy, welcoming space by desgm

« shengihs, loyally of patrans

« gffons ta understand cammunity and do programming

« boaxi and Ebrary open to evolving appsopriately

« physical space =2 beautiful

« gmbracnpg change and tecnology

« Tty

« high level ol tust with funders and palsons — reparting out money and use budge an time
and on bixipet

« good reputstion

« good collabosainrs

« shiong Bbrary director - thinking putside box

« gitertion to hameless

« rary direcior anxd staft

« good relationships with patrons {(SCRD)
« good basrd

«  community suppost

«  suoressiul und-raisng

« nofmes far childeen

« volunieers

« coliections - pood books & DVDs

« websies and datshases

« freewih

= free computer use

« reconhguratian of Lirary space

« free parking

« good training with BCLTA for new boaxd members and menoing progeam

Fage 2ot ¥

50



June 20, 2018

ESL nter-krary loans are difficuk
none
Frght night fery - commuier event - what happened © i?
ovexrworked stalf
past-time workers
cors=tency af volunteer wark - i they dan't show marks it dilloult
phw=ical comian ol fumshings
masing peaple wha access pnlng
youny people may not access Borary
Upper Gibsons dan't want 10 come here
hill in the winter
funding for staff
iack aof ransparency af why things happen (e feny event)
homogeneous commnily - are we mesng magpnaized peaple?
not encugh sesting
nadequate budget for presamers which severely Imits patential for diversity ol presentess
and perpensies nequalty in he region
unpail faciiaiorns
nadequate hours for staff time - no fulHime except Heather
Erary howrs for Manday-Fiday naccessible 10 workers
space
small Twn
lack af funding
desxre from youth for more comiaitahle chairs
not encugh time for professonal development for technplogy, cstames service, conllict,
mangnaization, pender lanpuage use, nseasely howused peaple.
siaff houes are a big weakness, no one works aver 20) hoursfweek
need another technical asssstant
nadequate haours for staff time - no lulHime except Heather
Iack aof adequate funding
nadequate stalff hours
space - s ol u=e
websie
o &g aversheimng lor people who da not speak Englesh
o lack af funding for websiie support

o need mare hours to updste it property
o out ol date gtyle — DD text heavy

no books in other lanpuages
healing system B DD noisy (sffects programs)

Fage 3ot ¥

91



June 20, 2018

amenites 1D support peogrammng need to be upgraded
o =nk
o fiosescent lighting
o healing gystem
changing role J identity of library - need 1 keep focus
online resoume
tight budpget and overall ncoease n bray matemis
poteniial challenges ta stalf - diffused focus
aSccessihilty challenge re: Upper Gibsons
volunieer rale may confict with urson
accesshilty for
diliculk 1o expand space where it B
sinuggie with space - staff, collections weeding
losing key boasd members, new board members caming up to speed
unimnized work errvimnmennt
Cupe 351 and VPL
wape expectatian and SCRD unding may not align
online collection = realy sioe - ebooks, audio books, budget = the Bsue
YA section & weak - need © buikl up collection
locatian - remote, hill can be a detenment
not accessible 1 Upper Gibeans
funding - never enaugh
busiicing = too =mall
not encugh parkang n Lower Gibgons in the summes

Board umoves, especially m the past 1B months. I takes time and ellart [o recist new
membess

relatkmshaps with staff (cumently ampraving).

« desre for mare educational events to bring them together

« “we dan't do enpugh with the stall”

« need ta be more proactive 10 enpgage with the stalf

« lack af understanding about what the Boasd does

« gome aganizatkns have a stafl member an the board (need 1 cornsider
costz assocate with this)

need lar staff engagement
on boarding new baard members - clarity pn logistcs and suboomimitiees
boaxd work a bt - canstant full speed
need kar more evaluatan 1ok 10 cammunicalion with the Baard &x progsammng
recent bus mute change made the Earary naccessihle lar sensars and those with mobality
need a ulHime technology tukar

Fags 4ot 7

52



June 20, 2018

«  IMNE COMpUIErs

Opporimniies
« Capiano Universily - patnership muli-cubural
« new peogle caming 1 the coast - papulaiion noease
« famies and kids programming
« “welcome wagon” for the coast, community services parnership
« Puhbiic Market parimership - olfer programming
« parnerships with priviie oxEZaions (e yoga cdasses, nutritkn st)
«  SETEDS ME COIMINgG; opporiurities to reach out
« technology support for seniors
« HOW
« donation box
« sgchools and teachers
« aurla book collecion
« teach kxis
« youwth programs
« pastners with school § bray
« digial Meracy nleyest
« it o He auskie ol 3chool lor pre-uni people

« Squamish Fest Nations
« social media
« child minding
« collee shop on Sunday
« Coifee bar m the beary
« Mandamn meet-up aler school
« 3D46 Vancouver Coastal Health
« Liesacy Coalition
« ghared funding for programs
«  welbaming cammunites - mare regular ours ol the Bbrary
« communication that the Bhrary s free - needs 1 be dear
« have other things besides books 1© be leant out - Ipols, equipment
«  Commurication / Access
« aovetize an Coast Aadio
« hpst a book dub pn the radip
« Digital Reracy with SD4& - low ncome kids
« good opporunity for parenting programs, scaeen ime ssues (Sanshine Coast Serices)

Fage 5ot 7

53



June 20, 2018

« VCH lor imo - warkshops
« epanx roe as tusted gource of monmation
« community leaming objective 1© be met; cormmunity hub
« funding Dpparuribes - grants, sisonger with pariners
« market through moease in websie, database
« ole wih elecommuiers
« zardie brary stations - rec centre? cammunity centre {different urion)
« Erary foundsion; commamity foundabon for event
« new funding struchusre from the provincal gove mament
« epanson to Upper Gibsons or satcliie
« shenghen Library Foundation - large amoast of money 1© deaw from anmuslly
« once the new Library Direcior liom Sechelt 2 hired there will be opportunities far renewed
relatkmsiaps
« Boarl relationships with Sechek
« role for VCH - srengthen relationships
« health and weliness i an mpotant pat of the Libranes service deliverny
« culhe cames - art galiery and museum
« increase in populahon - Beger user base
« pramote ibrary progeammng n other places such ag at the brewery
« go put inio the communily 1D delivery pegrams.
« gpanxing technalogy focus in the Bbrary
« changes in ibsary cullure o a leaming centre
« youwth lEDNs represanaive on he boasd

Threals
« online access
« dupicate psogrammng with Publc Libsary
« whp should our pariners be; who are we dupicating?
« how do we develap parnerships for programming when there B not enough money
« funding to support staff houss
« technology and keeping up ta dste
« busyness af people’s ives
« jobs
«  COmmuting
« distance akmy the coast
« how to deline when peppie want to access the ibrary
« funding - data ta Suppost money
« mental health and substance abuge within the cammunity
« take ovexr SD46 mie that SD46 can' - be caseful about gtepping on tDes

Fage 8ot 7

54



June 20, 2018

Iack af cormmunity peofile; “wity da we need prnt matermis”
not benp aware of iner-dibrary lbans or programs
need ta educate poliicians
vuinesable 1 povemment chanpes
threat to palitical push for 1 regional Bbeary - need ta commmumnicate why they are staying
expectalions of funders
how to capture gtrengths - long texm Empact shady
Libvary Founcdation
« hasnever done any lund-raising
« boaxl = under capaciy
Sechel B seen 88 a competiior for funding
ARance between the libranes - regionalized Ebrary boasd - became munici pally apportied
insiead of member elected
lack af land for development
lack af affordable housing
people leaving p
decined in users 20-34 age
changing relationships ta books
changes in ibeary cullure
changed to demand kar digital Bemacy
dilicully in Ending volunieess with younper populatcns

Fage 7ot 7

99



STRATEGIC PLAN: 2019-2022

Appendix E

Public Survey

The public survey was ‘live’ from late June to the end of July 2018. In total, 201 respondents
completed the survey (approx. 4% of the local residents). The majority of respondents lived
in and around Lower Gibsons, but respondents also lived in Roberts Creek, Upper Gibsons,
Sechelt, and as far away as Vancouver (see map of survey respondents location below).

The survey was available electronically on the Library’s website for the duration of the public
consultation period. It was also available at the Library in hard copy.

The Library took part in two outreach events to promote the survey and get responses from
the general public. One outreach was held at the Public Market Farmers Market at beginning
of July, and one at the Sea Cavalcade Festival at the end of July.

Following are a copy of the final survey, as well as a summary of the survey results.

Survey Respondents Self-Reported Location by Postal Code

Tetrahedron
Provincial
Park

Mt Rson powe Soup, o

Provfcial
Park McNab Creek
Tuwanek

) \\5\ \\"

Port Mellon

Gambier
Island

Sechelt Q @@ Bi
Selma Park
New Brighton
Davis Bay Gambier
y Harbour
Rof¥erts Cri pkins

Anvil Island

anding

thams
anding
S Keats sland

Pasley Island

Bowen Island U

Bowen Island . \
HORSESHOE BA

PAGE 39

56



Gibsons Public Library: Help us Plan the Next 5 Years

Q1 Do you use the Gibsons Library?

Answered: 201 Skipped: 0

m .

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%  80% @ 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes 91.04% 183
No 8.86% 18
Total Respondents: 201

Q2 On average, how often do you visit the Gibsons Library?

Answered: 181  Skipped: 20

Other (please
specify)

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%  80% @ 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

1370



Gibsons Public Library: Help us Plan the Next 5 Years

Almost never 0.55% 1
Once or twice a year 5.52% 10
Every few months (3 to 5 limes a year) 9.39% 17
Monthly 26.52% 48
Once a week or more 49.17% 89
Other (please specify) 8.84% 16
TOTAL 181

Q3 What services do you use? Please indicate all that apply.

Answered: 181 Skipped: 20
Check out
books,...
Check out DVDs
and CODs
Check out
e-books or...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%  80% @ 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
Check out books, magazines or other hard copy reading materials 92.27% 167

8%



Gibsons Public Library: Help us Plan the Next 5 Years

Check out DVDs and CDs

Check out e-bocks or other online malerials

Attend programming for children (10 years and under)

Attend programming for youth (11-18 years old)

Attend programming for adults (18+)

Spend ime in a comfortable space

Staff services for recommendations and assistance

Onine resources available in the library - e.9. mango, online games, google search
Access the Library's website for research and learning at home
Use the printer

Other (please describe)

Total Respondents: 181

51.93%
20.99%
10.50%
10.50%
31.49%
43.09%
38.12%
11.05%
20.44%
19.34%
18.23%

&

8 & 9 8 8 8 9

Q4 If you do not use the Library, why not? Please indicate all that apply.

Answered: 17  Skipped: 184

iy



Gibsons Public Library: Help us Plan the Next 5 Years

There are not
enough of th....

Other (please
describe)

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% S50% 60% T0O% 80% @ 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
| don't use libraries 17.65%
Everything | want is oniine 47 .06%
| don't have time 1o visit the Ebrary 0.00%
The library is not open during the howrs | can visit 5.88%
| forget to retum Bbrary items on time and | dont want the fines 5.88%
| prefer to own the books and magazines | read 17.65%
The programming doesn't appeal 1o me 0.00%
The programming Is at limes | can't attend 5.88%
The wait time 1o borrow matertals is 100 long 0.00%
| use other Library resources (e.g. Roberts Creek and/or Sechelt) 5.88%

aiuy



Gibsons Public Library: Help us Plan the Next 5 Years

The location is not convenient for me 17.65% 3
There are not enough of the types of materdal | want 0.00% 0
3529% 6

Other (please describe)
Total Respondents: 17

Q5 Please add any further information here about why you don't use the
Library.

Answered:3  Skipped: 198

Q6 What do you like about the library? Indicate up to 3 responses.

Answered: 173 Skipped: 28

0% 10% 20% 0% 40% 50% 60% T0%  80% @ 90% 100%

RESPONSES
69.94% 121

12.72% 22

ANSWER CHOICES
Access to a wide range of hard copy materials
Access to online materials (e.g. e-books)

%10



Gibsons Public Library: Help us Plan the Next 5 Years

Access to wifi

Comfortable building

Convenient location

Nice ptace 1o spend time

Public events and programming
Stalf are friendly

Staff recommendations on books and DVDs

N/A

Other (please specify)
Total Respondents: 173

Q7 What would you like to change about the library? Indicate up to 3

responses.

Answered: 189  Skipped: 12

%6

13.87%
32.37%
31.79%
27.75%
21.97T%
49.71%
6.36%

231%

13.260%

n
=



Gibsons Public Library: Help us Plan the Next 5 Years

Other (please
specify)

0% 10% 20% 0% 40% 50% 60% T0%  80% @ 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES

More convenient location to where | live
More copies of top selling books

More DVDs

More e-books

Maore devicas 1o borrow (e.g. tablet, projecior)

More programming for children and families
More programming for seniors

Open Sundays in the winter

Open later in the evenings during the week
Technical support on how 10 use new lechnology
N/A

By

RESPONSES
2.65%

21.69%
15.34%
8.99%
34A7T%

8.A4T%

12.70%
44.44%
25.93%
15.34%
14.20%

41

17



Gibsons Public Library: Help us Plan the Next 5 Years

Other (please specify) 22.22%
Total Respondents: 189

Q8 The Library currently offers innovative programming including free
legal clinics, workshops on how to code, an intergenerational knitting
group, and conversational language groups. We are exploring new
programming ideas. Would you be interested in (check all that apply):

Answered: 166  Skipped: 35
-
for remote a...
More
programming ...
Fine

Forgiveness ...

More
children’s...

More adult
programming

- I

Other (please
describe)

0% 10% 20% 0% 40% 50% 60% T0%  80% @ 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
Programming for remote and independent workers 15.66%

More programming in the community, such as at public events and festivals 32.53%

Fine Forgiveness Day — return your overdue materials with no fines 0.00%

Mare children's programming 21.08%

More adult programming 39.76%

N/A 28.31%
Other (please describe) 16.27%

Total Respondents: 166

Q9 Please provide further feedback about programming.

Answered: 39  Skipped: 162

%40

42

R



Q10 Is there anything else you would like to share with us?

Gibsons Public Library: Help us Plan the Next 5 Years

Answered: 61  Skipped: 140

Q11 You are:

Answered: 185  Skipped: 16

Profor not to
identify

ANSWER CHOICES
Female

Male

Identify as other

Prefer not to identify
TOTAL

0% 10% 20% 0% 40% 50% 60% T0%  80% @ 90% 100%

RESPONSES
67.03%

28.65%
0.54%

3.78%

Q12 Age:

Arswered: 185  Skipped- 16

QP

124

185



Gibsons Public Library: Help us Plan the Next 5 Years

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% T0%  80% @ 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

115 9.19% 17
16-19 1.08% B
20-24 0.00% 0
25.39 11.35% 21
40-54 15.68% 29
55-64 20.54% 38
65-74 28.11% 52
75+ 14.05% 26
TOTAL 185

Q13 Postal Code

Answered: 185  Skipped: 16

16590



Public Survey
Gibsons and District Public Library

The Gibsons and District Public Library is in the process of developing its
next 5-Year Strategic Plan. We are lcoking for public input about how we
can better serve our community. Your input will be kept confidential and
anonymous.

The survey will be available urtil July 31st. Thank you for your feedback.

1. Do you use the Gibsons Library?
[ Yes — PLEASE GO TO Question I3
O no

2. If no, why not? Please indicate all that apply.

[ 1 don't use libraries

[ Everything | want is online

[0 1 don't have time to visit the library

[ The library is not open during the hours | can visit

[ 1 forget to retumn library items en time and | don’t want the fines
1 1 prefer to cwn the bocks and magazines | read

[0 There are not enough of the types of material | want

] The programming doesn’t appeal to me

[ The programming is at times | can't attend

[J The lecation is not convenient for me

[ The wait time to borrow materialks is too bng

[ 1 use other Library resources {Roberts Creek and/or Sechelt)
[ wa

[ other [please describe)

i you answered ‘No’ to Question ¥#1, PLEASE GO TO Question I6

67



3. If yes, on average how often do you visit the Gibsons Library?
[0 Almost never

[ Once or twice a year

[ Every few months (3 to 5 times a year)

[0 Monthly

[ Once a week or more

[ other (please specify)

4. If yes, what services do you use? Please indicate all that apply.

[ check cut books, magazines or other hard copy reading materials
[] check cut DVDs and CDs

[ check cut e-books or other online materials

[ Attend programming for children {10 years and under)

[ Attend programming for youth {11-18 years cid)

[ Attend programming for adults (194

[ spend time in a comfortable space

[ staff services for recommenddations and assistance

[ Online resources available in the library —e.g. mango, online games,
poogle search

[0 Access the Library's website for research and learning at home

[ use the printer

[ other

68



5. What do you like about the library? Indicate up to 3 responses.
[0 Access to a wide range of hard copy materials
[0 Access to online materials (e.g. e-hooks)

[0 Access to wifi

[0 comfortable building

[0 convenient location

[ nece place to spend time

[ public events and programming

[ staff are friendly

[ staff recommendations on books and DVDs
O na

[ Other (please specify)

6. What would you like to change about the library? Indicate up 1o 3
responses.

[ More convenient location to where | live

[0 More copies of top selling books

[0 More DVDs

[ More e-books

[0 More devices to borrow {e.g. tablet, projector)

[0 More programming for seniors

[0 More programming for children and families

[0 Open Sundays in the winter

[ Open later in the evenings during the week

[ Technical support on how to use new technology

O na

[ other

69



7. The Library currently offers innovative programming induding free legal
dinics, workshops on how to code, an imtergenerational knitting group,
and conversational language groups. We are exploring new programming
ideas. Would you be interested in {check all that apply):

[ programming for remote and independent workers

[0 More programming in the community, such as at public events and
festivals

[0 More chiddren's programming

[0 More adult programming

O na

[ other

8. ks there anything else you would like te share with us?

You are: Age:

O Female 115

] Male 01619

[ identify s other 02024

[ prefer not to identify [ 2539
(] 4054

Postal Code [ 55-64
[ 6574
[ 74+

Thank you!
Check in with us in the Fall 2018 for the survey results and our
2(19-2023 Strategic Plon

70



Appendix F

@ O8annine
_f/\l_| F]_J—l([/\_LJFL_[Lll _J r_]_ﬂ

GDPL Stakrholder Interviews — Parimers
Backpround: The Gisans and District Pubdi Library {GDPL) is researching and setting
goalsfactivities Tor its next strategic plan, 2019-2D23. One of the Library’s obhjectives is
ta use s limited resources ta most effectively cannect peaple with the materials,
services and programming of the Library. We are montacting you as an Exsting or
potental community parner 1 explare how we might mprove the GDPL's matenials,
programming, autreach andfor services far the community.
From wiat you knerw abaut the lhrary, wiat da you see as its strengths?
From wiat you knerw abaut the hrary, wiat da you see as its weaknesses ?

Do yau currently parner with the GDPL an community actvities, proEramiming oF
aiitreach?

I yes, wauld you descritie this partnership as successiul? Are there ways it could be
mpraved?

Do yau think there are ommunities of people you sernve who ould benefit from
Hogramming or ather services at the GDPL? I yes, please desoribe.

Are there any services, putreach andfor programming that you do that s similar to
GDPL’s wewk? Is this semething that is best done bry yau, by the GDPL orasa
parnership?

Do yau see ppportunities to partner an actvities, pragramming o outreach n the
future? If yes, what are these?

Is there anything else you would like t© share with us?

Thank yau.

71



STRATEGIC PLAN: 2019-2022

List of Stakeholders Interviewed:

Gibsons Arts Building

Gibsons Public Market

Library Foundation

School District 46

Squamish First Nations

Sunshine Coast Community Services
Sunshine Coast Festival of the Written Arts
Sunshine Coast Museum & Archives

Town of Gibsons

Vancouver Coastal Health

PAGE 55 72



Appendix G

Wayfinding
Examples o

VAl 8

CitVHall
i ',; Hpee‘Ma"S'OM

th+
; _ﬁ € lerary

PAGE 56



STRATEGIC PLAN: 2019-2022

2\

QqhnfnquT
(allery,

St Saf |

> 4

{otary Centre
0% The SArts
EATURING®
Mary Irwin

[fieatre

- )
Laurgf
ackinghousk
.Lr\) b4 oG
FEATURINGE
2 (1 >
(¢ Drehard
. <f
(naustry

cMuseum

HC Wine
Viuseum

ospera Place




Appendix H

Gibsons and District Public Lihrary
Stratepic Plan 2013-2018

The board and staff af the GDPL are proud to present the strategc plan. The Library
oeated by the members of pur ommunity t© meet pur needs; we wark ta marntan
and enhance our manmy curent strengths te ennch owr lives and community. As part of
aur mmmitment 1D this strategk plan, the board and staff will each have at least ane
member wha will be respansible for manitoring pragress and guding the work an action
iems to achieve pur gaals.

We offer the resources, expertise, and inspiraticn 1D oNNEC our cammunity ta the
world aof uiture, knowledpe and deas.

Vision

All residents enrich ther lives and communities theough their LBhrary.
Values

The boand, staff and volunteers of the Gibsons and Dstrict Publir Library value:
ntegrity, cammunity engagement, leaming and mtelechual freedom.

WE VALLE INTEGRITY

in aur paldes, procedures, programs, services and warking relationships we ensure that
WE are:

Consistent

Far

Respectiul

Accauntable

Ervironmentally responsible and viglant in ways 1O lessen pur foct print

WE VALLE COMMLINITY ENGAGEMENT

We are proactive in dentifying cammunity needs and finding mnovatie solutions that
build lang-term community capadty.

75



aarch 15®amzs 9

We reduce barmiers whenever passible to alow everyone aess to library programs and
SEIVICes.

We pravide a wekaomng and indusive hub for the community, with a foous on oukure,
knowiedpe and meas.

We [sten. We ensure that our members can communkaie with us in persan, on paper,
and electrani@ally.

WE VALLE LEARNING

We pravide pragrams, sernvires and fadlites to promote [ifelong lieamng.

We suppart and cifer reative, alive keamng ppportunities.

As an organEticn we embrace ontinuous leaming through such means as professoral
develppment (far stafT, board and volunteers), constant innavation and imprement in
programs and senvices, and respansiveness ta change.

We suppart collabaration (memally and extemnally) and reguBarty review our programs,
services and infrastructure to ensure they are suressfully meeting ther ppals and the
cammunity’s needs.

WE VALLE INTELLECTUAL FREEDOM

Libraries suppart an nformed dtizenry by providing and defending free axcess ta
miformation.

We suppart the Canadian Lirary Assocation's Statement an Intellectual Freedom.

We are vigilant n dentifying and responding ta threats to inkellectual freedom,
especally as new ssues anse with new media and evalving technblogy.

We will cultvate ppportunities, as new technalogies may provide for inreased
demacratmation of mfarmation.

The mission, vision and values form the foundation
from which all decisions and actions are based.

76



aarch 15®amzs 3

Strategic Directions

Community Leaming Place

Advance the position of the GDPL as The Leaming Place i the cammunity.

Leverape and enhance the Lhrary™s existing positive rele n the cammunity

Foster and prumate the Library’s wekomng cuture af keaming, dversity and
mntelernal freedam

Develop and expand the Library"s breadth af informatian and keamng
appartunities with particular focus on the local community

Contnually monitor rapidly changng knowiedge saurces and make them
avallabde ta users as part of an up-in-iate, balanced callectian

Rase awareness af its range of programs, senvices and |eaming oppariunites

GOAL11
Raise awareness of the Library.

Beginning Date
Sty deve bp marketing, promotion, ad St - Sepr. 21132
Scticer board and Chief Libvarnan ta seek partnerships that Board, Staff - X113
further connect the Library to the oommunity.
Acticrr expand avadlabiity of lncl oollection items (e . St - X115
books, maps, rmusac)
GOAL1.2
Celebrate the Library’s Centennial — Re-launch the Library!
Scticer establish oo mittee to plan varety of acttes ad SaiF, Board,
promatians for 2[H4 Vohtesys - May X113

Acticar exsure the brary spaces ad welsite rediesipn are St - December X113
in place

77



aarch 5™ ams 4

GOAL13
To reach out.

Acticrr desiprate brary space (physical as well as
electronc) for oormmunity ard povermment infarmation

Acticar build children”s and youth ool liectian; eaplione
partnerships with SD46.

Scticer, staff to make recammend ations to board for board
rode n expading STHE partnerships

Scticar work with ESL partners (5046, Cap. U.) ta promote
library usage ard materials.

Acticer  seek partnerships (e = Salvatian Ay, 5t Barth's],
omputer arcess to uslerserved dient bases.

Acticrr boad member o read minutes and reports of Tawn
of Gilsans and SCRIY and highght relevant info. for GDPL

Begirming Date

ST - 214

Saf¥ - 20132

Board - 2115

Training and Development for Staff, Board, and Members

Preserve and nurture the fnendly culture of the Libmary enahled by its staif, while
enhandng staft and Board opportunites for professonal development. Tramng
and development for staff, Board and members ta adagt ta new trends in the

Library warid.

® Contnually monkar and adagt ta the makw shifis affecting the Library world.
Mast notably new technologes and the way pepple access and use Library
services as wel as stronger rolkes far Libranes within ommunity networks.

® Provide more ppportunities for training, professional development and pb

mobility for Library staft

® Erabhle more interacton between Library staff and the Board ta provide
better understanding of their respective roles and responsibilities, and

thereby provide appartunities for ontnuous improvement

® Ensure the Board s equipped to provide strategk ieadership n the changing
Library-verse through awareness, lIraming and successicn pEnnng

78



amach1s®amz |

GOAL21
Increase professional development for staff.

staff member

Scticer, foster trmning related 1o respomsaveness W cange
{e.g technical ard electronic)

Acticar foster ppporbunitees kxr mutual learming among
staff

Acticer_foster ppen ommumnicatians and knowledpe
transier among stalT ard with baard, Sechedt Libvary and
Litrary Foundation

Actiar seek shared traning apportunities (e.g. Sechelt
library, Community Services, SCRD, Tawn of Gibsans]

Begimming Date

Sl - X132

Staff - Apel 2112

Sl - X132

GOAL 2.2
Increase professional development for board.

Acticar use manthly board meetings to kEam more about
the brary (e.x mwite 1 ar ather staff to highlight aress]

Acticer  at board meetings, baard members actively share
their understanding of the Brary and their sovernance rale

Acticar board traming, development and year round
attentian 1o sucoessian plan nngs el into a board function

Scticer develop a data bank of possible boand
membersfxivisars (e.g., architecture, H R, technalogy}

Sty short boand bios ta be added to website
Acticar shawe stratepic plan and idess for ways the Library

Foundation can be an mtegral part of the 1800th
celelrations

79

Beginning Dates

Board - 2113

Board - 2113

Board - 2113

Board - Sept. X113

Baawd —Apeil 2113

Baard - Ape 2112



aarch 15®amzs §

GOAL23
Increase the community’s understanding of the Library’s resources and plans.

Berirmane d
Acticer plan the AGM to ke more of an event Board - Sept. X113
Acticar  deve bp volunteer human resowroe plan, shae St - X115
widely with board, staff and commumity

Acticar inkresse vo ke ey apporiunities (e.g. socal media, ST - X104
electronc, gandening, 100th celebations)

Acticar provile training SessSans Dn Electronc resowroes Staff — Mach 2113
o pations

Acticrr und evstard how GDPL ‘s Stratezic Flan aligns with 1, Board — Oct. X112

plaming in Gisons ad SCRD

Space

Defer huikding expanson planning, and foous on aptimizing the easting libmary
space (physial and virtual) t maxamize its utilization, versatiity and flexabdity to
deliver ibrary services naw and indo the future. Change the perspectne of
library space to exqprand beyand the bulding to indude the Website, sodal and
ather electronic media

GOAL3.1

Review the current physical space, floor plan and resources to identify
opportunities for improvement in utilization and reduction of our ecological
footprint.

Sty staff to mitiate reconfizuation of spaoe and ST - May 21132
osider if space uslit consultant s nenessary

Acticer work with lo@| povermaments o mmprowe parkns Board - 2113
ard access by transit, bBoycle ar by foot

Acticar install convenient shedtered bike radk (fursding from ST - May 2013
library day} biking for staff and patrans

Scticar oot eneypy aniit to lessen emnlogiaal footprint Board - 2115

80



Acticar staff to ook or mieas for an aff-site drop-box ST - X114
GOAL 3.2
Improve our understanding and use of virtual space.
Begnning Dates
Acticar upsrade the Website and moresse wse af saaal St - X113
e
Scticer, offer traininz sessions an website and aertronic St - X113
resources kr patrons
Sctiar build elechranic callectian St - ongoang
Acticar build a base of dectronic media volunteers Stait - 2005
WORKPLANS 0 implemest the Strategic Plan Direction, Gosls and Actioss
Action Lesd [lade Progress
Workplan for SEfT | Trecey March 15‘, 2013 Template
put into template campleted March 1,
2013.
Orgong
CCHTITILIN KCRATIDNS
with staff
Workplan for Board | Mangt, 2 ather April 15™, 2013
put intD template baard members

81



EEN'S CAPTIVE >

Zv_.b.:OZ __O<m
MNE KUTS

W

OV SORETHING
) o 1o TELL <OC

VORI 1

NDERA & o f({TWL4 INUGNFIC ¢
;s 4-”.-1 :..1-
A € BROKEN TH|E [

KUND

PAGE 65

82



A B C D E F G H J K L

2 |Sechelt Public Library, Five-Year Budget 2019 Budget 2020 Budget 2021-2023

2018 Budget

(Without

Retroactive Actuals to Dec 12018

Union Wage  |Total Area % % 4% per
3 Increase) A,B,D Amount S Chg Chg/2018 |JAmount Chg/2019 |Year 2019 Notes
4 |REVENUE
5 [Local Gov. Support
6 SCRD - Area A 29,894 30,898
7 | SCRD-AreaB 121,370 220,699 121,385 250,273 29,574 13.4% 261,034 4.3%
8 SCRD - Area D 69,435 68,417
9 | sieb 11,234 11,234 12,739 1,505 13.4% 13,287 4.3%
10| District of Sechelt 396,539 396,539 449,675 53,136 13.4% 469,011 4.3%
11 |Total Local Gov. Support $ 628,472 $ 628,473 | $ 712,687 | $ 84,215 13.4%| $ 743,333 4.3%
12
13 |Province of B.C. - Public Library Services
14| PLS - Operating 47,390 48,457 48,338 948 2.0% 49,305 2.0%
15| PLS - Resource Sharing 7,329 8,861 7,476 147 2.0% 7,626 2.0%
16| PLS - Literacy & Equity 7,975 7,975 8,135 160 2.0% 8,297 2.0%
17 | PLS - One Card 11,000 11,000 11,220 220 2.0% 11,444 2.0%
18 |Total Provincial Support $ 73,694 $ 76,293 [ $ 75,168 | $ 1,474 20%|$ 76,672 2.0%
19
20 |Library Revenue
21 | Other Grants 2,000 11,689 2,040 40 2.0% 2,081 2.0%
22| Donations 10,000 17,055 10,200 200 2.0% 10,404 2.0% Majority of donations were the result of bequeths
23| Printing - Copies/FAX 8,020 6,694 8,180 160 2.0% 8,344 2.0%
24| Fines 1,000 1,102 1,020 20 2.0% 1,040 2.0%
25| Book Sales/Lost Books 2,000 1,425 2,040 40 2.0% 2,081 2.0%
26| Interest 500 0 510 10 2.0% 520 2.0%
27| Archives Admin. Service Charge 1,350 1,013 1,350 0 0.0% 0 0.0% Library no longer serves Archives
28 | Miscellaneous Revenue 500 603 510 10 2.0% 520 2.0%
29 |Total, Library Revenue $ 25,370 $ 39,581 [ $ 25,850 | $ 480 1.9%| $ 24,990 1.9%
30
31 |Federal Government
32| Summer Employment Grant 1,764 0 1,799 35 2.0% 1,835 2.0% Payment will be received in November
33 |Total Federal Support $ 1,764 of $ 1,799 35 2.0%| $ 1,835 2.0%
34
35 |TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE $ 729,300 $ 744,347 | $ 815,505 | $ 86,205 11.8%| $ 846,830 4.0%
36
37 |EXPENSES
38
39 |Human Resources and Staff Development
40 | Sstaff Salaries 435,000 407,648 444,607 9,607 2.21% 453,499 2.0% Includes retroactive wage increases in 2018

Position supported to June. Included in salary to date. Amount

41| Youth Librarian 0 36,277 36,277 100.00% 37,003 2.0% is remainder of salary
42| Youth Librarian Benefits 0 8,039 8,039 100.00% 8,200 2.0% Benefits for youth librarian
43| on-Call Staff 0 2,000 2,000 100.00% 2,040 2.0% On-call staff needed as supervisor position was not filled
44 | Payroll Taxes - CPP/EI 30,000 27,872 30,663 663 2.21% 31,276 2.0%
45 | Benefits - MSP/Extended Health 32,500 23,569 33,218 718 2.21% 33,882 2.0%
46 | WCB Expense 1,000 0 1,022 22 2.20% 1,042 2.0%
47 | Pension 40,000 33,983 40,883 883 2.21% 41,701 2.0%
48 | Addnl benefits mandated by Union in 2020 —~ 10,000 100.0% Additional benefits mandated by Union for 2020
49 | Benefits on salaries of $60,000 12,017 6\512,017 100.00% 12,257 2.0% Benefits req. for 3 PT staff. Benefits started Nov for 2 PT




A B D E F G H J L
50 |Subtotal Personnel 538,500 493,072 608,726 70,226 13.0%) 630,901 3.6%
51 Staff and Volunteer Expenses 1,500 1,396 1,530 30 2.0% 1,561 2.0%
52 | Consultation Services 761 761 761 100.0% 776 2.0%
53| staff Development 3,000 1,151 3,060 60 2.0% 3,121 2.0%
54 | Board Expenses 1,500 2,017 1,630 30 2.0% 1,561 2.0%
55 | Recruitment Costs 500 10,617 2,000 1,500 300.0% 2,000 100.0% Recruitment costs reserve for new chief librarian
56 | Union Expenses 1,500 4,043 1,500 0 0.0% 1,500 0.0% To be held in reserve for every 4 yr negotiations
57 |Total Human Resources and Staff Dev. $ 546,500 513,057 619,107 | $ 72,607 13.3%] $ 641,419 3.9%
58
59 |Materials
60 | Books 55,000 43,003 61,050 6,050 11.0% 67,100 11.0% Increase required to keep pace with 11% growth
61| Magazines 5,000 6,454 5,100 100 4.0% 5,304 4.0%
62| Audio 2,000 2,284 2,040 40 4.0% 2,122 4.0%
63| Video 8,000 5,625 8,160 160 4.0% 8,486 4.0%
64 | On-Line Resources 15,000 18,543 15,300 300 4.0% 15,912 4.0%
65| eBooks 5,000 1,614 5,100 100 4.0% 5,304 4.0%
66 | InterLINK 1,500 -593 1,630 30 4.0% 1,591 4.0%
67 | Inter Library Delivery 3,200 4,005 3,264 64 4.0% 3,395 4.0%
68 |Total Materials $ 94,700 81,025 101,544 | $ 6,844 7.2%| $ 109,214 8.2%
69
70 |Building
71| Janitorial 10,000 7,972 10,200 200 2.0% 10,404 2.0%
72| Insurance 5,200 4,727 5,304 104 2.0% 5,410 2.0%
73| Utilities 15,000 10,693 15,300 300 2.0% 15,606 2.0%
74 In-library Maintenance - supplies etc. 1,000 1,235 1,500 500 50.0% 1,530 2.0%
75 |Total Building $ 31,200 24,627 32,304 | $ 1,104 3.5%| $ 32,950 2.0%
76
77 |Computer and Information Technology Services
78| Contract services (SITKA) 4,800 4,862 4,896 96 2.0% 4,994 2.0%
79| Internet Connections 3,000 2,368 5,000 2,000 66.7% 5,100 2.0% Inceased broadband capacity to keep pace with use
80| Software 800 1,518 1,600 800 100.0% 1,632 2.0% Software updates to maintain old computers
81| IT. Support 1,000 1,220 1,100 100 10.0% 1,122 2.0%
82 |Subtotal Computer Services 9,600 9,968 12,596 2,996 31.2%) 12,848 2.0%
83 Computer Equipment - under 200 1,000 1,099 1,020 20 2.0% 1,040 2.0%
84 | Computers and furniture 5,000 5,000 100.0% 5,100 2.0% Furniture and computer replacement
85 |Total Computers and IT $ 10,600 11,067 18,616 | $ 8,016 75.6%] $ 18,988 2.0%
86
87 |office, Communications & Other Expenses
88| Accounting and Legal 2,700 1,900 2,000 -700 -25.9% 2,040 2.0% Library and Board accepted lesser review from auditors
89 | Consultation Services 3,000 0 3,060 60 2.0% 3,121 2.0%
90| Telephone and FAX 1,600 1,720 1,632 32 2.0% 1,665 2.0%
91 Bookkeeping & Payroll Costs 1,000 1,095 1,020 20 2.0% 1,040 2.0%
92 | Photocopier 5,000 7,511 5,100 100 2.0% 5,202 2.0%
93| Fees and Dues 700 635 714 14 2.0% 728 2.0%
94 | Miscellaneous (includes freight) 1,000 1,742 1,020 20 2.0% 1,040 2.0%
95| Office and Processing Supplies 15,000 11,996 15,300 300 2.0% 15,606 2.0% Not overbudget. Covered by Friends of the Lib donations
96 | Public Relations 5,000 2,946 5,100 100 2.0% 5,202 2.0%
97 | Programming 5,000 10,940 5,100 100 2.0% 5,202 2.0%
98 | Postage 3,300 2,125 3,366 66 2.0% 3,433 2.0%
99 |Total Office, Comms & Other $ 43,300 42,610 43,412 | $ 112 0.3%] $ 44,280 2.0%

84




A E F G H
100
101|TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 726,300 672,386 814,983 | $ 88,683 12.2% 846,852 4.2%
102|Reserve 3,000
103
104|TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 729,300 744,347 815,505 846,830
105|TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 729,300 672,386 814,983 846,852
106|NET Surplus/Deficit OPERATING 0 71,961 522 22

85




_EHETINY
A Gateway to Human Potential

FIVE-YEAR AGREEMENT PROPOSAL

INTRODUCTION

Sechelt Library is incredibly successful. The growth in the number of users accessing the facility both in
person and remotely would be admirable for any library. We have achieved this success through
intensive community involvement and considered use of resources. We would like to continue this
success by being able to serve the growing population and the increasing number of people who benefit
from the social, cultural and economic impact of what we offer. Continued success requires support.

Surveys of more than 1,000 community members in 2016 including 700 in Trail Bay Mall found that of
those, 88 % per cent used the library within the previous twelve month period and 50 % per used it
every week. And,84 % said that their level of satisfaction with the library was excellent or very good.
Between 2015 and 2017, the library has issued an average of 913 new library cards each year.

This proposal for the Sechelt Library’s five-year agreement has two parts. The first part is our 2019
budget proposal. It addresses the maintenance of operations without enhancements or additions for
the 2019 calendar year. The second part is our five-year budget, which includes the funding proposed in
Part 1 for 2019 and continues through December 31, 2023. It concludes with an analysis of the 2014 to
2018 five-year agreement, specifically one of its objectives: to achieve funding parity with libraries in the
Province that serve similar sized populations. In this document, we also present business cases for
capital items and other necessities required to enhance services and add economic value to the
community. We begin with the background.

BACKGROUND

The Role and Impact of Libraries: Libraries are portals to knowledge, growth and self-development.
They are the creators of economic and social opportunity. Libraries contribute to life-long learning,
culture, work and play, and provide safe community spaces for all ages, interests and socioeconomic
backgrounds. The evolution of technology and the advent of the digital age have meant that libraries,
community expectations, and notably, library work have changed radically. We are determined to keep
pace with this change to meet the needs of our citizens.

The Success and Growth of Sechelt Library: The dynamic nature of libraries and enhancements in
delivery of materials and resources mean that the Sechelt Library staff’s work has increased. With an

86



increase of 15% in visits over the last three years, an increase of 171% in inter-library loans in three
years, and in 2017, 879 new memberships, the library staff’s volume of work has increased beyond its
ability to serve. With 125,600 visitors a year, we welcome an average of 50 visitors an hour. This is the
predicament of a successful institution and we want to ensure that we continue the same level of
customer service excellence that we are known for.

Due to the growing workload in 2018, the library closed to the public on Wednesday mornings so that
the staff could have the extra time to catch up with “back office” work. However, the library is still open
44 hours a week, which is two hours a week in excess of its agreement with funders.

History of Funding: Currently we are operating under a five-year funding agreement that expired in
December 2018. This agreement provided increases of six percent per year, which is a high percentage,
BUT factored onto a low base. One of the key stated objectives of the current agreement was to achieve
local government funding parity with similar libraries. This was an important and noble goal on all sides
and we appreciate the spirit in which this endeavour was undertaken. The result, however, was that we
did not achieve the funding levels of other libraries.

Per Capita Gap. One reason the library has fallen behind is because of the low base of its original 2013
operating budget. At the outset of 2013, the per capita gap between the Sechelt library and libraries of
comparable size was $4.96, and in 2017, in spite of the funding agreement of 6% increase annually, the
gap increased to $9.46. This data was reported by the BC Ministry of Education. In 2018 the District of
Sechelt conducted its own per capita comparison between Sechelt and Gibson’s libraries and the
difference was $17.17 or 40% (Sechelt $44.03 per capita & Gibsons $61.20 per capita). This comparison
underscores the fact that BC libraries are experiencing growth and receive comparable support from
their local governments.

PART 1, 2019 BUDGET PROPOSAL

In this 2019 budget proposal we present our needs for funding to sustain library operations as they exist
in 2018. For most budget items we have assumed a 2% inflation factor; however, there are a few areas
where more than 2% is required. Three of these areas are addressed below: 1. salaries and staffing,
including a Children and Youth Coordinator and Adult Program Coordinator, 2. books, and 3. bandwidth.
Each area is described and a justification is provided for why this is continuity of service and not
enhanced service. In our summary we include alternative actions necessary if the funding cannot be
provided. A spreadsheet with the 2018 budget, actuals and projections through 2023 is attached as
Appendix A.

1. SALARIES AND STAFFING
How We Serve Better--Staff Changes and Reorientation in 2017: The Province has greatly increased

access for patrons through the creation of resource sharing agreements. This service allows residents to
access not only the collections of the Sechelt Public Library, but also a large portion of the collections of

87



all libraries in British Columbia. The grant awarded to the library by the Province was increased to offset
the cost of this program. With a reduced postal rate and grant monies, our library can offer this service
for little to no cost for material deliveries. What this service does cost, however, is the staff time to
process both incoming and outgoing materials. Our library has seen a dramatic increase in the amount
of materials coming into our library for our patrons as well as going out to other libraries. This means we
can offer superior service to those living in the area who want access to materials we can’t maintain in
our own collections. We believe the increase in staff time is a valid trade-off for this service that people
in the area clearly want. By assigning 10 hours per week to part-time staff, we are able to manage this
increased demand.

How We Want to Serve Better--Staff Size Disparity: In 2015 and 2016, our library had the same number
of full-time equivalent employees (FTE) per 1,000 population served as similar libraries in our Province.
But, in 2017, our growth in population began to be felt at the library. In 2017 the library operated with
12 employees or 9.3 FTEs. The average for similar libraries was 9.6 FTE. Our population growth has
caused the library staff to be overworked and the FTEs per 1,000 population to decline. This is in spite of
an increase of one FTE since 2015. Today, Sechelt library has .05 FTE staff per 1,000 population. The
average number of staff per 1,000 population is .06 FTE as the table below indicates. Only one library in
our comparison has a lower FTE staff than Sechelt Library. To maintain continuity of service in 2019 and
again be at the average FTEs per 1,000 population served, we will need to increase staff by .3 FTE. This
increase will enable the library to sustain current service levels in 2019.

The following table shows the number of FTEs per library and per 1,000 population. Sechelt Library is
placed on the bottom for comparison. The only library with fewer FTEs per 1,000 population is Dawson
Creek Municipal Public Library.

Sechelt Library Population and FTEs Compared to Similar Libraries in Our Province.

2015 2015 FTEs per (2016 2016 FTE per (2017 2017 FTE per

Population (2015 FTE 1,000 Population 2016 FTE 1,000 Population (2017 FTE 1,000
Liraries Serving Similar Sized Populations ~ |Served |~ |[Employees| ~ [population| ~ [Served ~ |Employees| ~ |populatior ~ |Served ~ |Employees ~ |population ~
Castlegar & District Public Library 13,441 6.7, 0.05 13,441 6.7 0.05 13,798 6.7 0.05
Dawson Creek Municipal Public Library 18,673 6.3 0.03 18,673 6.3 0.03 18,455 7.7 0.04]
Gibsons & District Public Library 11,761 8.0 0.07 11,761 7.3 0.06 11,624 7.0 0.06
Nelson Municipal Library 18,310 9.4 0.05 18,310 9.5 0.05 19,481 10.0] 0.05
Powell River Public Library 20,049 11.5 0.06 20,049 11.5 0.06 19,042 10.6 0.06
Prince Rupert Library 14,245 9.9 0.07 14,245 10.5 0.07 13,224 11.5 0.08
Squamish Public Library 19,244 11.7 0.06 19,244 12.1 0.06) 19,303 12.6 0.07
Terrace Public Library 20,496 7.9 0.04 20,496 7.9 0.04 20,605 10.5 0.07,
Averages 17,027 8.9 0.05 17,027 9.0 0.05 16,942 9.6 0.06
Sechelt Public Library 17,257 8.2 0.05 17,257 8.2 0.05 17,552 9.3 0.05

Positive Educational Impact-Technology Coordinator: Access to information has changed drastically in
the digital age. Where books were once the main source of information, computers, tablets and phones
now represent a large component of how information is transmitted.

Our current five-year agreement requires us to provide technology services and specifically states in the
2013 Memorandum of Understanding that we are to provide “Access to public computers and Wi-Fi with
technical and customer service support, providing training to the public on the Internet use and
downloading digital resources.”

88




The shift in technology in libraries began in the 1990s when libraries were designated by government as
the vehicles for granting access to and education about computers. Librarians were given the task of
helping people adjust to a technological age and have been helping patrons with their technology-based
questions ever since.

Demand has increased dramatically with the introduction of tablets and e-readers. From 2010 onward,
our library staff has spent an increased amount of time responding to the technology needs of patrons.
This valuable service ensures that those living in Sechelt are able to navigate the digital age and have the
same opportunities as those living elsewhere. The increased staff time spent on helping with technology
needs meant that other library tasks such as cataloguing, processing materials, acquisitions, etc., were
continuously strained to a breaking point. This contributed to a significant number of staff experiencing
workplace stress, as not all staff felt competent to answer the level of technological questions being
asked by the public.

To provide continued technology service as we have been doing for well over a decade, a full-time
technology coordinator was hired when the public services supervisor retired. The addition of this
position has also reduced the need to procure some of our previously required vendor technology
services.

Positive Social and Emotional Community Impact- Adult Programs Coordinator: With the remaining
monies from the retired supervisor position, we hired a part-time adult programs coordinator. This
decision was based on two 2016 community surveys totaling over 1,000 responses. Programs were well
attended in 2018 with over 2611 participants.

The library now has 60 community partners and a recent partnership with “Better at Home” means that
the library materials can be delivered to the housebound.

Salaries. Salaries for library staff need to increase to keep pace with inflation. The library participated in
union negotiations in late 2018 and resulted in a 1% salary increase for the second half of 2018, 1.7%
increase for 2019 and a 2% increase for the years 2020-2023. Additionally, there will be a benefits
increase of $12,017 for three part-time staff who do not currently receive benefits. This increase in
benefits complies with standard practice. The 2018 salaries budget of $538,500 will increase to
$608,726 in 2019, an increase of $70,226 (52,693 + $67,533), as the table below indicates.

89



Sechelt Library 2018 Budget and Proposed 2019 Budget

2018 Budget 2019 Budget
Rev 2018
Rev 2018 (w/

1% (w/ Union % Increase S Increase

Increase S Increase Union wage | wage from Rev from Rev
Human Resources Original 2018 | fromJuly1l | fromJuly1 | increase increase 2018 2018 2019
Staff Salaries 435,000 0.5% 2,175 437,175 437,175 1.7% 7,432 | 444,607
CPP/El Expenses 30,000 0.5% 150 30,150 30,150 1.7% 513 30,663
Benefits - MSP and Extended Health 32,500 0.5% 163 32,663 32,663 1.7% 555 33,218
WCB Expense 1,000 0.5% 5 1,005 1,005 1.7% 17 1,022
Pension 40,000 0.5% 200 40,200 40,200 1.7% 683 40,883
Benefits on $60,000 staff salaries 12,017 12,017
Subtotal 538,500 0.5% 2,693 541,193 541,193 1.7% 21,217 562,410
Call-In staff 2,000 2,000
Youth Librarian 36,277 36,277
Youth Librarian Benefits 8,039 8,039
Total 538,500 2,693 541,193 541,193 67,533 608,726

Children and Youth Coordinator. The original 2018 budget included a part-time Children and Youth
Coordinator at 21 hours. This position fulfills our 2013 Memorandum of Understanding as it states that
the library, “offer ... young adult, and children’s programmes such as Summer Reading Program
(Provincial) for children and young adults” as well as “outreach services to children” and First Nation
services that include “weekly visits by children’s librarian with new library material to support literacy
development.”

However, in May, our Children and Youth Coordinator resigned and by August we had not attracted a
suitable candidate. By September it was clear that our budget was unsustainable plus we had union
negotiations with six months of retroactivity and recruitment costs for a Chief Librarian. If services as of
the beginning of 2018 are to be maintained, the salary for a Children and Youth Coordinator salary must
be included in the 2019 budget.

Funding for a full-time youth librarian will put us at the same FTE staff per 1,000 population level as we
were in 2016 and in line with similar libraries. Additionally, we believe a full-time youth librarian will
enable better First Nation outreach services as well as outreach to Pender Harbour. This position is also
assigned general library duties. The additional funds for a youth librarian salary and benefits total
$44,316 ($36,277 salary and $8,039 benefits).

Many of our elementary schools are over capacity as a result of more families moving to the Coast. As
reported recently in the Coast Reporter, Nicholas Weswick of District No. 46 reported they had
anticipated an increase of 20 students, but instead 97 students enrolled.

90




On-Call Staff. As with all public facing institutions, our library has found it necessary to hire staff to cover
vacations and absences of regular staff members. In 2018, the cost for these on-call staff members was
$2,000.

Salaries Budget Including Youth Librarian. As previously stated, the library’s 2019 budget for salaries
and benefits is estimated at $608,726.This includes the retroactive salary and benefit increase in 2018; a
salary and benefits increase in 2019, and a full-time youth librarian salary with benefits, and on-call staff,
as the chart above indicates.

Total Budget Increase

The total budget increase from the original 2018 budget to the budget needed to maintain continuity of
service in 2019 is $88,683 (2019 budget of $814,983 less 2018 budget of $726,300). See Appendix A.

2. BOOKS

Reading has been shown to develop brain function and keeps people intellectually challenged as they
age. Far from a simple leisure activity, reading holds a key place for developing and maintaining a
healthy society. We want to make sure we have the capacity to give our citizens the material they want
and need. The books budget has gone from $59,000 in 2015 to $55,000 in 2018. Yet, during that same
time period, the library saw an average increase of 913 new cardholders each year. In 2015 the library
had 111,493 visits. In 2017 the number of visits was 128,430. That is a 15% increase in two years.
Visitors often request the most recently released books. If they cannot find these books in the library,
they request them via inter-library loan, adding to increased staff time to process these requests. To
maintain continuity of service, the books budget should increase to accommodate the number of
visitors. Therefore, we consider an 11% increase from 2018 to 2019, or a $6,050 increase in the books
budget from $55,000 to $61,050 to be necessary to provide the same services as in 2018. Below is a
table that shows the successful increase in the number of people coming through our doors for services
and a books budget that does not keep pace.

Sechelt Library Books Budget

2015 2016 2017 2018 | Est. 2019
Sechelt Library Books Budget $59,000 $50,000 | $50,700 | $55,000 $61,050
Ideal Book Budget Based on 11% Increase $65,490 | $72,694 | $80,690 | $89,566

In 2015, 172,842 materials were borrowed. In 2017, the amount rose to 193,390. Sechelt Library’s books
budget has been under-funded for several years and has, in fact, dropped between 2015 and 2018. We
request an increase of 11% in 2019 and present a business case for additional funding for books in part
two of our five-year budget proposal.

Inter-library Loans. Our library has experienced a dramatic increase in inter-library loans during the past
three years as the Ministry of Education reports. Total books borrowed and lent have increased a total

6

91




of 171% since 2015. The increase in the number of loans means that more staff time is necessary to
process the requests. The library extended hours for two part-time staff to handle the workload. The
chart below shows the number of interlibrary loans processed and the annual increase from 2015 to
2017. Data are not yet available for 2018.

We are required by our current five-year agreement to provide unlimited interlibrary loans. It
specifically states there should be “no limits per person or weekly, monthly, yearly limits. No non-pick up
fees. Access to provincial and interprovincial resources. Access to the physical collections of members of
InterLINK.” This service is highly valued by our community, as demonstrated by its use. It is important to
keep this service, but also to improve our own collections so patrons can find the books they want in our
collection.

Sechelt Library Increase in Interlibrary Loans Processed

Interlibrary Loans Processed

Total
borrowed Annual
Year Borrowed Loaned and Loaned Increase % Increase
2015 2275 942 3217
2016 3272 4776 8048 4831 150.2%
2017 3956 5802 9758 1710 21.2%
Total Increase 171%

It’s worth noting that a declining books budget will sooner or later increase the cost of inter-library
loans. There is a charge for each inter-library loan. If our books budget decreases, so does the quality of
our collection. Other libraries will borrow less from us and we will borrow more. Our costs will increase
as we pay for this privilege.

3. BANDWITH

Internet access provides necessary connectivity for those who wish to stay connected socially, apply for
jobs, research social issues, understand their ancestry, search databases, read newspapers and
magazines, or visit the library at home via the Internet.

The library needs additional bandwidth as more and more patrons are accessing our library via the
Internet. Daily computer use places a huge load on the bandwidth. Increased bandwidth is an ongoing
requirement of most libraries, and many have increased their bandwidth to better serve their patrons.

With 17,463 Internet sessions in 2017 (an average of 55 sessions a day on 10 computers) it’s clear that
this access is key, especially for those without computers at their homes. An increase to the budget of
$2,000, or a 66% increase over the 2018 budget of $3,000, will provide adequate bandwidth capacity.

This is similar to Gibsons library that increased its bandwidth budget by 66% in 2017.

92




SUMMARY

To ensure adequate funding to continue with library operations as they existed in 2018, our library will
need an increase of 2% for most items in our budget to maintain pace with inflation plus the higher
costs specified above for salary and staffing increases, an increase in the books budget, and funds for
additional bandwidth. The total increase over the 2018 budget is $88,683. Staffing is the library’s main
cost and much of this increase is due to union negotiated salary and benefit increases and retroactive
salary and benefit increases in 2018.

This funding will have the added benefit of helping to close the gap in local government support
between the Sechelt Library and similar libraries as discussed in Part 2, below. We believe that this gap
has an impact in how the entire Sunshine Coast is perceived by tourists, people potentially moving here,
and by our current population. Some possible measures to deal with the financial shortfall may have to
include:

e (Close on Monday to compensate for the loss of staff time, which may reduce the volume of
work by reducing access.

e Leave either the popular adult programs position or the Children and Youth Coordinator
position unfilled.

PART 2, FIVE-YEAR BUDGET PROPOSAL
We have attached our five-year budget that includes our 2018 budget, 2018 actuals, and estimates for
the years 2019 to 2023. In the years 2020 to 2023, we request an average increase of 4 % per year from
our local government funders to keep pace with inflation and fall more in line with similar libraries and
the local government support per capita they receive. However, 2019 funding needs are higher,
primarily due to staff and benefit increases.

See Attachment A for the Sechelt Library’s five-year budget.

Sechelt Library Per Capita Funding Compared to Similar Sized libraries.
The Ministry of Education reports the per capita funding for all BC libraries. The Sechelt library has
compared the per capita amounts of libraries serving similar sized populations. In 2017, this was:

e 5$33.78 per capita: Sechelt Library

e $43.24 per capita: average of comparable libraries

e $50.21 per capita: Gibsons and District Public Library
e 5$53.82 per capita: Powell River Public Library

Comparable libraries were: Castlegar, Dawson Creek, Gibsons, Nelson, Powell River, Prince Rupert,
Squamish, and Terrace as their populations were similar to Sechelt, between 12,000 and 20,000.

It is clear that Sechelt Library is significantly underfunded by comparison.

93



As previously stated, one objective of the 2014-2018 agreement was to move toward parity with other
libraries.

“The Funders’ objective for funding the library will be to move toward parity for local
government support per capita as shown in the Ministry of Education British Columbia Public
Library Statistics as updated from time to time.” January 8, 2014.

Unfortunately, that parity was not achieved in the five years since the agreement was in place.

The chart below shows the local government funding for Sechelt library and the gap with similar
libraries. The orange portion of each bar shows the growing gap in funding in dollar terms.

Local Government Funding for Sechelt Library and Gap in
Funding Between Sechelt Library and Similar Libraries
(Ministry of Education - Libraries Branch Statistics)

$60

$50

$592,899

$527,678 $559,338
$40 $504,556 497,809 | _____ |

$30

$20

33.78

$30.36 $29.40 $31.16 $32.41

$10

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Ml Sechelt per capita @ Per capita gap

At the end of 2017, the library received total funding of $592,899. Using a service area population of

17,552, the per capita funding was $33.78. The average per capita funding for libraries serving similar
sized populations was $43.24, reflecting a gap of $9.46. In 2013 the gap between Sechelt Library and
comparable libraries was $4.96 and in 2017 it was $9.46. The gap is increasing, not decreasing. This is
not the direction intended by the library’s funders.

The District of Sechelt conducted its own analysis of funding and compared the Sechelt Library to
Gibsons and District Public Library. Using slightly different population statistics, the analysis revealed in
2017 our library had an average per capita cost of $42.43 and Gibsons had a per capita cost of $62.99. In
2018 Sechelt’s average per capita was $44.03 while Gibsons was $61.20. The District analysis supported
our conclusion.

94



Funding 2019-2023
Going forward Sechelt Library is looking for funding comparable to similar sized libraries.

e Local government funding of $169,779 will close the gap as it existed in 2017 and result in
$43.24 per capita funding for Sechelt Library. This would still be lower than Gibsons and District
Public Library at $50.21 and Powell River Public Library at $53.82. But, it would be in line with
comparable libraries in our study. If our 2019 proposal is funded for $88,683 as presented in
Part 1, $81,096 would be needed to achieve parity with the local government support to similar
libraries.

Amount needed to achieve parity, $169,779
Amount needed in 2019 to maintain operations, $88,683
Difference, $81,096.

The difference in funding of $81,096 could support our capital requests, materials, recruitment
costs, or supervisor position as described in our business cases below.

e Appendix B, shows the funders’ population, total funding, and per capita funding. Appendix C
shows the BC libraries we used for comparison, their funding, populations, and per capita
funding.

Sechelt Public Library — A Valuable Partner

The Public Library Association Board works in partnership with local, regional and the Sechelt Indian
Government District to deliver services that are responsive to community needs. Sustainable funding for
the library is an opportunity for government to carry out their strategic goals and mission.

Quality of life was cited as the main reason citizens choose to live in this area, and Sechelt Public Library
makes a significant contribution to that quality of life. There were commonalities in the strategic plans
of the Sunshine Coast Regional District and District of Sechelt. Both governments (and it is assumed true
of the Nation as well) have goals to both maintain and increase the quality of life of its citizens. The
Sechelt Public Library plays an active role in each of these goals.

Our patrons represent a broad cross section of the population including all ages, income levels, races,
colours, ancestries, places of origin, political beliefs, religions, family or marital status, physical or mental
abilities, sex, sexual orientation or gender identity.

Staving off cognitive decline through lifelong learning, providing resources for the unemployed, creating
future leaders as we give children valuable social and cultural experiences and giving teens a voice as
they look to create identities outside of home and school — these are just some of the social,
community, education and economic impacts the library creates for the Sunshine Coast. Diminishing
these services means losing these impacts. Increased funding, however, allows the library to fully

10

95



engage with our citizens, thereby increasing the quality of life and helping local and regional

governments achieve their goals.

BUSINESS CASES

Capital Items

The 2014 - 2018 five-year agreement specifies that it can be opened once a year for capital requests.

However, our capital request for the 2018 budget year was not successful. The library has received no

capital funding from its funders. Although we have not received funding for capital items from funders,

we have received funding for capital from grants, donations, and a bequest.

Capital Donations from the Friends of the Library. The Friends of the Library have donated
$85,000 to the library during the past several years which have enabled the replacement of 22
year old chairs that were collapsing, the purchase of book trucks, workroom furniture, an
electronic notice board, laptops for staff, and self-checkout machines.

Capital Donations for Renovations. A Canada 150 grant matched by a bequest to the library,
donations, and proceeds from our gala fundraising event funded the library’s recent $100,000
renovation project.

Donations from the Community Investment Program of the District of Sechelt and 100 Women
Who Care. These two organizations donated laptops and a technical wired cart for library
patrons.

While we are grateful to our various donors for providing some capital items, other requests for capital

have not been honored and the items are urgently needed. The Library wishes to make the following

requests from funders for furniture, software, business phone system, and website development.

11

Furniture. Four public area chairs and eight tables for the computer nook are needed to replace
ones that are old and too large for the space. The computer nook is narrow and cramped with
accessibility issues that reflect a dated, 22 year old vision of the role of technology. It is difficult
for the physically challenged to access this area. The cost is $20,000.

Public Computers and Copier. The library needs four new public computers as they have
reached the end of their useful lives. The cost for the computers is $5,000.

We have added a line item in our 2019 proposal request for $5,000 per year for replacement of
furniture and computers. This is standard practice for most organizations and in line with what
Gibsons library has received.

Business Phone System. Our library's phone system is outdated and inadequate for current
needs. For example, our Chief Librarian does not have an individual extension nor individual
voicemail. A new system is needed that will provide these services. This is a cost of $1,800 for
installation and an increase in the phone bill of $500 per year.

96



Computer Server. Our server must be replaced every five years. 2019 is the fifth year the server
has been in operation. It may last for one more year, but must be replaced soon to avoid a
complete shutdown of technology services at the library. The cost for a new server is $5,000.

Website Development. Our library's web page is a shared access template provided by the BC
Libraries' Cooperative to support smaller libraries. It is limited, inflexible and cumbersome. Web
updates and maintenance are done in house. For the last two years the library has added pages
but the needs are compromised by a system the library has outgrown. The library would like to
develop its own, independent website that is designed to meet the library's needs and which
will support ease of community access and navigation. The cost for this web page development
is $10,000.

These one-time capital items total $41,800.

Materials

Materials borrowed from the library increased by 12.3% between 2015 and 2017. However, the books
budget has been underfunded for several years. If an 11% per year increase had been applied to the
2015 books budget, the budget would be $89,566 in 2019. As we have stated in our Operating Budget
proposal, a declining materials budget will sooner or later increase the cost of interlibrary loans. If our
materials budget decreases, so does the quality of our collection. Other libraries will borrow less from us
and we will borrow more. Our costs will increase for this privilege and we need to “catch up”. Therefore,
we request an additional $28,516 ($89,566-561,050) to ensure the sustainability of the library’s
collections.

Recruitment

In 2018 the Library incurred an unbudgeted cost of $10,000 for recruitment for a new librarian. This is in
spite of the savings realized by not engaging the services of a professional recruiter. It should be noted
the library board reduced costs by handling the recruitment process. The recruitment costs were
covered by our modest reserve fund, which was obtained through a bequest and established for
renovations. However, the library should anticipate vacancies and build a reserve fund for subsequent
replacements. We request $10,000 to replace the borrowed funds and $2,000 per year as a new line
item in the budget for recruitment costs.

Library Supervisor Position

Our Chief Librarian is the only staff member who is not a member of the union, and we believe a
supervisor outside of the bargaining unit who would support the Chief Librarian and assume general
libraries duties if necessary is needed. Our Chief Librarian is extremely busy running the library and
cannot support operational duties that are necessary to accommodate absences and vacations, for
example. As the population of Sechelt grows, this is a position we deem necessary. Sechelt has been
increasing in population at a rate of 1.4% per year, yet our library users have increased more rapidly. We
have seen an increase in visitors of 11% each year for the past two years. This large increase speaks

12

97



volumes about the value of the library to the community. If this high rate of users continues, we will

need a supervisor position very soon. The cost for a supervisor position with benefits is $70,000 per

year.

Summary

2019 Budget. Funds needed in 2019 to maintain operations as they existed in 2018 total $88,683. Most
of our budget is staffing, which is subject to salary and benefit increases plus back pay. One reason for

this amount is because our library has been underfunded for many years and it is no longer possible to

maintain services without this additional funding. The library has cut every unnecessary expense and

there are simply no more savings available. The only recourse remaining is to cut staff and services.

13

In 2013 Sechelt Library signed a five year funding agreement with the SCRD, SIGD and DOS with
an annual increase of six per cent to achieve the goal of parity with similar sized libraries.

The gap has risen from $4.96 in 2013 to $9.46 in 2018 which is the final year of the agreement.
In 2018 the District of Sechelt conducted its own per capita comparison between Sechelt and
Gibsons libraries and the difference was $17.17 or 40 per cent. (Sechelt $44.03 per capita &
Gibsons $61.20 per capita)

Today, Sechelt Library’s goal is sustainability. Slow attrition over five years combined with the
growth in demand means that by 2018 the current budget is unstainable.

The library’s work has increased beyond its ability to serve. For example, visits are up by 27 per
cent over three years totalling 125,600 a year or 50 visitors an hour, 171 per cent cumulative
increase in inter library loans over three years, 879 new memberships in 2017

The funding agreement specifies support for technology education and assistance and
interlibrary loans. To meet this requirement, jobs were reoriented following a retirement to
make two part time staff full time, add hours to handle the inter library loans and create a
dedicated technology position to consolidate and manage the increasingly unworkable multi
staff approach.

In 2018 we closed to the public on Wednesday mornings to give staff the opportunity to catch
up on “back office work”

In May our Children’s and Youth Programmer resigned and we did not attract a suitable
candidate. By September it was clear that our budget was unsustainable plus we had union
negotiations with six months of retroactivity and recruitment costs for a Chief Librarian.

We plan to reinstate the Children’s and Youth librarian position on a temporary basis in January
2019 while we await the results of our 2019 budget application to the SCRD. Adult
programming is being discontinued in January which enables us to fund the youth position.

We have had no capital from our funders since the library opened in 1996. Capital for items like
chairs, self-checkouts, workroom furniture, book carts and computers has come from
fundraising, grants, a bequest and the Friends of the Library totalling $200,000 in the last five
years.

The recent renovations were done at no cost to the taxpayer.

98



Budget 2019 Operating Request and 2020-2024 Ask

$88,683 increase (12.2% increase overall)
o Adult Programmer position
e  Full time Children and Youth position
e On call staff
e Increase to book budget
e Maintain inter library loan
e Increase bandwidth

2020 — 2023: plus 4 % for remaining 4 years of 5 year agreement

Operating Requests

Capital Requests Urgent Capital Requests less urgent
Total: $10,000 Total: $31,800
e Public Computers past end e Business Phone System
of life: $5,000 2" line & voice mail for
e Server at end of life: $5,000 librarian $1,800 (+$500

year phone bill)

e Website Development
$10,000

e Furniture: $20,000

Total: $108,516
e Materials budget

$28,516

e Supervisor Position
$70,000

e Recruitment Costs
reserve $10,000

Sechelt Library Funders 2018 Population 2018 (DOS figures) Annual Funding 2018
Province $73,694
District of Sechelt 10,528 $396,539
Sechelt Indian Government District 691 $11,234
SCRD Area A Pender Harbour 2,624 $29,894
SCRD Area B Halfmoon Bay 2,809 $121,370
SCRD 50% Area D Roberts Creek 1,762 $69,435
$702,166
14

99




Annual Funding 2018

SCRD Area A Sechelt Indian
Pender Harbour G
SCRD 50% Area D 4% Ov?rnrnnet
Roberts Creek (pop. 2,624) District
10% —> 2%
(pop. 1,762) (pop. 671)

Province District of Sechelt
11% 56%
(pop. 10,525)
SCRD Area B
Halfmoon Bay
17%

(pop. 2,809)

Funding all or a portion of the items in our business cases will have the added benefit of helping to close
the funding gap between our library and similar libraries and enhance the economic value and service to

our community.

We thank our funders for reviewing this document and considering our request.

15

100



WIS

Question: What are the options and feasibility of increasing automation vs. staff complement?

Technology & Automation in Sechelt Public Library

Intro

Libraries are primarily service industries that are customer oriented. The Sechelt Library has
made every effort to maximize automation with the appropriate technology. This has effected
radical changes in library operations in the last twenty years because many of the tasks that
were formerly completed by staff have been replaced with various forms of automation.
Sechelt Library has kept pace with the changes happening in other libraries and utilizes the best
technology available to all libraries of our size.

Automation: Technology in Use

o RFID Tags & Tag Readers — Radio frequency identification tags are used as a tracking system
for merchandise. Sechelt Library was an early adopter of this technology. This security
feature allows us to track all books taken out and returned.

e Self-Checkout machines — Sechelt Library has two self-checkout machines that were
generously donated by The Friends of the Library with a cost of over $20,000 for each
machine. These machines allow customers to checkout their own materials and reduce the
need for staff to do this task. This has diminished staff time needed at checkout.

e Online holds — Through our website, customers are able to place their own holds on the
materials they desire. The more patrons do this for themselves, the less staff time is
required for this task.

e Check in Software — Checking in material is done quickly and efficiently through the use of
RFID tag readers. This still requires a person to put material on the tag reader to check.

e Spring Loaded Book Bins — The Friends of the Library are generously providing Sechelt
Library with a spring loaded book bin in 2019. This means that as materials are returned,
the bottom descends with added weight. The bottom rises when staff removes material
from the top of the bin to check in and the weight in the bin is decreased. This is not only
better for the health and safety of our staff (with far less damaging movement for the
spine), but also increases efficiency as it takes less time to remove books.

101



January 2, 2019

Automation: Technology Available But Not in Use

Automated Book Sorter (click on link to see video) — There are automated book sorters
used by large library systems like Vancouver Public Library. These machines take up a large

amount of space, would require building renovations and are estimated at a cost of
$100,000 for the sorter alone - without the cost of renovations or labour. The space and
cost needed for these machines mean that only large libraries with the biggest budgets use
this technology.

Technology Needed to Reduce Staff Time

Website — Sechelt library’s website is our main vehicle for communicating with the public.
BC Library Co-op is the current vendor of our site. They provide limited options for
functionality and staff is often not able to make desired changes. This inefficient model for
managing our website takes additional staff time to trouble shoot the back end and deal
with our vendor. Managing our own website that we control would save time and provide a
better platform for communication.

Server — Our server is the foundation for all our automated procedures. It is at the end of its
life span and it is critical that it be replaced as soon as possible.

Current Staffing Needs that Cannot be Automated

Sechelt Library’s budget request speaks to increased staff time to process inter-library loans as

well as staff positions that should be filled in the near future. Each position will be outlined

below in order to explain where technology/automation fits within our staffing complement.

Please note: Our Adult Program Coordinator position became vacant at the end of December.

Rather than filling this position, we have temporarily filled our Children’s Coordinator position

on a part-time basis so that we can fulfill our Memorandum of Understanding. Our original

budget request includes a full time children’s position. We now do not have budget to fill the

Adult Program Coordinator position or move the children’s position to full-time.

Children’s Coordinator — We've temporarily filled this position for 3 months on a part-time
basis. This position is responsible for all Sechelt citizens from birth to 18 years of age. Duties
include running programs and developing partnerships with outside organizations. There is
no automation available for this position.

Adult Program Coordinator — This is a position that was filled up the end of 2017 and has
been incredibly popular. In 2018 alone saw attendance above 2600 people for our various
programs. These programs focus on aging well, remaining cognitively active and creating
community. There is no automation available for this position.

102


https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Wis1auQXizU

January 2, 2019

Branch Supervisor — This position was a request in our five year agreement. Duties include
supervising staff and managing the reference desk and staff schedules. There is no
automation available for this position.

Increased time for inter-library loans — The increased demand for inter-library loans has
required that we add an additional 10 hours per week to existing part-time staff to process
the materials coming in and going out. This process already involves the use of RFIT and
Check in/out software. The only additional automation available is the automated book
sorter described above. The cost/renovations etc. precludes consideration of this
technology.

103



Sunshine Coast Regional District Gap
Local Gov
. . - . . Funding, Be.tw.een
Sechelt Indian Government District District of Sechelt Sechelt (Per Ministry of Education) Similar Similar
. . Libraries and
Libraries
SPL
Area A Area B Area D
Per capita Per capita
Year | Population Funding Per capita Population Funding Per capita | Population| Funding | Per capita | Population | Funding | Per capita | Population Funding Per capita | Population Funding Per capita | funding gap
Base 2,678 | S 22,338 |$ 8.34 2,675 | S 90,695 | $ 33.90 1,622 |$ 51,886 | $ 31.99 797 |$ 8395|S$ 10.53 9,291 |S$ 296317 |$ 31.89 16,620 [ $ 469,631 |S$ 2826 — —
2013 2,656 | S 25,103 | $ 9.45 2,695 | $ 105,664 [ $  39.20 1,657 | $ 58,439 |$ 35.26 747 | $ 10,095 | $ 13.52 9661 |S$ 305257 |$ 31.60 16,620 [ $ 504,558 | $ 3036 | $ 3532 | S 4.96
2014 2,646 | S 23,679 | $ 8.95 2,706 | $ 96,136 | $ 35.53 1,675 |$ 54,999 | $ 32.84 721|$ 8899 |S 1234 9,846 | S 314,096 | $ 31.90 16,934 [ $ 497,809 | $ 29.40|S 3567 | S 6.27
2015 2,635 | S 25,099 | $ 9.53 2,716 | $ 101,905 [ $ 37.52 1,692 | $ 58,299 |$ 34.45 696 |$ 9433 |S$ 13.55 10,031 [$ 332,942 $ 3319 16,934 [ $ 527,678 | S 31.16|S 39.94 | S 8.78
2016 2,624 | S 26,605 | $ 10.14 2,726 | $ 108,019 [ $ 39.63 1,710 | $ 61,797 | $ 36.14 671 |S 9999 |S$ 14.90 10,216 [ $ 352,918 [ $ 3455 17,257 [ $ 559,338 |$ 3241 |S 4044 | $ 8.03
2017 2,624 | S 28,202 | $ 10.75 2,767 | $ 114,500 [ $ 4138 1,736 | $ 65,505 |$ 37.74 671 |$ 10,599 | $ 15.80 10,369 [ $ 374,093 [$ 36.08 17,552 [$ 592,899 |$ 3378 | S 4324 (S 9.46
2018 2,624 | S 29,894 | $ 11.39 2,808 | $ 121,370 [ $  43.22 1,762 | $ 69,435 |$ 39.41 671 |$ 11,234 |S 16.74 10,525 [$ 396,539 [$ 37.68 17,947 [ $ 628,472 |$ 35.02
Increases required to reach parity based on gap of $9.46 per capita: $9.46
2017
Funder Population [2017 Funding| Increase Req.
Area A: 2,624
Area B: 2,726 | $ 208,207 | $ 66,788
Area D: 1,710
SIGD 671 | S 10,599 [ $ 6,348
DoS 10,216 | $ 374,093 | $ 96,643
All Funders 17,947|$ 592,899 | $ 169,779

104




716 WINN ROAD, PO BOX 766
3 §UNSHlNE CMST GIBSONS BC VON 1V0
ﬂ MUSEUM Phone/Fax (604) 886-8232
scm_a@dccnet.com
& GRCHWES www.sunshinecoastmuseum.ca
January 16, 2019

Museum Programs for 2019 with a Summary of Revenue and Expenses as of December 31, 2018

The Museum’s mission is to preserve and present the vibrant and diverse history of the Sunshine Coast. We
are the keepers of our Sunshine Coast history by collecting, conserving, and preserving artifacts and archival
records of the past; providing answers to research and genealogy requests; providing online access to
digitized historical newspapers and images; providing educational resources through Museum School;
providing workshops in historical skills and crafts such as weaving; and participation in community events
such as George and Charlotte Gibson Day, Canada Day, Sea Cavalcade, All Hallows Eve, and others. Every

February, as part of our fundraising program, we provide an Antiques Roadshow where locally, and privately
owned historical artifacts are evaluated.

To help fund the Museum’s service to the community, we are requesting a 1% increase in the 2019 SCRD
contribution for Museum operations. This is in keeping with last years suggested 1% increase even though
costs continue to rise at a higher rate for almost all expenses.

We experienced an increase in the number of visitors to the Museum for a second year in 2018 and we are
hoping this will continue into 2019. With the higher visitor numbers we also saw modest increases in
donations at the door and in gift shop sales, and increased requests for Museum services.

In 2018 we began the cold storage conservation project for the preservation of archival negatives, as well as
the upgrading of much needed off-site storage to house artifacts. Every year General Operating costs, Utility
expenses such as hydro, water and sewer, and Insurance fees increase at a rate higher than 1%. Employer
costs for 2.25 employees for WCB, CPP, El and Extended Health also continue to increase annually. The 2018
actuals will show lower figures than normal as two employees left late in the year. One new employee will
start in early 2019 as we continue to look to fill the second vacancy. Employees are crucial to the Museum in
order to be able to keep the doors open, to provide for continuity to the public for research, and community
liaison. In addition, the employees are vital in keeping our electronic presence current and up to date.

Even with the SCRD contribution towards our expenses, Museum Board and staff will have to work hard to
increase revenues to cover the shortfall. We have cut expenses in many areas of operation including
collection management. Please note, the current financials do not reflect future year-end adjustments.

There are a few Capital Projects along with a variety of Special Projects that we have listed in a separate
section below our main operating budget. These are projects that cover tasks that we believe need to be
done in order to keep the Museum with its collection of historical artifacts and archival material functioning.
Due to unexpected income from a filming project in the summer, close to the end of 2019 we had secured
enough funding to go ahead with the Capital Off-site Storage Project and to start on the Farrell Family
Archival Project with Dan Rubin. We will undertake the balance of these and other projects as we are able to
find the additional funds required.

Sincerely,

._’.f I ’
ey - v F %9 4
W ’,_,, /-/6‘7_4&‘ W AL AL EL 1 f(-’

™y

Lorraine Goddard, Board Member

105



SUNSHINE COAST MUSEUM & ARCHIVES SOCIETY - SUMMARY SCRD 2019 BUDGET

2019 Actuals to 2018
Budget Dec-2018 Budget
REVENUE:

SCRD S 87,137.75 S 86,275.00 S 86,275.00
Grants incl. Federal CSJ & GST S 4,353.09 S 7,329.62 S 7,959.00
Other Charities, Donations, & Gifts S 12,520.00 S 15,627.74 S 10,350.00
*Spec. Project - 2018 Conservation Cld Storage S - S 3,000.00 S 191.00
Events, Fundraising, & Memberships S 12,005.00 S 8,816.27 S 19,355.00
Gift Shop Sales & Museum Services S 3,600.88 S 11,567.23 S 3,785.00
Reinvested Interest Earned on Reserves -$ 831.38 -$ 893.01 -$ 750.00
Money transferred from Designated Reserves S 7,300.00 S 2,662.04 S -

TOTAL REVENUE $126,085.34 $134,384.89 $127,165.00
EXPENSES:
Conservation, Research, Restoration S 75.00 S 2,939.14 S 675.00
*Spec. Project: 2018 Conservation Cold Storage S - S 3,000.00 S 3,500.00
Exhibits & Displays S 1,500.00 S 1,276.40 S 1,500.00
Other Supplies S 800.00 S 846.68 S 750.00
Computer Equipment, Maintenance, & Software S 100.00 S 304.07 S 500.00
Courier, Delivery, & Freight S 600.00 S 1,242.16 S -
Furnishings S 100.00 S - S 100.00
Office Equipment, Repairs, & Supplies S 985.40 $ 1,627.90 $ 1,150.00
General Operating S 7,278.09 S 8,011.64 S 7,095.00
Insurance S 3,688.64 S 3,647.51 S 3,770.00
Repairs, Maintenance & Off-Site Storage Facility S 250.00 S 1,951.49 S 300.00
Security & Essential Safety Services S 2,472.00 S 1,824.55 S 1,950.00
Utilities - Hydro, Sewer/Water, Telephone S 8,326.36 S 8,266.80 S 8,150.00
Human Resources S 87,436.36 S 77,914.50 S 85,500.00
Fundraising S 6,255.00 S 5,319.05 S 6,000.00
Outreach/Public Programming S 3,893.50 S 3,289.80 S 3,900.00
Website Management & Internet S 1,868.80 S 1,630.73 S 1,575.00
Education & Training S 385.00 S 385.00 S 500.00
Travel & Accomodation S 110.00 S 79.83 S 300.00

TOTAL EXPENSES $126,124.15 $123,557.25 $127,215.00
NET Capital/Special Projects & Museum School - Ongoing S - -S 10,876.65 S -
NET PROFIT (LOSS) Balanced to Financial Statements -S 38.81 -S 49.01 -S 50.00

Capital Items & Special Projects - Only to be done if additional required revenue is generated to complete the project
Year PROPOSED CAPITAL ITEMS Budget 2019 Actuals to Dec Budget 2018
*2017-18 Lighting Upgrade - Completed

*2018 Conservation Cold Storage, Negatives - In Progress

S
s
S
$

*2018-19 Upgrade offsite storage facility - In Progress 11,766.32 S 11,733.68 $ 23,500.00
2020 Upgrade Artifact/Archive Storage Room 10,000.00

Year PROPOSED SPECIAL PROJECTS

2019 Additional Hours for Bookkeeper S 1,040.00

2019 Computer/Software Upgrade, w/Data S 2,500.00

2019 Conservation - Additional Cold Storage & Other S 3,500.00

2019 Restoration - Trunk / Farrell Collection S 3,800.00

2019 Square Point of Sale Upgrade, w/Inventory S 2,000.00

2019 Summer Student 4 Wk Ext. Above CSJ S 3,000.00

2019 Tim Willis Course & BCMA Convention S 2,500.00

2019 Web Site Redevelopment S 2,000.00

2021 Exhibit Upgrade/Collection Preservation S 10,000.00

2022 Strategic Plan Update S 5,000.00

REQUIRED INCOME: CAPITAL ITEMS/SPEC.PROJECTS S 57,106.32

SCRD_Budget_2019_201812 / SCRD_Budget_2019_Summary 1 06 lof1



Name of Organization Sunshine Coast Museum & Archives Society
Date Created: 16-Jan-2019
Revision Date:
Budget Planning Year: 2019
Year to Date: December 31, 2018
2019 Actuals to 2018 % Variance Financial Planning Financial Planning
Budget Dec-2018 Budget Variance 2019 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 NOTES:

REVENUE: 1% 2% 2% 2% 2% Using 1% then 2% for budget increases
Local Government Request

SCRD $ 87,137.75 $ 86,275.00 $ 86,275.00 $ 862.75 1% $ 87,137.75 S 88,880.51 $ 90,658.12 S 92,471.28 $ 94,320.70
Total Request $ 87,137.75 $ 86,275.00 $ 86,275.00 $ 862.75 1% $ 87,137.75 S 88,880.51 $ 90,658.12 S 92,471.28 $ 94,320.70
Grants
Canada Summer Jobs - Summer Student $ 517500 $ 5,077.00 $ 4,650.00 S 525.00 10% $ 5,175.00 $ 5,226.75 $ 5331.29 $ 543791 S 5,546.67 Grants have been limited in the last few years
Other Federal & Provincial Grants S - S - $ 1,000.00 -$ 1,000.00 #DIV/O! § - S - 5 - S - S -
*Special Project - 2018 Conservation Cld Storage $ - S 3,31400 $ 3,309.00 -$ 3,309.00 #DIV/0! $ - S - S - S - S - Fed. Grant Rcvd Re Conservation Cold Storage Project as in 2018 budget
GST Paid out on Purchases Less Rebate -$ 82191 -$ 1,061.38 -$ 1,000.00 $ 178.09 -22% -$ 821.91 -S 830.13 -$ 846.73 -S 863.67 -$ 880.94 Accountant moved from Exp to Inc after last year's budget submission
Sub Total Grants $ 435309 $ 7,32962 $ 7,959.00 -$ 3,605.91 -83% $ 4,353.09 S 4,396.62 $ 4,48455 S 457424 S 4,665.73
Other Revenue Overall costs rising more than 1% so more revenue needed
Other Charities, Donations, & Gifts $ 12,520.00 $ 15,627.74 $ 10,350.00 $ 2,170.00 17% $ 12,520.00 $ 12,645.20 $ 12,898.10 $ 13,156.07 $ 13,419.19
*Spec. Project - 2018 Conservation Cld Storage ~ $ - $ 3,000.00 $ 191.00 -$ 191.00 #DIV/O! S - S - S - S - S - $3000 Committed incl. Labour - $2400 rcvd + $600 posted to A/R for 2019
Events, Fundraising, & Memberships $ 12,005.00 $ 8,816.27 $ 19,355.00 -$ 7,350.00 -61% $ 12,005.00 S 12,125.05 $ 12,367.55 S 12,614.90 $ 12,867.20 Income partially down to passing of long-term supporters
Gift Shop Sales & Museum Services $ 3,600.88 $ 11,567.23 S 3,785.00 -$ 184.12 -5% $ 3,600.88 S 3,636.89 $ 3,709.63 S 3,783.82 $ 3,859.50
Reinvested Interest Earned on Reserves S 831.38 -$ 893.01 -$ 750.00 -$ 81.38 10% -$ 831.38 -$ 839.69 -$ 856.49 -$ 873.62 -$ 891.09 Less Money in reserve to reinvest - Moved to Inc from Exp by Accountant
Money transferred from Designated Reserves $ 7,300.00 $ 2,662.04 S - $ 7,300.00 100% $ 7,300.00 S 7,373.00 S 7,52046 S 7,670.87 S 7,824.29
Sub Total Other Revenue $ 34,594.50 $ 40,780.27 S 32,931.00 $ 1,663.50 5% S 34,594.50 $ 34,940.45 $ 35,639.25 $ 36,352.04 $ 37,079.08
Previous Year (Deficit) / Surplus
Total Revenue - Organization Generated $ 38,897.59 $ 48,109.89 $ 40,890.00 -$ 1,942.41 -5% $ 38,897.59 $ 39,337.07 $ 40,123.81 $ 40,926.28 $ 41,744.81
TOTAL REVENUE $126,035.34 $134,384.89 $127,165.00 -$ 1,079.66 -1% $126,035.34 $128,217.57 $130,781.92 $133,397.56 $136,065.51
Less budget items moved from Special Projects ~ $ - $ 8,626.16 -$ 3,500.00 $ 3,500.00 #DIV/O! S - S - S - S - S -
REVENUE BALANCED TO 2018 BUDGET $126,035.34 $143,011.05 $123,665.00 $ 2,420.34 2% $126,035.34 $128,217.57 $130,781.92 $133,397.56 $136,065.51

SCRD_Budget_2019_201812 / SCRD_Format_Budget_2019 1 O 7 1of3



Name of Organization
Date Created:
Revision Date:
Budget Planning Year:
Year to Date:

EXPENSES:

Materials & Supplies

Conservation, Research, Restoration

*Spec. Project: 2018 Conservation Cold Storage
Exhibits & Displays

Other Supplies

Sub Total

Office / Equipment

Computer Equipment, Maintenance, & Software
Courier, Delivery, & Freight

Furnishings

Office Equipment, Repairs, & Supplies

Sub Total

Facility / Utilities

General Operating

Insurance

Off-Site Storage Facility

Security & Essential Safety Services
Repairs & Maintenance

Utilities - Hydro, Sewer/Water, Telephone
Sub Total

Personnel
Human Resources
Sub Total

Other Expenses

Fundraising

Outreach/Public Programming
Website Management & Internet
Sub Total

Training / Development
Education & Training
Travel & Accomodation
Sub Total

TOTAL EXPENSES

Less budget items moved from Spec. Projects
EXPENSES BALANCED TO 2018 BUDGET

PROOF - Net Profit (Loss) Balanced to Financials

SCRD_Budget_2019_201812 / SCRD_Format_Budget_2019

Sunshine Coast Museum & Archives Society

16-Jan-2019

2019

December 31, 2018

2019 Actuals to 2018 % Variance Financial Planning Financial Planning
Budget Dec-2018 Budget Variance 2019 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 NOTES:
2019 Actuals to 2018 % Variance Financial Planning

Budget Dec-2018 Budget Variance 2019 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
S 75.00 $ 2,939.14 $ 675.00 -$ 600.00 -800% $ 75.00 S 7575 $ 7727 S 7881 $ 80.39 Cut back on essentials to meet budget target
S - $ 3,000.00 $ 3,500.00 -$ 3,500.00 #DIV/O! S - S - S - S - 5 - Supplies purchased for Special Project Conservation Cold Storage
$ 1,500.00 $ 1,276.40 $ 1,500.00 $ - 0% $ 1,500.00 $ 1,515.00 $ 1,54530 $ 1,576.21 $ 1,607.73
S 800.00 $ 846.68 S 750.00 $ 50.00 6% S 800.00 S 808.00 $ 824.16 S 840.64 S 857.46
$ 237500 $ 806222 $ 6,425.00 -$ 4,050.00 -171% $ 2,375.00 S 2,398.75 $ 2,446.73 S 2,49566 $ 2,545.57
S 100.00 $ 304.07 S 500.00 -S 400.00 -400% $ 100.00 $ 101.00 $ 103.02 $ 105.08 $ 107.18 Increase due to higher employer costs
$ 600.00 $ 1,242.16 $ - $  600.00 100% S 600.00 $ 606.00 $ 618.12 S 630.48 S 643.09
S 100.00 $ - S 100.00 $ - 0% S 100.00 $ 101.00 $ 103.02 $ 105.08 $ 107.18
$ 98540 $ 1,627.90 $ 1,150.00 -$ 164.60 -17% S 985.40 S 995.25 $ 1,015.16 $ 1,03546 $ 1,056.17
$ 1,785.40 $ 3,17413 $ 1,750.00 $ 35.40 2% $ 1,785.40 S 1,803.25 $ 1,839.32 $ 1,876.11 $ 1,913.63
S 727809 $ 8,011.64 S 7,09500 S 183.09 3% $ 7,27809 S 7,350.87 S 7,497.89 S 7,647.85 S 7,800.80 Overallincr. less essential safety & security services seperated to below
S 3,68864 S 364751 $ 3,770.00 -$ 81.36 2% $ 3,688.64 S 3,72553 S 3,800.04 S 3,876.04 S 3,953.56 This year's expenses included a community Halloween block party
S 50.00 $ 129.17 $ 100.00 -$ 50.00 -100% $ 50.00 S 50.50 $ 51.51 S 52.54 S 53.59 This year's expenses included a community Halloween block party
S 247200 $ 182455 $ 1,950.00 S 522.00 21% S 2,472.00 S 2,496.72 S 2,546.65 S 2,597.59 S 2,649.54 Incl. Alarm Monitoring, New Storage Security, Elevator Mait., Fire Insp.
S 200.00 $ 1,822.32 $ 200.00 $ - 0% $ 200.00 S 202.00 $ 206.04 S 210.16 S 214.36
S 832636 $ 8,266.80 $ 8,150.00 S 176.36 2% S 832636 S 8,409.62 S 8577.82 S 8,749.37 S 8,924.36 Overall increase in all utilities including Hydro and Water/Sewer
$ 22,015.09 $ 23,701.99 $ 21,265.00 $ 750.09 3% $ 22,015.09 $ 22,235.24 $ 22,679.95 $ 23,133.54 $ 23,596.22
$ 87,436.36 $ 77,914.50 $ 85,500.00 $ 1,936.36 2% S 87,436.36 S 88,310.72 $ 90,076.94 $ 91,878.48 S 93,716.05 Increase due to higher employer costs
S 87,436.36 $ 77,914.50 $ 85,500.00 S 1,936.36 2% S 87,436.36 S 88,310.72 $ 90,076.94 $ 91,878.48 $ 93,716.05 2018 wages are lower than should be - 2 staff quit & need replacmt
$ 6,255.00 $ 5,319.05 $ 6,000000 S 255.00 4% S 6,255.00 S 6,31755 S 6,443.90 S 6,572.78 $ 6,704.23 Seperated from Gen.Operating - Feb's event cancelled re: snow
$ 3,893.50 $ 3,289.80 $ 3,900.00 -$ 6.50 0% S 3,893.50 S 3,932.44 S 4,011.08 S 4,091.31 S 4,173.13 This year's expenses include a community Hallows Eve block party
$ 1,86880 $ 1,630.73 $ 1,575.00 $ 293.80 16% $ 1,868.80 S 1,887.49 $ 192524 $ 1,963.74 $ 2,003.02
$ 12,017.30 $ 10,239.58 $ 11,475.00 $ 542.30 5% $ 12,017.30 $ 12,137.47 $ 12,380.22 S 12,627.83 $ 12,880.38
S 385.00 $ 385.00 $ 500.00 -$ 115.00 -30% S 385.00 S 388.85 S 396.63 S 404.56 S 412.65
$ 110.00 $ 79.83 S 300.00 -$ 190.00 -173% S 110.00 $ 111.10 $ 11332 §$ 11559 $ 117.90
$ 495.00 $ 464.83 S 800.00 -$  305.00 -62% S 495.00 $ 499.95 S 509.95 S 520.15 $ 530.55
$126,124.15 $123,557.25 $127,215.00 -$ 1,090.85 -1% $126,124.15 $127,385.39 $129,933.10 $132,531.76 $135,182.40
S - $ 19,502.81 -$ 3,500.00 $ 3,500.00 #DIV/0! S ° S = S = S o $ =
$126,124.15 $143,060.06 $123,715.00 $ 2,409.15 2% $126,124.15 $127,385.39 $129,933.10 $132,531.76 $135,182.40
-$ 88.81 -$ 49.01 -$ 50.00 1338.18

108

20f3



Name of Organization
Date Created:
Revision Date:
Budget Planning Year:
Year to Date:

Sunshine Coast Museum & Archives Society

16-Jan-2019

2019

December 31, 2018

Special Projects - To Be done only if additional required revenue is generated to complete the project

INCOME FOR CAPITAL ITEMS

2017-18 Lighting Upgrade

*2018 Conservation - Cold Storage, Negatives
2018-19 Upgrade offsite storage facility

2020 Upgrade Artifact/Archive Storage Room
INCOME FOR SPECIAL PROJECTS

0000 Museum School - Ongoing

2019 Additional Hours for Bookkeeper

2019 Computer/Software Upgrade, w/Data
2019 Conservation - Cold Storage Addit. Funds
2019 Restoration - Trunk / Farrell Collection
2019 Square Point of Sale Upgrade, w/Inventory
2019 Summer Student 4 Wk Ext. Above CSJ
2019 Tim Willis Course & BCMA Convention
2019 Web Site Redevelopment

2021 Exhibit Upgrade/Collection Preservation
2022 Update Strategic Plan

RQRD INCOME: CAPITAL ITEMS/SPEC.PROJECTS

Proposed Exenditures for Special Projects as noted about - Only if funds are available to cover costs

EXPENSES FOR CAPITAL ITEMS

2017-18 Lighting Upgrade

*2018 Conservation - Cold Storage, Negatives
2018-19 Upgrade offsite storage facility

2020 Upgrade Artifact/Archive Storage Room
EXPENSES FOR SPECIAL PROJECTS

Museum School

2019 Additional Hours for Bookkeeper

2019 Computer/Software Upgrade, w/Data
2019 Conservation - Cold Storage Addit. Funds
2019 Restoration - Trunk / Farrell Collection
2019 Square Point of Sale Upgrade, w/Inventory
2019 Summer Student 4 Wk Ext. Above CSJ
2019 Tim Willis Course & BCMA Convention
2019 Web Site Redevelopment

2020 Exhibit Upgrade/Collection Preservation
2021 Update Strategic Plan

EST.EXPENSES: CAPITAL ITEMS/SPEC. PROJECTS

TOTAL COMMITTED EXPENDITURES
LESS PROPOSED EXPENDITURES
LESS ORGANIZATION REVENUE
TOTAL TAX REQUISITION

SCRD_Budget_2019_201812 / SCRD_Format_Budget_2019

2019 Actuals to 2018 % Variance Financial Planning Financial Planning
Budget Dec-2018 Budget Variance 2019 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 NOTES:
2019 Actuals to 2018 % Variance Financial Planning

Budget Dec-2018 Budget Variance 2019 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
S - S 707.31 S - #DIV/0! Reserved Funds from Grants received in 2017 for upgrade
S - $ 2,161.82 $ 3,500.00 -$ 3,500.00 #DIV/O! S - - - - - Applied for and rcvd grants - 2 x Freezers for Cold Storage Project
$ 19,092.97 $ 4,407.03 $ 23,500.00 -S 4,407.03 -23% $ 19,092.97 Fundraise & Grants for off site storage to upgrade to utilize
$ 10,000.00 $10,000.00 100% $ 10,000.00 $ - S - Fundraise & Grants to upgrade Archive/Artifact Storage
S 750.00 $ 600.00 $ 750.00 $ - 0% Monies from Schools involved in one week programs
$ 1,040.00 $ 1,040.00 100% $ 1,040.00 - - - -
$ 2,500.00 $ 2,500.00 100% $ 2,500.00
$  3,500.00 $ 3,500.00 100% $ 10,000.00 $ -8 -
$ 3,800.00 $ 750.00
$ 2,000.00
$ 3,000.00
$ 2,500.00
$ 2,000.00 $ 2,000.00 $ - 0% $ 2,000.00 Grants to update web site
$ 10,000.00 $10,000.00 100% $ 10,000.00 Fundraise & Grants Exhibit upgrade & Collection preservation
$ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 100% S  5,000.00 Grants to update strategic plan
$ 65,182.97 $ 8,626.16 S 29,750.00 $24,132.97 37% $ 24,632.97 $ 20,000.00 $ 10,000.00 $ 5,000.00 $ -
S - S 707.31 S - #DIV/0! Upstairs Lighting completed in year 2018
S - $ 2,161.82 $ 3,500.00 -$ 3,500.00 #DIV/O! S - - - - - Applied for and rcvd grants - cost for 2 x Freezers Purchased
$ 19,092.97 $ 11,733.68 $ 23,500.00 -S 4,407.03 -23% $ 19,092.97 Make containers useable for storage including hydro and shelving
$ 10,000.00 $10,000.00 100% $ 10,000.00 $ - S - H-Vac Upgrade, shelving and conservation materials
S 750.00 $ 400.00 $ 750.00 $ - 0% Ongoing program to educate students about local history
S 1,040.00 $ 1,040.00 100% $ 1,040.00 - - - - Increase hours to reflect additional work taken on by bookkeeper
S 2,500.00 $ 2,500.00 100% $ 2,500.00 Replace old computer & software, data migration, QB Networking
S 3,500.00 $ 3,500.00 100% $ 10,000.00 $ - S - Conservation materials/ additional Cold Storage Supplies if needed
$ 3,800.00 $ 4,500.00 $ 3,800.00 100% Restore Trunk damaged in filming / Rehouse Farrell collection
$ 2,000.00 Update Square POS sytem to simplify Gift Shop Sales for Volunteers
$ 3,000.00 Offer additional weeks above CSJ Grant to elevate hiring potential
$ 2,500.00 Development of Manager and to keep up with changes in Industry
$ 2,000.00 $ 2,000.00 $ - 0% $ 2,000.00 Redevelop Web Site and update old content with more current
$ 10,000.00 $10,000.00 $ 10,000.00 Standardize signage & upgrade conservation of exibit material
$ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 S 5,000.00 Create strategic plan with meetings and consultations
$ 65,182.97 $ 19,502.81 $ 29,750.00 $27,932.97 43% $ 24,632.97 S 20,000.00 $ 10,000.00 $ 5,000.00 $ -
$191,307.12 $143,060.06 $156,965.00 $26,842.12 14% $150,757.12 $147,385.39 $139,933.10 $137,531.76 $135,182.40
$ 65,182.97 $ 19,502.81 $ 29,750.00 $27,932.97 43% $ 24,632.97 $ 20,000.00 $ 10,000.00 $ 5,000.00 $ -
$ 38,897.59 S 48,109.89 $ 40,890.00 -$ 1,942.41 -5% $ 38,897.59 S 39,337.07 $ 40,123.81 S 40,926.28 $ 41,744.81
$ 87,226.56 S 75,447.36 S 86,325.00 $ 851.56 1% $ 87,226.56 S 88,048.33 $ 89,809.29 $ 91,605.48 $ 93,437.59

109



November 14, 2018
To: The New Board of Directors, Sunshine Coast Regional District

From: The Egmont Heritage Centre & The Skookumchuck Heritage Society

At this time our organization would like to introduce ourselves, congratulate you on your
election victories, and say, ‘welcome’.

If you haven’t had the opportunity to visit the Egmont Heritage Centre, we
enthusiastically invite you to come on up and have a look around. Perhaps even sit for a
tea/coffee with one of our staff/volunteers. We are excited meet the new board and look
forward to working with you in the near future.

The Skookumchuck Heritage Society was formed with the purpose of overseeing the
Egmont Heritage Centre (EHC). The EHC was created to collect, preserve, display and
store artifacts depicting the unique natural and human history of this specific part of the
Sechelt Peninsula. The Centre also provides community services for visitors and local
residents, which include tourist information, public washrooms, electric vehicle and
device charging stations and overflow parking. We fundraise through our gift store and
donation jars and employ limited staff and volunteers to help keep our doors open and
our visitors satisfied.

Every year we apply for assistance from the SCRD and so far we’ve been successful. We
are hoping that you will continue the view the Egmont Heritage Centre and the
Skookumchuck Heritage Society as integral and necessary assets of the Sunshine Coast.
We are constantly on the hunt for new ways to enhance our frugal efforts at
accommodating, educating and entertaining visitors and we welcome your fresh eyes,
ears and hearts on our activities.

Thank you for taking the time to read this introduction. Good luck in your new and
important roles.

Billy Griffith, President, Skookumchuck Heritage Society
(on behalf of the Board of Directors and members)

Sandra (Sam) Hughes, Manager
Egmont Heritage Centre

110



Skookumchuck Heritage Society 2019 Budget Proposal

Revenue

Operating Grant SCRD
Summer Student Grants
Admission & Other Donations
Gift Shop Sales & Commissions

Memberships (most members = lifetime)

Interest
Total Revenue

Expense

Utilities:

BC Hydro

Telephone

Internet & Website

Security & Alarm Monitoring
SCRD Water

Maintenance & Repairs:
Cleaning & Washroom Supplies
Bldg Maintenance & Grounds Keep

Staffing:

Wages & Remittances

University & High School Students
Worksafe BC

Office Overhead:

Accounting & Legal

Tourism Development
Advertising & Promotion
Insurance on Bldg & Liability
Office Supplies

Gift Store Inventory & Supplies
Display Supplies, Archives Legacy
Fundraising Expenses

Dues & Fees

First Data & Square Up Card Costs
Back Step Repairs

Expansion / Acquisitions

Total Expenses

Revised January 8, 2019

Budget 2018 Actual 2018 Budget 2019
32,200.00 32,200.00 32,200.00
3,247.00 -
8,000.00 9,526.93 7,500.00
11,000.00 12,898.63 12,500.00
75.00 40.00 60.00
0.00 0.04 0.00
51,275.00 57,912.60 52,260.00
2,500.00 1,943.72 2,000.00
1,300.00 1,482.01 1,500.00
1,200.00 1,261.49 1,600.00
300.00 680.57 700.00
300.00 230.32 250.00
5,600.00 5,598.11 6,050.00
500.00 658.37 700.00
2,000.00 3,048.10 1,500.00
2,500.00 3,706.47 2,200.00
36,000.00 30,873.25 35,000.00
0.00 3,909.42 0.00
175.00 105.35 120.00
36,175.00 34,888.02 35,120.00
00.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
700.00 451.33 500.00
2,800.00 2,779.00 2,800.00
1,000.00 396.60 300.00
7,000.00 6,741.39 6,700.00
150.00 0.00 750.00
500.00 86.41 100.00
150.00 40.00 45.00
200.00 211.03 225.00
0.00 1,000.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
12,500.00 10,705.76 11,420.00
56,775.00 54,898.36 54,890.00

111



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT STAFF REPORT

TO: Special Corporate and Administrative Services Committee — November 30, 2018
AUTHOR: Billy Griffith, President, Skookumchuck Heritage Society, Egmont, BC

SUBJECT: 2019 R1 BUDGET PROPOSAL FOR SKOOKUMCHUCK HERITAGE SOCIETY — SPECIAL
PROJECT REQUEST

RECOMMENDATION(S)

THAT the report titled 2019 R1 Budget Proposal for the Skookumchuck Heritage Society—
Special Project Request be received.

DISCUSSION

2019 R1 Budget Proposal for Special Project

1 Function Number — Project Name: Directional Parking Sighage
2019 Funding Required: Estimated $500 to $700
Rational / Service Impacts: We enthusiastically lobby for the funds to

install at least 3 signs along Egmont
Road advising travelers not to wortry,
plenty of safe parking ahead.

During the summer of 2018 there were a
couple of near multiple vehicle incidents
on the crest of the blind hill just above
the entrance to the Skookumchuck
Narrows hike. We believe these
occurrences are sad, but likely,
predictors of the future for travelers and
residents now that the Narrows is
becoming more and more popular
around the world. (The Park has
recorded a significant up-tick in
visitorship and the destination has been
promoted online as one of the best
places in the world to take a selfie.)
Traffic to the area is more likely to
increase than decrease or stagnate
going forward.

112



Staff Report to Special Corporate and Administrative Services Committee

2018 R1 Budget Proposal for Skookumchuck Heritage Centre

Page 2 of 2

The entire winding Egmont road drive,
from the SC Hwy to the trail start, has no
signage telling visitors what to expect in
terms of parking. Our survey of ‘poor
parkers’ found ‘no signage’, ‘location’
(“isn’t this the wilderness?”), and
‘temporary duration’ (“just parking for a
few hours”) were the main reasons for
the dangerous conduct. At least twice,
that we observed, Egmont road was
congested, by visitor parking, into a
single lane while the museum parking lot
was virtually empty. Our goals here are
simple: relief for drivers and peace for
residents by doing all we can to not ask
them to navigate the blind spots of a
two-lane turned one-lane road.

The well-being of visitors and residents
is all that drives this request but we can't
help imagining that the Heritage Centre
would benefit from added traffic through
its doors and a boost in sales and
donations with more visitors using the
parking facilities.

Savings Potential (if applicable):

We feel that potential savings cannot be
easily measured in dollars but surely
vehicle and property insurance is likely
to be affected and any stress we can
take off of law enforcement and
emergency services resources would be
considered a savings in our view.

Future Financial Implications

n/a

February 5 ANNEX D2 - 2019 Budget - Skookumchuck Heritage Society - Egmont Heritage Centre Special Request

113




Halfmoon Bay-Chatelech Community School Association
8086 Northwood Road

Halfmoon Bay, BC

VON 1Y1

Sunshine Coast Regional District

Special Corporate and Administrative Services Committee
1975 Field Rd.

Sechelt, BC

VON 3Al

November 13, 2018

Summary of Programs and Services
Halfmoon Bay — Chatelech Community School Association

Thank you for the opportunity to report a summary of our Association’s programs and
services and to present our request for 2019. We have received funding from the SCRD for
over a decade to support Restorative Practices across School District #46 and have been
receiving funding support for Halfmoon Bay Tween Nights in 2017 and 2018. We are most
appreciative of your on-going confidence allowing us to work with school staff and
community to continue to deliver these valuable programs.

We will begin with an overview of the programs our Association is involved in. We will also
attach an outline of our Restorative Practices program, an outline of our Tween Night
program and finally our current financial position, which includes our 2018/19 proposed
budget. Our main funders are CommunityLINK from School District #46, Ministry of
Children and Families, Office of the Early Years, and yourselves.

Through CommunityLINK funds we are able to provide a Community School Coordinator in
both Halfmoon Bay Community Elementary, and Chatelech Secondary. These Coordinators
both work part-time (18 hours per week during the school year). New in 2018, all
Community School Associations supporting SD46 received a grant from the United Way to
increase middle years coordinator time. In Halfmoon Bay our Coordinator previously
worked an additional 5 hours per week offering our Halfmoon Bay Information and Referral
Centre, which was previously funded by the SCRD. This program built a business list for
Halfmoon Bay, provided welcome packages to new residents and hosted an annual Business
and Entrepreneur Show, among other services. This program has been currently suspended
as we work through our funding relationship with the Sunshine Coast Regional Economic
Development Organization or SCREDO.

Programs offered and or supported at Halfmoon Bay include bi-monthly Tween Nights, Kicks
for Kids, Student Leadership, Homework Club, Volunteer Readers, Breakfast Program,

114



Yearbook Club, Lunchtime Clubs, Family Book Club, support of school and community
events, as well as the Fruit and Veggie Program.

At Chatelech Secondary, programs include a Breakfast and Hungry Kids Lunch Program,
Fruit and Veggie Program, Cool School (an afterschool program for students grades 7 to 12
offering experience in wood working, metal and automotive), Grade 7 Transition events,
support of Shine On students in school activities ensuring an inclusive school environment,
support of the Mentors in Violence Prevention Program, and other school events.

Through funding from the Office of the Early Years we sponsor the Sunshine Coast’s Early
Years Centre initiative. We are in the fifth year of a five-year contract to work toward
integration of Early Years Services on the Sunshine Coast. A steering committee guides the
project with representatives from Vancouver Coastal Health, Sunshine Coast Community
Services, Childcare Resource and Referral, School District #46 and the Early Years Council.
We have three physical sites, one partner site and a website where families can access
information about all Sunshine Coast services for families with children zero to five. We have
three main goals, which include a strong, integrated parenting strategy, a united “One Door
Approach” to services, and addressing barriers for families who are unable to connect with
the services provided. Our parenting strategy includes three education programs (Circle of
Security, Happily Ever After, and Positive Discipline) as well as outreach to families in the
home and coaching at Centre sites. Our second goal of “One Door Approach” includes shared
training and partnership events to deepen our understanding and confidence in referring
families to each other’s services. Thirdly, we work to address barriers to families accessing
service and supporting programs in areas of high vulnerability.

Please see the attached Restorative Practices report and Halfmoon Bay Tween Night report
as well as our association’s financial statement indicating our current financial position and
2018/19 budget as requested.

We respectfully request continuation of our funding for Restorative Practices ($10,000
annually) and Halfmoon Bay Tween Night ($2,700 annually). We do not expect any cost of
living increases.

We expect our programming for 2019 to remain similar to the programs described above.

We thank you for your continued support.

Sincerely,
Sue Lamb Wendy White
Restorative Practices Coordinator HMB Community School

Coordinator

115



Halfmoon Bay-Chatelech Community School Association
8086 Northwood Road

Halfmoon Bay, BC

VON 1Y1

Sunshine Coast Regional District

Special Corporate and Administrative Services Committee
1975 Field Rd.

Sechelt, BC

VON 3Al

November 13, 2018
Summary - Restorative Practices
Halfmoon Bay — Chatelech Community School Association

Once again | thank you on behalf of our Association for your continued support of Restorative
Practices in our district. The funding we receive from you provides training, resources and
coordination that promotes non-punitive, relationship building approaches to discipline in
classrooms, with parents, and in early years programming coast wide. Our strategic team made
up of school principals, community school coordinators and Dr. Evelyn Zellerer guide our
decision making and planning.

Circle training has been our focus for several years now, we have done five school wide
trainings, the latest being Kinnikinnick Elementary. Feedback from Principal Jeff Marshall
was very positive. He felt it helped immensely with the communication amongst staff and
noted a reduction in office referrals. He noticed an improvement in student’s abilities to
resolve conflict through peaceful, respectful and restorative interactions. Previous school wide
trainings have included Cedar Grove, Davis Bay and Gibsons Elementary. District counselors
and aboriginal education staff continue to be our strongest advocates of circle practice using
it to teach empathy, problem solving, deep listening, sharing of perspectives, and life skills.
Over 115 teachers, youth workers, community school coordinators, principals, and education
assistants are now trained in our district. Circles ensure all voices are heard, they support the
social/emotional health of both students and staff.

This year, in addition to our work with Dr. Zellerer we have chosen to support parent classes and
school wide staff training in Positive Discipline. Sarah Joseph is presently training two schools,
who will be certified within the next month. Positive Discipline complements circle practice. It is
based on non-punitive, restorative strategies for use at home, in childcare centers and in the
classroom that strengthen a child’s sense of belonging and significance. We aim to create a
common language and culture of learning in our community that supports healthy social emotional
development at all ages.

To meet our goal of imbedding these approaches in all schools we plan to have Dr. Zellerer do a
session with all elementary school principals in Jan/Feb this year connecting the use of talking

116



circles, positive discipline, and the new BC curriculum.

On Feb. 19 a session is planned for district staff that are experienced using circles. This session
will focus on deeper issues of communication and conflict.

Finally, we plan to hold a Level 1 Circle training for new staff to the district between January and
June.

Our Association continues to work in partnership with the Restorative Justice Program of the
Sunshine Coast, sharing training, referrals, and mentorship.

As shown below in our budget, the funds we receive from you are split between training costs and
coordinator time (four hours per week, Sept to June). In addition to working with the strategic
team and coordinating training coordinator time is used to provide circles in classrooms, staff and
parent meetings, mentor families, and facilitate Positive Discipline classes for parents and staff.

Restorative Practices Funding 2018/19
Halfmoon Bay — Chatelech Community School Association

Grant received August 2018 $10,000.00
Strategic Planning — Dr. Zellerer $420.00
School wide training Positive Discipline $1500.00
District wide training February 19/2019 $1680.00
Circle session with District Principals $420.00
District training Spring 2019 $1680.00
Coordinator wages $4300.00
Total $10,000.00

Please see the above financial statement indicating how our funds are being spent this year.

We would greatly appreciate your continued support of this initiative; if funded for the 2019/2020
year we would continue our expansion of both circle practice and positive discipline. Presently
we have two additional schools expressing interest in school wide training.

Sincerely,

Sue Lamb

Restorative Practices Coordinator
Halfmoon Bay — Chatelech Community School Association

117



Halfmoon Bay-Chatelech Community School Association
8086 Northwood Road

Halfmoon Bay, BC

VON 1Y1

Sunshine Coast Regional District

Special Corporate and Administrative Services Committee
1975 Field Rd.

Sechelt, BC

VON 3A1

November 13, 2018

Summary — Halfmoon Bay Tween Night
Halfmoon Bay — Chatelech Community School Association

Please except thisletter of request on behalf of the Halfmoon Bay-Chatelech Community School
Association for on-going year to year funding in the amount of $2,700 to continue our Friday
Night Teen Program that we run in Halfmoon Bay. We thank you for your support in previous
years aswe really feel it has made an impact on our Halfmoon Bay youth and would like to ask
again for your continued support. The SCRD funding has benefitted this program by allowing us
to increase the frequency of the program, alow for two Safe Adults to be on site at all times and
allow usto supply healthy meals and snack options as well as buy supplies to plan engaging
activitiesfor al participants.

With the funding we have received in previous years from the SCRD, we have been able to
increase the frequency of our Friday night Tween Night program from once a month to twice a
month. In our rural setting there is not much for this age group to do and providing a structured
program makes such an impact. Our twice a month program draws between 15 and 27 grades 5-7
students. We do have a need here in Halfmoon Bay for arecreational youth program that provides
asocia element, gives youth a sense of belonging and most importantly provides a safe place to
be.

We run this program with 2 Safe Adults. Presently the SCRD Recreation Department employs one
safe adult and they are paired with the Community School Coordinator who has been given
additional hours to be the second safe adult or to be able to pay an honorarium to aqualified
volunteer in their place. The addition of the Coordinator not only allows us to have more
flexibility with numbers and age groups, but also gives vulnerable students safe school community
connections outside of school time. This allows more opportunity for our youth to participate in
safe and supervised activities in their own community.

Finally we are able to provide a healthy dinner and snacks supported by your funding and
supplemented by the Halfmoon Bay portion of Community Link Funding where necessary so our

118



youth leave with full belliesto begin their weekend. We can also provide more options to keep our
children engaged in different activities including the following: movie nights, dance parties,
crafting fun, outdoor adventure themes, sports tournaments, obstacle courses, scavenger hunts and
so much more. We want them leaving happy, full, tired and wanting more, which keeps our
participant numbers consistent.

Below you will see our 2017/18 budget followed by our 2018/19 proposed budget:

Grant received for 2017/18: $2,700.00

Staffing: $1,100.00
Program Supplies: $415.00
Food/Drink: $520.00
Total: $2,035.00

Note: We had $665.00 |eft in this budget after our June 2018 sessions. This was due to difficulty
with staffing; we did not start running the program twice a month right away. We have started the
2018/19 school year with two sessions per month and will incorporate the deferred funds to the
proposed budget:

Proposed Budget for 2018/19: $2,700 (plus $665.00 deferred funds) based on 19 sessions:

Staffing: $1,200.00
Program Supplies ($54 per session): $1,025.00
Food/Drink: ($60/session): $1,140.00
Total: $3,365.00 ($2,700 + $665)

The program budget has been adjusted to incorporate last year’ s surplus however just to clarify,
our ask of $2,700.00 will sustain the program going forward, it may mean an alteration to the
program supplies portion of the budget.

We would appreciate your continued support on an ongoing basis to help us deliver this valuable
program. We truly believe there is a need here in Halfmoon Bay to keep our youth safe, connected
and engaged in our community.

Thank you for al your support and consideration.

Sincerely,

Wendy White

HMB Community School Coordinator
Halfmoon Bay — Chatelech Community School Association

119



Halfmoon Bay - Chatelech Community School Association

July 1, 2018 - June 30, 2019 Budget

INCOME

GST Rebate S 600.00

Interest Income 900.00

Grant -Restorative Practices (SCRD) 10,000.00

Grant -Restorative Practices (SCRD) -Deferred 983.33

Mem7iman -Deferred 2,000.00

DPAC Programs - Deferred 1,225.00

Grant - Tween Night (SCRD) 2,700.00

Grant - Tween Night (SCRD) - Deferred 665.71

Grant - SD#46 Community Link - CHAT 19,585.00

Grant - SD#46 Community Link - HMB 19,585.00

Grant - SD#46 Community Link CHAT- Deferred 2,505.37

Grant - SD#46 Community Link HMB -Deferred 1,257.82

Grant - United Way Regular 7,500.00

Grant - United Way District Wide 10,000.00

Grant - United Way (for program materials only) 500.00

Grant - Early Years #5 (July18-Mar19) 38,441.99

Early Years #5 Admin Portion 5,200.00

Early Years #4 Admin -Deferred 507.27

Raise a Reader - Admin Funds -Deferred 617.60

Total Income S 124,774.09

EXPENSES

Amortization S 250.00

Volunteer Recognition & Honorariums 600.00

Flex Fund Expenses 400.00

Advertising and Promotion 200.00

Accounting and Legal 1,300.00

Office 500.00

Dues and Fees 150.00

Insurance 650.00

Development and Training 500.00

Website Design 350.00

Mem7iman Programs 2,000.00

DPAC Programs 1,225.00

Restorative Practices Project Expense 6,683.33

Restorative Practices - Wages & Benefits 4,300.00

Tween Night Program Expenses 2,165.71

Tween Night -Wages & Benefits 1,200.00

Community Link Exp - Chat Site Team Exp 6,155.37

Community Link Exp - HMB Site Team Exp 5,257.82

Community Link -Wages & Benefits 31,170.00

Early Years (Yr 5) Project Exp (July18-Mar19) 20,591.99

Early Years (Yr 5) (July18-Mar19) -Wages & Benefits 17,850.00

Wages & Benefits -Other 3,250.00

WCB 250.00

United Way Regular -Wages & Benefits 7,500.00

United Way District Wide - Wages & Benefits 10,000.00 | SUMMARY OF DEFICIT

United Way - Materials 500.00 | [Cool School -Chatelech *funded from savings account -S 1,500.00
Cool School -Chatelech *funded from savings account 1,500.00 Robotics - Chatelech *funded from savings account - 1,500.00
Robotics - Chatelech *funded from savings account 1,500.00 | |Roots of Empathy - HMB *funded from savings account - 400.00
Roots of Empathy - HMB *funded from savings account 400.00 | [Amortization *non cash transaction - 250.00
Total Expenses S 128,399.22 | |Excess from various Programs and Events 24.87
NET INCOME (LOSS) -$ 3,625.13 Total Deficit -$ 3,625.13

120




Halfmoon Bay-Chatelech Community School Association
Profit & Loss Statement
July 1, 2018 - October 31, 2018

Income
Interest Income S 41.39
Restorative Practices (SCRD) - Current 10,000.00
Restorative Practices (SCRD) - Deferred Funds 983.33
Tween Night, HMB (SCRD) - Current 2,700.00
Tween Night, HMB (SCRD) - Deferred Funds 665.71
Programs & Events -DPAC Funding 1,225.00
Raise a Reader -Admin Funds 617.60
SD#46 Community Link Grant 11,597.19
EY4 Deferred (for Mem7iman) 2,000.00
Early Years (Yr 5) Admin - Current 5,200.00
Early Years (Yr 4) Admin -Deferred 507.27
Early Years (Yr 5) Grant 14,886.52
United Way Grant - Regular 1,482.88
United Way Grant - District Wide 1,180.04
Total Income S 53,086.93
Expenses
Accounting and Legal S 1,312.50
Dues and Fees 95.00
Office 120.11
Wages & Benefits - Other 564.52
United Way - Wages & Benefits 2,751.42
Mem7iman - Program Expenses 993.45
Restorative Practices -Program Expenses 454.04
Restorative Practices -Wages & Benefits 969.68
Tween Night - Program Expenses 227.34
Tween Night - Wages & Benefits 55.47
Early Years (Yr 5) - Program Expenses 1,654.59
Early Years (Yr 5) -Wages & Benefits 7,862.92
Chatelech Site Team Expense 1,096.28
Halfmoon Bay Site Team Expense 493.74
Community School Coordinators - Wages & Benefits 7,193.73
Total Expenses S 25,844.79
Net Profit (Loss) S 27,242.14

121



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT STAFF REPORT

TO: Special Corporate and Administrative Services Committee — November
13, 2018

AUTHOR: Francine Clohosey, PHCSS manager

SUBJECT: 2019 R1 BUDGET PROPOSAL FOR
PENDER HARBOUR COMMUNITY SCHOOL SOCIETY — SPECIAL PROJECT
REQUEST: COMMUNITY RECREATION PROGRAM / AREA A

RECOMMENDATION(S)

THAT the report titled 2019 R1 Budget Proposal for Pender Harbour Community
School Society — Special Project Request: COMMUNITY RECREATION PROGRAM
be received.

DISCUSSION

2019 R1 Budget Proposal for Special Project

1

Function Number — Project Name:

Function # 670
Community Recreation Program delivery
for Pender Harbour / Area A

2018 Funding Required:

$40,000

Rational / Service Impacts:

Provide a full range of recreational,
educational and social programs for all
residents of Pender Harbour/Area A. Plan,
research, develop and implement programs
and activities, responding to community
recreational, social and lifelong learning
needs and interests. Offer and support a
wide variety of programs for various ages
and interest groups.

In 2019, we estimate 450 participants
taking part in 4,500 hours of activities such
as:

Conversation Cafés ~ Conservation &
Outdoor Recreation Certification ~ Dog

122




Staff Report to Special Corporate and Administrative Services Committee
2019 R1 Budget Proposal for PENDER HARBOUR COMMUNITY SCHOOL Page 2 of 4

Obedience & Agility Training ~ Pickleball ~
Food Skills for Families & Seniors ~
FoodSafe ~ Financial Literacy ~ Cooking
Classes - Vegan, Indian, Cheese Making ~
Financial Literacy ~ Babysitter & Stay Safe
Course ~ Fishing Club ~ Kinder Soccer ~
Emergency First Aid ~ Art Classes ~ Kids
Camps ~ Open Houses ~ Non-profit
Workshop ~ Movie Nights ~ Facepainting

Ongoing quarterly reports demonstrate
deliverables.

Savings Potential: Working in partnership with a variety of
community organizations ~ such as PH
Aquatic & Fitness Centre, Seniors Initiative,
Harbourside Friendship, Pender HHealth
Centre, Schools, PH Living Heritage,
Garden Bay Sailing Club, SCRD Recreation
~ ensures efficient use of resources across
all organizations and allows us to address
gaps in services and activities for the whole
community.

Pender Harbour Community School: COMMUNITY RECREATION PROGRAM Area A Budget request 2019

123



Staff Report to Special Corporate and Administrative Services Committee
2019 R1 Budget Proposal for PENDER HARBOUR COMMUNITY SCHOOL Page 30f4

Pender Harbour Community School Society
Community Recreation Program ~ Area A

Income & Expenses | January 1 to October 31, 2018
With Annual Program Budget

Jan-Oct 2018 BUDGET
(10 months) (12 months)
INCOME:
SCRD Recreation Grant 40,000.00 40,000.00
Program revenues 15,915.54 16,000.00
Total Income 55,915.54 56,000.00
EXPENSES:
Personnel costs
REC Coordination 20,218.12 23,000.00
REC Facilitation 13,022.00 17,000.00
Accounting/financial 1,257.50 1,500.00
Total personnel costs 34,497.62 41,500.00
Program & Admin costs
Program Materials & Supplies 3,192.23 3,500.00
Program Venue Rentals 1,800.00 2,500.00
Advertising / promotion 3,128.45 3,200.00
Insurance 1,700.00 1,900.00
Membership & ProD 201.81 500.00
Office supplies & postage 510.09 600.00
Telephone & internet 571.14 650.00
Technical & maintenance 555.58 800.00
Travel / mileage 351.25 500.00
WCB expense 347.53 350.00
Total program & admin costs 12,358.88 14,500.00
Total Expenses 46,855.70 56,000.00
Remaining budget for 2018 9,059.84
Pender Harbour Community School: COMMUNITY RECREATION PROGRAM Area A Budget request 2019

124



Staff Report to Special Corporate and Administrative Services Committee

2019 R1 Budget Proposal for PENDER HARBOUR COMMUNITY SCHOOL Page 4 of 4

PHCSS ORGANIZATIONAL FINANCIALS: 2018 YTD with 2019 Proposed Budget

Jan-Oct 2018 | 2019 Proposed
INCOME 2018 Budget Budget
CommunityLink 30,409.95 39,200.00 39,100.00
Direct Access Gaming 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00
Early Years Outreach 2,800.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
SCRD Community Recreation 40,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00
SCRD Youth Program 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
SCRD Grant in Aid 400.00 0.00 0.00
United Way CSP 11,800.00 0.00 8,000.00
Program Revenues 21,175.54 15,000.00 15,000.00
Donations 7,680.86 4,000.00 4,000.00
Venue rental 900.00 600.00 800.00
Other income 2,680.87 5,000.00 5,000.00
Total revenue 147,847.22 135,800.00 143,900.00
EXPENSES
Contractors/programmers 37,206.00 38,000.00 38,000.00
Instructors/facilitators 13,537.75 16,500.00 18,000.00
Wage expenses 50,891.58 48,000.00 55,000.00
Accounting/financial 2,297.50 2,500.00 2,500.00
Total people costs 103,932.83  105,000.00 113,500.00
Advertising & Promotion 4,047.20 5,800.00 5,800.00
Insurance 2,901.00 2,845.00 3,000.00
Internet Expense 832.44 740.00 900.00
Membership/ProD 261.81 300.00 500.00
Office Supplies & Paper 1,216.90 800.00 1,400.00
Other program expenses 4,000.00 5,000.00 2,000.00
Program Materials & Supplies 7,894.72 6,420.00 7,000.00
Program Venue Rentals 750.75 1,700.00 1,000.00
Repairs & Maintenance 2,219.68 1,500.00 2,200.00
Technical Support 1,546.84 1,500.00 2,000.00
Technology upgrades 665.00 700.00 730.00
Telephone 1,142.28 665.00 1,200.00
Travel 1,081.25 1,700.00 1,500.00
Water 183.75 370.00 370.00
WCB Expense 695.06 760.00 800.00
Total program costs 29,438.68 30,800.00 30,400.00
Total expenses 133,371.51 135,800.00 143,900.00

125

Pender Harbour Community School: COMMUNITY RECREATION PROGRAM Area A

Budget request 2019



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT STAFF REPORT

|

TO: Special Corporate and Administrative Services Committee — November 13, 2018

AUTHOR: Francine Clohosey, PHCSS Manager

SUBJECT: 2019 R1 BUDGET PROPOSAL FOR PENDER HARBOUR COMMUNITY SCHOOL SOCIETY
— SPECIAL PROJECT REQUEST: PENDER HARBOUR YOUTH PROGRAM

RECOMMENDATION(S)

THAT the report titled 2019 R1 Budget Proposal for Pender Harbour Community School
Society — Special Project Request be received.

DiscussION

2019 R1 Budget Proposal for Special Project

1 Function Number — | Function # 670
Project Name: PENDER HARBOUR YOUTH PROGRAM
Youth Restitution & Youth Drop-in Activities

2019 Funding $10,000
Required:

Rational / Service Coordinate the Youth Restitution Program in conjunction with
Impacts: SC RCMP and BC Youth Justice Service Restitution Program to
provide supervision and guidance, direct support, education and
referrals to youth and community members involved.

Assistance in completion of Community Service hours is key to
dispute resolution. Examples of youth involvement coordination
include:

Trash pick up & graffiti removal

Gardening and yard work for seniors

Help with bottle drive and bake sale fundraisers
Connecting youth with adult and peer mentors

Attending workshops/meetings (e.g., Sechelt Indian Band
workshops, VCMH sessions)

coaet

Also, provide a variety of Youth Drop-in Activities to offer an
outlet for youth to gather in a safe and supportive environment,
such as:

& Sport nights 2-3 times a week throughout the school year
i Summer outdoor sports for families and youth
{ Movie & pizza nights and summer activities in Egmont

126



Staff Report to Special Corporate and Administrative Services Committee
2019 R1 Budget Proposal for Pender Harbour Community School Society

Page 2 of 2

{1 Supervision at school dances and participation in workshops
in partnership with other youth resource services (i.e., VCMH
and Pender Harbour Health Clinic)
(i Support community initiatives (e.g., Community Club Youth
Group, Pender Harbour McCreary youth group, Pender Harbour
Youth Collective)

In 2019, the anticipated humber of youth supported will be
between 17-20 individuals with approximately 350 hours of
overall support provided.

Savings Potential:

Proven reduction in crime, and an increased in sense of

belonging.

Utilizing the BC Provincial Restorative Justice service delivery
template (also used by the RCMP and SD46) aids in consistency
and effectiveness.

Utilizing community facilities (such as the Harbour Learning
Centre, schools, Lions Park, Egmont Community Hall, Madeira
Park Community Hall, and our local recreation sites were the
youth naturally congregate) ensures facilities are used fully.

Working closely with other people and agencies (school
principals, teachers, local business owners, probation officers,
community organizations) ensures expertise is accessed

efficiently.

Pender Harbour Youth Program
Year to date actuals: Jan 1 to Oct 31, 2018 with 2018 & 2019 Budget

Restitution | Youth Drop-in Total 2018 & 2019
BUDGET
Income: 7,000.00 3,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
SCRD grant
Expenses
Coordinator contract 4,575.00 2,175.00 6,750.00 8,700.00
Program materials 123.11 181.07 304.18 500.00
Travel/mileage 575.00 125.00 700.00 800.00
Total expenses 5,273.11 2,481.07 7,754.18 10,000.00
Remaining budget 2,245.82
for 2018
PENDER HARBOUR YOUTH PROGRAM Budget request 2019

127




Pender Harbour Community School Society

2R |
Date: December 31,2018 PENDERCOMMUNITY
To:  TaraCrosby, SCRD Community Services cisurelif community
From: Francine Clohosey, PHCS Manager

Re:  Pender Harbour/Area A: Community Recreation Program FINAL REPORT 2018

aogrowth. ¢

LISTING OF PROGRAMS OFFERED

Community Programs

Breadmaking Workshop - HUGS Ukulele group

Chocolate Making Workshop - Indian Cooking Nights with Sushma
Conservation & Outdoor Recreation - NEW! Intro to Vegan Cooking
Certificate - Silk Scarf Dying Workshop
Conversation Cafés for Parents & - Standard First Aid / CPR

Guardians - What Do You Mean | Can’t Hold
Dog Obedience & Agility Training a Bake Sale?! Special Workshop
FoodSafe Certification for Non-Profits

Heritage Scrapbook Workshop

Children’s Programs

Boys Club - Kinder-Soc
Fishing Club - Red Cross Babysitters Course
Garden Club - Red Cross Stay Safe
Kids Art Programs
Drop in Sports Nights
Basketball - Indoor Soccer
Floor Hockey - Pickleball

PROGRAM STATS with 2017 comparative (accumulated)

Year 2018 2017
Total hours: 509 462
Total sessions: 232 230
# of participants: 469 480
185 adults 210 adults
78 youth 53 youth
206 children 217 children
Total Participant Hours: 5,049 4,374
Pender Harbour Community School FINAL REPORT 2018

128



Pender Harbour/Area A COMMUNITY RECREATION PROGRAM Page 2 of 6

SUMMARY OF PARTNERSHIPS

January Hosted ElderCollege’s two-day series on Wills and Being Prepared
Hosted the Sechelt Public Library in their presentation on Fake News

February Twenty-six of our Art Kids submitted pieces for the annual Young
Persons Art Show @ the Sunshine Coast Arts Centre

March Participated in a WorkBC’s Pender Harbour Job Fair held at the Hall

April Pender Harbour Aquatic & Fitness Centre taught our kids about water
safety and the PH Search and Rescue crew dove right in!
Sponsored the face-painting and kids art table for April Tools

May The Community School float was a highlight at this annual community
event and won first place for the May Day “Pirates of Pender” float

June Hosted a presentation in partnership with Sunshine Coast Community
Foundation that clarified what non profit societies can and cannot do,
keeping in compliance with the Income Tax Act & Societies Act

July In partnership with the Seniors Initiative, presented the Sunshine Coast
Credit Union’s “Teach One/Each One” talk
In collaboration with Seniors Initiative and others presented the “Fraud
Prevention, Financial Literacy & Elder Abuse” at Egmont Community Hall

August Assisted PH Living Heritage Society on their planning committee to
offer activities for children during the annual Pender Harbour Days event

September Assisted with supplies and staff to help at the Youth Movie Nights
hosted by the PH Community Club on the last two Fridays of each month

October Thanks to a generous private donation of scrapbooking materials, we
offered a Heritage Scrapbooking workshop with Harbourside Friendship

November Hosted a community dinner at the Community Hall and fed 50 people!
Laid a wreath at the Pender Harbour Legion for Remembrance Day

December Participated in the annual Serendipity Christmas Craft Fair selling items

created by the kids in our Art Classes
Assisted PH Chamber of Commerce in Pender Harbour Christmas event

OTHER PARTNERSHIPS

Pender Harbour Community Programmers
Monthly meetings with PH Aquatic & Fitness, Seniors Initiative, Pender
Harbour Health Centre & other community groups sharing info & resources.

Youth Advocate Collective Meeting
Our youth advocates meet quarterly to touch base and see what each other
is offering ~ a chance for connections, collaboration and support.

Pender Harbour Community School FINAL REPORT 2018

129



Pender Harbour/Area A COMMUNITY RECREATION PROGRAM Page 3 of 6

United Way Community Schools Partnership

With funding from United Way, in 2018 we partnered with Chatelech High
School to offer a pilot Youth Initiative providing hands on experience to
high school students with hopes to inspire them to pursue careers as our
future recreation program facilitators.

Pender Harbour Advisory Council
Ongoing representation for the past four years on our community
organizations’ advisory group.

Early Years Centre ~ Coffee and Conversation
We help support the ongoing weekly drop-in gatherings for new parents.

Childminding Services

We have been creating a pool of childminders from our community to
support programs we wish to run in the evenings and at other times. We
now have four qualified people in place.

Community Outreach Support
The Open Door/WorkBC Group now offer employment services twice a
month and Volunteer Tax Program is available in March & April @ HLC.

CANCELLED/POSTPONES COURSES

We prepared to offer the following programs but ended up having to cancel due to things
such as low registrations, instructor illness or insufficient staff:

Open Sports Night ~ Cheese Making ~ KinderSoccer ~ Summer Day Camp ~ Cookies Like
Grandma Made Them ~ Emergency First Aid

SUMMARY OF TRENDS, BARRIERS, FACTORS AFFECTING PROGRAM DELIVERY

Ability to provide nutritious snacks in many of our Recreation programs results in better
experiences for participants

Efforts to ensure programs offered down-Coast are also offered to our residents is an
ongoing challenge

Establishing relationships with facilitators and volunteers takes time

Monthly community programmers’ meetings resulting in more effective offerings for all
Youth Advocates meetings resulting in increased awareness of youth issues

Efforts to increase awareness of issues affecting youth have resulted increased
community support for our program (such as fundraisers, volunteers, etc.)

Staffing for summer camps is a challenge (qualified youth facilitators, competition with
local businesses for summer staff, insufficient enrollment, etc.)

Efforts to reach residents in out-lying rural neighbourhoods is an ongoing challenge;
though we do seem to be making headway

Pender Harbour Community School FINAL REPORT 2018

130



Pender Harbour/Area A COMMUNITY RECREATION PROGRAM Page 4 of 6

Pender Harbour Community School Society
SCRD Community Recreation Program ~ Area A

Income & Expenses
January to December 2018 with Jan-Dec 2017 comparative

INCOME: Jan-Dec 2018 Jan-Dec 2017
SCRD Recreation Grant 40,000.00 40,000.00
Program revenues 17,025.79

14,032.00

Total Income 57,025.79 54,032.00

EXPENSES:

Personnel costs

REC Coordination 23,578.12 23,008.87

REC Facilitation 17,361.75 18,471.50

Accounting/financial 1,257.50 1,641.25
Total personnel costs 42,197.37 43,121.62

Program & Admin costs

Program Materials & Supplies 4,474.36 1,285.24
Program Venue Rentals 2,196.00 2,430.75
Advertising / promotion 3,229.00 3,313.71
Insurance 1,700.00 1,700.00
Membership & ProD 316.81 343.74
Office supplies & postage 481.59 367.19
Telephone & internet 676.14 520.00
Technical & maintenance 555.58 285.00
Travel / mileage 411.25 409.76
WCB expense 347.53 379.78
Total program & admin costs 14,388.26 11,035.17

Total Expenses 56,585.63 54,156.79
Remaining balance for 2018 440.16 -124.70

Pender Harbour Community School FINAL REPORT 2018

131



Pender Harbour/Area A COMMUNITY RECREATION PROGRAM

Page 5 of 6

Pender Harbour Community School Society
2018 Organizational Financial Statement

with 2017 comparative, dated: Dec30, 2018

INCOME
CommunityLink Grant
Direct Access Gaming Grant

Other agency grants

SCRD Community Recreation Grant
SCRD Youth Program Grant

SCRD Grant in Aid

Program Revenues

Donations

Other income

Total revenue

EXPENSES

People costs
Contractors/programmers
Instructors/facilitators
Wage expenses
Accounting/financial
Total people costs

Program & admin costs
Advertising & Promotion
Insurance
Internet Expense
Membership/ProD
Office Supplies & Paper
Program Materials & Supplies
Program Venue Rentals
Repairs & Maintenance
Technical Support
Telephone
Travel
Water
WCB Expense

Total program costs

Total expenses

2018 2017
38,043.95 35,253.00
20,000.00 20,000.00
18,300.00 2,000.00
40,000.00 40,000.00
10,000.00 10,000.00

0.00 400.00
22,205.54 15,767.00

9,277.86 8,955.15
7,948.37 7,867.85
165,775.72 140,243.00
44,400.00 35,926.00
20,390.00 19,207.50
64,298.00 49,099.51
2,257.50 2,246.25
131,345.50 106,479.26
4,149.48 4,419.41
2,902.00 2,845.00
998.10 907.94
401.81 402.85
1,255.36 1,690.12
14,767.84 11,914.95
2,396.00 2,430.75
3,090.67 3,045.34
1,921.84 2,486.15
741.55 722.01
1,450.85 1,562.25
278.95 231.60
695.80 759.55
35,050.25 33,417.92
166,395.75

139,897.18

Pender Harbour Community School

132

FINAL REPORT 2018



Pender Harbour/Area A COMMUNITY RECREATION PROGRAM Page 6 of 6

Net income/expense -620.03 345.82

Pender Harbour Community School FINAL REPORT 2018

133



Pender Harbour Community School Society ;33 .‘

Date: December 31,2018 PENDER COMMUNITY
To:  Tara Crosby, SCRD Community Services RTRRIHR.: LERLane b Sy
From: Francine Clohosey, PHCS Manager
Re:  Pender Harbour/Area A: Community Recreation Program

QUARTERLY REPORT: October/November/December 2018

REGULAR PROGRAMS

Conversation Café

A casual friendly evening at a local café for parents to connect and share support. Speakers
are invited to discuss timely topics each month and conversation follows. Guests speakers
have included the public health nurse, the SCCU bank manager, and our new School District
Trustee, Samantha Haines. We hope to build and make this an evening out for parents in a
safe space.

Dates & Cost: Third Thursday of each month 6:30-8:30pm (Oct, Nov, Dec 2018)

Participants: average 5

Location: Euspiria Café, Madeira Park

Samosa Making Class

Sushma came back to teach a new group
the art of Samosa making. A well-attended,
fun class where participants made
samosas, drank Chai Tea and took home a
dozen samosas for their fridges!

Dates & Cost: Wednesday, Nov 21, 6:30-
8:30pm, $50

Participants: 8

Location: PHSS Foods Room

FoodSafe Certification

Community members got Foodsafe
certified in this well delivered course; important for anyone working or volunteering with
food programs.

Dates & Cost: Friday, Oct 19, 9:00am-4:00pm, $95

Participants: 7, Location: PHCS Harbour Learning Centre

Chocolate Making Workshop

Susan Armstrong taught participants a number of different ways/types to make chocolates!
A fun group and great class, we will offer another one around Valentine’s Day.

Dates & Cost: Thursday, Nov 22, 6:30-8:30pm, $25

Participants: 6

Location: PHSS Foods Room

134



Silk Scarf Making Workshop

A wonderful way to celebrate the year-end. Ann Harmer, local
artist, led us through the process of using mushroom dyes to dye a
silk scarf. Participants were able to go home with their own one-of-
a-kind scarf.

Dates & Cost: Friday, December 14, 1:00-3:30pm, food bank donation
Participants: 12

Location: Harbour Learning Centre

Canadian Firearms Safety Course

a Safety training for handling and storage, instructor Andy Ross.
Dates & Cost October 12 & 13 and November 16 & 17, Friday 6:00-9:00pm Saturday 9:00am-
5:00pm, $140 Participants: 8 (Oct), 6 (Nov) Location: PHCS

Conservation and Outdoor Recreation Certification

Outdoor wilderness training.

Dates & Cost: October 26, 27 &28, Friday 6:00-9:00pm Saturday 9:00am-5:00pm Sunday
9:00am-3:00pm, $180 Participants: 8 Location: PHCS

CHILDRENS PROGRAMS

Kids Art

SENIOR Grade 5/6 worked on sketchbook-design, graffiti, painting, colouring-book design,
tracing and learning about different artists. Dates & Cost: 11 sessions, Oct 4 to Dec 13, 2018,
3:00-4:30pm, $100 Participants: 11

JUNIOR Grade % were able to explore collage, pen and ink, stamping and learned about
various artists. Dates & Cost: 11 sessions -Tues Oct 2 to Dec 11, 2018, 3:00-4:30pm, $100
Participants: 5

PEEWEE Grade 1/2 were introduced to paper-arts, painting, pastels, clay and talked about
different artists

Dates & Cost: 11 sessions, Tues Oct 2 to Dec 11, 2018, 3-4pm, $80 Participants: 12, Total Hours: 11
Location: MPES Art Room and Library

Boys Club

The boys have been having a great time! Highlights this quarter include fishing rod repair,
trap making, nature walks, airplane construction, ropes & knots and a visit to the IGA where
the boys engaged in Random Acts of Kindness.

Dates & Cost: 12 Mons, Oct 1, 2018 to Dec 17, 2018, 3:00-4:30pm, free

Participants: average 8 + 2 adults

Location: MPES

Garden Club

With about 600 bulbs from the Bulbs4Kids Program, a yard of soil courtesy of Salish Soils
and better weather this year, Jill helped the kids plant bulbs around the school grounds and
in each child’s own pot. She taught them about the life cycle of bulbs and had them create

135



their own tags for the pots. In the springtime, they’ll
be able to take home their own spring flowers.
Dates & Cost: 4 Wednesdays, 8:30-9:00am + 8 hours
Participants: average 8 Location: MPES Garden

Fishing Club

We were able to fish most of October but then it got
too cold. We had a great turnout this year with a
bunch of new kids and lots of parent helpers. We will
restart after Spring Break.

Dates & Cost: 4 Thursdays, 3:00-4:00pm, free, Average of 22 kids + 4 adults
Location: Madeira Park Government Dock

Kids Cooking

Using the kitchen at the Community Hall, Chef
Marcus has taught the kids how to make Spring
Rolls, Italian Meatballs with Garlic Bacon Pasta,
Calzones and more. The feedback has been
amazingly positive.

Dates & Cost: October 10 & 24, November 21,
December 5, 3:00-4:30pm, $10 Participants: 6
Location: Pender Harbour Community Hall

DROP IN SPORTS

Pickleball

The Pickleball players are happy to be back and have some fun.

Dates & Cost: 12 Tues & Thu, Oct 2 to Dec 13, 5:30-7:30pm, $7 drop in fee.
Participants: average 12 Location: PHSS Gym

Hockey

Drop in Hockey is going well. A small but
committed group has been playing regularly and
will continue in the new year. Oct 2 - Dec 11
Dates & Cost: 12 Tues, Oct 2-Dec11, 7:30pm-
9:30pm, $3 drop in fee. Participants: average 12
Location: PHSS Gym

136



PARTNERSHIPS [ EVENTS

Fall Feast

The Community School hosted a community dinner at the
Community Hall on Nov 25 and welcomed families and
community members to join us in a spaghetti dinner. Kate
Purnell was our chef and we fed approximately 50 people!

Pender Harbour Community Programmers meeting

We continue to meet monthly with PH Aquatic & Fitness, Seniors
Initiative, Harbourside Friendship, Pender Harbour Health Centre
to share information and resources ensuring the various
community needs are being addressed and to work on shared
projects occasionally throughout the year. We also meet with other community groups on
an ongoing and as needed basis.

Serendipity Christmas Craft Fair ~ Dec 1 & 2, 2018

We participated in the annual Serendipity Christmas Craft Fair selling items created by the
kids in our Art Classes. The Senior class produced a colouring book. The Junior class made
stamped wrapping paper and the Peewee class made our famous clay snowmen. We raised
over $500, which we will spend on more art supplies.

Pender Harbour Christmas

Assisted the PH Chamber of Commerce in the collection and coordination of information on
community events happening during the holiday season. Also assisted with web-based and
social media promotions.

Open Door Group

Victor Rodriquez from the Open Door/WorkBC Group has been regularly available to meet
clients and help them with their ongoing employment needs.

Wednesdays, Oct 17 & 31, Nov 14 & 28, Dec 12, 10:00am-1:00pm

Early Years ~ Coffee and Conversation

We help support with the weekly drop-in gatherings for new parents and on Dec 6 with a
Baby Party to welcome new and expectant families. Discussions with the Public Health
Nurse, MPES Principal, PHAFC Manager, Community Services and other guests.

Remembrance Day Ceremony

Francine Clohosey and Paola Stewart laid the wreath on behalf of the Community School at
the Ceremony at the Madeira Park Legion for Remembrance Day.

137



Pender Harbour Community School
SCRD Community Recreation Program / Pender Harbour & Area A ~ stats
October to December 2018

REGULAR PROGRAMS
Program Location Dates Total % # # [ participants Total part hrs
ly hours | sessions
Conversation Euspiria | Oct, Nov, Dec, 6 3 12 adults 24
Café Café 6:30-8:30pm
Samosa making | Foods Wed Nov 21, 2 1 6 adults 16
room 6:30-8:30pm 2 youth
FoodSafe Cert HLC Fri Ot 19, 9am- 7 1 7 adults 49
4pm
Chocolate Foods Thu Nov 22 2 1 5 adults 12
Making room 6:30-8:30pm 1youth
Scarf making HLC Fr Dec 14 2.5 1 10 adults 30
1-3:30pm 2 youth
CFSC HLC Oct 12-13, Nov 22 2 10 adults 154
16-17 4 youth
CORE HLC Oct 26-28 18 1 4 adults 144
4 youth
Kids Art — Snr Artroom | Oct 4 - Dec13 16.5 11 11 children 181.5
3-4:30pm
Kids Art — Jr Artroom | Oct 2 - Dec11 16.5 11 5 children 82.5
3-4:30pm
Kids Art - PW Artroom | Oct2 - Dec 11 1 11 12 children 132
3-4pm
Boys Club HLC Oct1-Dec17 18 12 8 children 180
3-4:30pm 2 adults
Garden Club MPES Various 10 4 8 children 10
garden Wednesdays
Fishing Club Gvt Doc | Various 4 4 22 children 104
Thursdays 4 adults
Kids Cooking PH Cmty | Oct 10, 24, Nov 6 6 6 children 36
Hall 21, Decs
Total: 141.5 77 146 1,155
13 adults, 2 youth, 64 children 54 adults, 20
youth, 72 children
DROP IN ACTIVITIES
Activity | Location Dates Hours [ sessions | Average Total part. hours
# participants
Pickleball | PHSS gym Tue & Thu 2 hrs x 24 12 adults 576
5:30-7:30 sessions = 48hrs
Floor PHSS gym | Tue Oct 2-Dec11, | 2 hrs x 12 session | 3 adults 288
Hockey 7:30-9:30pm =24 hrs 9 youth
Total participants: 15 adults/ 9 youth Total hrs: 864

138




Pender Harbour Community School Society v, .
{V\_\I ‘
RCOMMUNITY

Date: January 15, 2018 PENDE
To: SCRD Community Services Committee cisure
From: Francine Clohosey, PHCSS Manager
Re: 2018 Annual Report: PENDER YOUTH PROGRAM

Youth Restitution Program & Youth Drop-in Activities Annual Report 2018

Background

The SCRD has provided funding to the Pender Harbour Community School in the amount of $10,000
funded from SCRD Function (670) Regional Recreation Programs. This funding was for the period
January 1 to December 31, 2018.

1. 2018 financial statement
Youth Restitution ~ Youth Drop In

Program Activities Total

Income

SCRD: Youth Restitution program 7,000.00

SCRD: Youth drop-in activities 3,000.00
Total Youth Program funding 10,000.00
Expenses

Program materials & supplies 618.93 181.07

Coordinator contract 5,575.00 2,675.00

Transportation/mileage 825.00 125.00

7,018.93 2,981.07

Total expenses 10,000.00

2. Description of activities

The Pender Harbour Youth Restitution Program responds to disruptive behavior in our schools and
community and focuses on repairing damage done, improving relationships, holding youth
accountable and addressing the root causes of an offence. The Program incorporates elements of
the First Nation’s peacemaking circles, mind up mediation, and on-going counseling to help develop
strategies and techniques for ongoing problems at home, anger management, addictions and other
mental health issues. Assistance in completion of Community Service hours is key to dispute
resolution. Examples of youth involvement coordination include:

Trash pick up

Assisted in community painting projects (e.g. shed at PHSS & graffiti sites)

Participated in the Mental Health Day event at PHSS

Mentoring younger students at the High School with supervision

Volunteer at community events (i.e. May Day, Danger Bay Long Boarding Race, Pender Harbour
Days and April Tools Wooden Boat Challenge)

Connecting youth with adult and peer mentors

Attending VCMH therapy sessions with the youth

Pender Harbour Community School YOUTH PROGRAM 2018 1

139



We also provide a variety of Youth Drop-In Activities to offer an outlet for youth to gather in a safe
and supportive environment. We identify interest, locate a facilitator/role model, and try to offer
activities in various local facilities in an attempt to provide access to all the neighbourhoods that
make up our rural community.

Some of the activities provided in 2018 include:

- Sport nights 2 times a week throughout the school year (e.g., floor hockey and drop-in soccer)
Participation in youth programs held in our community (e.g., Pender Harbour Community Church
Youth Group, activities at Pender Harbour Aquatic Center and at Iris Griffiths’ Centre)

Attended Youth Workshops at the SIB Long House

Supervision at school dances and other school fundraising events
Summer outdoor activities twice a month at local lakes and parks
Movie & pizza nights in Egmont and Madeira Park

In 2018, we continued to meet quarterly with the “Youth Advocates Collective” — a group of
individuals and organizations who wish to improve the lives of youth in our community. A number
of discussions have taken place, attendance at community meetings has increased, more mentors
are stepping forward to help in our drop-in activities, and a number of informal awareness
campaigns and fundraisers are resulting.

3. Description of fund allocation: See above (item 1)
4. Annual goals & performance indicators

Coordinate the Youth Restitution Program for Pender Harbour/Area A in conjunction with
Sunshine Coast RCMP and BC Youth Justice Service Department to provide supervision and
guidance, direct support, education, and referral services to youth and community members
involved.

Provide a variety of Youth Drop-in Activities to offer an outlet for youth to get exercise, reduce
screen time, burn off stress and have fun together. By coming together in these safe, supportive
environments, youth have a chance to develop friendships and bonds with community and peers.

5. Resources utilization

The BC Provincial Restorative Justice Template is used as our guideline for service delivery;
this template is also used by the RCMP and SD46, which aids in consistency and effectiveness
Harbour Learning Centre is used for one-on-one support for youth and their families,
computer access and gathering place

Activities happen at both schools, Lions Park, Egmont Community Hall, Madeira Park
Community Hall, Pender Harbour Community Church, SIB longhouse and at our local
recreation sites were the youth naturally congregate

Community Member and Business Volunteers

Pender Harbour Community School YOUTH PROGRAM 2018 2

140



6. Program & comparative data

Overall support

Year Hours # of Youth served
2018 187 26
2017 195 21

Direct one-to-one support

Year Hours # of Youth served
2018 103 19
2017 110 15

Mandatory Restitution Circles
directed by Principals or Teachers, RCMP or BC Youth Probation Services

Year # of Youth served
2018 8
2017 6

7. Location of programs & attendance of Youth Drop-In Activities

Sessions Total hrs Average attendance Total participant hrs
Youth Soccer Nights @ PHSS gym
16 sessions x 2 hrs 32 8 256
Floor Hockey @ PHSS gym
3l sessions x 2 hrs 62 8 496
Basketball @ PHSS gym
10 sessions x 2 hrs 20 5 100
Youth Drop-In Nights @ Egmont, Madeira Park Community Hall & other locations
20 sessions x 3 hrs 60 9 540
Summer Youth Drop-In Activities @ Katharine Lake, Dan Bosch Park, and Kline Lake
4 sessions x 4 hrs 16 8 128
2018 TOTALS
sessions 190 8 1,520

8. Trends, barriers or other factors that influence programs/services

In 2018 we have seen damage of community property including broken windows, knocking down of
street signs, littering in local parks and public beaches, and damage to roads and parking lots caused
by ‘burner rubber.” The ongoing barriers that lead to these behaviors include isolation of remote
areas, few activities in the evening hours and on the weekends, and lack of transportation.

In 2018, we continued to use the Restitution model as standard practice in the schools. We have
adjusted our drop-in activities to meet the changing needs of the youth and have added positive,
healthy, and active options specifically designed for the male youth in our community. We continue
to work with other youth focused organizations to make their resources more accessible to the
youth and their families in Area A. As a result of these changes we have seen an improved positive
recognition of local youth and the role they play in our community.

Pender Harbour Community School YOUTH PROGRAM 2018 3

141



9. Partnerships and other funding

Sunshine Coast RCMP and the BC Youth Justice Service Provincial Restitution Program
VCMH for Children and Youth

Sechelt Indian Band Youth Programs

Vancouver Coastal Nurse Practitioner

Referrals from school principals, teachers, local business owners, probation officers and the
RCMP, Madeira Park Elementary School and Pender Harbour Elementary Secondary School
Community organizations such as the Community Club, Lions Club, local churches

SC Youth Outreach Program

10. In-kind & other support

55 in kind hours provided by the Pender Harbour Community School facilitators

70 in kind hours of supervision and rescores support from VCH, VCMH staff, teachers, school
administrators, and community volunteers

Donated facility rentals for youth nights (Community Halls, SD46, PHCS)

Donated food and meals (Market Place IGA, Oak Tree Market, Harbour Pizza)

Snacks and food cards provided by local non-profits, local businesses and

community members

Pender Harbour Community School YOUTH PROGRAM 2018 4

142



Sunshine Coast Tourism
PO Box 1883

. Gibsons, BC VON 1VO
Sunshine Coast 604-740-6170

TOURISM . .
P info@sunshinecoastcanada.com

November 13, 2018

Tina Perreault - Sunshine Coast Regional District
General Manager, Corporate Services / Chief Financial Officer
1975 Field Road, Sechelt BC VON 3A1

Dear Ms. Perreault and SCRD Board,
RE: 2019 Annual Funding Request

| write this letter to formally request funding for 2019 to support Sunshine Coast Tourism in the
amount of $20,000 for destination marketing activities. Since this is a shared resource across the
entire Sunshine Coast, we will also be approaching the District of Sechelt, the Town of Gibsons, the
Sechelt Indian Government District, as well as City of Powell River, Powell River Regional District
(gathet) and Tlaamin Nation. The total request for funding from the 7 local governments on the
Sunshine Coast will be $82,000.

Sunshine Coast Tourism was formed in 2008 and is a 50/50 public private partnership between all
of our local governments and the region's growing tourism industry. The 2% Municipal Regional
District Tax (MRDT), implemented on August 1, 2016, is the final funding piece provided by visiting
consumers that will allow us to be sustainable and ultimately successful as an organization.

Over the years, we have greatly appreciated the SCRD’s ongoing investment in Sunshine Coast
Tourism. We look forward to our continued partnership with you and the other local governments to
help achieve our shared mandate to promote the Sunshine Coast and grow the visitor economy for
the benefit of all of our communities.

Thank you for your time and consideration of our request.

Sincerely,
Paul IKamon - Executive Director

T: 604-618-1963 cel. E: paul@sunshinecoastcanada.com

143



Last update: January 14, 2019

: : Sunshine Coast
An introduction to... “UISHRE,

Who We Are

Sunshine Coast Tourism (SCT) is a non-profit Destination Marketing Organization (DMO).
Our job is to promote British Columbia’s Sunshine Coast, in its entirety (from Howe
Sound to Desolation Sound), as a remarkable and inviting tourism destination to the rest
of the world. With a volunteer Board of Directors (11) and a small team (4) of passionate
and dedicated staff, we are supported by more than 200+ members which encompass all
facets of business within the region’s tourism industry.

2018/19 SCT Board of Directors

Executive
Jack Barr - President - Large Accommodation, North Coast
Christine Hollmann - Vice President, North Coast
Martin Prestage - Past President, South Coast
Theressa Logan - Secretary, South Coast
Heather Newman - Treasurer, South Coast

Directors
John Hermsen - Member at Large, North
Chris Greenfield - Member at Large, South
Jamie Mani - Member at Large, South
Linda Williams - Arts, Culture, & Heritage
Bob Timms - Small Accommodations & Campgrounds
Chris Tait - Large Accommodation, North

SCT Staff
Paul Kamon - Executive Director
Annie Schroeder - Marketing Director
Lauren Stanton-Nixdorf - Marketing & Administration Coordinator
Wendy Wright - Gibsons Visitor Centre Manager

SCT Contractors

Andrea Wickham Foxwell - Media and Communications Director
Tammy Williams - Bookkeeping

144



Last update: January 14, 2019

Our team creates bold, inspiring and engaging marketing campaigns that motivate visitors
to plan their trip to the Sunshine Coast and work diligently in creating brand awareness
and advocacy for the region as a whole.

As a non-profit, we are supported by our stakeholder membership, as well as our local,
provincial, and Indigenous governments, who all see the value of growing the tourism
economy and our ability to unite together to market the Sunshine Coast in a way that no
one business could achieve individually.

Our Mission
To build a strong tourism economy on the Sunshine Coast consistent with the values of
residents. Sunshine Coast Tourism will:

e Promote BC's Sunshine Coast to leisure and business travellers as a year-round
destination in targeted markets through strategic, research-based marketing
strategies.

e Facilitate the continuing evolution of the Sunshine Coast as a top-of-mind
destination.

e Increase awareness of the value, contribution and importance of tourism among
the government, population and businesses along the Sunshine Coast.

Further Resources
View the Sunshine Coast Tourism Strategic Business Plan 2015-2019
View the Sunshine Coast 10 Year Destination Development Strategy

Three Pillars of Funding

SOURCES LOCAL GOV'T INDUSTRY MRDT (2%}
Sunshine Coast Tourism $81,000 $36,750 $57,250
Subtotal =$175,000
Destmlon S Cmpmatn
Other Marketing +$25,000
MARKETING BUDGET $375,000

Sunshine Coast Tourism operates on a public/private funding model for its marketing
budget, which pools together three streams of funding:

145


https://sunshinecoastcanada.com/app/uploads/2017/07/SCT-Strategic-Business-Plan-2015-2019.pdf
https://sunshinecoastcanada.com/app/uploads/2018/07/Sunshine-Coast_Destination-Development-Strategy_FINAL.pdf

Last update: January 14, 2019

1) Local Government Investment (Town of Gibsons, District of Sechelt, shishalh
Nation, Sunshine Coast Regional District, City of Powell River, Powell River
Regional District, Tla’amin Nation)

2) Local Tourism Stakeholders (membership and marketing co-op buy-in)

3) Consumer (via Municipal Regional District Tax 2% charge on accommodation)

We use these pooled local funds to apply to the Provincial DMO (Destination BC)
Cooperative Marketing Program to leverage for up to 50/50 matched dollars. Since the
program’s inception in 2016, SCT has managed to secure over $636,250 in Provincial
funding to help market the Sunshine Coast.

Municipal Regional District Tax

After a successful application submission to the Ministry of Finance, in August of 2016, all
commercial accommodation providers within the Sunshine Coast region (north and
south coast) with 4+ rooms began collecting the 2% Municipal Regional District Tax on
behalf of Sunshine Coast Tourism for regional destination marketing services for a period
of 5 years.

2016 MRDT Collected: $103,349 (4 months only)
2017 MRDT Collected: $342,238
2018 MRDT Collected: $353,052

Total collected (28 months): $798,639

This program has a duration of 5 years and a renewal application must be filed to the
Ministry of Finance 6 months before the current end date of the program August 1, 2021

Renewal Submission Date: February 1, 2021

At the January 9th board meeting, Sunshine Coast Tourism board of directors created a
MRDT Renewal Committee to focus and develop a comprehensive communication and
engagement strategy to ensure the successful renewal and continuity of the SCT
organization and its destination marketing mandate for the region.

Sunshine Coast Marketing Channels
Sunshine Coast Tourism is active on the big 3 social media platforms (Instagram,
Facebook, Twitter) and also supports content on YouTube and Pinterest.

Website: sunshinecoastcanada.com
Instagram: @sunshinecoastbc

Facebook: Sunshine Coast Tourism - Canada
Twitter: @sunshinecoastca

146



Last update: January 14, 2019

YouTube: Sunshine Coast Tourism
Pinterest: Sunshine Coast Tourism
Hashtag: #sunshinecoastbc

Membership
Sunshine Coast Tourism provides the following benefits to our membership:

e Website listing with booking referral engine in our online Member Directory
through sunshinecoastcanada.com
Promotion of specials, packages and booking deals on sunshinecoastcanada.com
Discounted cooperative advertising opportunities in print, online, radio campaigns
and industry trade shows
Exposure in our social media networks reaching 35,000+ followers
Inclusions in media hosting and itineraries

e Access to educational workshops, business development events and informative
newsletters

Membership Investment

Business Membership: $175 per year

Accommodators: $175 per year + $10.00 / room per year*

Non-Profit Associations: $85 per year

*NOTE: Accommodations collecting and submitting the MRDT on behalf of the tourism
sector will have their membership fees waived.

Visitor Information Centres

There are currently 3 full time visitor centres on the Sunshine Coast (Gibsons, Sechelt,
Powell River), who are recognized and partially funded by Destination BC via the Visitor
Centre Network Program (the majority of the funds come from the host community).
There is a seasonal VIC in Pender Harbour (June-September) that is funded by local
government and the Pender Harbour Chamber of Commerce. The Gibsons Chamber
continues to operate their own seasonal visitor services via the kiosk at the Langdale
by-pass and the BC Ferry Ambassador program with limited funding support from local
government. Only the Gibsons Visitor Information Centre is currently under contract with
Sunshine Coast Tourism as of January 14, 2018.

SCT's vision is to help bring all of visitor services within the Sunshine Coast region into
brand alignment with SCT and to facilitate deeper collaboration amongst the info centres
and marketing staff to ensure visitors get a consistent message that facilitates a high
value engagement while traveling in the region.

147



Last update: January 14, 2019

VIC Work in progress

e SCT applied to the BC Rural Dividend Fund for $S10K for “Project Development”
Funding in July 2018 to hire a professional consultant to facilitate and develop a
“Sunshine Coast Regional Visitor Services Strategy”.

e SCT will be formally submitting a proposal to the District of Sechelt to take over
management of the Visitor Information Centre (deadline January 31, 2019). RFP
source - District of Sechelt: January 1, 2019.

2019 Visitor Information Centre Racking Fees - Gibsons

$75 per year with Sunshine Coast Tourism membership

$125 for Gibsons Chamber members (associate membership) $200 per year for
non-members

S50 per year non-profit rate with SCT membership

$125 per year non-profit rate for non-members

Other VIC Racking Fees
e Powell River = $25 individual $85 non profit $175 business (via Tourism Powell
River membership)
e Sechelt = TBD (in 2018 it was $85 via VIC membership)
e Pender Harbour = $50 racking fee with membership (membership= $45 non profit
$80-$115 (via Pender Harbour Chamber of Commerce membership)

Sunshine Coast

TOURISM

Board Contact
Jack Barr, President
T: 604-738-1111
E: president@sunshinecoastcanada.com

Staff Contact
Paul Kamon, Executive Director
4760 Joyce Avenue,
Powell River, BC VON1VO
Tel: 604-618-1963
Email: paul@sunshinecoastcanada.com

For more detailed information about the Sunshine Coast Tourism organization, please
visit: https://sunshinecoastcanada.com/corporate/tourism-resources/

148


https://sunshinecoastcanada.com/corporate/tourism-resources/

Sunshine Coast Tourism - Budget
Fiscal Period May 1, 2018 - April 30, 2019

REVENUE

STAKEHOLDER INVESTMENT

Memberships/Co-op $45,000
Local Governments $81,000
Total Stakeholder Investment $126,000

CONSUMER INVESTMENT
MRDT 2% $325,000
Total Consumer Investment $325,000

DESTINATION BC (50/50 Match Funds)

SCT Co-Op $153,250
Project management fee $25,000
Total Destination BC $178,250

BC ALE TRAIL PROJECT

DBC Funding $190,115
Partner Funding $232,615
Destination Canada $17,063
Project management fee $13,813
Total BC Ale Trail Project $453,605

VISITOR SERVICES - GIBSONS

Town of Gibsons $45,000
SCRD $6,500
Destination BC $12,500
Total Visitor Services Gibsons $64,000
GRANTS

Canada Summer Jobs $15,462
Total Grants $15,462
TOTAL REVENUE $1,162,317
EXPENSE

HUMAN RESOURCE

Executive Director $70,000
Marketing Director $52,000
Administrator $43,680
Employee Benefits $12,000
ElI/CPP/WCB $19,000
Summer Students $16,039
Total Human Resources $212,719
MARKETING

DBC Co-Op: SCT $331,500
BC Ale Trail project $422,730
DBC Co-Op: SC Ale Trail $8,500
DBC Co-Op: MBTA $5,000
DBC Co-Op: AhoyBC $2,000
Fishing BC (via Destination Canada) $2,500
General Marketing $3,000
Travel $12,000
Website Maintenance $3,000
Total Marketing $790,230

149



VISITOR SERVICES - GIBSONS
Manager

Part-time staff

Office

Total Visitor Services Gibsons

DEVELOPMENT
Service Excellence Branding
Total Development

OFFICE/ADMIN

Office - Powell River
Office rent - Sechelt
Utilities
Telecommunications
Office Supplies/Software
Insurance

Licences
Accounting/Bookkeeping
Bank/CC
Dues/Subscriptions
Total Office/Admin

BOARD AND COMMITTEE EXPENSE
AGM

Board and committee expense
Spring and Fall Stakeholder Events
Contingency

Office Equipment - Capital Purchase
Total Board and Committee

TOTAL EXPENSE

$40,000
$20,000

$10,000

$70,000

$1,000

$1,000

$12,000
$8,820
$1,200
$5,000
$1,500
$2,240
$125
$18,000
$1,250

$1,250

$51,385

$2,000
$1,000
$5,000
$23,983

$5,000

$36,983

$1,162,317

150



SUNSHINE COAST TOURISM SOCIETY
Financial Statements
Year Ended April 30, 2017
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

151




NOTICE TO READER

On the basis of information provided by management, | have compiled the statement of financial position
of Sunshine Coast Tourism Society as at April 30, 2017 and the statements of revenues and
expenditures, changes in net assets and cash flow for the year then ended.

I have not performed an audit or a review engagement in respect of these financial statements and,
accordingly, | express no assurance thereon.

Readers are cautioned that these statements may not be appropriate for their purposes.

Oelf;on ARluarez + Co (.
Gibsons, British Columbia Nelson Alvarez & Co. Ltd.
October 24, 2017 Chartered Professional Accountant

1001 Gibsons Way - Suite 202, Gibsons, BC VON 1V/7 géo4.886.8966 | F 604.886.0035 | www.alvarezco.ca




SUNSHINE COAST TOURISM SOCIETY
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
Year Ended April 30, 2017
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

2017 20186
REVENUES (Note 3) $ 694,397 $ 168,079
EXPENSES
Ale Trail project expenditures 319,709 11,893
Destination BC expenditures 243,403 118,645
Salaries and wages 55,797 -
Media relations 24,150 21,780
Advertising and promotion 23,120 15,746
Travel and ferry fees 11,855 10,819
Professional fees 9,619 6,125
Rental 6,800 -
Board expenses 4,164 1,286
Administration 3,292 10,209
Office 2,761 500
Interest and bank charges 1,987 1,585
Insurance 1,122 1,133
Stakeholder communications 578 1,887
Amortization 371 -
708,728 201,608
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES $ (14,331) § (43,529)

See notes to financial statements

153




SUNSHINE COAST TOURISM SOCIETY
Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Year Ended April 30, 2017
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

2017 2016
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR $ (45,221) $ (1,692)
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES (14,331) (43,529)

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ (59,552) $ (45,221)

See notes to financial statements

154




SUNSHINE COAST TOURISM SOCIETY
Statement of Financial Position
April 30, 2017
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

2017 2016
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash $ 127,100 82,000
Accounts receivable 278,003 1,733
Goods and services tax recoverable 2,058 -
Prepaid expenses 750 -
407,911 83,733
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Note 4) 978 -
3 408,889 83,733
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT
Accounts payable $ 87,693 25,176
Goods and services tax payable - 1,422
Employee deductions payable 2,933 -
Deferred income 377,815 102,356
468,441 128,954
NET ASSETS (59,552) (45,221)
$ 408,889 83,733

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Director

Director

See notes to financial statements

155




SUNSHINE COAST TOURISM SOCIETY
Statement of Cash Flow
Year Ended April 30, 2017
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

2017 2016
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Deficiency of revenues over expenses $ {14,331) 3% (43,529)
Item not affecting cash:
Amortization of property, plant and equipment 371 -
(13,960) (43.529)
Changes in non-cash working capital:
Accounts receivable (276,270) 840
Accounts payable 62,517 17,113
Deferred income 275,459 96,106
Prepaid expenses (750) 1,412
Goods and services tax payable (3,480) 3,729
Employee deductions payable 2,933 -
60,409 119,200
Cash flow from operating activities 46,449 75,671
INVESTING ACTIVITY
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,349) -
INCREASE IN CASH FLOW 45,100 75,671
Cash - beginning of year 82,000 6,329
CASH - END OF YEAR $ 127,100 § 82,000

See notes to financial statements

156




SUNSHINE COAST TOURISM SOCIETY
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended April 30, 2017
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

PURPOSE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Sunshine Coast Tourism Society (the "organization") is a not-for-profit organization incorporated
provincially under the Society Act of British Columbia. Management has determined that they are
exempt from payment of income tax under Section 149(1) of the Income Tax Act.

The organization operates to promote the region of the Sunshine Coast as a year-round travel
destination and to build a strong tourism economy.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Some users may require further information as these statements have not been prepared for general
purposes.

REVENUES

2017 2016
Society Memberships $ 24868 % 32,271
District of Sechelt F unding 12,800 12,800
Town of Gibsons Funding 7,200 7,200
SCRD Funding 20,000 20,000
Destination BC Funding 455,863 66,694
Sechelt Indian Band Funding 1,000 1,000
Northern Sunshine Coast Funding 4,000 -
Municipal & Regional District Tax 154,261 -
Online Reservation System 2,574 4,257
Partners/Trade Shows 8,489 10,050
Federal Grants 2,561 -
Miscellaneous Revenue 781 3,808

$ 694,397 3§ 158,080

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2017 2016
Accumulated Net book Net book
Cost amortization value value
Computer equipment 3 1,349 § 371 % 978 3§ -

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Some of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.

157




SUNSHINE COAST TOURISM SOCIETY
Financial Statements
Year Ended April 30, 2018
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

VAREZ

1 58 CHARTERED FROFESSIONA



Melson

ALVAREZ & CO..

CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANT

NOTICE TO READER

On the basis of information provided by management, | have compiled the statement of financial position
of Sunshine Coast Tourism Society as at April 30, 2018 and the statements of revenues and
expenditures, changes in net assets and cash flow for the year then ended.

I have not performed an audit or a review engagement in respect of these financial statements and,
accordingly, | express no assurance thereon.

Readers are cautioned that these statements may not be appropriate for their purposes.

Gibsons, British Columbia Nelson Alvarez & Co. Ltd.
September 10, 2018 Chartered Professional Accountant

1001 Gibsons Way - Suite 202, Gibsons, BC VON WS9604.886.8966 | F 604.886.0035 | www.alvarezco.ca



SUNSHINE COAST TOURISM SOCIETY
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
Year Ended April 30, 2018
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

2018 2017
REVENUES (Note 3) $ 1109405 $ 694,397
EXPENSES
Administration 3,605 3,292
Advertising and promotion 16,452 23,120
Ale Trail project expenditures 351,199 319,709
Amortization 687 371
Board expenses 3,510 4,164
Destination BC expenditures 369,245 243,403
Insurance 1,228 1,122
Interest and bank charges 1,040 1,987
Media relations - 24,150
Office 9,746 2,761
Professional fees 7,735 9,619
Rental 22,265 6,800
Salaries and wages 165,832 55,797
Stakeholder communications - 578
Training 3,194 -
Travel and ferry fees 18,138 11,855
973,876 708,728
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES $ 135,529 $ (14,331)

See notes to financial statements

ALVAREZ & CO..

1 60 CHARTERED FROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANT



SUNSHINE COAST TOURISM SOCIETY
Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Year Ended April 30, 2018
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

2018 2017
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR $ (59,552) $  (45221)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES 135,529 (14,331)
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 75977 $ (59,552

See notes to financial statements

ALVAREZ & CO..

1 6 1 CHARTERED FROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANT



SUNSHINE COAST TOURISM SOCIETY
Statement of Financial Position
April 30, 2018
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

2018 2017
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash $ 148,489 $ 127,100
Accounts receivable 117,144 278,003
Goods and services tax recoverable 3,409 2,058
Prepaid expenses 750 750
269,792 407,911
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Note 4) 832 978

$ 270,624 $ 408,889

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT
Accounts payable $ 56,004 3 87,693
Employee deductions payable 3,621 2,933
Deferred income 135,022 377,815
194,647 468,441
NET ASSETS 75,977 (59,552)

$ 270,624 $ 408,889

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

< saigl)

See notes to financial statements

ALVAREZ & CO..

1 62 CHARTERED FROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANT



SUNSHINE COAST TOURISM SOCIETY
Statement of Cash Flow
Year Ended April 30, 2018
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

2018 2017
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses $ 135,529 $ (14,331)
Item not affecting cash:
Amortization of property, plant and equipment 687 371
136,216 (13,960)
Changes in non-cash working capital:
Accounts receivable 160,859 (276,270)
Accounts payable (31,690) 62,517
Deferred income (242,793) 275,459
Prepaid expenses - (750)
Goods and services tax payable (1,351) (3,480)
Employee deductions payable 688 2,933
(114,287) 60,409
Cash flow from operating activities 21,929 46,449
INVESTING ACTIVITY
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (540) (1,349)
INCREASE IN CASH FLOW 21,389 45,100
Cash - beginning of year 127,100 82,000
CASH - END OF YEAR $ 148,489 $ 127,100

See notes to financial statements

ALVAREZ & CO..

1 63 CHARTERED FROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANT



SUNSHINE COAST TOURISM SOCIETY
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended April 30, 2018
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

1. PURPOSE OF THE ORGANIZATION
Sunshine Coast Tourism Society (the "organization") is a not-for-profit organization incorporated
provincially under the Society Act of British Columbia. Management has determined that they are
exempt from payment of income tax under Section 149(1) of the Income Tax Act.

The organization operates to promote the region of the Sunshine Coast as a year-round travel
destination and to build a strong tourism economy.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Some users may require further information as these statements have not been prepared for general
purposes.

3. REVENUES

2018 2017
Society Memberships $ 12,899 $ 24,868
District of Sechelt Funding 12,800 12,800
Town of Gibsons Funding 7,200 7,200
SCRD Funding 20,000 20,000
Destination BC Funding - Co-op 185,103 127,093
Destination BC Funding - Ale Trall 430,641 328,770
Sechelt Indian Band Funding 1,000 1,000
Northern Sunshine Coast Funding 28,000 4,000
Municipal & Regional District Tax 353,989 154,261
Online Reservation System - 2,574
Partners/Trade Shows 28,774 8,489

Powell River Regional District Funding 12,000 -
Federal Grants 7,624 2,561
Miscellaneous Revenue - 781

VIC Funding 9,375 -
$ 1,109,405 $ 694,397

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2018 2017
Accumulated Net book Net book

Cost amortization value value

Computer equipment $ 1,890 $ 1,058 $ 832 $ 978
6

164

ALVAREZ & CO..

CHARTERED FROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANT




COOPERATIVE MARKETING PARTNERSHIPS PROGRAM

POST PROJECT REPORT

Please provide the Post-Project report in the format provided below.

Random audits will be performed. If a project is chosen for an audit, the lead organization will be
required to submit copies of all claimed invoices and/or proofs of payment (for audit of
financials) and performance measurement statements (for audit of reported results).

Applicant(s):

TOURISM

Sunshine Coast
A

Representatives:

Paul Kamon, Annie Schroeder

Lead Organization:

Sunshine Coast Tourism

Authorized Authority:

Sunshine Coast Tourism — Paul Kamon (Executive Director)

Mailing Address:

PO Box 1883, Gibsons, BC VON1VO0

Telephone:

604-886-1940 Email: paul@sunshinecoastcanada.com

Contact Person:
(if different from above)

Annie Schroeder

Telephone:

604-989-7308 | Email: annie@sunshinecoastcanada.com

165



mailto:paul@sunshinecoastcanada.com

Name of

Sunshine Coast Marketing Campaign

Initiative

Contract C18D24052

Number

Approved $175,000 from Destination BC for a total project budget of $350,000
Budget

Project Cost

Identify the total money spent, excluding GST.

Consortium DBC

Project Total

$175,000 $175,000 $350,000

GST is not an eligible expense.

Partner
Contributions

Identify each funding partner and contribution amounts.

Partner Contribution as Actual
identified in contribution
application received

Sunshine Coast Municipal $40000 $40000
Governments (includes: Sunshine

Coast Regional District, District of

Sechelt, Town of Gibsons)

Local First Nations (includes Sechelt, $1000 $1000
Squamish, Tla’amin, and Klahoose First

Nations)

Tourism Powell River (includes funding | $15000 $36000
from the City of Powell River and the

Powell River Regional District)

Sunshine Coast Tourism (MRDT) $79500 $54500
Destination BC $175000 $175000
Stakeholder Memberships $20000 $20000
Private Sector Buy-ins (includes over 50 | $15000 $16750
different local businesses for co-op ad

participation)

Parksville Qualicum Beach Tourism (for | $2250 $2250
the Coastal Circle Route Tactic)

Discover Comox Valley (for the Coastal | $2250 $2250
Circle Route Tactic)

Nanaimo Hospitality Association (for the | $0 $2250
Coastal Circle Route Tactic)

Total $350,000 $350,000

Expenditure
Summary

Provide a summary of expenditures. Please follow the format headings below to
enable Destination BC to combine with other application projects for provincial

reporting.

166




Please provide an estimate, to the best of your knowledge, of costs in the 3

markets eligible under this program.

Marketing Tactic Project BC AB WA Other
Total
Spend
Consumer Print $9461 $7096 $0 $2365 $0
Publications
Paid Advertising: $44401 $28721 $10780 $4900 $0
Magazine
Paid Advertising: $14000 | $14000 | $0 $0 $0
Radio
Paid Advertising: $22185 | $22185 | $0 $0 $0
Newsprint
Paid Advertising: TV $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Paid Advertising: $79641 $44828 $18493 $13241 $3079
Internet/Online/Search
Paid Advertising: $4000 $2500 $1000 $500 $0
Social Media
Consumer Show $17185 | $9980 $4305 $2900 $0
Website $20445 $6815 $6815 $6815 $0
Email Marketing $720 $450 $135 $135 $0
Social Media $1600 $1000 $300 $300 $0
Direct Mail $316 $200 $50 $50 $16
Research $1200 $1200 $0 $0 $0
Travel Media / $40000 $33000 $2000 $3000 $2000
Influencers
Asset Development: $9835 $8266 $941 $628 $0
Content
Asset Development: $7386 $2462 $2462 $2462 $0
Photography
Asset Development: $52625 | $27625 | $12500 | $12500 | $0
Video
Other $ $ $ $ $
SUBTOTAL $325000 | $210,328 | $59,781 | $49,796 | $5095
Marketing $25000 $15000 $5000 $5000
Coordination
TOTAL | $350,000 | $225,328 | $64,781 | $54,796 | $5,095

167




Evaluation:

Sunshine Coast Tourism proudly executed yet another year of growth in its marketing efforts under the co-operative program.

With the launch of a completely rebuilt website with full alignment to Destination BC’s brand at the start of this cycle, we were

poised well to deliver a cohesive marketing campaign that achieved our set objectives:
e To increase tourism revenues on the Sunshine Coast during the slower shoulder seasons (October to April)

e To increase private investment in co-operative marketing efforts to leverage with public funds for maximum impact and

ROI for tourism businesses on the Sunshine Coast

e To integrate and align with the provincial brand essence “Wild at Heart” and “Super, Natural British Columbia”, building

strengthened brand equity through all province-funded marketing initiatives

e Toincrease the awareness, interest, and advocacy for the Sunshine Coast

In short, the results of the campaign far exceeded our expectations. Our target markets’ appetite for the Sunshine Coast
message is substantial. A full list of metrics is provided below in the table, after the evaluation discussion.

All marketing activities point to www.sunshinecoastcanada.com and/or #sunshinecoastbc, with the exception of the Coastal
Circle Route tactic, which points to www.coastalcircleroute.com and @coastcircle.

Awareness Target Actual % Change from previous year Measurement
Method

Print Advertising Media Impressions  [15,000,000 |Combined, 324% increase from last year's estimated 4.1M. |Media Buy

/Readership |est As our measurement capabilities develop, we recognize
- — - - that previous years’ estimates were likely too low, thus this -

Online Advertising Media — Impressions 12,410,000  |growth is probably overstated. Media Buy

impressions for display/native ads est

and paid editorial

Video Views Not set 125,053 benchmark YouTube/Facebook
Analytics

Number of videos 4 15 n/a n/a

Video - average view duration Not set 0:22 benchmark You Tube/Facebook
Analytics

Photography — number of images Not set 804 n/a n/a

Print Collateral Distribution n/a 12,550 Benchmark, does not inc. Coastal Circle Route brochure n/a

168



http://www.sunshinecoastcanada.com/
http://www.coastalcircleroute.com/

Web Visits - Overall Target Actual % Change from previous year Measurement
Method

Sessions on 250,000 (30% 257,768 +24% Google Analytics
sunshinecoastcanada.com growth)

Pageviews on Not identified [742,331 +67% Google Analytics
sunshinecoastcanada.com

Bounce Rate - <50% 56% -11.6% (last year’s bounce rate was 63.5%) Google Analytics
sunshinecoastcanada.com

Time on Site - Not identified ]2:28 +28% Google Analytics
sunshinecoastcanada.com

Number of Referrals n/a 46,861 Benchmark, data only available since May 30, 2017 Google Analytics

Sources 72% organic search, 9% direct, 8.5% paid search, 7% referral, 3% social Google Analytics
Devices 48% desktop, 40% mobile, 12% tablet Google Analytics
Geography 82% Canada, 10% USA, 1.6% UK, 1% Germany, .8% Australia, .6% Netherlands Google Analytics
Within Canada: 79% BC, 9% AB, 8% ON
Within USA: 28% WA, 18% California, 7% Oregon, 5% Texas
Paid Search Target Actual % Change from previous year Measurement
Method
Pre-click metric: Impressions n/a 746,007 benchmark Google Analytics
Pre-click metric: Click through rate 2.18% (ind. 3.75% 72% growth over industry avg Google Analytics
(CTR) avg)
Pre-click metric: Cost per click (CPC) |$1.55 (ind. $1.17 38 cents cheaper than industry avg Google Analytics
avg)
Post-click metric: Bounce Rate n/a 61.8% benchmark Google Analytics
Post-click metric: Time on Site n/a 1:40 benchmark Google Analytics
Post-click metric: Pages per visit n/a 2.63 benchmark Google Analytics
Post-click metric: Cost per action $60.31 (ind. $9.94 $50.37 less than industry avg Google Analytics
avg)
Post-click metric: Conversion rate 2.57% (ind. 17% 561% growth over industry avg Google Analytics
avg)
Data Collection & Email Target Actual % Change from previous year Measurement
Marketing Method
Contest Entries 5,000 2000 *contest still accepting entries MailChimp
# of Opt Ins to Newsletter 2,000 803 benchmark MailChimp

169




Unique Open Rate 22.7% (ind. 23.5% benchmark MailChimp
avg)
Unique Click Rate 2.4% (ind. 2.1% benchmark MailChimp
avg)
Revenue Target Actual % Change from previous year Measurement
Method

Room Revenue

4% growth*

32% growth

Based on amounts received from Oct - February, this year
vs. last year

MRDT Reports

Booking System Data from participatin

g accommodations - booking.sunshinecoastcanada.com - based on June 2017-March 2018

Total Revenue n/a $667,525 benchmark Meridian Reservation
Systems
# of Rooms Booked n/a 1308 benchmark Meridian Reservation
Systems
# of Nights Booked n/a 3294 benchmark Meridian Reservation
Systems
Advocacy - Social Media Target Actual % Change from previous year Measurement
Method
Growth of social media following 15% 55% n/a Instagram
15% n/a Facebook
7% n/a Twitter
26% n/a Total Follower Growth
Use of branded Hashtag 60,000 total 76,978 total [n/a Instagram
#sunshinecoastbc uses uses
Amplification of #exploreBC hashtag [n/a 1,000+ Included in every post Social Media
@SunshineCoastBC Instagram 2.29% (ind 7% Benchmark Instagram
Engagement avg)
@SunshineCoastBC Avg Monthly n/a 181,337 Benchmark Instagram
Impressions
Facebook Page Monthly Impressions |n/a 57,367 Benchmark Facebook
Net Promoter Score benchmark Data still benchmark Visitor Survey
incoming
Coastal Circle Route
Video Views n/a 21,000 |benchmark Facebook

170




Avg Video view duration n/a 0:09 benchmark Facebook

Coastal Circle Route n/a 15,000 copies printed, distributed via Certified Folder (BC Ferries, YVR, Provincial Visitor Centres,
Washington State visitor centres) and through DMO booths at consumer travel shows in
Vancouver, Calgary, Seattle, and at local visitor centres on the Sunshine Coast and Vancouver
Island
n/a

Visits to landing page 10,000 386 n/a Google Analytics

coastalcircleroute.ca

Bounce Rate - <60% 87% n/a Google Analytics

coastalcircleroute.ca

Referral traffic to DMO websites on  |2,000 44 n/a Google Analytics

coastalcircleroute.ca

@CoastCircle Instagram- 2.5% ind avg [4.6% benchmark Instagram

Engagement

@CoastCircle Twitter- impressions n/a 24,391 benchmark Twitter

@CoastCircle Twitter Engagement n/a 1.7% benchmark Twitter

Rate

*Notes: The Coastal Circle Route website and project launched much later than expected. Traffic as noted above represents 2 months of data with the
true launch only occurring last week with the release of the promotional video (i.e., over half of this traffic has occurred in the last 7 days). As this
campaign is continuing into 2018-2019, we expect to reach our targets after a full year of the website going live. Other notes on this campaign can be
seen in Evaluation & Key Learnings.

Tactics:
1) Video & Graphics:

Once we began planning, it became clear that 4 longer, seasonal videos would be less beneficial than creating many shorter,
experience-specific videos. Thus - we produced 17 videos. At this time, all the filming is complete, however some videos are
still in the post-production phase and will be released either later this spring, or for promotions beginning next fall. The original
goal and objective of this tactic has been kept: captivate our audience to see the Sunshine Coast as a four-season destination.
Specifically, the videos are:

“How to” Sunshine Coast - 60 second snapshots of a “how to” experience in the region, connecting a local business or
attraction with an authentic, remarkable experience:
e "How to pack your sea kayak for Desolation Sound”
e "How to pack for the Sunshine Coast Trail”
e "How to brew a great beer”
e “How to - Traditional Salmon BBQ”"

171



“How to Talk with the Trees”- (First Nations hiking)
“How to roast coffee”

“How to cycle onto the ferry”

“How to catch prawns”

Event Promotion Videos (30-60 seconds)

Powell River Film Festival (February)
Gibsons Grind Grand Fondo (June)

Sunshine Coast Art Crawl (October)

Sechelt Arts Festival (October)

Sunshine Coast Mushroom Festival (October)

Attraction Promotion Video (90 sec - 2-minute videos)

Dakota Ridge Winter Recreation Area
Skookumchuck Narrows Provincial Park

Seasonal Lure Piece (90 sec - 2-minute videos)

Fall (includes fall activities, waterfalls, fall foliage, restaurants/culinary)
Winter (includes shots of backcountry winter activities, spas, coastal scenery)

2) Content Planning/Development & Blog

With the launch of our new website last spring, it was vital to keep the site fresh throughout the year with new and unique
content. Our continued partnership with The Number creative agency allowed us to continue rolling out new features on the

website, including:

Itinerary Development

Trip Planner Tool

Featured Businesses/native ad displays

Guest Blog features

User friendly events calendar display

Furthermore, we partnered with Meridian Reservation Systems to incorporate an accommodation booking and referral system
within the site. With over 40 accommodations now participating, we can directly track consumers through the path-to-purchase

Contest landing page/template (not live at present)

and provide “hard” referrals to our stakeholders.

e sunshinecoastcanada.com/book >

172


http://staging.sunshinecoastcanada.com/itineraries/adventures-sunshine-coast-winter-itinerary/
https://sunshinecoastcanada.com/plan-your-trip/trip-planner/
https://sunshinecoastcanada.com/plan-your-trip/business-directory/?filterCategory=b-b-s
https://sunshinecoastcanada.com/blog/2018/01/5-reasons-you-need-to-visit-the-sunshine-coast-this-winter/
https://sunshinecoastcanada.com/events/
https://www.booking.sunshinecoastcanada.com/English/Availability_Check.asp?

Additional content was created with local photographers, bloggers, and social media influencers.
o View new photography/video assets >
¢ View social media influencer screenshots, links, & posts >
e 17 new blogs created for sunshinecoastcanada.com >

Overall, the additional content heavily contributed to the increases in web/social traffic and engagement. We focused on
unique, on-brand storytelling, supported by authentic photography that showcases the Sunshine Coast as a year-round
destination.

Perhaps one of our most successful of these partnerships in terms of ROI was with influencer group “All About Adventures”.
After hosting them on a four-day itinerary to showcase adventures on the Sunshine Coast in January, we saw an immediate,
substantial increase in social media traffic and engagement, website traffic, and inquiries to local businesses that were part of
the itinerary. We included photo licensing of 30 images as part of the partnership, which we are repurposing in print and digital
ads and promotions, and further pushed their content into a uniqgue travel itinerary, multiple blog posts, Instagram takeovers,
stories, and more. As the photos continue to get picked up across social media, the awareness and consideration of the
Sunshine Coast as a travel destination continues to grow. For example, just one photo from this trip has
been reposted and liked more than 200,000 times across various accounts.

3) Micro Campaign: Coastal Circle Route

The Coastal Circle Route campaign pulled together the Sunshine Coast with partners in Nanaimo,
Parksville Qualicum Beach, and the Comox Valley to create a compelling touring route. The project
launch took much longer than expected, partially due to delays in funding from some of the partner
communities, and partially because coordinating the efforts for such a large route took more
administrative resources than originally anticipated. Therefore, the social media channels (@CoastCircle
on Facebook, Instagram, and Twitter), as well as the website, www.coastalcircleroute.com, were “soft launched” in January,
along with the print brochure/map. The video was complete in early March, 2018, and signified the true launch of the digital
campaign.

This delay in launch is clearly reflected in the resulting KPIs; however, the initial public reception has been well received and we
fully expect to meet our goals once the campaign has been online for a season.

e See the print brochure >
e Waitch the promo video >

173


http://vcmbcmedia.com/?c=612&k=c98dc18e3a
https://drive.google.com/open?id=10pqzslNJzsNBLmw4sSHG7gKwfG_lmqmI
https://www.sunshinecoastcanada.com/blog
http://staging.sunshinecoastcanada.com/itineraries/adventures-sunshine-coast-winter-itinerary/
https://www.allaboutadventures.ca/blog/2018/2/20/all-about-adventures-takes-on-the-sunshine-coast-pt-2
https://www.instagram.com/p/Bfd1BSLFDhq/?taken-by=allaboutadventures
http://www.coastalcircleroute.com/
https://drive.google.com/open?id=167Y4zelY39nvr00ubBMWHx7OZwDRcoGG
https://www.facebook.com/CoastCircle/videos/757533467773408/

4) Consumer Shows & Print Collateral

2017-2018 Date Location Attendance — | Attendance at | Amount of Consumer
Shows Overall Booth collateral data
distributed collection
Vancouver Fall | October 1, Vancouver, BC 3000+ 100 300+ 42
Wedding & 2017
Honeymoon
Show
Vancouver Intl' | Jan 17-21, Vancouver, BC 28,000+ 450 3000+ 54
Boat Show 2018
Vancouver Mar 3-4, 2018 | Vancouver, BC 20,000+ 1250 4000+ 241
Outdoor
Adventure &
Travel Show
Seattle Mar 3-4, 2018 | Seattle, WA 10,000+ 325 1200+ 37
Adventure &
Travel Expo
Calgary Mar 24-25, Calgary, AB TBD TBD TBD TBD
Outdoor 2018
Adventure &
Travel Show

Consumer shows continue to be successful venues to captivate our audience and generate leads. With more than 20 local
businesses participating at our various booths, we were able to coordinate packages and offerings for consumers that engaged
show attendees and led to conversions after the show, as reported by those businesses. While the Vancouver Outdoor
Adventure & Travel Show continues to generate the highest volume of booth traffic, niche shows like the Vancouver Wedding
Show and the Vancouver Boat Show capture a highly interested sector and those booth visitors are often very likely to convert.

It's important to note the high and ever-increasing interest levels in the Sunshine Coast Trail at all the shows. It continues to be

the number one topic of conversation and its accompanying trail map/brochure is the most sought-after piece of collateral at
every show.

5) Ad Buys, Print, and Digital Marketing Campaign

Our ad buys, print and digital campaign focused on media partnerships that created great content. Our key partners in this
effort were My Passion Media, Seekers Media, Post Media, Red Point Media, Canada Wide Media, and the Georgia Straight.

174



Our multimedia ad campaigns with each of these partners included a mix of print and digital articles, social media posts, digital
advertisements (big box & leaderboard), and print ads.

Radio advertisements were also included as part of this tactic, focusing on local radio stations to promote upcoming events and
festivals. These 60 second ad spots played 9 times per week on two radio stations, and were rotated every two weeks with new
ads to keep the information fresh and relevant.

e Listen to radio ad spots >

We also launched a campaign for paid search ads, utilizing the War Room to help manage the campaign and a Google-For-
Non-Profits grant that allowed for greater depth in this tactic.

e See examples of our paid search ads >

Sponsored (paid) Editorial:

My Passion Media/Canada Wide Media
Canadian Traveller - http://www.canadiantraveller.com/Pender-Harbour-British-Columbias-Venice-of-the-North
BC Mag - https://www.bcmag.ca/venture-texada-island/
BC Mag - https://bcmag.ca/exploring-arts-sunshine-coast/
Explore Magazine: Cool off at these 5 Sunshine Coast paddling hot spots
Explore Magazine: “Ready, Set, Mountain Bike: The Sunshine Coast’s Epic Coaster 50 Race
o Explore Mag social shares examples:

e https://www.facebook.com/exploremag/posts/10159906905195473
https://plus.google.com/u/2/+exploremag/posts/KDieluoU82K
https://twitter.com/explore _mag/status/948605603336749057
https://www.pinterest.ca/pin/276127020887278741/
https://www.pinterest.ca/pin/276127020887278743/

e https://www.instagram.com/p/BdfxZh6ATgs/
Real Weddings —
* 5 Cozy Wedding Venues to Book on the Sunshine Coast
* Fine Dining Treasures on the Sunshine Coast
CT Magazine — sponsored editorial:
* Here comes the Sunshine Coast

Red Point Media
OnBoard Magazine - http://onboardmagazine.ca/digital-editions/

175


https://drive.google.com/open?id=1RJHCWITon3BhzMdCJR9zBjgFaw-8vRr-
https://drive.google.com/open?id=1RJHCWITon3BhzMdCJR9zBjgFaw-8vRr-
https://drive.google.com/open?id=11T_aGM5t_9PhCa43p-7hL_iyf8wwUCzV
http://www.canadiantraveller.com/Pender-Harbour-British-Columbias-Venice-of-the-North
https://www.bcmag.ca/venture-texada-island/
https://bcmag.ca/exploring-arts-sunshine-coast/
https://www.explore-mag.com/Cool-Off-At-These-5-Sunshine-Coast-Paddling-Hot-Spots
https://www.explore-mag.com/Ready-Set-Mountain-Bike-The-Sunshine-Coasts-Epic-Coaster-50-Race
https://www.facebook.com/exploremag/posts/10159906905195473
https://plus.google.com/u/2/+exploremag/posts/KDie1uoU82K
https://twitter.com/explore_mag/status/948605603336749057
https://www.pinterest.ca/pin/276127020887278741/
https://www.pinterest.ca/pin/276127020887278743/
https://www.instagram.com/p/BdfxZh6ATqs/
https://www.realweddings.ca/5-Cozy-Wedding-Venues-to-Book-on-the-Sunshine-Coast
https://www.realweddings.ca/Fine-Dining-Treasures-on-the-Sunshine-Coast
http://www.canadiantraveller.net/Here-comes-the-Sunshine-Coast
http://onboardmagazine.ca/digital-editions/

West Jet Magazine -_http://www.westjetmagazine.com/story/article/eat-drink-b-c-s-sunshine-coast
Avenue Calgary — Weekender Newsletter

Georgia Straight
https://www.straight.com/life/980151/finding-paradise-sunshine-coast
https://www.straight.com/life/911441/sunshine-coast-features-shellfish-may-blues-jazz-and-classical-smorgasbords-

june-menu
https://www.straight.com/life/914561/sunshine-coasts-craft-breweries-charm-visitors-terrific-taste-and-unique-attributes

Festival Seekers (Seekers Media) in an online festival guide for British Columbia and Alberta that actively supports blog
postings with social media and subscription e-newsletters. By creating content for their own site and with influencers like
Miss604, they delivered a total 292,000 impressions, 12,000 story reads, and engaged users to an average time of 3:03 spent
reading our Sunshine Coast content.

Miss604
https://www.miss604.com/2017/09/3-ways-to-enjoy-bcs-sunshine-coast.html
https://www.miss604.com/2017/09/sunshine-coast-art-crawl-2017.html
https://www.miss604.com/2017/07/shop-the-gibsons-public-market-on-bcs-sunshine-coast.html
https://miss604.com/2017/07/nomadic-tempest-in-gibsons.html

Festival Seekers/Seekers Media
http://www.festivalseekers.com/vancouvercoastal/PRISMA
http://www.festivalseekers.com/vancouvercoastal/PRISMA/set-sail-to-PRISMA
http://www.festivalseekers.com/vancouvercoastal/texada-aerospace
http://www.festivalseekers.com/vancouvercoastal/texada-aerospace/soar
http://www.urbanmommies.com/texada-aerospace-camp-adventure/
http://www.festivalseekers.com/vancouvercoastal/nomadictempest
http://www.festivalseekers.com/vancouvercoastal/nomadictempest/capture-light
http://www.festivalseekers.com/vancouvercostal/sunshinecoastartcrawl/seashore
http://www.festivalseekers.com/vancouvercostal/sunshinecoastartcrawl

National Observer/Vancouver Observer campaign for the Powell River Film Festival
https://www.vancouverobserver.com/culture/prff-lights-screen-powell-river
https://www.nationalobserver.com/2018/01/09/news/prff-lights-screen-powell-river

Post Media
Vancouver Sun
http://vancouversun.com/travel/bcs-sunshine-coast-isnt-far-but-its-off-the-grid

176


http://www.westjetmagazine.com/story/article/eat-drink-b-c-s-sunshine-coast
https://us2.campaign-archive.com/?u=7cce945c0c72f8d28d6851785&id=4a7c80e3ec&e=d44ee2ed96
https://www.straight.com/life/980151/finding-paradise-sunshine-coast
https://www.straight.com/life/911441/sunshine-coast-features-shellfish-may-blues-jazz-and-classical-smorgasbords-june-menu
https://www.straight.com/life/911441/sunshine-coast-features-shellfish-may-blues-jazz-and-classical-smorgasbords-june-menu
https://www.straight.com/life/914561/sunshine-coasts-craft-breweries-charm-visitors-terrific-taste-and-unique-attributes
https://www.miss604.com/2017/09/3-ways-to-enjoy-bcs-sunshine-coast.html
https://www.miss604.com/2017/09/3-ways-to-enjoy-bcs-sunshine-coast.html
https://www.miss604.com/2017/09/3-ways-to-enjoy-bcs-sunshine-coast.html
https://www.miss604.com/2017/09/3-ways-to-enjoy-bcs-sunshine-coast.html
https://www.miss604.com/2017/07/shop-the-gibsons-public-market-on-bcs-sunshine-coast.html
https://www.miss604.com/2017/07/shop-the-gibsons-public-market-on-bcs-sunshine-coast.html
https://miss604.com/2017/07/nomadic-tempest-in-gibsons.html
https://miss604.com/2017/07/nomadic-tempest-in-gibsons.html
http://www.festivalseekers.com/vancouvercoastal/PRISMA
http://www.festivalseekers.com/vancouvercoastal/PRISMA/set-sail-to-PRISMA
http://www.festivalseekers.com/vancouvercoastal/texada-aerospace
http://www.festivalseekers.com/vancouvercoastal/texada-aerospace/soar
http://www.urbanmommies.com/texada-aerospace-camp-adventure/
http://www.festivalseekers.com/vancouvercoastal/nomadictempest
http://www.festivalseekers.com/vancouvercoastal/nomadictempest/capture-light
http://www.festivalseekers.com/vancouvercostal/sunshinecoastartcrawl/seashore
http://www.festivalseekers.com/vancouvercostal/sunshinecoastartcrawl
https://www.vancouverobserver.com/culture/prff-lights-screen-powell-river
https://www.nationalobserver.com/2018/01/09/news/prff-lights-screen-powell-river
https://www.nationalobserver.com/2018/01/09/news/prff-lights-screen-powell-river
http://vancouversun.com/travel/bcs-sunshine-coast-isnt-far-but-its-off-the-grid

The Province
http://theprovince.com/travel/local-travel/10-places-to-visit-for-family-day

Travel Guides/Annual Publications (ad designs can be seen here >)
Sunshine Coast Visitor's Choice Guide

Sunshine Coast Tourist Guide

Discover Powell River Guide

Sunshine Coast Pride Guide

Sunshine Coast Zoom (4 issues)

Vancouver Island Visitor Guide

Powell River Living

Other print publications:
e Pacific Yachting Boater Blue Pages
Suncruiser West
Coast Mountain Culture
Mountain Life Magazine
OnTrak Magazine
1889 Washington

Earned Media

Over the course of this campaign, at least 677 travel-relevant media pieces have been published about the Sunshine Coast,
resulting in approximately 217 million reader impressions. Andrea Wickham-Foxwell, our contracted Communications Director,
has organized itineraries for 51 media persons to experience our region, with much of the resulting coverage still to come.
Please note, our current capabilities to scan for media coverage does not extend outside of North America — yet we know of
many articles that have come out of Germany, the UK, and the Netherlands; therefore, it is assumed that actual resulting
numbers are higher than reflected here.

Complete list of media coverage >

177


http://theprovince.com/travel/local-travel/10-places-to-visit-for-family-day
https://drive.google.com/open?id=11T_aGM5t_9PhCa43p-7hL_iyf8wwUCzV
https://drive.google.com/open?id=1ARj0WgckapUN8uvCglvog8901Z3q6y08

Key Learnings

e The launch of a new website provided the platform and brand alignment to captivate our markets like never before.
Continued support of new features and content is an absolute must, and dedication to staying on top of technology
developments is critical.

e Promoting a giveaway/contest for consumer travel shows is an incredibly valuable tool to draw consumers in and talking
point for the Sunshine Coast.

e Social Influencers that are aligned with our brand have been very successful especially driving traffic to our website and
content creation.

e Insights received though the ongoing paid search ad partnership with the War Room has provided details around which
regional demographics are more responsive than others (i.e. Oregon was not a strong market in this area therefore we
put more of our efforts and funds towards the markets that performed well, such as BC, Alberta, Ontario and California).
Furthermore, Ontario far outperformed Alberta, Washington and California market combined. Future campaigns should
consider dedicating more resources to this market.

o Possibly move away from travel shows that are time intensive with smaller payoff (Vancouver Boat Show).

o Stakeholder relations & private sector buy in is a time consuming, ongoing effort. Larger allocation for administrative
resources within the co-op program could allow DMO’s more staff time to capture a larger buy in from the private sector.

e Newsprint is extremely costly, has a short shelf-life, and readership is declining rapidly in our markets. Investment in
this tactic should be decreased in future projects in favour of outlets which are more cost effective and have a longer
shelf life.

e With close to 30,000 followers across our social media channels, greater resources should be dedicated to the
management of these channels. Investment in both staff and software is necessary to bring these channels to the next
level for impact and return on investment.

e There is significant interest in the Sunshine Coast’s boutique culinary and retail shopping experiences. Further
development of marketing assets to promote these experiences should be considered for the future.

o Content partnerships were once again extremely successful. Future marketing campaigns should continue to seek paid

ad buys that are supported with earned editorial, social media, e-newsletters, and other tactics for a well-rounded
campaign.

178



DESTINATION
BRITISH COLUMBIA

DESTINATION BRITISH COLUMBIA
Cooperative Marketing partnerships Program
2018-2019 INTERIM REPORT

Name of Initiative: |Sunshine Coast Tourism Marketing Campaign .........

Contact Person: Annie Schroeder
Telephone: 604-740-6170 or 604-989-7308
Email: annie@sunshinecoastcanada.com

Estimated Project |Estimate the total money spent to-date on the project,
Costs excluding GST:
to-date: $ 178,329

Key Performance Indicators
Insights

Sunshine Coast Tourism is working diligently to execute our 2018/2019 marketing campaign
strategy. With each year, we have built upon our success through the co-operative
marketing program, refining and focusing our tactics to reach our target consumers in a
better way than ever before.

One of the greatest needs identified in past projects was for increased collection of data and
metrics, both for the Sunshine Coast as a travel destination in the form of market research,
but also to better understand the performance of our marketing outputs. To meet these
needs, we’ve invested in two market research programs, under the “Market Research” tactic.
From Destination Think, we now have an advanced understanding of consumers’ sentiment
to our region, due to our participation in the Tourism Sentiment Index (TSI) research. We'’re
also in the process of completing the “Value of Tourism” model. With this additional
research, we will be able to better understand the Sunshine Coast’s tourism economy. The
results of this study are expected by the end of the year.

The results of the TSI research are included in the metrics below, and a full copy of the
report is filed with our marketing outputs. The biggest takeaways from this research
confirmed our most competitive tourism strengths included beaches, nature, and paddle
sports. Sunshine Coast Tourism should continue to invest and amplify these assets and
own these spaces. Areas identified as the greatest potential for growth included festivals

179


https://www.dropbox.com/s/vlcezxa9k0bt7t7/TSI-Sunshine-Coast-Report-v2.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/vlcezxa9k0bt7t7/TSI-Sunshine-Coast-Report-v2.pdf?dl=0

ey DESTINATION
" BRITISH COLUMBIA

and events, and hiking. These sectors are still somewhat “undiscovered” in our region and
can be further maximized through effective marketing strategies.

Another way we’'ve made way for increased data collection is through investing in the
software app, Simply Measured. This program allows us track and monitor our social
channels at a more granular level, plus having all the data in one program allows us to
generate cross-channel reports.

This brings us to several insights with regards to our social media channels. The
ever-changing landscape of social media has been particularly challenging this year to date.
Our Facebook and Twitter channels are not nearly experiencing the growth and engagement
we’ve seen in previous years — and this of course reflects the wider trends around usage of
these platforms. Instagram on the other hand, continues to grow at a staggering pace, in
followers, engagement, and overall activity. The average reach and engagement on a quick
Instagram story now exceeds most of our well-planned Facebook content. Taking it a step
further and investing in Crowdriff, we are even better positioned to capitalize on user
generated content for use on our website and social channels. Using this platform has
allowed us to maximize our workflow and work from a larger pool of assets, serving up the
right content at the right time. Twelve Crowdriff galleries are now live on our website,
receiving 28,000 views with a 14.7% engagement rate.

Paid advertising partnerships are performing well. An ongoing collaboration with MyPassion
Media has captivated our target audiences through Explore Magazine and Canadian
Traveller Magazine, both online and in print. A mix of print & digital ads, advertorial, and
contesting have been carefully created in alignment with the Destination BC brand by using
both the Great Forest font, on-brand photography and copywriting, plus including phrasing
like “Explore BC’s Sunshine Coast”. We’ve also sought out new partnerships, with high
value publications like Escapism, Mountain Life, and Northwest Travel; while also further
investing in high-performing tactics like our programmatic advertising campaign that we are
launching this winter.

Media visits and inquiries to the Sunshine Coast this year have shown successful growth
and continuous interest. We continue to receive requests from researchers and editors from
publications such as Northwest Travel + Life, Western Living Foodies and The New York
Times and have been working with them to curate stories showcasing the best of the
Sunshine Coast and encouraging visitation. Influencer inquiries from Bloggers/Vloggers
have been abundant and partnerships are strategically vetted and chosen to ensure the
appropriate fit with our brand and messaging.

Sunshine Coast Tourism attended media event “Travel & Words” in April where the
Sunshine Coast was in high demand, and all appointment slots became fully booked within
minutes. We've chosen to hold back slightly on hosted media this summer as our members
and local businesses have been feeling the increased visitation and need to focus on
capitalizing on their busy season. From April 1st to July 31, we have had 30+ media
inquiries/visits and 135 travel-related articles published via print and digital highlighting the
Sunshine Coast.

180



s DESTINATION
BRITISH COLUMBIA

This fall, Sunshine Coast Tourism will be represented at GoMedia, and is hosting a pre-trip
FAM to Homfray Lodge, on board Pacific Coastal Cruises. While the time and effort for
these events is a significant investment, our Media Relations tactic continues to be incredibly
successful.

Lastly, the Coastal Circle Route campaign has limited interim report results and metrics at
this time. The community partners agree that summertime was not ideal for spending limited
campaign funds, and the focus as outlined in our proposal is to be on generating awareness
and leads for fall/winter visits. The campaign has been moderately active on social media
under @coastcircle, creating advocacy among current travellers, and helping answer
travel-planning questions. The campaign will renew again in early September, with the
launch of a contest partnership with Canadian Traveller and remarketing ads targeted at
contest entrants.

Based on our growth in the last 6 months, we are feeling assured, comfortable and excited
about Sunshine Coast Tourisms' direction. As we continue to collect information and data,
we feel confident in our decision making and the positive results that will come from them.
We are continuously working on new strategies and campaigns in order to keep up, and get
ahead of changing trends while constantly working towards having BC's Sunshine Coast
become top-of-mind for people looking for their next travel destination.

Marketing outputs can be viewed via Dropbox here:

https://www.dropbox.com/sh/7137ydtcfmfrm28/AAB5FYxzgacgB1TU v6KD3tja?dI=0

Sunshine Coast Tourism:

URL: https://www.sunshinecoastcanada.com
Instagram: @sunshinecoastbc

Facebook: @SunshineCoastTourismBC

Twitter: @sunshinecoastca

YouTube: youtube.com/c/SunshineCoastTourism
Pinterest: @tourismsunshine

#sunshinecoastbc

Coastal Circle Route:
@coastcircle (Instagram, Facebook, & Twitter)
#coastalcircleroute, #coastcircle

Marketing Outputs - Metrics

181


https://www.dropbox.com/sh/7137ydtcfmfrm28/AAB5FYxzgacgB1TU_v6KD3tja?dl=0
https://www.sunshinecoastcanada.com/
https://www.sunshinecoastcanada.com/

DESTINATION

BRITISH COLUMBIA™

The KPIs and industry benchmarks provided below are a reference tool only. These will
provide you with indicators to maintain and evaluate the success of your marketing initiatives
against industry benchmarks and to allow you to make any necessary adjustments during
the project. Each project should generate a baseline to understand how the project is
progressing each year. This year-over-year tracking should be a communication tool among
partners and help you work towards improving your initiatives and metric ratings each year.

Please note: Benchmarks provided are a guideline and can vary depending on several
factors such as approach or strategy (i.e. for search, broad keywords tend to be more
expensive and click-thru rates tends to be lower and vice versa). Where N/A appears, a
benchmark is not provided as these will vary from business-to-business and may vary from
campaign-to-campaign. Results are heavily dependent upon business goals and campaign

objectives.

General Campaign Outcomes

Accommodation 4% Growth | MRDT 9.5% increase in MRDT revenues received from April
Room Revenues — July 2018 versus same period in 2017, with no
significant changes to the collecting accommodations
BC Ferries — 2% Growth | BC Ferries Traffic |+2.2% (arrivals to the Sunshine Coast from
Sunshine Coast Statistics Horseshoe Bay and Little River (Comox))
inbound passengers
Paid Advertising
Print Reach TBD, Media Buy Print Circulation: 566,011
depending Print Readership: 1,687,000
on media
buy
Radio Reach TBD, Media Buy Est. 5,000 weekly listeners x ads running for 6 weeks
depending = 30,000 reach
on media
buy
Digital Advertising
Email Marketing Total Delivered 10,000 MailChimp 4,565
Unique Open Rate 22.7% MailChimp 23.5%
Unique Click Rate 2.4% MailChimp 2.1%
Unsubscribe Rate 0.176% MailChimp T%
Paid Search Pre-click metric: 1,500,000 Google Analytics | 324,858
Impressions
Pre-click metric: Click |3.2% Google Analytics |6.51%
through rate (CTR)
Pre-click metric: Cost | $1.55 Google Analytics | $1.26
per click (CPC)
Post-click metric: <62% Google Analytics |55.74%
Bounce Rate
Post-click metric: 2:30 Google Analytics | 2:44
Time on Site
Paid Social Reach Benchmark | Social Channel 9,120

182




DESTINATION
BRITISH COLUMBIA

Click-thru rate 1% Social Channel 2.3%
Cost per click $0.60 Social Channel $0.42
Engagements Benchmark | Social Channel 324
Display and Native Time on Site 2:30 Google Analytics | 3:06
Advertising
Click-thru rate AT7% Google Analytics |.60%
Conversion Rate .53% Google Analytics |.65%
Social Media
Total Followers 40% Growth | Social Channels | 29,926
Engagement Rate 3% Social Channels |5.65%
(total - Youtube: 4.69%
reach/engagements) - Instagram: 8.14%
- Twitter: 0.43%
- Facebook: 1.7%
Reach (Impressions) | Benchmark | Social Channels [ All channels: 966,840
Instagram: 628,144
Facebook: 269,158
Twitter: 69,538
#explorebc Benchmark | Social Channels . 4100 uses of both #sunshinecoastbc &
amplification #explorebc together
. 302 posts by Sunshine Coast Tourism
using #explorebc
Total consumer use 150,000 Instagram 97,700 (+20,700) all time
and reach of
#sunshinecoastbc
Print/Online Collateral
Brochure/Map production # of pieces printed Benchmark | Internal Count . 2500 new presentation folders printed
# of pieces distributed | Benchmark | Internal Count . Data not yet available (waiting on visitor
centre reports)
# of locations Benchmark | Internal Count . 10 locations via Certified Folder, plus 4
distributed local visitor centres
Consumer Focused Asset Development
Photography Number of Images Measure Internal Count 42 (album link:
https://www_flickr.com/photos/epictrails/sets/7215769
2617209550/
Video Number of Videos Measure Internal Count 15
Cost per video view Benchmark | Social channels $0 — no paid video campaigns yet this year, all views
have been organic to date
Video Completion 10% Social channels 7%
Rate
Video Viewed Benchmark | Social channels . 0-10%: 45%
Quartiles . 10-20%: 24%
. 20-30%: 18%
. 30-40%: 14%
. 40-50%: 11%
. 50-60%: 10%
. 60-70%: 9%
. 70-80%: 8%
. 80-90%:7%

183



https://www.flickr.com/photos/epictrails/sets/72157692617209550/)
https://www.flickr.com/photos/epictrails/sets/72157692617209550/)
https://www.flickr.com/photos/epictrails/sets/72157692617209550/)

DESTINATION
BRITISH COLUMBIA

. 90-100%: 7%

Video Impressions Benchmark 46,545
Video Views Benchmark 16,354
www.sunshinecoastcanada.c | # of sessions 30% growth | Google Analytics | 149,529 (+28.5%)
om
# of pageviews 40% growth | Google Analytics | 456,706 (+41%)
# of referrals 50,000 Google Analytics |37,534 (+115%)
Time on Site 2:45 (+13%)
Bounce Rate 52% (-8%)
Pages per session 3:05 (+10%)
Sources Measure Google Analytics | Organic Search — 76%
Direct — 8.8%
Referral — 9.5%
Social — 3.5%
Paid Search — 2%
Device Measure Google Analytics | Desktop — 46%
Mobile — 42%
Tablet—11%
Geography Measure Google Analytics | Country:
. 83% Canada
. 10% US
. 1.7% UK
) 0.7% Australia
. 0.7% Germany
° 0.5% Netherlands
City:
° 42% Greater Vancouver
. 11% Sunshine Coast
. 3% Calgary
. 2% Toronto
. 1.5% Victoria
. 1.2% Seattle
Market Research
Net Promoter Score | At or above | Study results Not yet complete
2017
benchmark
(TBD)
Tourism Sentiment benchmark 52 (out of 56) — see full study results
Index
Value of Tourism Benchmark Not yet complete
Model
Consumer Shows
Total attendance at Measure Show report No shows attended to date
show
# of Inquires at booth | Benchmark | Booth staff - click | n/a
counter
# of database opt-ins | 3,000 MailChimp n/a

184



https://www.dropbox.com/s/vlcezxa9k0bt7t7/TSI-Sunshine-Coast-Report-v2.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/vlcezxa9k0bt7t7/TSI-Sunshine-Coast-Report-v2.pdf?dl=0

DESTINATION
BRITISH COLUMBIA

# of leads generated |4,000 Brochure count, n/a
to businesses before and after
Travel Media Relations
# of media supported |Benchmark |Internal 20
# of media visits 40 Internal 5
# of travel relevant 400 Meltwater/Google | 135 — See full list >
articles/content Alerts
produced
Reach of media 200 Million Meltwater 63.4 Million
produced content
Coastal Circle Route
Print Reach TBD, Media Buy n/a
depending
on media
buy
Paid Social Reach Benchmark | Social Channel n/a
Click-thru rate 1% Social Channel n/a
Cost per click $0.60 Social Channel n/a
Engagements Benchmark | Social Channel n/a
www.coastalcircleroute.com | # of sessions 15% growth | Google Analytics | 1289
# of pageviews 15% growth | Google Analytics | 1529
# of referrals 10% growth | Google Analytics | 244
sources Measure Google Analytics |60% Referral
16% Organic Search
15% Direct
10% Social
device Measure Google Analytics | 50% Desktop
28% Mobile
22% Tablet
Geography Measure Google Analytics |62% Canada
. 77% BC
. 9% Ontario
. 8% Alberta
17% US
. 40% Washington
° 14% California
. 7% Oregon
7% UK
3% Germany
2.5% Netherlands
Brochure/Map production # of pieces printed Benchmark | Internal Count No new printing yet this cycle
# of pieces distributed | Benchmark | Internal Count Info not yet available
# of locations Benchmark | Internal Count 8 locations with Certified Folder (ferry routes, YVR,

distributed

Peace Arch), plus all the visitor centres along the
route (approx. 7)

185



https://www.dropbox.com/s/d9gio5nphbhvbp1/Media%2520Report.xlsx?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/d9gio5nphbhvbp1/Media%2520Report.xlsx?dl=0

DESTINATION
BRITISH COLUMBIA

Social Media Total Followers 20% Growth | Social Channels | 696
Engagement Rate 3% Social Channels |7.9%
(total
reach/engagements)
Reach Benchmark | Social Channels 51,825
#explorebc Benchmark | Social Channels | 296 tags with both #coastalcircleroute & #explorebc
amplification
Total consumer use Benchmark | Instagram 336
and reach of
#coastalcircleroute

186




Coast Cultural Alliance
4638 Sunshine Coast Highway
Sechelt BC VON 3A2

phone: 604.886.9556
artsinfo@suncoastarts.com
www.suncoastarts.com

A\,

November g, 2018

Tina Perrault

General Manager Corporate Services/
Chief Financial Officer

Sunshine Coast Regional District

To Tina Perrault:
Re: 2019 SCRD Economic Development Budget Process

The Coast Cultural Alliance appreciates the opportunity to present our 2019 budget request for
your consideration. This request is for support for the annual Sunshine Coast Art Crawl and the
monthly Arts and Culture Calendar. These two programs continue to be very successful marketing

tools for arts and culture on the Sunshine Coast and contribute to the economy of the entire region.

Please find attached:

o Description of these programs and rationale for funding request
e SCRD spread sheet with 2019 budget and 2018 actuals to November 7, 2018
e 2018 Art Crawl printed materials and Arts and Culture Calendars

We are presently compiling the accounting information for the 2018 Art Crawl {October 19 — 21);
the actuals in the attached spread sheet are to November 7, 2018. This year we received funding
from all Jevels of local government, including the Sechelt Indian Band and Powell River through
their Arts Council, and we will be requesting grants from each of these for 2019.

Qur 2019 request is for $3,100.00 for the Sunshine Coast Art Crawl and $2,400.00 for the Arts
and Culture Calendar. Qur total request is for $5,500 - the same amount as requested and received
for 2016, 2017 and 2018.

We would like to thank the SCRD for providing the Coast Cultural Alliance with funding in support
of the 2018 Sunshine Coast Art Crawl, and for the monthly printed event and workshop brochure,
the Arts and Culture Calendar. Please let me know if you require further information for the
November 30" meeting.

With kingiI regards,
Carol Stewart
Director, Coast Cultural Alliance

604-886-9556
carolstewart65@gmail.com

187



Sunshine Coast Regional District
Economic Development Request 2019

Coast Cultural Alliance {CCA)

Vision — “The Coast Cultural Alliance is a network of arts, cultural and heritage groups and individuals working
to enhance the economic vitality of the Sunshine Coast through cultural sector development ond cuitural
tourism.”

Current paid CCA membership: non-profit 44, business 41, individual 260 = Total: 345

CCA projects: yearly Purple Banner Studio & Gallery Guide, annual Sunshine Coast Art Crawl, monthly Arts &
Culture Calendar brochure, monthly Artesia Coffeehouse (winter-spring), weekly event e-newsletter (1700+
subscribers), 24/7 interactive website of a member’s gallery plus event, news, workshop, opportunity and local
gallery listings.

Requests for funds:

1. The Sunshine Coast Art Crawl: an annual free, self-directed weekend art studio and gallery tour from
Langdale to Earls Cove held in October, promoting local artists and adding tourist visits to the Sunshine
Coast during the shoulder season.

a. The Art Crawl has grown from 75 venues, 6,000 studio visits and $30,000 in sales in 2010 to, in
2018, 165 venues representing 350 artists, 46,031 recorded studio visits over 3 days and
$440,775 in direct recorded sales, plus $92,620 in recorded commissions and booked
workshops.

b. We printed and distributed 10,000 free full colour printed brachures with web and smart phone
map links and complete social media complement. Our social media expert provides Facebook,
Instagram, Twitter and YouTube coverage before, during and after the Crawl. Each year, the
number of followers increases.

Benefits: With the increase of local and tourist traffic, the Art Crawl contributes substantial sales dollars directly
to the participating artists and provides spin-off sales to restaurants, retail businesses and accommodation
providers. The Crawl creates an awareness of the vibrancy and quality of the arts on the Sunshine Coast; this
enhances our cultural tourism throughout the year.

The Sunshine Coast Art Crawl provides a direct connection between the public and artists and reinforces the
sense of and appreciation for our community. Engagement with the artists educates the public about how,
where and why artists do what they do and can inspire others to think creatively. The Craw! helps the public to
identify with their community and develop a sense of pride not only in the community itself but in their place
within it.

Use of Requested Funds:
The requested funds will contribute to advertising and promotion casts and brochure printing costs. Statistics

collected during this year's Crawl show that ads placed in print material {(newspapers, magazines, posters) have
significant results; there were 13,300 responses indicating this is where crawlers heard about the event.

Our request for 2019 for the Art Crawl is for $3,100.00, the same as requested in 2016, 2017 and 2018. These
funds will be used to maintain our high level of off-coast marketing, to contribute to the costs of printing
additional signage and brochures and to ensure the re-hiring of a social media expert.

suncoastarts.com artsinfo@suncoastarts.com

188



2. TYhe Arts and Culture Calendar: a free monthly event and workshop brochure distributed since 1998

a. 1650 copies are distributed monthly to Visitor Centres, Libraries, Schools, Ferry Ambassadors
(the only brochure they are permitted to distribute), cafes, coffee shops, Chambers of
Commerce, local government offices, retail & real estate outlets, bookstares, accommodation
providers and more from Langdale to Pender Harbour by hand and by mail to Powell River, Lund,
the North Shore and several Vancouver outlets,

b. Data are gathered through a complimentary website, www.suncoastarts.com, where people can
view and post their own events, workshops and news items covering all arts, culture, heritage
and recreation activities. Listings are free to upload and CCA membership is not required. Two
administrators seek out other content from the community and design the brochure.

c. Advertising revenue space is limited as there are so many events on the Sunshine Coast; event
listings take priority.

Benefits: The calendar is a useful marketing tool for the event/workshop presenter. Readers, both local and
visitors, are made aware of the richness of our local cuitural scene and are able to plan their monthly activities.
We believe there is a need for a printed brochure for locals and visitors. This brochure is an immediate source of
information; it is useful for accommodation owners; it is available on BC Ferries; it is a user-friendly tool for those
who do not access their information on the computer.

Use of Requested Funds:
We are requesting funds to contribute to the costs of printing, paper, distribution and postage. CCA membership

fees help cover the costs of this very important program and local businesses place ads in the brochure. We
believe the Arts and Culture Calendar is a valuable tool for marketing and promotion of cultural activities and
opportunities on the Sunshine Coast.

Our request for 2019 for the Arts and Culture Calendar is for $2,400.00, the same as requested in 2016, 2017

and 2018. These funds will help cover printing, distribution and postage costs. Printing costs have increased
substantially.

Total request for 2018 funding from the SCRD Economic Development Program: $5,500
This request is for the same amount as was requested in 2016, 2017 and 2018.

"Arts play a useful role in broader issues such as social justice, public safety and community revitalization — what
is sometimes referred to as arts-based community development.” Max Wyman

189



Name of Organization Coast Cultural Alliance
Date Created: 5-Nov-18
Revision Date: 2018
Budget Planning Year: 2019
Year to Date: Nov-18
DOT._.PF
2018 Acutals to 207 % Variance in Tﬁur\ q Financial Planning
Budget Nov-17 Budget Varlance 2018 2018 2019 2020 201 2022

REVENUE:
Local Government Request

SCRD $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 8- % §5,500.00 65,500.00

Budget Proposal {if required) § #DIV/O!
District of Sechelt $3,500.00 43,300.00 $3,500.00 - % 63,500.00 $3,500.00
Town of Gibsons $1,800.00 $1,800.00 41,800.00 5 0% $1,800.00 $1,800.00
Sechelt Indlan Government District $900.00 $800.00 £800.00 $900.00 $900.00
Powe!l River Arts Council $600.00 $600.00 $1,000.00 -$400.00 -67% $600.00 $600.00
Total Request 512,300.00 $12,000.00 $12,600.00 -5400.00 -3% 512,300.00 $12,300.00 5- §-
Grants
Sunshine Coast Credit Union $2,000.00 $1,500.00 $2,000.00 5 0% $2,000.00 $2,000.00

g 5 HoV/01
Sub Total Grants 52,000.00 51,500.00 $2,000.00 5- 0% 52,000.00 $2,000.00 5. S-
Other Revenue
Art Crawl Participants $18,000,00 $18,000.00 $14,950.00 $3,050.00 17% $19,045.00 $20,000.00
CCA Membership contribution $5,000.00 $5,500.00 $1,550.00 $3,450.00 69% $6,900.00 O
inkind $3,800.00 $3,800.00 $3,200.00 $3,800.00 @)
Advertlsing revenue $6,000.00 $5,165.00 £6,000.00 $- 0% $5,800.00 $6,000.00 —
Sub Total Other mw%.s 5 _mnmm.s $25,700.00 56,500.00 20% mm._wlwam.oo mmm.___co.oo 5 5-
Previous Year {Deficit) f Surplus
Total Revenue - Ocganization Generated .uelo..ls 533,965.00 $27,700.00 56,500.00 19% $26,845.00 meE.s 5 5-
TOTAL REVENUE mau_ug. .imnmmm.s L.oL-g.S 100.00 13% 539,145.00 Eﬂ 9= 5-

2018 Acutals to 2017 % Variance Financial Planning
Budget Nov-17 Budget Variance 2018 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

EXPENSES:
Materials and Supplies
signs, inked stamps £1,200.00 $3,885.00 %1,000.00 $200.00 17% $2,835.00 $3,000.00

- 8- #DW/0I

5- #DIV/O!

. $- HOIV/0! _
Sub Total $1,200.00 $3,885.00 MHPOS.S 5200.00 17% 52,835.00 $3.000.00 5- 5-
Office / Equipment

- §- #DIV/O!

3 $- #DIv/0!

. £ #DIV/OI

S $- HDIV/Q!
Sub Total - 5 5 5- #DIV/0! - - 5- 5-
Fadilty / Utliities

- &- #DIV/0!

5 #DIV/OI



Sub Total

Personnel

project managemeni/web design
graphic design

Socfal medial contractor

Sub Total

Other Expenses
advertising and promotion
printing
postage/distribution
launch

Sub Total

Tralning / Development

Sub Total

TOTAL EXPENSES

CAPITAL REQUIREMENT
Purchases:

Subtotal Purchased

Proposed Exenditures:

Sub Total Proposed
TOTAL CAPITAL

TOTALCOMMITTED EXPENDITURES
LESS PROPOSED EXPENDITURES
LESS ORGANIZATION REVENUE
TOTALTAX REQUISITION

[ HON/O! LA
5 ADWV/O0I ?nf.o ol
S- 5- S- [ #DIV/0! TE- 5- 5- 5- i
$4,000.00 432,300.00 $2,900.00 $1,100.00 28% $3,800.00 $5,000.00
$8,000.00 $7,536.00 $5,500.00 $2,500.00 1% $3,342.00 $8,000.00
$3,000.00 $2,720.00 $5,900.00 -$2,900.00 97% $3,598.00 $3,500.00
5- 3.<on.
$15,000.00 $13,556.00 $14,300.00 5700.00 5% 510,740.00 516,500.00 5 5- :
$14,000.00 $13,182.00 $9,400.00 $4,600.00 33% $8,478.00 $14,500.00
$13,500.00 $12,863.00 $13,000.00 $500.00 4% $13,445.00 $14,000.00
$2,500.00 $2,020.00 $2,000.00 $500.00 20% $1,434,00 $2,500.00
$600.00 $327.00 $600.00 §- 0% $342.00 $500.00
$30,600.00 §28,392.00 525,000.00 $5,600.00 18% $23,699.00 $31,500.00 S- 5- <
5- HDIV/O!
5- HOIV/O!
5 How/ol
$- #DIV/OI
5- S S- S- HDIV/OI 5- 5 5- 5 ¢
$46,800.00 $45,837.00 $40,300.00 $6,500.00 14% $37,274.00 $51,000.00 $- 5 ==
2018 Acutals to 2017 % Variance Financial Plannéng oy
Budget Now17 Budget Variance 2018 2018 2019 2020 2021 208))
S
$- HDIV/OI
§- H#DIV/0!
- 4- 5- - HDIV/O 5 [ $- $- s
§ #pIv/o!
§- #DIv/o!
5 g 5 ;- HOIV/O! §- 5- G- 5- £
[5 i [5 [3 HOIV/O! 5 5- 5 5+ o
$46,800.00 4$45,837.00 $40,300.00 £6,500.00 14% £37,274.00 $51,000.00 $- 5 i
5 5- [ & #DIV/OI $- & 5- 5 H
$34,800.00 $33,565.00 $27,700,00 $6,500.00 19% $26,845.00 $38,700.00 8- $ 4
$12,000.00 $11.872.00 $12,600.00 s ox $10,420.00 $12,300.00 s & Lt




puayaam (BANS34 Zze[ Bupue suosqlo
wd g- || Woy £]-9] sunf
aueysip Bupyjem uyim e

sojpms 1y uadg Jnog

ualg,0 PeOMHOOS  Yoely
Apuiy

3119AG

e|ned ipnp Asuyo

quh._.n_.‘..

sdoys)jiom pue sjuaAa jo

jepuaje)
21n3|N>

JUNE 201 S|l

2S)Ae

._.m<OUmZ__._m23m

WORKSHOPS

Create-Painting Workshops: ongoing - Paint Days,
Paint Nights, Card Making, Mosaic Tile 2 Day Class,
knitting, daily Kids Drop-ins. Details from
facebook.com/CREATEbyKaren.

Medicine for the Earth: June 1 - 3.Fri: 1 -5 PM, Sat:
10 AM - 6 PM, Sun: 10 AM - 5 PM.Based on the book
by Sandra Ingerman, ceremonies to transmute
planetary and personal health issues, and work with
fire ceremony for support in manifesting visions.
Sacred opening ceremony, and blessing, with
Skwxwu7mech Nation Elder and Storyteller, Dennis
Joseph (Xwechtaal/Sxelalten). $395.Chaster House,
1549 Ocean Beach Esplanade, Michael Stone,
778.462.2333.

The Dancing Brush:June 1,8, 15.6:30- 9:30 PM. Art
conductor, Mardi. Live Music Painting Class.
Refreshments and all art supplies included. All levels
welcome. $349, Register: Mardi@Mardi.ca, Roberts
Creek Hall.

What's your Type? A Myers Briggs Workshop: June
2,9 AM - 1 PM. Discover your Natural Preferences for
better communication, decision making, and
change management. Gain knowledge of your type
to better understand yourself, others, and gain
perspective of other points of view. Bring a friend,
partner, or colleague {way more fun), and save! $150,
or $200 for 2 people (+GST). Gibsons Public Market
Coastal Room, admin@praxisgroup.ca.

Clay Wall Mural Workshop: June 2 - 3,10 AM - 3 PM.
Design and make a clay wall mural using the
techniques Pat Forst has developed to create
images you can be proud of. $150 + materials ($15-
$20). Forst Pottery, Gibsons. Pat Forst
plpforst@gmail.com.

Posture & Nutrition Workshop: June 5,5:30- 7:00
PM. Learn about posture-centric fitness movements
that help with aches and pains commaonly
associated with workplace computer use, and learn
about how to eat and supplement while following a
vegan diet to build muscle, burn body fat, and
change your overall composition. Free. Fuse

‘Community Work Hub, #15 - 292 Gower Pt Rd.
604.319.9481.

aouel||y jeanyjnd) 1580
woD suelseoduns

woo sjiejsecduns@ojuisiie
68LLOPL 109

TVE NOADE }BYydas
‘AMH DS 8£9 0/

Aj|eanieN aAneas) ~ ISe0) Aulysung s,0g

yied uontqiyx3 A3)|e asipeled ‘py poaPW S9EY
wd 0£:7 - 0£:Z L sAepung

wd Qg:Z | - we og:0t skepimes

194 Sidluleg JOALY [[PMod

H3AIN TI3MOd

PY 1d 4amoD e pue|joH

wd ¢ - we 9| sAepuns

aoae Aepuns Sujpue suosqn
[euiwa)] Aua4 ajepbuen

wd g we g| sAepuo/sAepung
dejdyaysey £1134 ajepbueq

(jood/A12aq1) BY) JB3U) 3§ BUMO)) JO pul
wd Qg:z - we g sAepinies
IR SURS[IIY pUe S J3lIR J[SYI9S

PY 1d JamoD) g/t ‘19)Jeiy Jl|qnd suosqio

“wd g - | sAepld - 3a)Ie SURSIIY + SiduNe]
VOl Wl Ssode - yied _Ilape

wdz-weQ|

sAepll4 - 39y s1awLey

}aau)
S12qOY ‘||eH d1uose
wd 9 - £ sAepsaupam

- J9)ae Sjen) wey

siodejA Jo0pIng

Haiku Tulips with Catherine Nicholls: June 8 & 9,10
AM - 4 PM. Starting with a simple drawing, activity
students will create their own series of tulips-
inspired designs. Using thickened dyes, we wili
create combinations of our favourite spring colours,
then combine those colours and designs to create a
textile tribute to spring. $250 plus GST. Fibreworks,
12887 Sunshine Coast Hwy, Gibsons. Alexis Bach,
604.883.2380.

Life Drawing:June B, 1 - 4 PM. A chance to draw or
paint a nude model. This non-instructional event is
hosted by Pat Bean. Artists of all skill levels are
encouraged to attend. Bring your own materials.
Easels are available for your use. $15. Arts Building,
464 South Fletcher Rd, Gibsons. artsbuilding.org.

Indigo Workshop: June 9,10 AM - 4 PM.We will
make two different vats. You will learn a handful of
Shibori patterns to tie, sew, fold and clamp cotton
fabric to make striking prints on cloth. You will
receive lots of samples of patterns and the
confidence to build your own Indigo Dye Vat at
home.$125,+ $25 materials fee. Arts Building, 464
South Fletcher, Gibsons.

Weavers Circle with Mary Bentley: June 13 - Oct 3,
19:30 AM - 3:30 PM. Master Weaver and teacher
Mary Bentley hosts weavers' circle in the Studio,
novices to advanced. Space in the Studio is limited
to 14, $10 drop in. Fibreworks, 12887 Sunshine Coast
Hwy, Madeira Park. Alexis Bach, 604.883.2380.

Ukulele Group (BUGS): June 16, 2:30 PM, Family-
friendly fun, Gibsons Public Market 473 Gower Pt Rd

In Other Words with Catherine Nicholls: June 21 -
24,10 AM - 4 PM. In this four day workshop students
will transform words into imagery. Using your
favourite quotes, phrases, passages, or other words
of wisdom as a starting place, we will explore
different ways to bring those words to life, The first
two days involve design, and the last two days will
see us taking those ideas to fabric, creating
compositions and completed designs. $400, plus
GST. Fibreworks, 12887 Sunshine Coast Hwy, Alexis
Bach, 604.883.2380.Beachcomber

192



Sunshine Coast Arts & Culture
Calendar of Events

FRI 1 - 3 15th Annusl Pender Harbour Biues Festival: 4 PM. 3 days of fabulous blues music at unique venues around

Pender Harbour. $20-25, some free shows, R.C. Legion-Madeira Park, Pender Harbour Community Hall,
Pender Harbour School of Music, Painted Boat, John Hanry's General Store, Harbour Spirit Centre, Upper
Deck Cafe, Mad Park Bistro, 604.741.1186. penderharbourbluesfestival.com

FRI 1 Honouring the Spirit of the Earth, Storles Songs and Fire Ceremony: 5 PM, Community Potluck (please
bring your own dishes). Suggested Donation: $20-$30, Chaster House 1549 Ocean Beach Esplanade,
778.462.2333

FRI1 Dinner show with Jim Taylor followed by Brain Freeze Trivia Night: 5:30 dinner, 8 pm Brain Freeze first
Friday of the month, Roberts Creek Legion

FRI1 Tia Vath - Featurad Artist of the Month @ the Kube: 6 PM.Wine bar and light tapas. FREE, The Kube, 101-
875 Gibsons Way, Gibsons BC

FRI1 Joshua Wood:6:30 PM, Back Eddy Resort & Marina, 16660 Backeddy Rd, Egmont

FRI 1- SUN 3 The Wild Flower Book:Fri, 7pm; Sat/5un, 3pm. A new Canadian play by Louise Phillips. $20, Sechelt Seniors
Activity Centre 604.885.3513

FRI 1 Sunshine Coast Natural History Society: 7:30 PM, First Friday of each month. This month featuring an
ilustrated presentation by Lou McKee. Everyone welcome. Sunshine Coast Arts Centre, Sechelt

FRI1 PR - Sharl Ulrich In Concert with Powall River Chorus: 7:30 PM, $20, Max Cameron Theatre

FRI Kid's Table Quartet: 8 PM, An adventurous night of music with Jeremy Page, Cole Schmidt, karlis Silins,
Kenton Loewe, and Glorgio Magnanenst, by donation, Gumboot Cafe, Roberts Creek

FRI PR -Thea Angsll Album Release show: B PM, w/Fanfare and Mr. Twyford, donation, McKinney's Pub 6251
Yew 5t

SAT 2 Egmont Day: 9 AM, An all-day event for all, Dinner at é pm and family dance to follow., Egmont Park

SAT 2 Demo Day - Alpha Adventures: 10 AM, Test paddle a boat or SUR Free, outdooradventurestore.ca, Porpoise

Bay Provincial Park, Sechelt Inlet Rd

SAT 2 It's Not Right: Adult Abuse Warning Signs and What You Can Do: 10:30 AM, free, Gibsons Public Library

604.886.2130

SAT 2 &SUN 3 Dance Woks: A Night at The Movies - Primary Shows: | pm & 4 pm. danceworksacademy.ca, $16 adult,

$12 child, Gibsons Heritage Playhouse
SAT2 Billy Hillpicker Band: 2:30 PM, Gibsons Public Market, 473 Gower Pt Rd
SAT2 Wrap Up Party - Bike to School and Work Weel: 7 PM, Gumboot Cafe, Roberts Creek

SAT 2 The Georgia Fats: B PM, thegeorgiafats.com/music-2, $8 members and $15 non members, Gibsons Legion

SAT 2 PR - Back Eddy and the Procrastinators at McKinney's: 9 PM, Mckinney's Pub, 6251 Yew Street
SAT2 Joshua Wood with Thalla Coture: 9 PM, Roberts Creek Legion

SUN 3 Opening Reception: This is Who | Am: Politics of the Queer Body: 2 PM, For LBGTQ2 Exhibition of work by

artists Noel Silver and Shery McDougald, SC Arts Centre, Sechelt 604.885.5412
SUN 3 Charlotte Wrinch: 2 PM, Persephone Brewing Company, 1053 Stewart Road Gibsons BC, 8504.992.8430
SUN3 Coast Symphony Orchestra presents Beethoven's Fifth Sympheny: 2:30 PM, Jose Ceron-Ortega,
conductar, $20, 12 and under $5, Sechelt Indian Band Hall

MON 4 Sunshine Coast Spinners and Weavers: 11:30 AM, 15t Monday each month. Bring your lunch, and
something to knit, 5t John's United Church, 5085 Davis Bay Road.

TUE 5 & 12 Minl Plant Sale: 5C Botanical Gardens, 5941 Mason Rd, Sechelt

TUES Talking Trees Tour: 1 PM, with Talaysay Tours local First Natlons guide. aboriginalecatours.com, 30, meet at

Playground Porpoise Bay Prov Park, Sechelt
TUES The Coast Recltal Seciety AGM: 5 PM, 5C Arts Centre, 5714 Medusa 5t, Sechelr 604.685.0991

WED 6 PR - 2018 Childrens Art Camp Fundraiser:6:30 PM, Fine wine and Italian fare, classic blues and jazz records,

live art, and a silent auction, $60, Culaccino, 4701 Marine Ave, paintgrouphospitality.com

WED 6 PR - Resilient Streets Kick-Off:6:30 PM, Explaining Resilient Streets initiative. Cedar Room, PR Rec Complex,

5001 Joyce Ave

THU 7?7 Library Connections - Local authors, with library connections, reading from original works: 7 PM. Free -

604 BBS 3260, Sechelt Library

THU? PR - Artist Reception - Arnold Nouwens: 7 PM, ‘Arctic + Stars’ by Amold Nouwens. Music and appys. Show

runs to June 29th. Vi University, 7024 Tofino St, Powell River

THU? PR - Diemm at the Rodmay: 7 PM, Original and compelling Chamber Folk music. Diemme plays harp and

sings.diemm.ca, Suggested donation $10-$15, Rodmay Hotel, 6251 Yew Street, Powell River

THU7 An Evening with Eve Joseph: 7:30 PM, Author of “In the Slender Margin®. coasthospice.com, $10 suggested

donation, SC Arts Centre, Trail & Medusa, Sechel, 604.740,0475
FRI& Book Falre: Fri 12to 5,5at 10 to S and Sun 10 to 3, Sechelt Public Library

FRI8 & SAT 9 PR - Lake and Land Youth Art Exhibition: 11 AM, June 8-2.a multi-medta exhibit created by the 5047
grade 6 student cohort in partnership with artists Claudia Medina and Megan Dulcie Dill. The Art Centre,

215-6975 Alberni 5t, Powell River

FRI8 A Beckoning: 6 PM, Opening reception for ‘A Beckoning), installation by Digi Majou and Deer Crossing the

Art Farm. Exhibition ends July 8. admission free, Gibsons Public Art Gallery, 604.318.1843
FRIB&22 Sound Journey:7 PM,didjeridu and quartz crystal singing bowls. Bring a mat and blanket.
terrasono@unseen.s, Sliding scale, $10-520,Yoga by the Sea 1055 Reberts Creek Road, Roberts Creek

FRIB 2018 Wine & Taste Gala: 7 PM, Hosted by Sechelt Chamber of Commerce. $60 members; $75 non members,

5C Botanical Gardens, 5941 Mason Rd, Sechelt, secheltchamberbe.ca

FRIB Earth, Sea and Sky: 7 PM, Suncoast Phoenix Community Choir spring concert. suncoastphoenixchoir.ca, by

donation, Sechelt indian Band Hall, 604,885.0574

FRI8 Sunshine Coast Astronomy monthly talk: 7:30 PM, 2nd Friday of the manth, this month featuring Sarah

Pearce, Sunshine Coast Arts Centre, 5714 Medusa St, Sechelt 778.458.2666

FRIB School of Music Coffee House: 7:30 PM, Featuring: Back Porch Reunion, Roger Maidens, Matt Richards,
Suggested donation $10, School of Music, Madeira Park, 604.893.9749

FRIB D & the Hotties: 8 PM, gypsy-swing, world rhythms, bassa, boogie, tango and more with Deanna Knight and

her 'hatties', Roberts Creek Legion
FRI8 PR - House DJ night with John Lemma:9 PM, $5, McKinney's Pub 6251 Yew 5t

FRIB PR - Purple Raln: 9:30 PM, Schreurs Cinema Classic Films series. PG 110 minutes, $9.50, Seniors $6.00, Teens

13-18 $7.50, Patricia Theatre 5848 Ash Street

SAT9 The Puddia Jumper Classic: 7 AM, 2nd year of this Classic Ultra Marathon. A 50k race and a 25k race, Cliff

Gilker Park, 3110 SC Hwy, Roberts Creek, ultrasignup.com

SAT9 9th Annual Home & Garden Expo: 10 AM, Life Re-Imagined, Coastal Style. Gibsons Community Centre
604.741.8281

SAT9 Beach Volieyball Tournament: 10 AM, Part of Sechelt World Ocean’s Day. $40 per team, Friendship Park
Courts, Sechelt, noelmull@gmail.com

SAT9 Repair Cafe: 10 AM, Don't throw it cut—get it fixed! free, Sunnycrest Mall, Gibsons

SAT9 Sechelt Oceans Day: 12 PM, free family fun featuring ocean-themed activities and games on the Sechelt

waterfront. Friendship Park, Sechelt
SAT9 Jaxz Week: Simon Parvadis, 11 am - noon, Gibsons Library

SAT9 Jazz Weel: Wanda Nowicki and Budge Schachte: 12 PM, Vocalist and Jazz Guitar to enjoy in the aftemoon.

coastjazz.com, by donation, Sunnycrest Mall

SAT 9 & SUN 10 Dance Woks: A Night at the Movies - Senlor Shows: 1.2:30 pm & 4:30 pm. danceworksacademy.ca, $16

adult, $12 child, Gibsons Heritage Playhouse

SAT 9 & SUN 10 Dance Upon a Star: 1 pm & 6 pm. Presented by Coast Acadermy of Dance. $25 adults; $20
seniors/students, Raven's Cry Theatre, Sechelt

SAT® Earth, Sea and Sky: 2 PM, Suncoast Phoenix Community Choir spring concert. suncoastphoenixchaoir.ca,

Admission by donation, Calvary Baptist Church, Park Rd, Gibsons, 604.885.0574
SAT9 Jazz Week: Jazz Group of Seven: 2:30 PM, Gibsons Public Market, 473 Gawer Pt Rd

SAT9 June Boom Roller Derby Bout #1 of 2: 5 PM, SCRG Red Tide Waming vs. Squamish Sirens - 2nd bout June 23

vs the Rink Minx, $10 adults, 55 seniors/children, Sechelt SC Are5982 Shoal Way, Sechelt

SATS9 Karl Kirkaldy, Back Eddy Pub: 6:30 PM, free, Back Eddy Resart & Marina, 16660 Backeddy Rd, Egmont
1.800.626.0599

SAT9 9th Annual Festival of Ocaan Flims: 7 PM, Sea of Life from filmmaker, Julia Barnes. The Hundred Year Old

Whale by Mark Leiren-Young, georgiastrait.org, $13-515, School of Music, Madeira Park, Pender Harbour,
604.724.1581, eventbrite.ca

SAT9 Annual Wine Tasting Event: 7 PM, Presented by Rotary Club of Pender Harbour, $75, Madeira Park
Community Hall

SAT9 Read Out Loud: 7:30 PM, A queer literary salan featuring readings from both emerging and critically
acclaimed LGBTQ2 writers, including Hiromi Gote and Nicole Breit. $5+, 5C Arts Centre, Sechelt

SAT9 PR - The Dollarstore Jesus, Black Metal Astronaut: 8 PM, McKinney's Pub, 6251 Yew St

SATY9 Salsa Dance Lesson & Dance:8:30 PM, Salsa lesson with Sandra Cordera then dance to great Latin music.

$20 advance, $22 @the doar, Sechelt Legion, 5591 Wharf Ave, Sechelt, 604,886.3114, Share-There.com
SAT9 DJ Night: Thea's last danca: 9 PM, Roberts Creek Legion
SUN 10 Sechelt Garden Club Strawberry Tea: secheltgardenclub.com, Botanical Gardens, Sechelt
SUN10  Jazz Week: Doubla Treble: 1 PM, with Heidi Kurz on flute and harp and Bud Kurz on flute and guitar,
coastjazz.com, donation, One Flower One Leaf Gallery, 436 Marine Dr, Gibsons Landing

SUN 10 Maat the Artists: This is Who | Am: Politics of the Queer Bady: 1:30 PM, Noel Silver and Sheryl McDougald

as they discuss their work, SC Arts Centre, Sechelt 604.885.5412

MON 11 - SAT 23 PR - PRISMA 2018:The Pacific Region International Summer Muslc Academy (PRISMA) presents five

concerts and daily masterclasses. prismafestival.com, various, Powell River orchestra-academy.ca

MON 11 Pender Harbour Garden Club: 1 PM, Visit local gardens with the Wood Duck bus, Drop-ins $5, Pender
Harbour Music School, Madelra Park

MON11  PR- Academy Children's Cholrs: 7 PM, Academy Apprentice Choir ~ Academy Girls Choir ~ Academy Boys

Choir ~ Academy Singers, 510 adults, 35 students 18 and under, James Hall, 604.485.9633
TUEI12 Sunshina Coast Conservation Assoc, AGM, 6:30 pm 5C Arts Centre, Sechelt
TUE 32 Habitat for Humanity Sunshine Coast AGM: SC Golf & Country Club, 3206 Hwy 101, Roberts Creek

TUE 12 Jazz Weel: Karen Graves & Budga Schachte: 6:30 PM, Local jazz guitarist Budge Schachte joins Karen
Graves, sax/vocals/flute. coastjazz.com, donation, Sita's Spag & Suds, 851 Gibsons Way

WED 13  Alice in Wonderland: 7 PM, $15 adults, $10 child under 10, Raven's Cry Theatre, 504,741.8978, waldorfballet.com

WED 13  tazzWeek: Anagram & Friends: 7 PM, donations, Blackfish Pub, 966 Venture Way, Gibsens

THU14  Sunshine Coast Newcomars Club Lunch: 12 PM, 2nd Thursday of each month. Annual membership $15 par
family. sunshine.newcomers@gmail.com, $15, location varies

THU 14 & 28 Multicultural Dance Group: 5 PM, Come learn traditional dances from other cultures, free, Capilano University,
Sechelt Campus 604.865.0170

THU 14 Jazz Week: Funktete: 7 PM, Anna Lumiere, keys, Karen Graves, Sax/flute, Budge Schachte, guitar/bass, John Rule,
drums, donations, Leo’s Tapas & Grill, Gibsons Landing 604.886.9414

FRINS PR - A Night of bass and rhythm Gemini Party: featuring theChad, B2B, Papa D and more, $1 - §10, McKinney's
Pub 6251 Yew St

FRIS &SAT 16 St.John's United Artists: 10 AM, Annual Art Show of the St John's United Artists, also *Gently Used Art
Supplies” Sale. Free, Simkins Rd, Davis Bay, Sechelt, 604.740,8028

FRINS - SUN 17 23rd Annttal Gibsons Landing Jaxz Festival: 12 PM, Street Festival June 17th. Street Performers, Vendors,
kids area, beer garden, food & fun for the whole family, $25, Gower Point Road next to the village above
Winegarden Park 604.740.5825

FRI 15 - SUN 17 The Wild Flower Book : A Play by Louise Phillips: June 15,8 pm; June 16-17 3 pm. A new Canadian play by
Louise Phillips, staged by Driftwood Players. Gibsons Heritage Playhouse 604.885.3513

FRI1S Jarz Fest: Opening Concert - Tom Keenlyside Quartet: 8 PM, www.coastjazz.com, $20, 5t Bart's Church, Tickets
share-there.com

SAT 16 Father's Day Pie Sale: 10 AM, Ples made by grandmothers and grand others. Sunnycrest Matl, Gibsons

SAT 16 Bark for the Park & BBQ: 11 AM, 3.5 km forest walk with your 4-legged friend, enjoy BB(} after the walk, by
donation. $15 registration, Lion's Park, Pander Harbrour

SAT 16 &£ SUN 17 Open Art Studios In Lower Glbsons: 11 AM, June 16 -17, christysverre.com, cindyriach.com,
Jjudiscottwood.com, paulaobrien.com. Lower Gibsons, Paula O'Brien 604.740.4842

SAT 16 Pride OQutfit Bedazzling and Whatnot: 12 PM, What DOESNT look better with glitter? Going to a Pride event?
Bring your outfits-in-progress—Hot-glue guns, jewels, glitter, fabric paint, button-making machine and more. free,
Gibsons Public Library, 604.886.2130

SAT 16 Jazz Fest: Main Stage Street Festival: 12 PM, Mimosa, Vince Mai Quintet, Laila Blali Trio, Nick La Riviera Septet,
5D 46 Jazz Band, vendors, focd, kids fun, and more. $20 advance to Friday; $25 at the gate, Gower Pt d, Gibsons
Village, share-there.com

SAT 16 Brothers in (Beer) Farms: 2 PM, Persephone Brewing Company, 1053 Stewart Rd, Gibsons
SAT 16 Beachcomber Ukulele Group (BUGS): 2:30 PM, Gibsons Public Market 473 Gower Pt Rd

SAT 16 & SUN 17 PR - Summer Solstice Fire Ceremony & Camp Qut: 6 PM. 7th annual sacred fite ceremony marking the
longest day of the year. 3foldbalance.com, Lang Bay

SAT 16 Jim Foster, free, Back Eddy Resort & Marine, 16660 Backeddy Rd, Egmont 1.800.626.059%

SAT16 Muddy Goats / Dirty Debbie: 7 PM, Roberts Creek Legion

SAT 16 Jazz Fest: Rakish Angles: 7:30 PM, $20, High Beam Drearms, 350 Glassford Rd, Gibsons, share-there.com
SAT 16 Selina Martin and Tom Holliston: 8 PM, Gumboot Cafe, Roberts Creek

SAT 16 Jazz Fest: Dance with Adam Robart Thomas Band: 8 PM, Motown Soul, Funk and fun, Brad Tumner, keys, Andre
Lachance, bass and Adam Cormier, drums., $ 10 members, $20 non-members, Gibsons Leglon , share-there.com

SAT 16 PR -Wild Nights Summer Dance Parties with Jupiter Wildz 8 PM, McKinney's Pub 6251 Yew 5t

SUN17  JazzFest:Brunch, Afternoon Festival, Vespers: 11 AM, Brunch at Leo's with Steve Maddock/Steve Giltrow; 1:30
pm free outdoor concert in Winegarden Park with Creek Big Band, Take Five, Deanna Knight and Hot Club; 5:30
Jazz Vespers at 5t Bart's with the Blues Busters from Powell River, Gibsans Landing

SUN17  Father's Day BBQ:4 PM, Gambler Island Community Hall

SUN17  Fathes's Day:7:30 PM, Bring family and friends, picnic lunch. Sargeant Bay Beach, Halfmoon Bay

WED20  Why Indigenous Law Matters: 6 PM, free, Gibsons Public Library, 604.886.2130

WED20  Paintnight Fundraiser for the SSC Haspice Soclaty: 6 PM, $10-$20 suggested donation, The Bricker Cider
Company, 6642 Norwest Bay Rd, Sechelt, eventbrite.ca

THU 21 Halfmoon Bay Family Dance: wpearson@sd46.be.ca, Coopers Green Hall, Halfmoon Bay
THU 21 PR - Indigenous Day: 5 PM, $25, Tla'amin Salish Centre 6686 Sliammon Rd

THU 21 Astro Cafe:8:30 PM, Telescope chat and viewing also the 3rd Friday every month. 8:30, Free, Pier 17, Davis Bay
Seawall, 604.740.7935

FR122 A Beckoning: School Hour: 1 PM, School Hour, registration needed. Gibsans Public Art Gallery, 604.318.1843

FR122 Quasr Projections film screening "Rebals on Pointe": 7:30 PM, suggested donation 510, Gibsons Heritage
Playhouse, 604.989.2655

FRI 22 PR - Blues Busters: 9 PM, $10, McKinney’s Pub 6251 Yew St Powell River

SAT 23 STR Tour Day 0/6: Punk tams, Punk E.R., guests: $8 members, $15 non-members, Roberts Creek Legion,
brownpapertickets.com o™

S5AT 23 Motorcycle Show & Shine and Poker Ride: Bam - Pancake breakfast, 9am registration. gibsonslegion.ca, $150)

SAT 23 Children's Festival and Duck Pluck: 10 AM, guest performance by Norman Foote and the 18 year reunion ofs—
Bellies and Babies! sccss.ca, By Donation, Dougall Park, Gibsons, 604.885.5881

SAT 23 Family Fun Day: 10 AM, Lots of events for young and old, fly tying, archery demon, face painting, presentations.
Hot dog lunch provided. Hosted by SC Rod & Gun Club, $10 per family, Chapman Creek Hatchery, Wilson Creek

SAT 23 7th Annual Gibsons Grind Gran Fondo: 10:15 AM, 50km, 70km routes for riders of all lavels,
gibsonsgrindgranfondo.com, sold out, start at Langdale Ferry

SAT 23 Joe Stanton: 2:30 PM, Gibsons Public Market, 473 Gower Pt Rd

SAT 23 June Boom Roller Derby Bout #2:5:30 PM, Family friendly. $10 adults, $5 seniors/children, SC Arena, 5982 Shoal
Way, Sechelt

SAT 23 Lorme Jones: 8 PM, Sechelt Legion

SAT 23 Pride Dance 2018: 8 PM, D) Busy B, $20, Roberts Creek Hall, share-there.com

SAT 23 PR - 5t Jean Baptiste Night: 9 PM, 510, McKinney's Pub 6251 Yew 5t

SUN24  Sundayin tha Park with Pride & Tha Little Pride Parade: 12 PM, Mission Point Park and Davis Bay Seawall

SUN24  MusicRecital: 2 PM, Annual Year-End Music Recital featuring the students of Luci Herder. Everyone welcomel By
Danation, St Bart's Church, Gibsons 604,886.0281

SUN24  Nativa Drumming Circle: 4 PM, 4th Sunday of each month. St Hilda's Anglican Church, Sechelt

WED27  Muse:Open Mic at the Gibsons Public Library: 6 PM, Last Wednesday of every manth. Bring your stories, poems
and songs. Free, Gibsons Public Library, 604.886.2130

WED27  Watoto Children's Chair: 7 PM, The choir, whose members are arphans and other vulnerable children, present
worship music from Uganda, free, Christian Life Assembly, 730 Schoal Rd, Gibsons, eventbrite.ca

THU 28 Northern Spin In: 10 AM, Last Thursday of the month. Bring your wheel and something for the potluck table to
share for lunch. free, FibreWorks Studio & Gallery, 12887 Sunshine Coast Hwy, 604.883.2380

THU 28 COAST CULTURAL ALLJANCE (CCA) AGM: 5 pm, Linwood House, 3144 Linwood Rd, Roberts Creek

THU 28 & FRI 29 Dance Woks: A Night at The Movies - Adult Shows: 7 PM. info danceworksacademy.ca, $16 adult, $12 child,
Gibsans Heritage Playhouse

FRI 29 Pat Temple and the HiLo:, Coopers Green Hall, Halfmoon Bay

FRI 29 Sunshine Coast Muiticultural Festiva): 4 PM, facebook.com/SunshineCoastWelcomingCommunities, donations
welcome, Seaside Centre, 5790 Teredo Street, and the Sechelt Library lawn, 604.865.01 70

FRI29 A Backoning: Artists’ Talk: 7 PM, Artists talk, Q and A with Sandy Buck and Joah Lu, admission free, Gibsons
Public Art Gallery, 604.319.1843

FRI29 Ken McBride: 9 PM, Roberts Creek Legion
FRI 29 PR - David GoGo:9 PM, $15, McKinney's Pub 6251 Yew S5t
SAT 30 Repalr Cafe: 1 PM, Bring Items in need of repair, free, Gibsons Library

SAT 30 Opening Reception: "Abstracts Exposed” & "Elemental Detail™: 2 PM, artists Katherine Johnston and Alanna
Wood. SC Arts Centre, Sechelt 604.885.5412

SAT 30 Dave Roughley: 2:30 PM, Guitar and vocals, Gibsons Public Market 473 Gower Pt Rd
SAT 30 PR - Dannis Fox and Whoever Rocks: 9 PM, Spontaneous Music. 510, McKinney’s Pub, 6251 Yew St, PR
SAT 30 Joe Stanton, free, Back Eddy Resort & Marine, 16660 Backeddy Rd, Egmont 1.800.626.0599

Weekly events
Tuesdays Jammin with A.D.D. and Friends, 7:30 pm, Roberts Creek Legion
Weadnesdays Live Music at the Gumboot Restaurant, evening
Birdies, Bites & Bevies: to Oct 3. A 9-hole, teamed event. $12 for 9 holes, Pender Harbour Golf Course
PR - McKinnay’s Band Lab: 8 PM, McKinney's Pub, 6251 Yew St.PR
Thursdays Music Jam, Euspiria Cafe, Madeira Park, afternoons
Joe Stanton, 7PM, Old Boot Eatery, Sechelt
PR - Sam Hurrie Blues Night: 7 PM, by danation, McKinney's Pub, 6251 Yew 5t, PR
Mountain Bike Video Night, 7 PM, Gibsons Tapworks
Fridays Gibsons Writers Meet-Up, 10:30 prm, Wheatberries, Gibsons
Tha Nevar Ending Groove with DJ Teflo, 8 PM, 101 Brewhouse, 1009 Gibsans Way
Saturdays Métis Dancing, 11 AM, Davis Bay Hall
Live Musle, | pm, Tapworks, Gibsons
Live Music, 2:30 PM, Gibsons Public Market
Harbour Gallery 2018 Summer Show: 11 am - 4 pm. Harbour Gallery, 12954 Gonzales/Madeira Park Rd
Vibes with DJ Dino, 9PM, Tapworks, Gibsons
Live Musle, Back Eddy Pub, 6:30 pm
Saturday/Sunday
Live Music, Persephone 2-4 pm
Sundays Jamming with the Coast, 7 PM, Sechelt
Slaw Sundays in the Yurts, 1PM, Pender Harbour



MAP GUIDE &
ARTISTS’ LISTINGS

October 19-21

2018

Fri-Sat-Sun: 10am-5pm
plus
Fri7-9pm, selected venues

Langdaie to Earls Cove

e
SUNSHINE G
ART .o

(1]

CRAWLC®

- sunshinecoastartcrawl.com
e e S R e St ek

194




Grab A Passport & Win A Prize

Here is how it works,., go to any artist’s venue, Visitar Centre or Sunshine

Coast Credit Union to pick up your passport. When visiting any one of tha 165
venues, ask them to place a sticker on their Art Crawl number in your passport.

The passport is your entry for a chance to win:

1Grand Prize of a 2 night stay in 1 bdrm villa + spa garden passes at
Painted Boat Resort Spa & Marina ($1200 value) = need to visit all 4 areas.

1 0f 3 prizes: each prize will include 2 car + driver travel vouchers and
Z passenger travel voichers,

How To Enter

You must collect stickers from venues in at least 3 of the fcliowing areas:
Langdale/Gibsons, Roberts Creek, Sechelt/Middlepoint, Madeira Park/Garden
Bay/Faris Cave,

When you visit:
3 areas = T ballot; 4 areas = 2 ballots

Your passport includes your 15t ballot. Ask the artist at the LAST venue you
visit for any additicnal ballots. Submit your ballot(s} at the last venue you visit,

Winners will be rotified hy October 31, 2018,

Sponsored by:

sunshine Coast MM Sechelt
CREDIT UNION

&
Sunshine Coast
—

™~
( 2R2BCFerries
TRANSFER

shishdlh first nation

Presented by:

Coast Cultural
Alliance

Www.suncoastarts.com | artsinfo@suncoastarts.com

sunshinecoastartcrawl.com
195




2018 Sunshine Coast Art Crawl! Information

The Sunshine Coast Art Crawl, organized by Coast Cultural Alliance, continues to grow. Studio and gallery participation
included 165 venues representing more than 350 individual artists spread along the Sunshine Coast from Langdale to Earls
Cove. This year there were 63 new venues including many more group shows which kept the interest high for returning
Crawlers. The Gibsons Public Mareket and the Sechelt Hospital Foundation at the Sunshine Golf Course were popular new
additions. Powell River artists returned again this year renting the Gibsons Legion Hall due to the municipal election using
the Roberts Creek Hall. Venues visits rose dramatically by 21% to more than 46,000 venue visits over 3 days, resulting in
more than $440,500 in sales up from $372,500 in 2017, an increase of 19%. Many sales were made the following week as a
follow but no recorded in these figures. There were more than $93,000 in commissions including signing up for future arts
workshops.

The Travel Ambassadors volunteered for sailings on Friday and Saturday and distributed over 300 brochures and
information to more than 400 passengers specifically interested in the Art Crawl. Certified Folder racked the Art Crawl
brochure in 3 BC Ferries routes during the month of October. This year 10,000 brochures were printed up from last year's
9,000 and all distributed.

Artists reported an increase in the number of off-Coast visitors attending, specifically visiting to attend the Crawl. They also
noted Sunshine Coast residents, many who have recently purchased homes here are taking advantage the Crawl as a great
way to get to know their new community ... and make purchases for their homes. Guests were identified from the
Vancouver area, communities across the Lower Mainland, Vancouver Island, Sea to Sky, all across Canada, Seattle,
Bellingham, Oregon area and many international visits. (A complete list attached)

Participation in the passport prize campaign remains high with many more visiting all 4 areas. Winners this year were all
from the Sunshine Coast with a Sechelt couple visiting 56 venues, crawling for the first time.

Winners of the draw: Painted Boat weekend - Karla Carson from Gibsons
3 winners of 2 ferry passes — car & driver & 2 passenger
Nadine & Ray Wynne, Gibsons; Laura Lindsay, Sechelt; Joan Davie, Gibsons

2018 LIST OF CRAWLERS HOME TOWNS

* Whistler - Vancouver area

Whistler, Squamish, Tsawwassan, Ladner, Vancouver, N Vancouver, W Vancouver, Burnaby, Richmond, Delta, New
Westminster, Horseshoe Bay, False Creek, East Side, Gastown, Kitsalano, Steveston, Deep Cove

* Mainland -- Surrey, Coquitlam, Port Coquitlam, Pitt Meadows, Langley, Mission, Port Moody, Aldergrove, Fort Langley,
White Rock, Maple Ridge, Abbotsford, Ladner, Chilliwack, Cloverdale, Agassiz, Cultus Lake, Crescent Beach, Harrison Hot
Springs, Pitt Meadows

* Rest of BC -- Oliver, Kaleden, Penticton, Vernon, Kelowna, Sheridan Lake, Kamloops, Hope, Castlegar, Oliver, Coldstream,
Lillooet, Terrace, Nelson, Quesnel, Prince George, Williams Lake, 150 Mile, Okanagan, Enderby, Robson

* Islands -- Victoria, Nanaimo, Bamfield, Port Alberni, Parksville, Campbell River, Tofino, Comox, Duncan, Columbia Beach,
Metchosin

Sooke, Bamfield, Courtney, Sidney, Qualicum Beach, Cobble Hill, Gillies Bay, Lantzville, Langford, Hornby Isl, Salt Spring
Island, Bowen Island, Savory Isl, Lasqueti Isl, Pender Island, Keats Island, Gambier Isl

* Canada -- Moosomia SK, Calgary Alta, Lake Country, Whitehorse, Yukon, Ontario - Kenora, Pearth, Chatham, Hamilton,
Windsor, Blenheim, Toronto, Missasauga, London, Ottawa, Kingston, Peterborough, Dundas, Orilia, St Catherines; Montreal
PQ, Neepawa Man, Saskatoon Sask, Melfort Sask, Newfoundland, Summerside PEI, Yarmouth NS, Moncton NB; Alberta -
Grand Prairie, Leduc, Taber, Edmonton, Cochrane, Red Deer, St Albert, Okotoks, Ft Macleod, Spruce Grove, Lethbridge,
Faber, Stony Plains.

*US -- Eugene Org, Raineer Org, Bellingham WA, Yakima WA, Seattle WA, California - San Francisco, San Diego, Oakhurst,
Jan Jojo, Ventura , La Quinta; West Palm Beach FL, New York City, Fort Worth Texas, Malcomb Michigan, Ada Michigan,
Silvis, lllinois, Oakland lowa, Alexandrith VA

* International -- Malaysia, New Zealand, Henderson NV, Archie Bay NV, Gotebury Sweden, Amsterdam, Puerto Vallarta,
Mexico, Carmarthan Wales, Namibia, London UK, Buxted England, Farington Cove GB, New Castle UK, Brisbane Australia,
Perth Australia, Melbourne Aust, Gheug Belgium, Torino Italy, Inverness Scotland, South Africa, Utrecht NL, Equador,
Venezuela, Granada Spain, Rotoeasc IC (Iceland), Costa Rica, Cvenca Ecuador, San Paulo, Brazil, Swakenpmund Namibia,
Sunmergich PE (Peru), Dusseldorf Germany, Holland, Woemen Netherlands, Switzerland, Europe, Avila Espana, Brussels,
Todos Santos BCS Mex, Toulouse France, China

196



Stats for Coast Cultural Alliance - Sunshine Coast Art Crawl - ongoing to 2017

2010

75 participating venues
6800 + approx 20% = 8,160 studio visits
$30,000 reported sales

2011

108 participating venues
12,348 - Total x 20% = 14,817
$59,140 reported sales

2012

110 participating venues (35 new) representing 275 + artists
18,000 studio visits.
$102,000 reported sales.

2013

122 participating venues (47 new) representing 300 + artists
20,000 studio visits
$135,000 reported sales (and many more confirmed commissions)

2014

141 participating venues (53 new) representing 340+ artists
21,000 studio visits

$162,000 reported sales (plus more commissions)

$67,000 reported sales/commissions from 2013 Art Crawl

2015 - (no longer Powell River Venues)

125 participating venues (30 new) representing 350+ artists - 18 Powell River artists showing in Roberts Creek Hall
28,000 studio visits
$218,000 reported sales (plus $60,000+ recorded commissions)

Locations of visitors:

* Whistler - Vancouver area -- Whistler, Squamish, Tsawwassan, Ladner, Vancouver, N Vancouver, W Vancouver, Burnaby,
Richmond, Delta, New Westminster, Whistler, Horseshoe Bay, False Creek, East Side, Gastown, Kitsalano

* Lower Mainland -- White Rock, Coquitlam, Port Coquitlam, Abbotsford, Maple Ridge, Surrey, Cloverdale, Port Moody,
Ladner, Langley, Harrison, Rosedale, Crescent Beach, Cultus Lake, Aldergrove, Pit Meadows, Chilliwack

*Island(s) -- Duncan, Victoria, Nanaimo, Gambier, Jervis Inlet, Saanich, Qualicum Beach, Nanoose Bay, Parksville, Gabriola,
Cumberland, Tofino, Trail Island, Gabriola

*Qut of mainland -- Sheridan Lake, Invermere, Harrison, Agassiz, Vernon, Peachland, 100 Mile Ranch, 108 Mile Ranch,
Smithers, Grade Prairie, Rossland, Invermere, Golden, Revelstoke, Creston, Lone Bute, Summerland, Slocan Park, Sheridan Lake,
Salmon Arm, Rock Creek, Prince George, Haida Gwaii, Shuswap Lake, Vanderhoof, Anglemont,

* Qut of Province -- Winnipeg Manitoba, Prince Albert Sask, Emerald Park Sask, Edmonton , Calgary, Sherwood Park Alberta,
Barrhead Alta, Silven Lake Alta, Canmore Alta, Barrie Ont, Lake Country Ont, Cornwall Ont, Windsor Ont, Sudbury Ont,
Peterborough Ont, Toronto Ont, Cornwall Ont, Niagara on the Lake Ont, Apsley Ont, Bracebridge Ont, Parry Sound Ont, Ottawa,
Ont, Montreal Que, Gillis Bay Nova Scotia

* International -- Tokyo, Hong Kong, Irag, Mexico, Germany, Tanzania, Korea, Melbourne Australia, Brisbane Australia,
Perth Australia, Somerset UK, Jersey UK, London UK, Suffolk UK, Islamabad Pakistan, Switzerland, Central Africa, Erbil

197



2016

130 participating venues (41 new) representing 350+ artists - 23 Powell River artists showing in Roberts Creek Hall
35,000 studio visits
$268,000 reported sales (plus $30,000+ recorded commissions)

Locations of visitors

* Whistler - Vancouver area -- Whistler, Squamish, Tsawwassan, Ladner, Vancouver, N Vancouver, W Vancouver, Burnaby,
Richmond, Delta, New Westminster, Whistler, Horseshoe Bay, False Creek, East Side, Gastown, Kitsalano

* Mainland -- Maple Ridge, Chilliwack, Nelson, Squamish, Abbotsford, Coquitlam, Agassiz, White Rock, Cloverdale, Port Moody,
Port Coquitlam, Surrey, Harrison, Pit Meadows, Langley, Delta, Rosedale, Clearwater, Smithers, Ocean Beach, Vernon, Albion,
Armstrong, Aldergrove, Mission, Penticton, Hope, Kelowna, Summerland, Dawson City, Prince George, Pemberton, Ft Langley,
Crescent Beach, Okanagan Falls, Golden, Bralorne

*Islands -- Victoria, Nanaimo Denman, Bowen Island, Comox, Parksville, Nanoose Bay, Texada, Salt Spring, Ladysmith,
Quaalicum Beach, Haida Gwai, Savery Island, Port Hardy, Courtenay, Gabriola, Pt Alberni, Cumberland, Campbell River, Jarvis
Inlet, Crofton, Bliss Landing, Galiano, Brentwood Bay

*Canada -- Milford, Ont, Toronto, Calgary, Port Credit, Lake Country, Mississauga, Montreal, Vulcan Alta, Edmonton, Pr Edward
County, Oakville, Ottawa, Allan Sask, Okotoks, Fonthill Ont, Canmore, Newfoundland, Hinton, Alta, Stratford, Ont, Nova Scotia,
Traverse Bay, MB, Barrie Ont, Moncton NB, Lethbridge, San Souis, Milford, Ont, Vegreveille, AB, Perth, Ont, Debreuilville, Ont,
Forthill, Ont, Inisfail, Ont, Bakersville Ont, Windsor, Churchill, Brandon, Saskatoon, Yellowknife, Chelsea QC

*US -- Abilene, Texas, Nevada City, Michigan, Portland, Monterey, Mt Vernon, Bellingham, Florida, San Diego, Boston, New
York City, Seattle, Woodside, Sumas, Santa Cruz, Port Angeles, Tigard, Oregon, York, PA, Midein, Florida, Capitola, Mendocino
*International -- Wollongong, New Australia, Malaysia, Singapore, England, Brisbane, Nyon, Switzerland, Shaftesbury, UK,
Amsterdam, Dublin, Ireland, Kent, UK, Caracas, Austria, Mexico City, New Zealand, Saudi Arabia, Turkey, Japan, Noisy-le-roi
France, Denmark, Oyana, Japan, Many, NSW, Warsow, Poland, Germany, Tullinge, Sweden, Israel

2017

144 participating venues (51 new) representing 330+ artists - 23 Powell River artists showing in Roberts Creek Hall
38,000 studio visits
$372,000 reported sales (plus $87,000+ recorded commissions)

Location of visitors

* Whistler - Vancouver area -- Whistler, Squamish, Tsawwassan, Ladner, Vancouver, N Vancouver, W Vancouver, Burnaby,
Richmond, Delta, New Westminster, Horseshoe Bay, False Creek, East Side, Gastown, Kitsalano, Steveston, Deep Cove

* Mainland & the rest of BC -- Naramada, Ymir, Royston, Grand Forks, Sheridan Lake, 100 Mile House, Kimberly, Mt Currie,
Lake Erreck, Gun Lake, Edgewater, Cranbrook, Caribou, Maple Ridge, Chilliwack, Nelson, Squamish, Abbotsford, Coquitlam,
Agassiz, White Rock, Cloverdale, Port Moody, Port Coquitlam, Surrey, Pit Meadows, Langley, Rosedale, Smithers, Ocean Beach,
Vernon, Mission, Penticton, Hope, Kelowna, Summerland, Pemberton, Ft Langley, Crescent Beach, Okanagan Falls

*Islands -- Victoria, Nanaimo Denman, Bowen Island, Comox, Parksville, Nanoose Bay, Texada, Salt Spring, Ladysmith,
Qualicum Beach, Courtenay, Gabriola, Pt Alberni, Campbell River, Chemainus, Crofton, Bliss Landing, Galiano, Brentwood Bay,
Cortez, Savory, Gambier, Sooke

*Canada -- Calgary, Edmonton, Grand Prairie, Toronto, Mississauga, Ft Macleod, South Hampton, Ottawa, Gravenhurst,
Whitehorse Yukon, Alder Flats Ab, Coleman Ab, Brooks Ab, London Ont, Collingwood Ont, Lake Country, Waterloo Que, Grand
Prairie, Orillia, Chatham Ont, Miskoka Ont, Rouyn-Norunda Que, Hillsburgh Ont, Beaver Lodge, Ab, Sherwood Park, Ont

*US -- Bremerton, Lagona Woods Ca, Mt Currie, Los Angeles, Illinois, Honolulu, Michigan, Orcas Isle, Santa Rose, Ft Worth,
Rainier, LaCanada, Ca, Bellingham, Leavenworth, Seattle, Salt Lake City, Camano Isle, Bonney Lake, Columbus, Salinas, Pt
Townsend Orcas Is,

*International -- Nyon, Switzerland, Adelaide, Australia, Lanceston, Tasmania, Berlin, Germany, Taipei, North Yorkshire, York,
Eng, Brisbane, Aus, Malaysia, 101 Breuhouse, Urrugne, France, Bern, York, Mexico, Otaytahi, Nz, Sao Paulo Brazil, Hamburg
Germany, Falst Netherlands, Singapore, London Eng

198



:I=
v Sunshine Coast

Community Services

Sunshine Coast Community Services:
Youth Outreach Worker Program

Sunshine Coast Youth Outreach (SCYO) is a program that aims to connect youth aged 13-23 with local
resources in our community and promotes increased safety while decreasing risk. Employing a harm
reduction model, with a focus on a non-judgmental attitude, safety, sustainability, inclusion, advocacy, and
partnerships with existing agencies and resources, SCYO workers educate and inform youth about existing
resources and supports available to them locally. Youth connect with outreach workers concerning various
topics including, but not limited to, drug and alcohol concerns, parent-teen conflicts, housing, food
insecurity and sexual health issues.

SCYO team members have formed valuable connections and developed a positive reputation within the
community. Our staff connect with youth at Elphinstone Secondary School, Chatelech High School, Pender
Harbour Community School and the Sunshine Coast Alternate Schools. Outreach workers also meet with
youth in the community on regular Friday night outreach shifts as well as at community events including
Sea Cavalcade, Pride in the Park and Danger Bay Longboard Races in Pender Harbour. The program
emphasizes maintaining a visible and consistent presence for youth in our community.

Friday Night Outreach Accomplishments of 2018 (Jan-Jun and Sept-Oct 2018)

YOWP workers connected with 55 individual youth
110 groups of youth

Specific At-Risk Cateqories

6 youth were identified as being at-risk for sexual exploitation
29 youth at risk for mental health challenges

20 at risk for drug and alcohol misuse

12 at risk for housing issues

Access to resources

The Youth Outreach Workers involvement in the community has resulted in putting many youth in touch
with employment resources, food security, housing services and more. Referrals this year included youth
being referred to the Youth in Transition Program, Drug and Alcohol counseling, Personal Counselling,
Mental Health Services, the Youth Health Clinics in both Sechelt and Gibsons, and the food banks in both
Sechelt and Gibsons. A number of youth were also referred to programs off Coast such as the Canadian
Mental Health Association’s Bounce Back program, the Covenant House, Carlile Center and Peak House.

199



:I=
v Sunshine Coast

Community Services

Communication with 24 hour support

Youth Outreach continues to use widely advertised phone numbers which function as a confidential
helpline and informational resource for local youth. This number is on posters, stickers, Facebook,
Instagram, as well as informational flyers handed out in schools and given out to youth by other social
services professionals such as Vancouver Coastal Health and the Ministry of Children and Family
Development. Youth are invited to call or text this number, or message on social media if they are
having any issues in their lives. This phone line is monitored by the outreach workers, 24 hours a day,
and seven days a week. If for some reason a phone call is missed, such as a call received in the middle of
the night or during days off, the outreach phone has a detailed message outlining emergency numbers,
including the Kids Helpline (1-888-688-6868) and the Crisis Center (1-800-SUICIDE). All callers that leave a
message or send a text receive a call back.

Youth Outreach has a presence online both via Facebook and Instagram; two popular social media
platforms for both youth and adults in our community. The Sunshine Coast Youth Outreach Facebook page
provides a useful forum to communicate with the community at large, to share resources and pertinent
news articles and information. The Facebook page currently has 233 followers, with posts reaching close to
600 Facebook users this October. The SCYO Instagram account has over 100 followers — local youth, youth
advocates and service providers. This platform continues to be an effective way to publicise resources,
events, outreach activities, and safe spaces for youth in our community.

Presence at Community Events

SCYO is a large supporter of Sea Cavalcade and the positive impact it has on our community. Outreach
Workers Pan Willson and Lisa Weitendorf, as well as trained volunteers patrolled lower Gibsons and
beaches, handing out bottles of water and snacks to youth throughout the day and evening. This minimizes
possible heat related illnesses at the event. Outreach Workers also provided outreach services including
confidential and judgement free conversation, bus tickets, condoms, and Safe Rides throughout the
evening and weekend. Workers connected and coordinated with the Sunshine Coast RCMP, as well as SIB
Youth Mental Health Worker, Janet Mulligan to ensure that youth were able to get home safely. SCYO was
also present at the Danger Bay Longboard races in Pender Harbour in May 2018. Our team provided snacks,
water, condoms, Safe Rides and on-site emotional support throughout the Pender Harbour area and
campgrounds. Our team aims to ensure that youth are able to engage and participate in local events safely
and are able to access support if they need it.

200



:I=
v Sunshine Coast

Community Services

Our program continues to provide a consistent presence at the following events/venues as well:

Sechelt and Gibsons Youth Centers

Roberts Creek Nights Alive

LGBTQ2 Youth Drop-In

Chatelech SAGA

Game Point gaming drop-in, Sechelt

Sunshine Coast Pride Parade

The first annual Big Gay Prom!

Christ the King and Calvary Church Youth Groups

School District 46

SCAS Sports Days

Alternative Schools — SCAS, Outreach and Phoenix Program, Community Learning Centre
Youth Events (dances)

Indigenous Families Pulling Together events (feasts and canoe outings)
Child and Youth Mental Health & Substance Use Local Action Team
Grade 6/7 Drug Education Programs (Cannabis Panels, Opioid Dialogues)
Youth Solstice Christmas Dinner

Youth Mental Health Summit (spring 2018)

Mental Health Week and Mental lllness Awareness Week

Bus stops, McDonalds, Tim Hortons, parks and beaches

Connection with Youth Action and Awareness Committee

The Youth Outreach team is responsible for attending monthly meetings of the YAAC. During these
meetings many local community members and professionals who work with youth meet to discuss issues
and give updates on their programs. The outreach workers open the meetings with a monthly Youth
Outreach report. Items such as schools visits, statistics, location and hangout spots among youth, specific
youth events and situations such as trends with youth experimenting with drugs and alcohol are reported.

The Team Leader and Youth Outreach workers also attend Youth Plus meetings at Sunshine Coast
Community Services, helping to facilitate the sharing of information with other staff members of Sunshine
Coast Community Services who work with youth.

201



Name of Organization

Sunshine Coast Community Service Society

Date Created:

9-Nov-18

Revision Date:

Budget Planning Year:

2019

Year to Date:

January to September 2018

2018 9 mth acutals to 2017 % Variance Financial Planning
Budget Sep-18 Budget Variance 2018 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 NOTES:
REVENUE:
Local Government Request
SCRD $ 38,712.00 $ 2857147 $ 36,006.00 $ 2,706.00 ™% $ 38,712.00 $ 39,486.00 $ 40,276.00 $ 41,082.00 $ 41,904.00
District of Sechelt (confirmed) $ 25,521.00 $ 2091375 $ 25,521.00 $ = 0% $ 25,521.00 $ 26,031.00 $ 26,552.00 $ 27,083.00 $ 27,625.00
Town of Gibsons (proposed) $ 12,200.00 $ 10,005.81 $ 12,200.00 $ @ 0% $ 12,200.00 $ 12,444.00 $ 12,693.00 $ 12,947.00 $ 13,206.00
- $ - #DIV/0!
For 2019 to 2022, we are asking for a 2% increase for wage
Total Request $ 76,433.00 $ 59,491.03 $ 73,727.00 $ 2,706.00 4% $ 76,433.00 $ 77,961.00 $ 79,521.00 $ 81,112.00 $ 82,735.00 increases and COLA's.
Grants
- $ - #DIV/0!
Sub Total Grants $ $ -3 $ #DIV/0! $ $ - $ $ - $
Other Revenue
- $ - #DIV/0!
Sub Total Other $ $ -3 $ #DIV/0! $ $ - $ $ - $
Previous Year (Deficit) / Surplus
Total Revenue - Organization Generated $ - $ - 3 - $ - #DIV/0! $ - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8 -
TOTAL REVENUE $ 76,433.00 $ 59,491.03 $ 73,727.00 $ 2,706.00 4% $ 76,433.00 $ 77,961.00 $ 79,521.00 $ 81,112.00 $ 82,735.00
2018 Acutals to 2017 % Variance Financial Planning
Budget Sep-18 Budget Variance 2018 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
EXPENSES:
Materials and Supplies
Program Supplies $ 2,000.00 $ 523837 $ 2,000.00 $ - 0% $ 2,000.00 $ 2,000.00 $ 2,050.00 $ 2,100.00 $ 2,200.00
Publicity & Advertising $ 300.00 $ 464.28 $ 300.00 $ - 0% $ 300.00 $ 300.00 $ 305.00 $ 310.00 $ 320.00
Sub Total $ 2,300.00 $ 570265 $ 2,300.00 $ - 0% $ 2,300.00 $ 2,300.00 $ 2,355.00 $ 2,410.00 $ 2,520.00
Office / Equipment
Office Expenses $ 125.00 $ 6772 $ 125.00 $ - 0% $ 125.00 $ 130.00 $ 135.00 $ 140.00 $ 145.00
Cellular $ 1,510.00 $ 1,582.18 $ 1,500.00 $ 10.00 1% $ 1,510.00 $ 1,510.00 $ 1,520.00 $ 1,530.00 $ 1,540.00
Computer mtnce/service/support $ 960.00 $ 720.00 $ 960.00 $ - 0% $ 960.00 $ 960.00 $ 960.00 $ 965.00 $ 970.00
Sub Total $ 2,595.00 $ 2,369.90 $ 2,585.00 $ 10.00 0% $ 2,595.00 $ 2,600.00 $ 2,615.00 $ 2,635.00 $ 2,655.00
Facilty / Utilities
Rent $ 2,000.00 $ 1,500.00 $ 2,000.00 $ - 0% $ 2,000.00 $ 2,000.00 $ 2,010.00 $ 2,020.00 $ 2,030.00
Insurance $ 150.00 $ 112.00 $ 150.00 $ - 0% $ 150.00 $ 150.00 $ 150.00 $ 155.00 $ 155.00
Telephone/Fax/Internet $ 720.00 $ 540.00 $ 720.00 $ - 0% $ 72000 $ 720.00 $ 72500 $ 750.00 $ 760.00
Sub Total $ 2,870.00 $ 2,152.00 $ 2,870.00 $ - 0% $ 2,870.00 $ 2,870.00 $ 2,885.00 $ 2,925.00 $ 2,945.00
Personnel
We are committed to providing COL increases to our staff.
Supervision $ 3,026.00 $ 2,26950 $ 2,200.00 $ 826.00 27% $ 3,026.00 $ 3,087.00 $ 3,133.00 $ 3,180.00 $ 3,528.00 As such we will provide a 2% COL increase for 2019 and a
1.5% COL increase each year after.
Direct Service Salaries & Benefits $ 47,815.00 $ 33,561.37 $ 47,108.00 $ 707.00 1% $ 47,815.00 $ 48,771.00 $ 49,503.00 $ 50,614.00 $ 51,889.00
Sub Total $ 50,841.00 $ 35,830.87 $ 49,308.00 $ 1,533.00 3% $ 50,841.00 $ 51,858.00 $ 52,636.00 $ 53,794.00 $ 55,417.00

202



Other Expenses
Travel

Audit

Dues & Subscriptions
Admin Fee (12%)
Sub Total

Training / Development
Staff Development
Sub Total

TOTAL EXPENSES

CAPITAL REQUIREMENT

Purchases:

Laptops and other technology
Subtotal Purchased

Proposed Exenditures:

Sub Total Proposed
TOTAL CAPITAL

TOTAL COMMITTED EXPENDITURES
LESS PROPOSED EXPENDITURES
LESS ORGANIZATION REVENUE
TOTAL TAX REQUISITION

$ 7,500.00 $ 5136.97 $ 7,000.00 $ 500.00 ™% $ 7,500.00 $ 7,750.00 $ 7,607.00 $ 7,700.00 $ 8,000.00
$ 300.00 $ 225.00 $ 300.00 $ - 0% $ 300.00 $ 300.00 $ 300.00 $ 305.00 $ 310.00
$ 105.00 $ 10412 $ 100.00 $ 5.00 5% $ 105.00 $ 105.00 $ 105.00 $ 110.00 $ 110.00
$ 9,172.00 $ 7,139.00 $ 8,847.00 $ 325.00 4% $ 9,172.00 $ 9,355.00 $ 9,543.00 $ 9,733.00 $ 9,928.00
$ 17,077.00 $ 12,605.09 $ 16,247.00 $ 830.00 5% $ 17,077.00 $ 17,510.00 $ 17,555.00 $ 17,848.00 $ 18,348.00
$ 750.00 $ - $ 500.00 $ 250.00 3% $ 750.00 $ 823.00 $ 825.00 $ 850.00 $ 850.00
$ 750.00 $ - $ 500.00 $ 250.00 33% $ 750.00 $ 823.00 $ 825.00 $ 850.00 $ 850.00
$ 76,433.00 $ 58,660.51 $ 73,810.00 $ 2,623.00 3% $ 76,433.00 $ 77,961.00 $ 78,871.00 $ 80,462.00 $ 82,735.00

2018 Acutals to 2017 % Variance Financial Planning

Budget Sep-18 Budget Variance 2018 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
$ $ - $ 1,000.00 -$ 1,000.00 #DIV/0! $ 650.00 $ 650.00 3-4 year replacement plan on technology staggered
$ $ - $ 1,000.00 -$ 1,000.00 #DIV/0! $ $ - $ 650.00 $ 650.00 $

$ #DIV/0!

$ - $ $ - $ - #DIV/0! $ $ - $ - $ - $
$ = $ = $ 1,000.00 -$ 1,000.00 #DIV/0! $ = $ - $ 650.00 $ 650.00 $ -
$ 76,433.00 $ 58,660.51 $ 74,810.00 $ 1,623.00 2% $ 76,433.00 $ 77,961.00 $ 79,521.00 $ 81,112.00 $ 82,735.00
$ = $ = $ = $ ® #DIV/0! $ - $ = $ ® $ - $ -
$ = $ = $ = $ - #DIV/0! $ = $ = $ = $ - $ -
$ 76,433.00 $ 58,660.51 $ 74,810.00 $ 1,623.00 2% $ 76,433.00 $ 77,961.00 $ 79,521.00 $ 81,112.00 $ 82,735.00

203



Wendy Charters
Teacher-Counsellor
Chatelech Secondary
School District 46
604-741-1376

Nov 1, 2018

SDRD Board of Directors
1975 Field Road
Sechelt, BC.

VON 3A1

To the Sunshine Coast Regional District,

I am writing this letter in support of our Youth Outreach workers and the Youth Outreach
Worker Program itself.

As one of two counsellors at Chatelech Secondary, | have the pleasure and
responsibility of supporting many of the at-risk youth in our community. In the past 2
years | have had direct contact with the Youth Outreach Worker Program here at school
on several occasions. | also see the Youth Workers around our community supporting
our youth on the streets in the evening.

One particular multi-agency mental health event that we collaborated on and
implemented here at Chatelech drew out many of those at risk, and other students. By
the end of the lunch hour, Pan had juggled and stilt-walked his way to Chatelech fame
and notoriety and he and Tonya successfully linked over 100 students to mental health
services, programs, and preventive techniques.

Reaching youth in the ways they can be reached is a gift, and | suggest we need as
many of those gifted individuals as we can get in this community. For this reason |

strongly support and ask that you give your support in all the ways, including fiscally,
that the SCRD can give to this excellent and much needed program.

Thank you for your consideration.

Wendy Charters

204



Sunday 1e Park ride
Sund the Park Prid

“Dedicated to creating community for LGBTQZ2 youth on the Sunshine Coast”

Wednesday, November 14, 2018
To whom it may concern,

| am the director of Sunday in the Park with Pride Society. We are dedicated to creating community for
lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, queer, questioning and two-spirit youth on the Sunshine Coast. It is
my honour to be able to write this letter in support of Youth Outreach, one of the Child Development and
Youth Services at SC Community Services.

In 2017, Frances Ardron (Youth Clinician & Prevention Worker, Mental Health and Addictions Services)
asked the Society to take over the monthly LGBTQ2 youth group that she had run for about six years. |
attended several of the groups in the year prior to taking over, and had been very impressed with the
Youth Outreach workers who dropped by. They would show up mid-evening, and hang out for an hour or
so, chatting with the youth. | really liked their casual but authentic manner of interacting with the young
people. They had really nice hoodies with Youth Outreach printed on the back, and to be honest, they
just looked cool. | also understood that they made it a point to find out where large youth gatherings like
beach parties were taking place, and would “happen” to find themselves at these gatherings, remaining
on site as a resource for youth. If someone felt in danger, or needed to talk, the Youth Outreach workers
were available. They gave out keychain flashlights with their contact information printed on them, and
bus tickets. | also learned that they would meet youth for coffee, or at their school, and if someone
needed help navigating buses, a Youth Outreach worker would accompany them until they felt
comfortable with the procedure.

| am very protective of the LGBTQ2 youth with whom | work. As | am sure you are all aware by now,
LGBTQ2 youth are at a substantially higher risk than their non-LGBTQ2-identified peers for
homelessness, substance abuse and suicide. What | have been striving for is to familiarize these youth
with people in our community who have made a commitment to support them. However, in my
experience, and certainly in the experience that other LGBTQ2 people of all ages have shared with me,
seemingly well-intentioned people who are not well informed around LGBTQ2 issues can cause a lot of
harm. Furthermore, many professionals, institutions and businesses would like to think they espouse
inclusivity. “Everyone is welcome” is a passive assertion. Inclusivity is not simply an attitude. There is no
umbrella of inclusivity. It requires action. You may love all people in wheelchairs and welcome them to
shop in your store, but did you install a ramp? Is any merchandise accessible on lower shelves? Did you
give any thought to, or do any research on how to create accessibility and safety to support your well-
meaning attitude of inclusivity? If someone wants to work with the LGBTQ2 community, a little rainbow
in the window will go a long way. Keeping up to date on SOGI issues will go even further.

One cannot create community in a vacuum. To create community, one must engage community. How
can we tell who our allies are, though? My vision is always of collaboration between organizations,
businesses and individuals. When | began running the LGBTQ2 youth group, the first person | contacted
was Tonya Ste. Marie, the director of Youth Outreach. | invited the team to our youth group to introduce
themselves and let the youth know exactly how Youth Outreach is there for them. Many out there want to
contribute, be part of, participate, but one of my best allies and collaborators has been Youth Outreach
because they have consistently shown up and participated, and always with enthusiasm, compassion
and non-judgment. Furthermore, they have done their homework, are up on SOGI issues, and they make
the effort to use appropriate pronouns.

In short time, Pan and Lisa, the Youth outreach workers, were showing up regularly. Wading through a
room of teenagers is daunting. Pan and Lisa are fearless. They have so much respect for the youth and
relate easily with them. The youth are very comfortable around them, and clearly hold a mutual respect
for them. Pan and Lisa have continued to attend every monthly youth group now for over two years.
They always help with whatever activity we’re doing, be it baking or crafts, and have no qualms about

[
3023 Grauman Rd., Roberts Creek, BC VON2W 1
Phone and Text : (604)-989-9841

WWW. lcdide.ca


http://www.prideguide.ca

Sundav in the Park Pride

“Dedicated to creating community for LGBTQZ2 youth on the Sunshine Coast”

joining in on a board game. One of my favourite memories is of Pan and Lisa sitting around a table with
about ten youth, playing a rousing game of Exploding Kittens while we waited for the perogies to cook.

| asked a number of youth if they had ever talked to the Youth Outreach workers. They all had at some
point, some just normal conversation, others regarding personal issues. They all say they like them and
would approach them if they needed help. Good work, on the part of Youth Outreach.

But their work with Sunday in the Park with Pride Society didn’t just stop there. This year, Tonya Ste.
Marie and Amanda Amaral (MCFD) helped me organize Sunday in the Park with Pride. | could not have
produced this event without their contribution. So many people from both SCCS and MCFD helped
organize and set up the event. Many of these people participated in the event. As a result of this
collaboration, we had double the number of people in attendance (400) from the previous two years
(200).

As well, two weeks before the big event, Pan held an afternoon of flag-sewing for LGBTQ2 youth in the
Youth Outreach building. Twenty youth spent an afternoon sewing flags. At Sunday in the Park with
Pride, he marched at the front, playing djembe with all the rainbow-decked and flag-carrying young
people. When | look through the photos from that day, Youth Outreach and other members of SCCS
Youth programs are there - in the background, in the foreground, keeping an eye on things, playing with
youth. They have all simply become part of our community.

The following weekend was My Big Gay Prom, for LGBTQ2 & allies youth from ages 11 - 24, the very
first event of its kind here on the coast. People had expressed trepidation about the age span and the
possible challenges with mixing underage and legal age young people. One has to understand that
finding and building queer community has to trump age division. The event was well chaperoned, in any
case. As always, | had invited Youth Outreach to attend (best case scenario) or at least drop by. Lisa
showed up, dressed in prom-formal gold lamé, and ranged around the hall and the outlying fields for the
whole evening. Not only did she keep her trained eye on things (and reported to me later that it was the
driest youth event she had yet to attend), but she availed herself, as usual, to any youth needing to talk. |
know she spoke with several attendees who were in distress. | also know she had an hour-long
conversation with one youth who was becoming aware that they were transgender. For Lisa, all in a
night’s work. For me, a sense of relief, and confidence that “my children” are in good hands.

This | only my experience with Youth Outreach. | know they are out there in the trenches, offering
support, resources and hope to many young people in our community. We are saving lives. On my part,
the first day they appeared at our LGBTQ2 & Allies Youth Group, | knew it was, “...the beginning of a
beautiful friendship.”

Sincerely,

Laurie Lesk

Director, Sunday in the Park with Pride Society
editor@prideguide.ca

Phone: 604-740-8110

Text: 604-989-9841

[
3023 Grauman Rd., Roberts Creek, BC VON2W 1
Phone and Text : (604)-989-9841

WWW. ide.ca


http://www.prideguide.ca

Em!
Ch_arn be r of Cumm_er_c_g
Nevember-13,-2048- January 28, 2019

Ms. Tina Perreault

General Manager, Corporate Services/Chief Financial Officer
Sunshine Coast Regional District

1975 Field Road

Sechelt, BC VON 3A1

Dear Ms. Perreault:
Re: Gibsons & District Chamber of Commerce SC Tourism Support Funding Request 2019

The following funding request is for 2019 Tourism activity that will promote and create
awareness about the entire Sunshine Coast to over 19,000 visitors that have engaged with
our BC Ferries Travel Ambassadors and our Visitor Services Kiosk at the Visitor Information
Park (on Stewart Rd) during the busy Tourism Season, May to September.

Specific focus is on Area D, E and F of SCRD as well as the Town of Gibsons. This activity is
over and above the current services that is undertaken by Sunshine Coast Tourism
Association and their Visitor Services Centre in Gibsons Landing.

Included is an overview of the activity undertaken in 2018 plus the direction taking place in
2019. The funding is used to support the staffing of the Kiosk (supplements the Canada
Summer Jobs program), the costs of handout promotion collateral used by the Tourism
Advisors, Operating Costs (insurance, Administration and the co-ordination of the Volunteer
participants)

2018 2018 2019
Budget Actual Budget
Visitor Services — Gibsons/Area D, E& F $6,100 $6,100 $6,100
(Visitor Information Park Kiosk, Wayfinding
Map Info and Rest Stop)
BC Ferries Travel Ambassador Program $1,600 $1,600 $1,600
Total Allocation & New Request $7,700 $7,700 $7,700

This funding will allow us to continue to provide the service and support of assisting
visitors to the Sunshine Coast who use Gibsons and District as the Gateway. Plus, our
support of the over 500 Chamber business members from all areas of the Sunshine
Coast.

Over 1 million visitors step on to our shores between the months May and September.
They are seeking information, advise, directions, and even accommodation bookings.
Not all visitors go to the Gibsons Visitor Centre in the Landing — limited 12-month traffic
of estimated 13,000 visitors.

The Gibsons & District Chamber of Commerce sponsored Travel Ambassador program
on the BC Ferry Route 3, is the first contact with many of the Tourism Visitors and
travellers. Over 18,600 in 2018. We continue to provide the essential services to ensure

Location: Unit 20, 900 Gibsons Way MailggQeress: PO Box 1190 Gibsons, BC VON 1V0
exec@gibsonschamber.com www.gibsonschamber.com T (604)886-2325



e
3"2_..--""?:7-_

CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

Date, Page

that their first impression of our community is a strong and lasting one with a friendly
smile.

Demonstrated this past season was the success of the Mobile Visitors Kiosk at the VIP
Wayfinding map rest stop. Over 1,500 cars stopped to seek assistance. An increase of
over 11% versus 2017. As well an additional 2,830 vehicles (cars, RVs, Trailers, Campers,
Bike riders, Motorcycles) stopped in to the VIP to use the facilities of washrooms, doggy
park, Sunshine Coast Maps or just to rest.

Our opportunity is to carry on this service to support the anticipated continued growth
or of Tourism, Travellers as well as new Residents coming to the Sunshine Coast.

We continue to look to ways that will build upon the experience and first impressions
our guests receive before they begin their Sunshine Coast journey.

Current Visitor Services building in Gibsons Landing is small with limited parking and space to
accommodate busy periods. If people did not stop at the Gibsons VIC they would tend to miss
the Sechelt Office or the Pender Harbour kiosk if they did not travel that far. We have the
opportunity to serve the majority of travellers to the Sunshine Coast, as Gibsons, the Gateway,
after disembarking the BC Ferry is the most logical place to start their visit of right. With our
new Visitor Services kiosk at the bypass, this lets us provide full service of information about
Gibsons and the Sunshine Coast, for lodging, points of interest, trails, beaches, parks, and the
many tourism oriented businesses.

Click Modular Homes who provided us “in kind” donation of $25,000 modular kiosk that is built
on a flat deck trailer for easy of transportation and location continues to commit as a core
contributor to the program. Local Sunshine Coast businesses; APS division of Olsen Electric for
Solar Panels and portable generator for powering of lights and electrical needs, HL Enterprises
for fabricating the light portable aluminum stairs and railings for safety and The Glass Doctor for
a large double panel window that opened to allow customers to be served have been key
supporters and providers to this successful program. We will continue to strengthen our service
delivery to the growing levels of visitor traffic.

Your funding will assist us in the operational costs to continue our support of Sunshine Coast
Businesses along with the Sunshine Coast Tourism growth.

I would like to thank the continued support provided by SCRD. If you have any questions, please
do not hesitate to contact me.

Best Regards,

Chris Nicholls
Executive Director

208



Roberts Creek Community Library

Budget Actual YTD Budget
2019 Jan-Oct 2018 2018

REVENUE

Book sales & Fundraising 3,300 3,108 3,000
Donations 1,200 869 1,200
Room rent 400 550 400
Lost books repayment 150 88 150
SCRD - Grant 13,500 13,500 13,500
Misc income 200 122 300
TOTAL REVENUE 18,750 18,238 18,550
EXPENSES

Books 7,120 4,990 7,120
Cleaning 1,200 1,025 1,200
Office, R&M 1,700 1,351 1,500
Rent 7,680 6,400 7,680
Supplies 650 249 700
Telephone 400 310 350
TOTAL EXPENSE 18,750 14,326 18,550
NET 0 3,912 0
CONTACT:

Kathleen Hudson, treasurer
kmhudson@telus.net
604-885-8800

209



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT STAFF REPORT
EE————————————————————

TO: Special Corporate and Administrative Services Committee — (November 30, 2018)
AUTHOR: Kathy Harrison, Treasurer, Pender Harbour Reading Centre Society

SUBJECT: 2019 R1 BUDGET PROPOSAL FOR PENDER HARBOUR READING CENTRE

RECOMMENDATION(S)

THAT the report titled 2019 R1 Budget Proposal for PENDER HARBOUR READING CENTRE be
received.

DiscussION:

The Pender Harbour Reading Centre is in its 52nd year serving the community of Area A. It is
entirely run by 35-40 volunteers, open 5 days a week from 11:00 am to 2:00 pm., providing
reading materials, DVDs, and access to the internet via a community computer. The BC
Library Service provides interlibrary-loan service, and the Sechelt library supports us by
paying for our internet connection and a weekly pickup/drop off of books between Sechelt and
PHRC in Madeira Park.

We purchase books through the United Library Service at a 40% discount, and through other
sources when cheaper, and accept donations of current books and raise money from the
general public. Thanks to a bequest made in 1982 we survived on interest accrued on this
money, however, for the last 9 years interest rates are so low that we are now reducing the
capital. Since the crash of oil prices and subsequent decline of the dollar, the cost of buying
books has doubled. Our approach for the last 2 years has been to reduce the number of
books purchased, but our patrons are now questioning the validity of this policy long-term!
PHRC is requesting $2,000 in the 2019 budget from the Library function for Area A to assist in
the purchase of books to renew our declining collection.

Canadian books are more expensive than us books, not only because of the dollar, but also
because Canadian publishers use their profits on us books to subsidize their Canadian list.

At an average retail cost of $35. per book, the value of the materials we circulated to
Pender Harbour Reading Centre members in 2017 was $141,155. This is excellent value
for money for Pender Harbour residents.

210



2018 R1 Budget Proposal for Library Service

1

Function Number — Project Name:

Project Name: Area A Library function

2018 Funding Required:

$2,000.00

Rational / Service Impacts:

Maintain level of service

Savings Potential (if applicable):

(text)

Future Financial Implications

We will completely run out of money in
about 6 years and are hopeful that we
can develop a solution to our funding
issues before then.

Table 1: Illustration of the increasing cost of hard cover fiction caused by the high cost of the

US dollar. In January 2014 one UD$ cost $1.0673 Canadian. On November 6, 2018 it was

$1.312

= JUSDCAD [Merthly) 1010 (b Hav)

v vl 1
III
ll'l

US AND CAN §

F o A& M J J & 5O M DM T W & W J J & & 08/ DI F M A& M J J

20142018

& 5 O MDA T WA MW J A BED N DIFET MA M JASD

211

SOURCE | STCCKCHARTSCOM

e

T

THITHTT



Name of Organization
Date Created:
Revision Date:
Budget Planning Year:
Year to Date:

REVENUE:

Local Government Request
SCRD
Budget Proposal (if required)
Total Request

Grants

Sub Total Grants
Other Revenue
Fees and Charges
Other Revenue

Sub Total Other

Previous Year (Deficit) / Surplus

Total Revenue - Organization Generated

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES:

Materials and Supplies
Office Supplies
Insurnce

Pender Harbour Reading Centre

12-Nov-18
2019
Nov-18
2019 Actuals to 2018 % Variance
Budget Nov-18 Budget Variance 2019 NOTES:
$ 2,000.00 $ 2,000.00 $ 1,200.00 $ 800.00 40%
$ = #DIV/0Q!

$ 2,000.00 $ 2,000.00 $ 1,200.00 $ 800.00 40%

$ -

$ - $ $ $ #DIV/0!

$ 1,325.00 $1,150.00 $1,325.00 $ - 0%

$ 7,010.00 $4,768.00 $9,120.00 -$ 2,110.00 -30%

$ 8,335.00 $ 5,918.00 $ 10,445.00 -$ 2,110.00 -25%

| Planned deficits are covered by a bequest

$ 8,335.00 $ 5918.00 $ 10,445.00 -$ 2,110.00 -25%

$ 10,335.00 $ 7,918.00 $ 11,645.00 -$ 1,310.00 -13%

2019 Acutals to 2018 % Variance
Budget Nov-18 Budget Variance 2019
$ 150 $ 54 $ 400 -$ 250.00 -167%
$ 1,600 $ 1549 $ 1,700 -$ 100.00 -6%

212



Sub Total
Office / Equipment
Sub Total

Facilty / Utilities
Rent
Sub Total

Personnel
Accounting
Sub Total

Other Expenses
Books

Misc

Sub Total

Training / Development
Sub Total

TOTAL EXPENSES

CAPITAL REQUIREMENT

Purchases:
Subtotal Purchased
Proposed Exenditures:

Carpet Project
Sub Total Proposed

$ 1,750 $ 1,603 $ 2,100 0%

$ - #DIV/0!

#DIV/0!
$ 3,500 $ 1,637 $ 3,600 -$ 100.00 -3%
$ 500 $ 5.00 $ 500 $ - 0%
$ 500 $ 500 $ 5.00 0%
$ 540.00 $ 540.00 $ 500.00 $ 40.00 7%
$ 540.00 $ 540.00 $ 500.00 0%
$ 4,000.00 $ 3,710.00 $ 5,000.00 -$ 1,000.00 -25%
$ 240.00 $ 221.00 $ 240.00 $ - 0%
$ 4,240.00 $ 3,931.00 $ 5,240.00 0%

#DIV/0!

#DIV/0!
$ 10,335.00 $ 7,918.00 $ 11,645.00 0%

2019 Actuals to 2018 % Variance

Budget Nov-18 Budget Variance 2019

$ - #DIV/0!

#DIV/0!

#DIV/0!

#DIV/0!

213



214



Name of Organization
Date Created:
Budget Planning Year:
Year to Date:

REVENUE:

Local Government Support
Total Request

Previous Year (Deficit) / Surplus
TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES:

Materials and Supplies
Administrative fees

Human Resources

One time replaclement computer
Supplies

Fees

Sub Total

TOTAL EXPENSES

Sechelt Community Archives

8-Nov-18
2019
Oct-18
2018 Actuals to 2019 % Variance
2017 Budget 10/31/2018 Budget Variance 2018
S 9,548.00 $ 9,548.00 S 9,548.00 0%
S 9,548.00 $ 9,548.00 S 9,548.00 0%
S 9,548.00 $ 9,548.00 $ 9,548.00 0%
S 1,350.00 S 1,012.50 S 1,350.00 0%
S 7,500.00 $ 6,306.00 $ 7,500.00 0%
S 1,000.00 -S 1,000.00 -100%
S 250.00 $ 316.00 S 250.00 0%
S 120.00 S 120.00 S 120.00 0%
S 10,220.00 S 7,75450 S 9,220.00 0%
S 10,220.00 S 7,75450 § 9,220.00 -$ 1,000.00 -10%

215




N

PENDER HARBOUR ‘ PO Box 308
z» HEALTH s P B 2
‘ C E NTRE ~ FAX: 604-883-2780

phhc@dccnet.com

November 12, 2018

Tina Perrault

Treasurer

Sunshine Coast Regional District
1975 Field Road.

Sechelt, BC

VON 3A1

Dear Tina:
Attached please find our budget submission for the 2019-2020 fiscal year. We have provided:

¢ An overview of the current 2018-2019 facility operations budget and projections with respect to
surplus/deficit. In the format requested...2018 budget, 2018 year to date actuals, extrapolations
to fiscal year end and 2019 budget (Attachment A)

o Fiscal year 2019-2020 proposed financial plan (budget) identifying operational resources being
requested from the SCRD under the Pender Harbour Health Centre Amendment Bylaw 1003.1,
2002. (Attachment B)

e Fiscal year 2019-2020 capital improvement projects and resources being requested from SCRD
under the Pender Harbour Health Centre Amendment bylaw 1003.1, 2002. We are not
requesting any capital improvement support for 2019-2020

e Our board approved budget for 2018—2019; historical SCRD operational funding; historical capital
project funding; the five year operational funding projection. Attachment (C)

e A brief overview of the services and programs that will be delivered in 2019. Attachment (D)
Operational funding

Fiscal 2019-2020 will be year three of the three year catchup program we presented to the SCRD
board in 2016. We are tracking quite well to that program. For 2018-2019 we received a base grant
of $126,040, an $8,000 increase. That is very much appreciated. For 2018-2019 we are managing
all discretionary expenses and delaying expenditures where ever possible. We expect that our
expenses will be $143,976 against our submitted 2017-2018 budget of $141,195. This is an
unfavorable variance of ($2,781) to planned budget and will result in a deficit of ($17,936) after
applying our operating grant. We continue to seek ways to reduce costs in all areas, but have
experienced overruns in 1) advertising and promotion for the community needs survey($2,109); 2)
increased garbage/hazardous waste disposal ($812); 3) office & and small assets for computer
replacements ($2609). Grounds maintenance has been favorable by $574 and repair & maintenance
costs have been favorable by $1847 through deferment and delay where possible. We are projecting
overall operational expenses for 2018-2019 at $143,976 which reflects efforts to contain/reduce
operating costs and is consistent with our five year plan.

216



In grant funding for 2019-2020 we are requesting an increase of $8,000 from $126,040 to
$134.040. This is in line with our three year catch up plan. A baseline of $134,040 will enable PHHC
to hold the gap between operational expenses versus grant funding and result in a projected deficit of
($9,273). See five year operational funding projection, attachment (D)

Capital Projects

Our two key capital projects in 2018-2019 were a parking lot expansion and an oil furnace
replacement. These totaled approximately $14,700 which were self-funded by the Health Centre. We
deferred replacing the carpeting in the main lobby this year. We received a capital grant against this
project this past year and will make a formal request for the funds when we start the project.

Planned projects for 2019-2020 - capital improvement request: (Schedule (C) - NONE

We will not have a capital improvement request in fiscal 2019-2020. The board is engaged in the
strategic planning for future expansion of the Health Centre on the adjoining property, which was
acquired in 2016. This past year a comprehensive community needs survey was completed to identify
key community needs in the areas of primary care, increased seniors care and increased community
partnering. The board will be engaging with key stakeholders at the community, municipal and regional
governments, the health authority, and provincial/federals level to develop the expansion plan. It is
anticipated that a formal presentation to SCRD on the expansion will done prior to fiscal 2020-2021
planning period.

We are entering the third year three of our three year catch up plan to reduce our annual operational
deficit and we have made good progress against targets. We are still are realizing a sizable operational
deficit, but are trending downwards. The deficit negatively impacts our ability to cover needed training,
medical equipment and preventative health care program costs. The Health Centre funds these
initiatives through fund raising and community support as they are not funded by or through any other
funding source. We recognize overall funding remains tight and any additional assistance and support
for our operating budget is appreciated. Please call or e-mail me if you require any further information
or would like to discuss the application.

-

Sincerely, .,
— S S
L3 P /f‘
A 1«/2'/ A
Rick MacDonald
PHHC Administrator

o oa

CC Leonard Lea
SCRD Director,
Area “A” - Pender Harbour/Egmont

217



February 5 ANNEX N1 - 2019 Budget - Pender Harbour Health Centre Attachment A 2018-2019 Fiscal

Pender Harbour & District Health Centre
CURRENT FISCAL YEAR 2018-19

SCRD PHHC ACTUAL PROJECTED SCRD

BUDGET YEAR TO DATE YEAR END DIFFERENCE BUDGET

2018-19 Oct 31 2018 TO 3/31/19 2019-20
Administration Cost $ 25,566 $ 14913 $ 25,566 $ - $ 25,950
Advertising & Promotion 5,643 5,382 7,752 2,109 5,728
Garbage & Hazardous Waste Disposal 2,419 2,215 3,231 812 2,455
Professional Fees 6,977 5,894 6,977 0 7,082
Grounds Maintenance 5,212 2,449 4,638 -574 5,290
Insurance 7,649 6,937 7,649 0 7,763
Janitor Contract & Expenses 25,166 14,501 25,071 -95 25,544
Office & Small Asset Purchases 7,680 7,063 10,289 2,609 7,795
Postage 664 298 577 -87 674
Repair & Maintenance 27,605 12,664 25,758 -1,847 28,019
Phone/Fax/Internet 6,823 3,913 6,779 -44 6,926
Utilities 15,621 7,675 15,621 0 15,855
GST 4,171 2,316 4,068 -103 4,232
TOTAL BUDGET $ 141,195 $ 86,222 $ 143,976 $ 2,781 % 143,313
COMMITTED GRANT $ 126,040 $ 126,040 $ 134,040 Request
PLANNED DEFICIT $ 15,155 $ 17,936 $ 9,273

218



Attachment B SCRD 2019

Pender Harbour & District Health Centre
PROPOSAL FOR THE 2019 FISCAL YEAR

Administration Cost $ 25,950
Advertising & Promotion 5,728
Garbage & Hazardous Waste Disposal 2,455
Professional Fees 7,082
Grounds Maintenance 5,290
Insurance 7,763
Janitor Contract & Expenses 25,544
Office & Small Asset Purchases 7,795
Postage 674
Repair & Maintenance 28,019
Phone/Fax/Internet 6,926
Utilities 15,855
GST 4,232

TOTAL $ 143,313
REQUESTED GRANT: $ 134,040

Anticipated Deficit: $ 9,273

219



Attachment C SCRD 2019

Pender Harbour & District Health Centre

FIVE YEAR OPERATIONAL FUNDING PROJECTION

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Current Year
Administration Cost 25,566 25,950 26,339 26,734 27,135
Advertising & Promotion 5,643 5,728 5,814 5,901 5,990
Garbage & Hazardous Waste Disposal 2,419 2,455 2,492 2,529 2,567
Professional Fees 6,977 7,082 7,188 7,296 7,406
Grounds Maintenance 5,212 5,290 5,369 5,450 5,532
Insurance 7,649 7,763 7,880 7,998 8,118
Janitor Contract & Expenses 25,166 25,544 25,927 26,316 26,710
Office & Small Asset Purchases 7,680 7,795 7,912 8,030 8,151
Postage 664 674 684 694 705
Repair & Maintenance 27,605 28,019 28,439 28,866 29,298
Phone/Fax/Internet 6,823 6,926 7,030 7,135 7,242
Utilities 15,621 15,855 16,093 16,334 16,579
GST 4,171 4,233 4,297 4,361 4,427
OPERATING BUDGET 141,195 143,313 145,463 147,645 149,859

Budget figures are based on 1.5% increase/year from the 2017-2018 projected totals (Attachment A)

INCREASE REQUESTED 8,000 8,000 0 0
SCRD GRANT 126,040 134,040 136,051 138,092 140,163
DEFICIT 15,155 9,273 9,412 9,553 9,696

220



Pender Harbour & District Health Centre

HISTORICAL OPERATIONAL FUNDING

Bylaw Grant Actual Costs Deficits

2002 - 2007 80,000/year

2008 - 2010 95,000/year

2010-2011 $ 97,533 % 120,228 $ 22,695
2011-2012 103,149 131,681 28,532
2012-2013 103,312 134,054 30,742
2013-2014 105,874 131,583 25,709
2014-2015 107,125 128,259 21,134
2015-2016 108,844 132,789 23,945
2016-2017 110,040 134,887 24,847
2017-2018 118,040 139,109 21,068
2018-2019 126,040 143,976 17,936

projected
TOTALS $ 979,958 $ 1,196,565 $ 216,608

HISTORICAL CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDING

Total Cost SCRD Support PHHC Cost
Nurses' emergency call system $ 13,900 $ 13,900
BC Hydro PowerSmart upgrade 11,754 3,500 8,254
24/7 generator 95,689 20,000 75,689
Sprinkler system 56,727 16,727 40,000
HVAC upgrade, 2015-16 14,476 14,476 0
HVAC upgrade, 2014-15 3,530 3,530
HVAC upgrade, 2013-14 6,342 6,342
HVAC upgrade, 2012-13 4,256 4,256
Community garden 2015 4,742 4,742
New furnace 2016 8,897 8,897
Physio office 2017 5,277 5,277
Bear Fence 2017 2,256 2,256
New Furnace 2018 6,420 6,420
Parking 2018 8,324 8,324
Flooring * 2018 12,000 12,000 0
Computer 2018 1,678 1,678
Medical Equip 2018 10,715 10,715
TOTALS $ 266,982 $ 66,703 $ 200,279

* Note : The flooring project has not started.

221

Attachment C SCRD 2019



Attachment C SCRD 2019

PENDER HARBOUR & DISTRICT HEALTH CENTRE

2018 - 2019 BUDGET

DESIGNATED REVENUE

VCH Contract $ 275,375
SCRD Grant 126,040
Tenant Income 84,711
Seniors Health Diabetes 31,211
Harbourside Friendships 17,000
Pender Harbour Seniors Initiative 39,859

TOTALS $ 574,196

NON DESIGNATED FUNDS

Donations & Bequests 30,000
Membership 600
Auxiliary 60,000
Interest Income 3,500
Endowment Fund Interest 12,700
Tray Fees/Private Medical 0

TOTALS $ 106,800

TOTAL REVENUE $ 680,996

MEDICAL EXPENSES

Courier $ 7,600
Delivery / Fuel Surcharge 1,100
Medical Supplies 19,950
Office Expenses 8,340
Home Care Mileage 5,500
Staff Development 6,500
Wages & Benefits 262,633

TOTALS $ 311,623

PHHC PROGRAMS

Harbourside Friendships, Aux. Support $ 3,000
Harbourside Friendships Program 17,000
Pender Harbour Seniors Initiative Program 39,859
Better at Home Program 300
Hospice/Bereavement Programs 300
Chronic Conditions / Cardiac Wellness 3,000
Palliative On Call 1,000
Women's Wellness/ NP Support 6,000
Youth Clinic 5,500
Seniors Health -Diabetes 31,211
PHSI Support 1,000

222



Additional Staff Development
Emergency Prep/Response Program
General Program Support
TOTALS

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES & SPECIAL PROJECTS
Administration Costs
Advertising & Publicity
Garbage
Hazardous Waste Disposal
Grounds Maintenance
Community Garden
Insurance
Janitor Contract
Janitorial Supplies
Office Exp, Supplies, Security, Dues, Fees
Postage
Mortgage Interest Payment, Property Tax
Legal, Accounting, Bank Charges
Repairs & Maintenance
Phone/Fax/Internet
Utilities
TOTALS

TOTAL EXPENSES
NET OPERTATIONAL INCOME

CASH FLOW

Cash Flow From Operating Activities
GST Recoverable

Capital Items

Special Projects

Other?

ACTUAL USE OF CASH

DETAIL RE: CAPITAL ITEMS AND SPECIAL PROJECTS
Medical Equipment (Capital)
Building Improvement- Flooring
EMR Transition (Special)
Parking (Special)
TOTALS

Restrictd funds are indicated by red font

223

12,000
500
5,450

$

126,120

121,552

12,600
2,205
790
4,700
800
12,500
22,900
4,200
11,340
630
7,100
7,750
20,546
7,560
20,501

$

257,674

695,417

14,421

14,421

2,000
-27,281

39,702

25,453
12,000
TBD
9,500

$

46,953

Attachment C SCRD 2019



Attachment D — 2019 SCRD

PENDER HARBOUR

HEALTH
% CENTRE

A Leader in Community Health Care

MISSION

To provide quality health care and
respond
to health related needs in a
respectful and caring manner

5066 Francis Peninsula Road
PO Box 308
Madeira Park, BC, VON 2HO
Phone: (604) 883-2764
Fax: (604) 883-2780
E-mail: phhc@dccnet.com

www.penderharbourhealth.com

224



Attachment D — 2019 SCRD

PENDER HARBOUR HEALTH CENTRE - OVERVIEW

Since opening in 1976 the Health Centre has received two major expansions. The first
expansion was completed in 1996 and more than doubled overall space, allowing for
increased services of other health professionals to be made available to the community.
This expansion also provided some tenant rental income to help support our financial
needs. The final expansion was completed in December 2006 and the Health Centre now
encompasses approximately 7,500 square feet.

Our services include four major areas: Nursing Services, Doctors’ Services, Dental
Services and Specialists’ Services.

NURSING SERVICES
Ambulatory Care, including:
ECG, wound care, IV therapy, Holter
monitors
Lab Services
Home Care / Palliative Care
Additional Health Centre Programs:
- Youth Clinic
- Women’s Wellness
- Health & Cronic Education Programs
- Harbourside Friendships
- Diabetes Program
- RN & Dietitian
- Bereavement and Palliative Support
- Wellness Days
- Seniors Initiative

HEALTH CARE PROFESSIONALS

Hours vary by practitioner
Details at www.penderharbourhealth.com

Physicians (604) 883-2344
Dental Services (604) 883-2997
Chiropractor
Dr. Alderson (604) 883-2764
Dr. Dickson (604) 980-4538
Public Health Nurse (604) 883-2764
Mental Health
Adult (604) 883-2764
Psychiatrist (604) 885-6101
Foot Care (604) 740-2890

Rheumatologist (604) 875-6815
Nurse Practitioner (604) 883-2764
Registered Massage Therapists

Brigit Cogrossi (604) 741-1202

Ellen Luchkow (778) 888-2012
Physiotherapist

Jeannette LeBlanc 604-989-4828

225



5538 SHORNCLIFFE AVE BOX 1545 SECHELT BC VON 3A0

AN
}S}e\;helt

Community Schools

November 13, 2018

Sunshine Coast Regional District
1975 Field Rd, Sechelt, BC VON 3A1

Attention: Tina Perrault, SCRD Board of Directors

Re: 2019 Sechelt Youth Centre Request for Funding
Dear Tina, and Directors of the Board,
Please find attached documentation to support our request for continued funding through
2019 in the amount of $35,000 for the Sechelt Youth Centre.
Attached documents include:
» 2017-18 Program Budget Actual for the Sechelt Youth Centre

» 2018-19 Program Projected vs Actual Budget. This budget amount is being
requested for the 2019-20 fiscal year.

Please refer to the SCS Annual Report, included with the Grant in Aid request, for
information regarding Sechelt Youth Centre activities.

Thank you for your consideration, and willingness to support our children and youth in
Sechelt and area.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions regarding the information provided.

Sincer,

Ted Chisholm

Sechelt Community Schools Coordinator
E-mail: secheltcommunityschools@gmail.com
Phone: 604 989-5365

226



$35,000 SECHELT YOUTH CENTRE BUDGET 2018-19
Sechelt Community Schools Society
Projected Revenues & Expenses for the year ending June 30, 2019

Actual
Projected (to Nov 2)
Revenues
Sunshine Coast Regional District 35000 35000
Other
Direct Access Gaming 5500 5500
Total Income 40500 40500
Expenses
Wages and MERCS 24812 4100
Wages and MERCS payroll / < admin 3000 1100
Program Materials 1388
Program Materials - Direct Access 4000 619
Insurance/Accounting 800 200
Facility Costs
Rent 5000 1702
Rent - Direct Access 1500 1500
Total Expenses 40500 9221
Surplus -Deficit 0 31279
Description:

Wages include:

Direct Service: 2 staff to supervise youth drop in programming on Wednesday

and Friday afternoons from 3pm to 6pm, and Tweens drop in programming on Thursdays
2:30pm to 5:30pm. Youth Drop-In is free, and open to participants aged 13 to 18.

Planning Time: Six hours for the Youth Centre Worker outside of program time

SCS Administration time: coordinator and other staff time relating to program (hiring, staff
meetings, reporting, supervision, grant writing, payroll)

Program Materials - budgeted minimum amount for food, program/office supplies
Direct Access: grant specifically for art supplies, jewellery making equipment, and
equipment repair and replacement, in consultation with participants; rent

Facility Costs: License to Occupy fees SYC, 5538 Shorncliffe Ave

There is no expected change to this funding going forward.

227

Variance

100%

100%
100%

17%
37%

15%
25%

34%
100%
23%



$30,000 SECHELT YOUTH CENTRE BUDGET 2017-18
Sechelt Community Schools Society
Projected Revenues & Expenses for the year ending June 30, 2018

Actual Actual Actual
Projected (to Nov 9) (toJan9) (Jun 30) Vvariance
Revenues
Sunshine Coast Regional District 30000 30000 30000 30000 100%
Other
Direct Access Gaming 5000 5000 5000 5000 100%
Sechelt Community Schools 5060 1741 3381 5021 99%
Total Income 40060 36741 38381 40021 100%

Expenses
Wages and MERCS 25478 8023 13910 25810 101%
Wages and MERCS supervision and p 3000 1300 2000 3000 100%
Program Materials 722 0 0 722 100%
Program Materials - Direct Access 3500 403 1834 3457 99%
Insurance 800 668 800 800 100%
Facility Costs
Rent - SCS 5060 1741 3396 5021 99%
Rent - Direct Access 1500 1500 1500 1500 100%

Total Expenses 40060 13635 23440 40310 101%

Surplus -Deficit 0 23106 14941 -289
Description:

Wages include:

Direct Service: 2 staff to supervise youth drop in programming on Wednesday

and Friday afternoons from 3pm to 6pm, and Tweens drop in programming on Thursdays
2:30pm to 5pm. Youth Drop-In is free, and open to participants aged 13 to 18.

Planning Time: Six hours for the Youth Centre Supervisor, monthly staff meeting time for 2
staff in addition to YC Supervisor

SCS Administration time: coordinator and payroll time relating to program (hiring, staff
meetings, reporting, grant writing, payroll)

Program Materials - budgeted minimum amount for food, program supplies
Direct Access: grant specifically for art supplies, jewellery making equipment, and
equipment repair and replacement, in consultation with participants; rent
Facility Costs: SCS borne costs to support the program

228



5538 SHORNCLIFFE AVE BOX 1545 SECHELT BC VON 3A0

/ﬂ:’e\;helt

Community Schools

November 13, 2018

Sunshine Coast Regional District
1975 Field Rd, Sechelt, BC VON 3A1

Attention: Tina Perrault, SCRD Board of Directors

Re: 2019 Grant In Aid Request for Funding
Dear Tina, and Directors of the Board,

Please find attached documentation to support our request for continued funding through
the 2019 Community School Grant in Aid for the amount of $10,000.
including:

» The Sechelt Community Schools Society Annual Activities Report, highlighting
Sechelt Youth Centre activities

» 2017-18 Program Budget Actual for the Grant In Aid

» 2018-19 Program Budget Projected vs Actual Budget for the Grant In Aid

We are incredibly grateful for the funding provided to date to support our children and
youth in the Sechelt area.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions regarding the information provided.

Sincerely,

Ted Chisholm

Sechelt Community Schools Coordinator
E-mail: sechelicommunityschools@gmail.com
Phone: 604 989-5365

229



$10,000 GRANT IN AID BUDGET 2( 2018-19
Sechelt Community Schools Society
Projected Revenues & Expenses for the year ending June 30, 2019

Actual
Projected (to Nov 2)
Revenues
Sunshine Coast Regional District 10000 10000
Total Income 10000 10000
Expenses
Wages and MERCS 9505 1572
Program Materials 495 25
Total Expenses 10000 1597
Surplus -Deficit 0.00 8,403 0 0
Description:

The Grant In Aid is used to fund a free Tween Drop In program at the SYC on Mondays from
2:30pm to 5:30 pm for pre-teens and teens aged 10 to 13.

Wages cover 2 staff working for 4 hours, and 2 hours of planning time weekly for the

Youth Centre staff.

Program Materials includes food, sports equipment, and program materials, that are utilized in
conjunction with other SYC programming.

There is no expected change to this funding going forward.

230

Variance

100%
100%

17%
5%
0%



$10,000 GRANT IN AID BUDGET 2017-18

Sechelt Community Schools Society

Projected Revenues & Expenses for the year ending June 30, 2018

Revenues
Sunshine Coast Regional District
Total Income

Expenses
Wages and MERCS

Program Materials
Total Expenses

Surplus -Deficit

Description:

(Jun 30) Variance

Actual Actual Actual
Projected (toNov9) (toJan9)
10000 10000 10000 10000
10000 10000 10000 10000
7639 2533 3896 7807
2361 736 806 2193
10000 3269 4702 10000
0.00 6,731 5,298 0

The Grant In Aid is used to fund a free Tween Drop In program at the SYC on Mondays
2:30pm to 5 pm for pre-teens and teens aged 10 to 13.
Wages cover 2 staff working for 3.5 hours, and 2 hours of planning time weekly for the

Youth Centre Supervisor.

Program Materials includes food, sports equipment, and program materials, that are u’
conjunction with other SYC programming.

There is no expected change to this funding going forward.

231

100%
100%

102%
93%
100%



g Sechelt

Community Schools

Sechelf
Community
Schools

July 2017 to June 2018

Annual Report

232




Sechelt Community Schools

Revenue Streams
During the 2017/2018 fiscal year SCS received funding through 3 main revenue streams to
provide programs and services in our schools and community: community programs, grants and

donations.
Community Programs

+* Includes Parent user fees from the 2 licensed after school care programs, including
Coastal Kids Summer Camp which runs through our KIDZ CLUB Sechelt License.

Grants
Federal

++ Service Canada allowed us to operate the Sechelt Coastal Kids Summer Fun Daycamp
program for children aged 6 to 12, funding the minimum wage portion for 2 youth
program staff.

Provincial

+* Ministry of Education CommunityLINK funding, through SD46, provided our core funding
for the SCS Coordinator, and the majority of our in-school programs.

+* Ministry of Children and Family Development provided operating grants and subsidies
for low income families to support the 2 licensed after school care programs and
summer program, as well as a new refrigerator for our Cedar Grove program.

+* Ministry of Finance (Gaming Policy and Enforcement Branch) awarded funding to
support the Sechelt Youth Centre, Breakfast for Kids Program, and KES Breakfast
Program. The same amount was received for the next fiscal year.

+* The United Way of the Lower Mainland provided financial support through SD46 to
provide coordinator time to enhance after school programming.

233



Regional

+* The Sunshine Coast Regional District provided core funding, and a grant in aid for two
staff, and materials and supplies to operate the Tween and Youth community drop in
programs at the Sechelt Youth Centre. They have increased the core funding going
forward to offset facility rental.

% The Sechelt Indian Government District again provided a grant in aid to support the
Kinnikinnick Breakfast and Sunshine Coast Breakfast for Kids Programs.

Local / Community

% The Sunshine Coast Community Services Society (SCCSS) provided funding for workers
to support children with special needs in our licensed afterschool care programs and
summer camp.

%+ The Sunshine Coast Community Foundation administers the Sunshine Coast Hungry
Children Endowment Fund on our behalf, providing annual dividends to the Breakfast
for Kids Program.

% Funding from the Sunshine Coast Community Foundation was carried forward to
support the DBES Growing Green Project.

¢ Breakfast for Learning and the President’s Choice Children’s Charity provided support to
the Kinnikinnick Breakfast Program.

Donations

%+ Public and private donations were an essential and important source of funding for
the Breakfast for Kids program. Public donors included the Sechelt Indian
Government District, Gibsons Lions Club, and the Sechelt Legion Branch #140. Thank
you to John and Nora Pirie for their generous donation to keep children fed.

¢+ The DBES Greenhouse could not have moved forward without significant donations
of time, money, material discounts, and in-kind services from organizations including
Sechelt Rotary (Evening) Club, RONA Coast Builders, GBS, Coastructural Engineering,
Mobius Architecture, Top Quality Topsoil, Code Plumbing and Heating, Lehigh
Construction Aggregates, Strait Land Surveying, Bonniebrook Industries, BA
Blacktop, Swanson’s Ready-Mix Ltd, and Butch’s Trucking. Donations from Gail
Brachat Realty, Waterhouse Environmental Services, SYLVIS, Silas White, Harold
Foster, and numerous parent and school fundraisers financed the project. Jeff

234



Dexter and Doug Hardwick donated countless hours and expertise to design, and
lead construction of the power shed and greenhouse framing and end-walls.

% Thank you to Claytons, IGA, and Supervalu for their continuing discounts to support
the Kinnikinnick Breakfast Program and Sunshine Coast Breakfast for Kids Program;
RONA and Gibsons Building Supplies, and Claytons and Jean’s Organics for donations
to the Sechelt Youth Centre. Thank you also to Salish Soils for their donation of soil
to the WSES Farm to School Program.

We give our thanks to all of those who have provided us with the financial means to provide
programs and services in our schools and community.

SCS Regional Programs and Activities

Sunshine Coast Breakfast for Kids Program (B4K)

Sechelt Community Schools continues to coordinate the Sunshine Coast Breakfast for Kids
program, which services all 9 elementary schools, and 3 alternative school programs.

CommunityLINK funding pays for the coordination time for this program so that all funds
donated to the program can go directly to ‘food on the platter’ in the schools. Coordination
includes fundraising, reporting, paying accounts at local grocery stores, and providing
volunteers with information and resources as they become available. Volunteers at each school
shop for and prepare the food daily to put out on platters and connect to local businesses and
resources in their community to increase the efficacy of their school program.

Based on concerns about the holiday schedule (a full week after holiday before return to
school), we surveyed principals at all elementary schools and provided food cards to support
families on the first week back. The total cost of this initiative was $2725, which provided
support to 36 families and 80 Children.

53 volunteers, including grade 6/7 students at Roberts Creek, participated to prepare and
provide food platters to the estimated 535 students who accessed trays daily across the district.
Of those students, 273 (51%) were considered reliant on the platters. Volunteers gave an
average of 52 hours per week for 38 weeks, totalling 1,976 hours. Total food and material costs
for the year were $13,220, an increase of $2600 over the previous fiscal, and did not include
the Winter Break support to families.

235



Coastal Kids Summer Fun Daycamp

The Sechelt program operated out of the Sechelt Learning Centre gym with its ideal location
close to playgrounds, beaches, parks, the library and Sechelt Aquatic Centre. The program ran
for 8 weeks, 5 days (statutory holidays excepted) a week from 8:30am to 4:30pm and provided
24 spaces per day at a cost of $26.00 per space.

Special field trips to Vancouver were offered twice each month at a slightly higher cost, and
local trips to Cliff Gilker, Roberts Creek, Flume, and Mission Point Beaches also took place.

The program operated at 98% capacity for the summer (only 3 spaces were not utilized in
August), with 67 children registered in total.

Families Children K's Subsidy Supported | Daily AVG %
Served Registered Children Capacity
44 67 7 4 3 23 98

Our decision to use our KIDZ CLUB registration calendar system for summer camp proved
successful, and significantly reduced parent frustration compared to the two previous years
where different online portals were used for registration.

Our staff team was very solid, feedback from families was positive, and there were few
concerns, issues or complaints.

Elementary School Programs and Activities

KIDZ CLUB Licensed After School Care

After school care is considered by many to be an essential service, as the unsupervised time
between school-end and parents work-end is extremely vulnerable for children. We continued
to run our two programs at the Sechelt Learning Centre (servicing HMBCS, WSES, KES, DBES,
and Ecole du Pacifique) and Cedar Grove Elementary.

KIDZ CLUB Enrollment
Site Families K | Gr. | Average Highest/Lowest | Children on | Special
Serviced/children 1 Daily Attendance subsidy needs
registered Plus | Attendance support
SLC 40/67 13| 54 22 24/5 9 3
Cedar 27/33 5 28 11 17/3 3 4
Grove
5

236




Staffing was a significant challenge at both sites particularly in September and May /June of the
year. High enrollment in Sechelt allowed for consistent hours for staff, and we were able to hire
an ECE student onto the team at the end of her work experience with us. Cedar Grove
enrollment often dropped below the level required to provide consistent hours, making it
difficult to keep part time / casual staff, which affected attendance as we had to turn away
children on days we could not meet ratio. Fortunately, we were able to find a volunteer who
worked with the Supervisor through the Spring, which created consistency, allowed attendance
to grow, and reduced concerns about employee burnout.

WSES

Welcome Club

The WSES morning program operated Monday to Friday, welcoming early arriving children into
the multipurpose room where they were provided with food, a space to finish homework, and
quiet supervised play until playground supervision began at the school. Average daily
attendance for the year was 18 students, with the highest single day attendance of 29 students.

Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec | Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr | May | June TOTAL
Attendance | 280 | 372 | 409 | 281 | 335 | 320 | 208 | 341 | 348 | 312 3206
Daily Avg | 16 19 20 18 20 19 17 18 17 | 16 18

SCRD Waste Reduction Initiative Program (WRIP) Grant

The SCRD awarded a grant to purchase a large bear resistant JORA composter and indoor
classroom buckets to institute a food waste diversion and composting program at WSES. A
green bin was donated by District of Sechelt to collect food waste at the school, which Chris
Allen delivered to Salish Soils weekly, and his gr. 4/5 class managed the composter with fruit
and vegetables only from 2 classes.

From January to June 1650 L of organic waste were diverted from the landfill and delivered
Salish Soils, and 150 L were composted on site, producing 60 L of soil for the Farm to School
site.

Farm to School Program

Throughout the Spring, the coordinator worked with Chris and Lisa Allen’s gr. 4/5 classes to
tend, weed, and plant the garden beds, and to clear invasive species. The classes planted early
potatoes, which were then donated to the Food Bank. Coordinator time was given to arrange
delivery of soil and other materials, coordinate gate replacement, and provide support to the
teachers, who are the backbone of this project year after year.

237



KES

Breakfast Program

The sit-down program operated 5 days a week with parent and community volunteers, and
featured toast, cereal, cheese, cream cheese and jam, and fruit and vegetables. Snack platters
were put out, and a small number of lunch sandwiches were prepared daily for those who need
it. Attendance averaged 19 children per day, with the largest sitting being 37 students. Eleven
parent and community volunteers contributed time to keep the program running. Thank you to
Cathy Evans, the parent coordinator who shopped, recruited, and filled in whenever necessary,
and to Billy and Althea Hume, and Beatrice Janke community members without direct ties to
the school.

Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec | Jan | Feb Mar Apr | May | June | TOTAL
Attendance | 280 | 347 | 435 | 232 | 312 | 385 | 241 403 | 386 | 175 3196
DailyAvg | 16 | 17 | 22 | 18 21 | 21 20 21 19 |15 19
Volunteer Hrs 188 128 145 461

Family Games Nights

Three family games nights took place throughout the year, involving cooperative games, goofy
sports and team challenges. Activities were chosen to maximize fun, have everyone be active,
and de-emphasize traditional, competitive games and sports. November 9 — 40 attendees,
March 8 — 46 attendees, and May 17 — 38 attendees.

Bike Club and Dirt Shredder Event

Up to 20 students rode during the 6-week bike program that culminated in the Dirt Shredder
School Event. The coordinator participated in a committee of teachers, and Glen Hafey of the
Sunshine Coast Cycling Club, to coordinate parent and community volunteers and organize the
event. Thanks to Kellei Baker and BC First Aid for providing paramedic services for the event.

Outdoor Learning Spaces

The coordinator attended the November Public Works, Parks, and Environment Committee
meeting as a delegation on behalf of KES to request some enhancements to Kinnikinnick Park.
These additions will create outdoor learning, and public gathering / resting places within the
park. The coordinator will liaise with Parks and assist with arranging student and parent work
parties to complete the small project.

238



DBES

DBES Bike Club

The coordinator provided support to the club, helping to arrange volunteers and rides for off
site transportation of bikes and students. Nineteen primary students, and 6 intermediate
students participated in the program.

DBES Growing Green Project

SCS has received permission to divert funds from this project to the greenhouse to get it
completed, as volunteer capacity is an issue at the school. Some work was done to redesign the
front garden beds and plant during Earth Day celebrations in the Spring, and Leah Painter has
been hired to finalize the Vision Plan for the Project.

DBES Growing Green Project — Greenhouse Phase

Significant progress was made this year. In August 2017 water pipes and electrical conduit were
laid in, and solar panels funded through Sunshine Coast Community Forests Legacy were
installed on the portable. Parent volunteer Jeff Dexter took the lead on pouring the concrete
slab and building the power shed with coordinator and parent volunteer support. Doug
Hardwick, another community volunteer, gave countless hours to providing construction
expertise, and leading parent work parties to build the frame, and find the additional parts
needed to do so. Additional fundraising will be required to complete the project.

Recorded volunteer hours contributed to the project through to the end of June 2018: 315 hours.

All 3 Schools

KinderSpark!

SCS funds the facilitators for this highly valued ten to twelve-week SD46 school readiness
program, which allows children and parents going into Kindergarten in the fall an opportunity
to be familiar with their school, see the Kindergarten room, gym, playground etc. and to have
fun while learning. Programs were offered at all 3 of our schools:

School Number of Children Registered
KES 9
DBES 15
WSES 15

Volunteer Readers
Established reading volunteers have become comfortable and feel connected to their schools
and were able to start up the relationship again with very little assistance (and in some cases no

239



assistance) from the coordinator. Thank you to Fred Whibbs, Linda Harris, Holly Lehman, Roger
Laycock, Jack Young, and Mary-Anne Darney for giving your time and energy.

Transitions Activities

The KES and WSES walking visits have become a tradition for grade 7’s, with the SCS
coordinator accompanying a teacher, parent volunteers and students on a walking trip to
Chatelech, where they are able to eat lunch, and then go on an informal tour with former
students from their schools. This provides an easier introduction to high school for students
who experience heightened anxiety and find the Transition Day event overwhelming.

Community Programs and Initiatives

Sechelt Youth Centre Tween Program

The SCRD funds the Monday and Thursday afternoon drop in program which included cooking
and baking, art, cooperative games, pool, air hockey, foosball and gaming/ computer time, in a
safe, inclusive, environment supervised by two youth workers. Regular games of capture the
flag or manhunt took place on school grounds or at the Rockwood.

Tweens in Grades 5 to 8 from KES, WSES, Ecole du Pacifique, HMB, and DBES attended the
program from the first two weeks of July, the last two weeks of August, and September through
to June, including one week at Christmas and Spring Break.

This program provides a transition for preteens who have outgrown licensed after school care,
want to develop more independence and autonomy, but still require supervision, and a healthy
outlet for their energy.

Participants took part in both qualitative and quantitative surveys about their experiences in
the program as part of Project Impact. Qualitative surveys involved 6 participants taking part in
individual 30 to 40-minute interviews. Common themes throughout the interviews included the
ability to develop friendships outside of school communities (where they reported difficulty
connecting), SYC being a safe space to explore gender identity, sexual orientation, and LGBTQ2
issues in a self organized way, and growing confidence in their independence and ability to
develop friendships.

SYC Youth Programming

Youth programming was aimed at creating a more casual drop in atmosphere, with cooking
included as an essential element each day. Youth generally were looking for a space to relax,
talk, eat, surf the web, make art, and play pool, although gym time and games like dodgeball
were popular.

Youth days were scheduled for Wednesdays and Fridays each week, 3pm to 6pm.

240



SYC Attendance

July | Aug | Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec | Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr | May | June | TOTAL

Tweens | 26 31 132 | 182 | 140 | 102 94 | 128 | 79 95 88 | 112 1209

Youth | 11 7 51 54 67 39 51 33 24 40 40 19 436

Total | 37 38 183 | 236 | 207 | 141 | 145 | 161 | 103 | 135 | 128 131 1645

Volunteers: 3 youth volunteers
Number of hours volunteered: 123

Community and Schools Support

District Farm 2 School Tour and Discussion

The coordinator, with the RCCS Coordinator and VCH Dietician, invited the Farm 2 School BC
Provincial Manager to the Sunshine Coast to tour school gardens and then have a dialogue with
teachers, administrators, the Superintendent, and community businesses and volunteers. The
goal was to explore the possibility of creating a provincial Farm to School Hub on the Sunshine
Coast, which would provide provincial funding for a part time ‘Animator’.

The role of the Animator would be to develop curriculum, link community resources to schools,
write grants specific to gardens and growing food, and build relationships with local farmers
and food producers. Tours of Gibsons, Cedar Grove, Davis Bay, Ecole du Pacifique, West
Sechelt, Kinnikinnick and Roberts Creek Elementary Schools impressed the Manager, as did the
roundtable facilitated discussion at the end of the day.

Childminding for Spark! And Parenting Workshops

SCS worked with SD46, the Early Years Centre, and the Childcare Resource and Referral Centre
to provide childminding for parenting classes throughout the year. As with the KinderSpark!
Programs, SCS provided childminding staff, SD46 provided coordination and funding, and CCRR
reimbursed staffing expenses for Circle of Security, SPARK, and Positive Discipline parenting
classes.

United Way of the Lower Mainland Community Schools Partnership Grant

SD46 has received 2 years funding (550,000 per year) to flow through to Community Schools.
The goal is to increase after school program opportunities through funding coordinator wages.
This funding allowed us to increase program planning for both after school care and summer
program, better communication with B4K Volunteers, provide Positive Discipline staff training,
and provide books for programs, to support literacy. As part of the grant, participants have
been surveyed twice (three times next year).

10

241



Project Impact

As part of the UWLM Partnership Grant, we were invited to take part in Project Impact, which
brought together community school teams from the Lower Mainland and Sunshine Coast to
explore the effectiveness of their work. This year long project has involved identifying desired
program outcomes and developing quantitative and qualitative tools to measure the
effectiveness or impact of the programs, and if we are achieving the outcomes. The project will
wrap up in December 2018, and project findings will be published.

Middle Years Action Committee

Community Schools, SCRD, and YMCA staff met to look at collaboration around programming,
needs assessment etc. for school age children.

Although initial work was done on a needs assessment survey, some fine tuning still needs to
be done before it can be sent out. Although this is important work, it is beyond the capacity of
the SCS coordinator at this point to carry the work forward and may need to be handed off to
another organization.

Childminding for Family Expo

SCS provided childminding staff and youth volunteers to support the Family Expo on May 25t
and 26™ 2018 at Chatelech Secondary. This event, providing keynote speakers and workshops
for parents and families of all ages, did very well for its first run, with another already in the
planning for 2019.

Friends of Rotary

The SCS coordinator attends Rotary meetings once a month when possible, and SCS board and
staff have committed to providing the concession for the Wood Expo event at the Seaside
Centre in September, on behalf of Rotary. We appreciate the financial support that Rotary has
given to pay for the electrical work on the DBES greenhouse power shed.

The SCS Coordinator provided varying levels of support and time to the following community
and school committees and initiatives:

¢+ Sunshine Coast Youth Action and Awareness Committee

% Roots of Empathy Steering Committee

+* Youth Outreach Advisory Committee — participation is phasing out.

%+ District Community School Committee — Community School Coordinators, Principals,
and the Superintendent are meeting to discuss programs, funding, ways and means
to improve supports to vulnerable children and youth.

% DBES Growing Green Committee — development of community vision, outdoor
learning, garden, and play spaces at DBES.

11

242



« Middle Years Action Committee

Looking Ahead to 2018/19

As we move forward into 2018/19, our focus will be on:

<+ Staff training and retention

Completing the Greenhouse and gaining occupancy at Davis Bay Elementary
Youth volunteer and mentorship opportunities created to develop strong program
leaders.

%+ Increasing capacity of garden programs and spaces at all 3 schools

A huge thank you to our board members Patty Shields, Allyson Fawcus, Petra Haas, Aspen Wing
and Darren Inkster, and to our Principals Ursula Hardwicke (DBES), Jeff Marshall (KES) and Kate
Kerr (WSES) for their commitment, participation and leadership.

Thank you to our dedicated, hardworking, and caring staff and volunteers who gave so much to
create a stronger social fabric and safety net in our schools and community.

Thank you also to SD46 for our core LINK funding, and their willingness to sponsor grant
applications on our behalf, which allows us to leverage additional resources for our children
and youth, and to the SCRD for continuing to fund and partner with us.

12

243



Roberts Creek Community School

NIGHTS ALIVE Youth drop in program.

Report to the Sunshine Coast Regional District
November 1, 2018.

Description of the Nights Alive Program that will be provided for 2019:

Teen drop in program every Friday night, 5:00 — 8:00 pm except for SD46 Pro D days,
summer and holidays.
The program will be in the Roberts Creek Community School Gym.
Youth from Gibsons to Davis Bay attend the program.
The target age range 12 - 14.
No attendance fees will be charged.
Three staff will always be on duty.
Activities provided include:
Music
Gym games
Basketball
Other physical activities.
Youth will participate in the program design.
There will be free, nutritious food available.
Policies and procedures for the programme are in place.
The staff receive annual upgrades for their first aid and when available youth worker
training.
An incident record book is kept on site.
The Sunshine Coast Youth Outreach team regularly visits the program.
Staff will connect with the RCMP youth liaison officer.

Benefits of the programme:

Program serves children and youth from Davis Bay to Gibsons.

It is a place where youth feel safe and welcome.

The programme leverages the work of the S.C. Youth Outreach Team -itis a venue
where the outreach workers can connect with youth that need support.

The presence of the RCMP creates opportunities for youth and police to interact and
builds relationship.

244



Roberts Creek Community School. Budget
2019 (July 1, 2018- June 30, 2019)

November 1 2018

Total
Other Nights RCCS

Revenue Programs Alive Society
SCRD funding - Nights Alive 10,000 10,000
SCRD funding for Garden - Grants in Aid 2,000 2,000
Donations for Roots of Empathy Program 6,400 6,400
Community LINK 37,918 1,248 39,166
United Way of the Lower Mainland 8,000 8,000
Other Agency Grants for Garden - Accessible Funds 15,600 15,600
ASSAI Funding 11,240 11,240

Total Revenues 81,158 | 11,248 | 92,406
Expenses
Accounting & Legal (Professional fees) 2,300 300 2,600
Advertising & Promotion 500 300 800
Automotive & travel 500 500
Insurance Liability/directors 600 600
Bank charges & Interest 300 300
Garden materials, supplies 17,600 17,600
Licenses & Fees 500 500
Material & Office Supplies 2,550 350 2,900
Printing expense 150 150
Program Expenses & Equip rental 1,600 700 2,300
Rent (School/SD 46) 100 100
Repairs & Maintenance 578 80 658
Telephone & communications. 1,100 150 1,250
Training & Development 300 300 600
Kinderspark program x 2 1,800 1,800
Wages - Nights Alive staff 7,000 7,000
Sub contractors - ROE instructors 3,000 3,000
Sub Contractor - office support 2,680 2,680
Assistant Coordinator Salary 15,000 15,000
Coordinator salary (incs $1,500 MERCS) 30,000 2,068 32,068

Total Expenses | 81,158 | 11,248 | 92,406 |
Balance ‘ 0 ‘ 0 ‘ 0 ‘

245



Name of Organization
Date Created:
Revision Date:
Budget Planning Year:
Year to Date:

REVENUE:
Local Government Request
SCRD
Budget Proposal (if required)
Total Request

Grants

Sub Total Grants

Other Revenue

Roberts Creek Community School

Sub Total Other

Previous Year (Deficit) / Surplus

Total Revenue - Organization Generated

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES:

Materials and Supplies

Equipment (balls, repairs, rackets etc.)

Snacks
Sub Total

Office / EQuipment
Advertising & promotion
Administration

Printing

Sub Total

Facilty / Utilities
Repairs & maintenance
Sub Total

Personnel
Mangement & supervision

Staff wages
Sub Total

Roberts Creek Community School Society

November 1 2018

2019 (July 1 2018-June 30 2019)

June 30 2018

Budget Actuals to 2017/18 % Variance Financial Planning
2019 Jun-18 Budget Variance Budget 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 NOTES:
$ 10,000.00 $ 10,000.00 $ 10,000.00 $ - 0% $ 10,000.00 $ 10,000.00 $ 10,000.00 10,000.00 $ 10,500.00
$ -
$ 10,000.00 $ 10,000.00 $ 10,000.00 $ - 0% $ 10,000.00 $ 10,000.00 $ 10,000.00 10,000.00 $ 10,500.00
$
$
$ - $ $ - $ $ $ - $ - $
$ 1,248.00 $ 372.00 $ 1,235.00 $ 13.00 1% $ 1,040.00 $ 1,060.00 $ 1,060.00 1,060.00 $ 1,060.00
$ 1,248.00 $ 37200 $ 1,235.00 $ 13.00 1% $ 1,040.00 $ 1,060.00 $ 1,060.00 1,060.00 $ 1,060.00
$ 1,248.00 $ 372.00 $ 1,235.00 $ 13.00 1% $ 1,040.00 $ 1,060.00 $ 1,060.00 1,060.00 $ 1,060.00
$ 11,248.00 $ 10,372.00 $ 11,235.00 $ 13.00 0% $ 11,040.00 $ 11,060.00 $ 11,060.00 11,060.00 $ 11,560.00
2018/19 Acutals to 2017/18 % Variance Financial Planning
Budget Jun-18 Budget Variance 2018/19 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
$ 400.00 $ 519.00 $ 408.00 -$ 8.00 2% $ 408.00
$ 300.00 $ 260.00 $ 279.00 $ 21.00 %
$ 700.00 $ 779.00 $ 687.00 $ 13.00 2% $ 408.00 $ - $ - $
$ 300.00 $ 367.00 -$ 67.00 -22%
$ 750.00 $ 622.00 $ 931.00 -$ 181.00 -24%
$ 50.00 $ 50.00 $ 51.00 -$ 1.00 -2%
$ 1,100.00 $ 672.00 | $ 1,349.00 -$ 249.00 -23% $ $ - $ - $
$ 80.00 $ 121.00 $ 200.00 -$ 120.00 -150%
$ 80.00 $ 121.00 $ 200.00 -$ 120.00 -150% $ $ - $ - $
$ 2,068.00 $ 2,600.00 $ 2,068.00 $ - 0%
$ 7,000.00 $ 6,200.00 $ 6,831.00 $ 169.00 2%
$ 9,068.00 $ 8,800.00 $ 8,899.00 $ 169.00 2% $ $ - $ - $

246



Other Expenses

. $ .
Sub Total $ - % - i3 - % - $ - $ - $ -3 - %
Training / Development

Staff training $ 300.00 $ 100.00 $ 200.00 67%

_ $ .

Sub Total $ 300.00 $ - $ 100.00 $ 200.00 67% $ - $ - $ - $ - $
TOTAL EXPENSES $ 11,248.00 $ 10,372.00 $ 11,235.00 $ 13.00 0% $ 408.00 $ = $ = $ = $ =

Budget Acutals to 2017/18 % Variance Financial Planning
Budget Jun-18 Budget Variance Budget 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

CAPITAL REQUIREMENT

Purchases:

- $ - #DIV/0!

Subtotal Purchased $ - $ - $ - $ - #DIV/0! $ - $ - $ - $ - $

Proposed Exenditures:

- $ - #DIV/0!

Sub Total Proposed $ - $ - $ - $ - #DIV/0! $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
TOTAL CAPITAL $ - |s - $ - |s - #DIV/0! $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
TOTAL COMMITTED EXPENDITURES $ 11,248.00 | $ 10,372.00 $ 11,235.00 | $ 13.00 0% $ 408.00 $ = $ = $ = $ =
LESS PROPOSED EXPENDITURES $ - $ = $ = $ - #DIV/0! $ = $ = $ = $ = $ =
LESS ORGANIZATION REVENUE $ 1,248.00 $ 372.00 $ 1,235.00 $ 13.00 1% $ 1,040.00 $ 1,060.00 $ 1,060.00 $ 1,060.00 $ 1,060.00
TOTAL TAX REQUISITION $ 10,000.00 $ 10,000.00 $ 10,000.00 $ = 0% -$ 632.00 -$ 1,060.00 -$ 1,060.00 -$ 1,060.00 -$ 1,060.00

247



PENDER HARBOUR. § DISTRICT
CHAMBER. OF COMMERCE

P.O. BOX 265 MADEIRA PARK B.C.VON 2HO
E-MAIL: chamber@penderharbour.ca Website: www.penderharbour.ca
PHONE: 604 883-2561 TOLL FREE: 1-877 873-6377

November 11, 2018

Sunshine Coast Regional District
1975 Field Road
Sechelt, BC. VON 3A1

Attention: Tina Perreault, CPA CMA
CFO
Dear Tina,

As requested we are submitting our 2019 funding request and providing the
additional supporting information as requested in your letter of October 1.

We wish to continue our local programs and therefore request the following
funding support from the SCRD:

» Tourism Sanitation Services (Portable toilets) $ 2,550
e Visitor Information Center Washrooms $ 5,150
» Visitor Information Booths $ 8,000
» Economic Development $ 2,600

$ 18,200

The details of our requests and associated budgets are outlined in the attached

report. We have also included our 2018 yearend Financials and our Draft Budget
for 2019.

We trust this information meets your expectations so as to assist with the District
Budgetary process.

Ean Sespnamn

Ron Seymour, Chamber treasuréy

Best regards,

cc. Kerry Milligan, Executive director

248



PENDER HARBOUR § DISTRICT
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

P.O. BOX 265 MADEIRA PARK B.C.VON 2HO
E-MAIL: chamber@penderharbour.ca Website: www.penderharbour.ca
PHONE: 604 883-2561 TOLL FREE: 1-877 873-6377

Pender Harbour & Egmont Chamber of Commerce Report

November 12, 2018
Purpose

The following report will provide details on current programs, proposed changes
to some of these programs and financial details on each.

Executive Summary

This report is based on the Pender Harbour & Egmont Chamber of Commerce
approved 2017 and 2018 year over year financial results and our 2019 proposed
budget which are all based on a Chamber fiscal year ending September 30th.
For purposes of this report all figures shown have been normalized to a calendar

year in order to report on reserved revenue required to cover committed calendar
year spending.

All of our discretionary programs are funded by a combination of SCRD Grants,
Chamber fundraising events, membership dues and related member billed
services including sign board rentals and racking fees. Executive Director
administrative support, volunteer managers dedicated to specific programs,

community volunteer labor and board members carry out all of our annual
objectives.

The following reports indicate that four existing programs are ongoing and were
supported by 2018 SCRD grants totaling $17,750. Our 2019 plan anticipates
SCRD grants for these programs amounting to $18,200. Ongoing programs are
Visitor Information Booths (VIB), Visitor information Center washrooms (VIC
washrooms), Tourism Sanitation Services, and Economic Development.

In addition our chamber is encouraging community spirit by “Light up the
Harbour” and the new Christmas in Pender Harbour month.

In 2018 we finished our year with a surplus, which was greater than anticipated.
For 2019 we will continue to budget for a reasonable surplus to cushion against
unforeseen expenses and hopefully work towards restoring our financial position
to a healthier state so we can efficiently manage our cash flow requirements
through the entire season.

249



In 2018 we have planned for additional Chamber generated revenue by
participating in SCREDO activities, which could lead to small increases in our
membership, business donations for Madeira washroom operations and
community fundraising events.

Following is our year over year financials compared to our 2019 plan complete
with narratives for each of our funding requests.

Our year over year SCRD grants received and proposed are:

Actual Actual Proposed

2017 2018 2019
Tourism Sanitation Services $ 2,290 $ 2,250 $ 2,550
ViC washrooms $4476 $4,750 $ 5,150
VIB $ 8,000 $8,000 $ 8,000
Economic Development $ 2,500 $ 2,500 $ 2,500
Total of above Programs $17,266 $17,750 $18,200

DETAILS ON PROGRAM REQUESTS:
Tourism Sanitation Services (PortableToilets) program:

In 2010 our Chamber entered into an agreement with the SCRD to sponsor the
washroom facilities at Millennium Park and Hospital Bay by assuming
administrative responsibilities including preparing yearly funding requests.

By 2014 improvements to our Madeira Park Visitor Information Booth washrooms
and the Harbour Association opening and closing hours of their Madeira Park
washrooms allowed us to remove the Portable Washrooms at Millennium Park.

This grant request for 2019 will allow for one year around plus one summer
months only Portable Washrooms at Hospital Bay. We expect a nominal increase
in the service price.

2019 Budget for Tourism Sanitation Services (Portable Toilets in Hospital Bay):

Actual Actual Proposed

2017 2018 2019
SCRD Grant $2,290 $2,500 $2,550
Total Revenue $2,290 $2,500 $2,550
Portable toilets $2,184 $2,310 $2,350
Admin for this 106 $ 190 $ 200
Total Expenses $2,290 $2,500 $2,550

250



Portable Toilets are considered to be temporary and should be replaced by
permanent washroom facilities as soon as practical.

The Garden Bay/Hospital Bay location was originally ptanned to be replaced by a
permanent Harbour Authority sponsored facility constructed at the current
location of the Portable Toilets by 2016/17. The death of a principal in one of the
neighboring businesses and the sale of a second neighboring business has
delayed the completion of this project. The difficulty in securing a low cost septic
treatment connection remains, however negotiations are continuing with a
solution still possible. This has been time consuming.

Visitor Information Center Washrooms (VIC washrooms)

Our Visitor Information Center (VIC} is one building housing our main Visitor
Information Booth (VIB) and associated Visitor Information Center washrooms
(VIB washrooms). Our VIC washrooms are located in downtown Madeira Park.
The Chamber is responsible for the operation and overall management of the
VIC washrooms,

In 2014 we upgraded this facility which allowed us to have consistent open and
closing times, extend our hours during the summer months and ultimately
respond to Local Merchant requests for even longer openings each day.

Ongoing operations are financed by a combination of volunteer management,
volunteer labor, and grants from the SCRD and voluntary contributions from
merchants in the immediate area. We expect a 8% increase, assumming a better
contribution from merchants this coming year.

2019 budget for VIC Washrooms:

Actual Actual Proposed

2017 2018 2019
SCRD Grant $4,476 $4,750 $5,150
lLocal Merchants Donations $2,310 $1,980 $2,250
Total Revenue $6,786 $6,730 $7,300
Utilities $1,300 $1,300 $1,300
Repairs & maint. $ 840 $ 240 $ 500
Washroom cleaning $3,340 $3,650 $3,900
Washroom Supplies $1,551 $1,821 $1,800
Total Expenses $7,031 $7,011 $7,500

251



Long term plans

We have upgraded our VIC washrooms to provide secure year round public
facilities in downtown Madeira Park. We are proposing to continue this operation
for the foreseeable future. These facilities are heavily used and appreciated by
the general public and merchants alike. The Chamber can insure their working

condition as there are no alternative plans in place to provide public accessible
washrooms.

Visitor Information Booths

Visitor Information services are provided at our main location, which is a building
housing our Visitor Information Booth (VIB) and associated Visitor Information

Center washrooms (VIC washrooms), located in downtown Madeira Park, plus a
secondary kiosk located on the intersection of Hwy 101 and Madeira Park Road.

The Chamber is responsible for the staffing, operation and overall management
of the VIBs'.

In 2017 we upgraded the secondary location to better draw the attention of
Highway traffic and service their inquiries. Qur Ambassadors welcomed visitors to
our area and responded to inquiries in person at both booths, by phone, by e-
mail, and by reference to our web site. We also provided printed information at
several rack sites. In 2017 we were approved for 2 students under the Federal
student employment grant for the second straight year. Some staffing challenges
prevented us from taking full benefit of the grant, but it all helped to allow us to
adequately staff these 2 locations.

We believe that our staff and volunteer Ambassadors are the face of our
community and should be enthusiastic, welcoming, and engaging with all visitors
and members of our community. We made a concerted effort in 2018 to hire
professional staff and prepare them for their task at hand. We feel we were well

prepared for the 2018 season and are planning to repeat and build on that
success in 2019.

Ongoing operations of our main location are financed by a combination of grants
from the SCRD and Chamber funding and voluntary contributions from
merchants in the immediate area. Without the assurance of a Federal student

252



employment grant we will need a substantial increase in Volunteer labor to keep
up with this demand.

2019 budget for Visitor Information Booth (VIB):

Actual Actual Planned

2017 2018 2019
SCRD Grant $ 8,000 $ 8,000 $ 8,000
Chamber funding $ 6,000 $ 6,000 $ 6,000
Total Revenue $14,000 $ 14,000 $ 14,000
Info center Supplies $ 687 $ 313 $ 1,500
Phone and Internet $ 2,506 $ 2,600 $ 2,800
Summer Help $17,027 $17,865 $ 18,000
Employment Grant $ (5,008) $ (8,299) $ (8,300)
Total Expenses $15,600 $12,479 $ 14,000

Historically we have reported the number of group inquiries each of which could
have been a single visitor making a single inquiry, a single visitor making multiple
inquiries or a group of visitors making multiple inquiries. However, in 2016 we
began recording the actual number of visitors to the booth that asked one or
more questions. We continued using both methods of reporting to more
accurately reflect the amount of information provided.

Listed below are the inquiry stats for the last six years

Year # groups # of Inquiries
2014 1362 2315
2015 1439 2461
2016 2450 5094
2017 2594 5246
2018 4563 6803

For 2019 our plan is to operate our booth in town with a minimum of two paid
staff, to re-apply for the student grant, and to put out the call for volunteer staff,
as this will allow us to better service visitor enquiries at both of our locations.
There is always more which we'd like to accomplish.

253



If we are unsuccessful in obtaining a Federal grant, we would wish to operate the
main location, which will require a minimum of 2 paid staff members and likely
one or 2 volunteers, and the highway location would be in jeopardy..

Long term plans

As is evident in the numbers indicated above, our visitor inquiry numbers in 2018
is up sharply and continues the trend set from previous years. This appears
consistent with the coast in general as more and more travelers include the
Sunshine Coast in their itineraries. We anticipate that these numbers will
continue to grow in 2019 due to all efforts combined. We wish to be well prepared
to share as much information as we can to as many visitors as possible
throughout the season. To accomplish this we plan on being open at least three
or four if not five days per week from the May long weekend until school is out
the last week of June. During July and August we will be open 7 days a week for
8 hours per day, requiring a bare minimum of 2 paid staff members. Historically
we have closed the booth after the September long weekend leaving us with
limited information available to tourists in September, a time when a number of
local events take place. In order to provide additional hours in June and in
September, and to fulfill our task of providing information to a larger number of
tourists over the busy summer season, we will require additional staffing, which
will in turn necessitate consistent funding.

We are planning to continue our operation of the VIB for many years to come and
hope to eventually transition to become part of a larger visitor information on-line
network. We also feel an urgent need to upgrade our Information Centre and
provide an attractive rest area for travelers — drivers, boaters, cyclists, and
campers. We anticipate a considerable increase in tourist traffic in the next few
years and wish to be well prepared. We are continuing to explore more visitor
friendly resources for our area, including further development of our website, and
having our Ambassadors and information available at local festivals and events,

as we work towards raising the level of awareness with respect to all that Pender
Harbour has to offer.

Economic Development
In 2014 we embarked on an Economic Development Project which we are

proposing to carry on throughout 2018 and 2019. in support of this discretionary
project we received various grants including $ 2,500 in 2018.

254



In 2018 our Economic Development activities have included providing volunteer
labor to perform various activities such as assisting PODS, providing material for
trade shows, accumulating content for our social media, managing many of the
activities for Pender Harbour Days, leading the signage development initiative,
participating in mini park development, working on cemetery restoration projects,
participating with other chambers on the Business Excellence Awards and active
participation on SCREDO projects. We have also paid for materials to take to
trade shows, a portion of the trade show booths, a small monthly honorarium to
provide fresh material regularly on our social media sites, maintaining and adding
to the sites and modifying our web content to provide updated material and
pictures to several publications including Ahoy BC and North West Boat Travel.

For 2019 we are requesting a grant of $2,500 so we can continue to fund the
activities started in 2016 and detailed above. We will also be providing the same
or more volunteer labor to supplement these activities as well as engaging in
additional activities which will focus on bringing economic activity to the coast.
We believe that one of the ways to draw attention to our area is to show them
what their lifestyle could look like, being able to blend work and outdoor
recreation together on a daily basis. We will continue to add to our electronic
media resources through our website and social media. Media assets (photos,
video and writers) are required to build a stock of tools to carry out this initiative.

Actual Actual Planned

2017 2018 2019
SCRD Grant $ 2,500 $ 2,500 $ 2,500
Chamber funding $ 4,000 $4,000 $ 4,000
Total Revenue $ 6,500 $ 6,500 $ 6,500
Marketing $2,500 $2,627 $ 2,500
Social Media management $2,400 $2,400 $ 2,400
Visual Assets & data collection $1,680 $1,500 $ 1,600
Total Expenses $6,500 $6,527 $ 6,500

Long term plans

Our economic development plan is designed to complement and support a coast-
wide marketing campaign, Regional Economic Development Office and signage
and branding. We will also continue to work with service clubs and voluntary
groups to promote the festivals and events that make us a destination for visitors.

We are working with Sunshine Coast Tourism (Tourist attraction and retention)
and SCREDO (business attraction and retention) and working to update our

255



systems and processes to provide a seamless interface to their systems and on-
line information as they are made available to us a year or two from now.

Our chamber has a presence on the SCREDO board and directors are actively
participating in the business round up project and associated system update
work. SCREDO is currently focused on data collection and creation of a
database that will hold and report on the data collected. This will make some of
our administrative functions easier and at the same time foster a closer working
relationship with our members. We are also adding functionality and data to our
systems that will enable us to add a general business attraction and support
functionality to our existing on-line tools, which are now largely focused on tourist
attraction and tourist related businesses.

Sunshine Coast Tourism is expected to greatly enhance our tourist attraction and
retention capability, both with increased marketing activities and system
functionality. We are looking forward to improvements in our on-line content and
associated marketing messages. One of our business owners has joined the
board of Sunshine Coast Tourism and expressed a desire to ensure we achieve
maximum benefit from an integrated approach to the work our Chamber and
Sunshine Coast Tourism is doing.

Grant in Aid (for info only)
Unfortunately we were unsuccessful in obtaining a Grant in Aid for 2018.

We had been fortunate to receive SCRD Grant in Aid support in previous years
and these generous grants have not only enabled us to stage many events but
also provide the motivation to engage in these activities. We now have a very
active committee dedicated to arranging muitiple community events including the
scarecrow contest and “lightup” the Harbour and they have been very successful
in engaging local businesses to participate and provide various prizes and other
goods and services in support of the cause. We believe that actively displaying
our Pender Harbour Spirit encourages visitors and residents to enjoy our “on
coast” business community. In support of this objective we are committed to
continuing our existing initiatives and expand on our recent successes.

2019 budget for Grant in Aid {Info Only)

Actual Actual Planned

2017 2018 2019
Community engagement $ 1,400 $0 $ 2,000
Chamber / Donations $ 500 $ 500 $ 500
Total Revenue $ 1,900 $ 500 $ 2,500

256



Light Up The Harbour $ 1,537 $ 500 $ 500

Christmas Happenings $ 1,000
Communications & Systems $ 1,000
Total Expenses $ 1,537 $ 500 $ 2,500

257



Pender Harbour & District Chamber of Commerce
Budget Draft 2019 Calender vs 2018 History

Income
Brochure Racking Fees - current
Chamber Group Insurance Plan
Community Fundraising
Interest/Dividend Income
Marquee Tent Rentat
Membership Dues - Current
Class C1
Class C2
Class C3
Class NIC
Membership fee discountsiwriteoifs
Total Membership Dues - Current
Sandwich Board Feas
SCRD - Community Engagement Funding
SCRD - Economic Development Funding
SCRD Sanitation Grant
SCREDO Revenue
Sign Maintenance - Current
Info Centre Large
Info Centre Small
Kileindale
North Approach Large
Notth Approach Small
North Approach X-Large
Signage fees adjustments
South Approach Large
South Approach Small
South Approach X-Large
Total Sign Maintenance - Current
Visitor information Center
Grant Income - Employment
Grant Income - VIBE Ambassadors
Grant Income - W/R Maintenance
Guides & Maps
Washroom Subsidy
Total Visitor Information Center
Total Income

Expenses
Advertising & Promotion
Bad Debts
Bank Charges/Merchant Fees
Computer and Internet Expenses
Contract Labour
Dues and Subscriptions

New Budget 2018 Yearand
Actual Budgat

1,100.00 1,128.33 1,050.00

150.00 167.26
2,000.00 3,424 42 3,000.00

2.00 1.35
400.00 400.00
3,000.00 3,040,53 2,790.00
2,825.00 2,818.60 2,875 00
2,250.00 2,250.00 2,250.00
600.00 630.00 585 00

-195.00
8,675.00 s 854413 § 8,500.00
50.00 50,00 50.00
2,000.00 1,400.00 1,400 00
2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500 00
2,550.00 2,500.00 2,500 00
800.00 751,18 800.00
750.00 750.00 75000
850.00 837.50 21500
200.00 150.00 20000
300.00 300.00 300.00
450.00 450.00 450 00
1,100.00 1,100.00 1,100 00
56500
420.00 416.67 42000
625.00 629.17 60000
2,200.00 2,200.00 2,200.00
6,895.00 $ 683334 § 7,500.00
8,300.00 8,299.00 7.000.00
8,000.00 8,000.00 8,000.00
5,150.00 4,750,00 4,750,00
400.00 245.00 400.00
2,250.00 1,980.00 2,400.00
24,100.00 s 23,274.00 § 22,550.00
51,222.00 50,574.01 50,250.00
1,350.00 762.73 1,350.00

75,00

460.00 63.39
680.00 489,18 668000
3,000.00 3,150.00 3,150.00
€00.00 546 00 700.00

258



Insurance Expense
Marketing Expense
Meeting Expense
Office Supplies
Payroll Expenses
Postage and Delivery
SCRD - Community Engagement
SCRD - Economic Dev Initiatives
SCRD Portable Tollet Expenses
Trail Booklets Expense/Recovery
Visitor Information Centre
Cleaning
Maintenance of VIC & Washrooms
Office Supplies
Payroll Deductions
Prior Year Staffing of VIC
Telephone Expense
Utilities
Washroom Supplies
Total Visitor Information Centre
Website & Social Media
Worksafe BC
Total Expenses

Net Income

Prepared by Treasurer - Monday, Nov 12, 2018

600.00 57500 600.00
2,600.00 2,827 50 2,500.00
800.00 626.18 1,400.00
250.00 75.44 250.00
17,925.00 17,555.15 17,000.00
150.00 80.34 350.00
2,500.,00 1,537.46 4,800 00
1,600.00 1,500.00 2,100.00
2,350.00 2,310,00 2,200 00
400.00 400 00
3,900.00 3,650.00 3,900.00
500.00 24045 500.00
1,500.00 52,87 200.00

- 185.99

- 54,30
2,800.00 2,599.60 2.500.00
1,300.00 1,300.00 1,300 00
1,800.00 1,821.45 1,600.00
11,800.00 9,904.83 $ 10,000.00
2,400.00 2,530.14 2,400.00
75.00 6983 2500
49,540.00 44,478.17 47,095.00
1,682.00 6,095.84 3,155.00

259



=1 B-LWE) V¥V 2P0l 8102 '2) 10qwasop "Aepuopy Sises (Bruay
¥r'GLS PPSL seyddnsg sa0
a1'929% 81923 esuadx3g Gunseyy
0522928 052292 asuadxg Buneyiep
00°000'01% 00°000'01 dxe-suoneao)y [ewaju|
00'525% 00°5.5 asuadxs asueinsuf
00'9rS$ 00'ovs suonduasqng pue sang
DO0S1'ES 00°0SL'E Inoge) 1PeNueD
216808 81'68¢ sesuadx3 Jetusiu| pue iaindwo
6E'E9% 6E°E9 sefieyy aowes yueg
00'5sS 0052 S19eQ peg
£L'294% 0002 eL'20L 00’0 uojowald 7 Juisimeapy
S3ASNIJX3
\0'vI5'098 00'+rs'e2s 00'0052$ 00'0EL'9$ 00°006°L$ LO'00¥'02$ 00°008'9$ 1140Hd SSOHD
\0'piS'098 00'vig'2es 00°005'2$ 000eL'8% CO0'00B' 1S L0'a0y'02S 00'005'9$ Swo| [B10L
00'vL2'es 00'vP5'91L 000EL'9 Jejugn LOFBULIO) JORSIA [E10L
00°086'L3 00°086't Ap1SQnS WooIYSeAL
00°sve$ 00°5¥e sdeyy 2 seping
00054'p$ 000SL'y SJUBUSIUEK H/M - SWOIU| WBID
a0'000'es a0'000'8 SIOPESSRAWY FIA - SWOoU| lUeID
00'662'8% 00'662'8 wawhodig - swoouj we)y (O
0o0% Jawen vonewo oisin CO
eeER'ss ¥E'EEE'D weuny - sourusjueyy ubils O\l
BL' 1SS BlL'ISL anuasey OJ3HOS
00°005'2% 00'00s'2 Wessy uonewues qyos
0000528 00'005'2 Buipund wawdojsaag onwouoas - OIS
00°00F'4$ 00’00’ Gugpung wewabebug Aunwwoy - QYOS
00058 00'05 5884 PJROF YIMPUES
ELrre'es El'vrs'e wanng - sang diysiequepy
00'000'01S 00°000'9 00000t SuonedO|Y jeulaiu)
SE'LS SEL B8WOdY| puspPIAK]/Salelu)
P rer'Es 00005 eryee'e Bujsieipung Ajunwwod
9ziNng 92'291 ue|d sdueinsy| dnoigy tequeyd
EE'BSL LS ce'a2l’s 1weuns - saa4 Bupoey aunyzoig
JWOONI
WSIHNOL
H1008 NOILYWHOANI -S301AY3S 8IA - S3DIAEIS INIWIADVONT INIW40T13A30
VL0l HOLISIA NOILVLINYS NOILYLINYS ALINNWWOD-VID SAILIALOV WHINID  JINONOD3

8102 Jlequaydeg - £102 4990190
SSV1D Ad SS0O1 2 L0y

82JaWWo?) JO Jaquiey) JoLISIq @ JnogieH Japuad



2-LWD WY ZP0L 810Z 'Z} 12qWaA0N "Aepuoy siseg |ensy

4
—
¥2'580'0% $9°'99.°1$ 000618 Srit-$ ¥5'29E8 1o'9p8'es 0g'e-$ _._u_omn_%
LL0LF'PES 9€'922'02% co'cLe'2s Sb'142'9% ¥ LES'1S Or'eS5'91LS 09°225'9% sasuedx3 @0
£8°69% £8'69 08 8JESHUOM
¥10E5'2% $L°0e 0g'ocr'g BIpay |B100S 7 AUSqaM
£8'706'6% 8E'EEL'E SPLLL'S eUas) UORBLLIOJ] JOSIA [BI0L
St 128 1S Syige'l $8)|0dnS WooIySEM,
0000E'LS 00°00E'} semnn
89°665'2$ 89°665'2 asuadxg auoydeja)
6E'¥5% 6E'¥S 2IA Jo Buyers Jesp, Joud
66'581% 66'G81 suononpag loded
28°288 1825 sy ddng eyO
Sy ores Sv'ove SWOOIYSEAM 7 DIA 1O BOUBUBIUIEWY
00°0S9'ES 00059' Buues|n
00°0% a1|ua’) UONEBULIoJU| JOUSIA
00°0LE'2ZS 1[4 ]8 584 sasuedx3 18I0] 8RN0 QHOIS
00°005°'1% 00°005°1 SeAlleiliu) A8Q JwoLod] - aHOS
9 LE5'1S ap'IE9°L wawsfebug Aunwio) - aHIS
PE'08S be08 fianaq pue abeisod
GL'555'L18 ) G1'655'21 ) sasuadxg jjoihey
WSIHNOL
HLOO8 NOHVYWHOANI  -S3DIAHIS BIA - 832IAHAS ININIADYONI IN3W4073A30
WL0L HOLISIA B ZO_._.<._._Z¢.w NOILYLINYS ALINNWNOD-VID SAILIAILDY ._<mmzm.mu DIWONOD3T .




Pender Harbour & District Chamber of Commerce

BALANCE SHEET COMPARISON
As of September 30, 2018

TOTAL
AS OF SEP 30,2018  AS OF SEP 30, 2017 {PY)
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalent
Class B Equity Shares 68.15 68.15
Class C Equity Shares 62.59 62.59
Operating account 33,275.86 3,257.65
Term Deposit-SCCU 0.00 0.00
Tourism Chequing Account 0.00 0.00
Undeposited Funds 0.00 0.00
Total Cash and Cash Equivalent $33,406.60 $3,388.39
Accounts Receivable (A/R)
Accounts Receivable 9,184.35 5,007.00
Total Accounts Receivable (A/R) $9,184.35 $5,007.00
Total Current Assats $42,590.95 $8,395.39
Total Assets $42,590.95 $8,395.39
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable (A/P) $0.00 $0.00
Accounts Payable-other 8,564.52 5,050.45
Dack Management Acct Funding 29,137.00 0.00
GST/HST Payable 0.00 0.10
Payroll Liabilities 0.00 0.00
Receiver General Suspense 0.00 0.00
SCREDO Accounis -453.80 2,697.45
Unearned Revenue 0.00 1,400.00
Total Current Liabilities $37,247.72 $9,148.00
Total Liabilities $37,247.72 $9,148.00
Equity
Opening Bal Equity 0.00 0.00
Retained Earnings -752.61 -524.69
Profit for the year 6,095.84 -227.92
Total Equity $5,343.23 $-752.61
Total Liabilities and Equity $42,590.85 $8,395.39

Accrual Basis Sunday, Novze'z, 2018 04:54 PM GMT-8

n



Pender Harbour & District Chamber of Commerce

PROFIT AND LOSS YTD COMPARISON
October 2017 - September 2018

TOTAL

OCT 2017 - SEP 2018

OCT 2016 - SEP 2017 (PY)

INCOME

Brochure Racking Fees - current
Chamber Group Insurance Plan
Community Fundraising
Interest/Dividend Income
Internal Allocations

Marquee Tent Rental
Membership Dues - Current
Sandwich Board Fees

SCRD - Community Engagement Funding
SCRD - Economic Development Funding

SCRD Sanitation Grant
SCREDO Revenue

Sign Maintenance - Current
Visitor Information Center
Grant Income - Employment

Grant Income - VIB Ambassadors
Grant Income - W/R Maintenance

Guides & Maps
Washroom Subsidy
Total Visitor Information Center

Total Income
GROSS PROFIT

EXPENSES
Adverlising & Promotion
Bad Debts
Bank Service Charges
Computer and Internet Expenses
Contract Labour
Dues and Subscriptions
Insurance Expense
Internal Allocations-exp
Marketing Expense
Maeting Expense
Office Supplies
Payroll Expenses
Postage and Delivery
SCRD - Community Engagement
SCROD - Economic Dev Initiatives
SCRD Partable Toilet Expenses
Trail Booklets Expense/Recovery
Visitor Information Centre
Cleaning

Maintenance of VIC & Washrooms

Maps/Brochures
Office Supplies

1,128.33
167.26
3,424.42
1.35
10,000.00

8,544.13
50.00
1,400.00
2,500.00
2,500.00
751.18
6,833.34

8,299.00
8,000.00
4,750.00
245.00
1,980.00
23,274.00

$60,574.01
$60,574.01

762.73
75.00
63.39
489.18
3,150.00
546.00
575.00
10,000.00
2,627.50
626.18
75.44
17,555.15
80.34
1,537.46
1,500.00

2,310.00

3,650.00
240.45

52.87

Accrual Basis Sunday, Nnv216|31. 2018 04:51 PM GMT-8

1,050.00

1,270.00
1.19
10,500.00
400.00
8,440.00
50.00
1,200.00
2,500.00
2,290.00
0.00
7,350.00

5,008.30
8,000.00
4,476.00
414,02
2,310.00
20,208.32

$55,259.51
$55,259.51

1,329.64
250.00

674.99
3,150.00
682.50
575.00
10,500.00
2,500.00

16.19
17,027.41
320.27
1,200.58
1,600.00
2,184.00
80.00

3.650.00
21.26
324.10
260.74

12



TOTAL
OCT 2017 - SEP 2018 OCT 2016 - SEP 2017 {PY)

Payroll Deductions 185.99

Prior Year Staffing of VIC 54.39
Repairs & Maintenance 1,207.40
Telephone Expense 2,599.68 2,506.20
Ukilities 1,300.00 1,300.00
Washroom Supplies 1,821.45 1,551.11
Total Visitor Information Centre 9,804.83 10,840.81
Wabsite & Social Media 2,530.14 2,536.84
Worksafe BC 69.83 19.20
Total Expenses $54,478.17 $655,487.43
PROFIT $6,095.84 §-227.92

Accrual Basis Sunday, Nov2|6|41. 2018 04:51 PM GMT-8 2



Pender Harbour & District Chamber of Commerce

BUDGET VS. ACTUALS: BUDGET 2017-18 - FY18 P&L
October 2017 - September 2018

TOTAL
ACTUAL BUDGET
Income
Brochure Racking Fees - current 1,128.33 1,050.00
Chamber Group Insurance Plan 167.26
Community Fundraising 3,424 .42 3,000.00
Interest/Dividend Income 1.35
Internal Allocations 10,000.00
Marquee Tent Rental 400.00
Membership Dues - Current
Class C1 3,040.53 2,790.00
Class C2 2,818.60 2,875.00
Class C3 2,250.00 2,250.00
Class N/C 630.00 585.00
Membership fes discountsiwriteofis -195.00
Total Membership Dues - Current 8,544,13 8,500.00
Sandwich Board Fees 50.00 50.00
SCRD - Community Engagement Funding 1,400.00 1,400.00
SCRD - Economic Development Funding 2,500.00 - 2,500.00
SCRD Sanitation Grant 2,500.00 - 2,500.00
SCREDO Revenue 751.18 800.00
Sign Maintenance - Current
Info Centre Large 750.00 750.00
Info Centre Small 837.50 915.00
Kieindale 150.00 200.00
North Approach Large 300.00 300.00
North Approach Small 450.00 450.00
North Approach X-Large 1,100.00 1,100.00
Sighage lees adjustments 565.00
South Approach Large 416.67 420.00
South Approach Small 629.17 600.00
South Approach X-Large 2,200.00 2,200.00
Total Sign Malntenance - Current 6,833.34 7,500.00
Visitor Information Center
Grant Income - Employment 8,299.00 . 7,000.00
Grant Income - VIB Ambassadors 8,000.00 - 8,000.00
Grant Income - W/R Maintenance 4,750.00 - 4,750.00
Guides & Maps 245.00 400.00
Washroom Subsidy 1,980.00 2,400.00
Total Visitor Information Center 23,274.00 22,550.00
Total Income $60,574.01 $50,250.00
GROSS PROFIT $60,574.01 $50,250.00
Expenses
Advertising & Promotion 762.73 1,350.00
Bad Debts 75.00
Bank Service Charges 63.29
Computer and Intemet Expenses 489.18 680.00
Contract L.abour 3,150.00 3,150.00

Accrual Basis Sunday, Nov%qst 2018 05.05 PM GMT-8 172



TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET
Dues and Subscriptions 546.00 700.00
Insurance Expense 5§75.00 600.00
Internal Allocations-exp 10,000.00
Marketing Expense 2,627.50 2,500.00
Meeting Expense 626.18 1,400.00
Office Supplies 75.44 250.00
Payroll Expenses 17,000.C0
Taxes 934.23
Wages 16,620.92
Total Payrall Expanses 17,555.15 17,000.00
Postage and Delivery 80.34 350.00
SCRD - Community Engagement 1,537.46 1,900.00
SCRD - Economic Dav Initiatives 1,500.00 2,100.00
SCRD Portable Toilet Expenses 2,310.00 2,290.00
Trait Booklets Expense/Recovery 400.00
Visitor Information Centre
Cleaning 3,650.00 3,900.00
Maintenance of VIC & Washrooms 240.45 500.00
Office Supplies 52.87 200.00
Payroll Deductions 185.99
Prior Year Staffing of VIC 54.39
Telephone Expense 2,599.68 2,500.00
Utilities 1,300.00 1,300.00
Washroom Supplies 1,821.45 1,600.00
Total Visitor Information Centre 9,904.83 10,000.00
Waebsite & Social Media 2,530.14 2,400.00
Worksafe BC 69.83 25.00
Total Expenses $54,478.17 $47,095.00
NET OPERATING INCOME $6,095.84 $3,155.00
NET INCOME $6,095.84 $3,155.00

Accrual Basis Sunday, Nov%r61, 2018 05:05 PM GMT-8 2



SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT STAFF REPORT

TO: Special Corporate and Administrative Services Committee — February 5, 2019
AUTHOR: Tina Perreault, General Manager, Corporate Services / Chief Financial Officer

SUBJECT: RURAL AREAS’ GRANT-IN-AID AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 2018 CARRY-
FORWARDS

RECOMMENDATION(S)

THAT the report titled Rural Area’s Grant-in-Aid and Economic Development 2018 Carry-
Forwards be received.

B ACKGROUND

The Rural Areas’ Grant-in-Aid Program provides grant-in-aid funding for non-profit societies and
organizations that operate or provide a community or regional benefit. Successful grant
applications have a measurable benefit to communities outside of the rural areas and as such
are required to also apply to the appropriate municipal grants-of-assistance program on the
Coast.

Economic Development functions have supported Sunshine Coast Regional District (SCRD)
Partners in their ongoing efforts to encourage business and growth on the Sunshine Coast.

DiscussION

Options and Analysis

Discretionary funding is in both Rural Areas’ Grant-in-Aid and Economic Development for non-
profit societies and organizations to apply through either the budget process or application
intake for funds to support their projects.

Financial Implications

Each year the surplus / deficit position for the discretionary funding for these functions is
presented to the SCRD Board to assess the ongoing budget related to the projected grant

requests to be presented and determine how to use surpluses or how to recover deficits.

Attached are three spreadsheets for the SCRD Board’s information to support 2019 budget
decisions:

Rural Areas’ Grant-in-Aid Budgets [121-129]
Rural Areas’ Economic Development (including MOU values) [531-535]
Summary of Community Partners and Stakeholders 2019 Budget Requests

267



Staff Report to Special Corporate and Administrative Services — February 5, 2019
Rural Area’s Grant-in-Aid and Economic Development 2018 Carry-Forwards Page 2 of 2

Timeline for next steps or estimated completion date

In the budget process the functions for Rural Areas’ Grant-in-Aid [121-129] and Economic
Development [531-535] will be reviewed by the SCRD Board in preparation for final adoption in
March 2018.

STRATEGIC PLAN AND RELATED POLICIES

The granting processes offered by the SCRD ensure financial sustainability as well as facilitates
community development.

CONCLUSION

This report is provided for information to assist the SCRD Board in the 2019 budget process.

Reviewed by:

Manager Finance

GM Legislative

CAO X-J. Loveys Other X-T.Crosby

February 5 Annex R - 2019-FEB-05 CAS STAFF REPORT - Rural Areas Grant-in-Aid Balances and Economic Development Status

268



Rural Areas' Grant-in-Aid Status

121 (A) 122 (B) 123 (E&F) | 125 (COM) | 126 (GGCP) 127 (D) 128 (E) 129 (F)
Discretionary S 19,000 |S 15,000 | S 4,000 | S - S 10,000 | S 24,000 | S 9,000 (S 14,000
Operating S 3,438 | S 2,712 | S 1,465 | S 1,468 | S 2,435 | S 3,162 | $ 2,113 | $ 2,399
Youth Outreach (Decision Pending) S 8,453 | § 8,067 | S - S - S - S 7,722 | S 7,348 | S 7,122
Bursary S 600 | $ 600 [ $ - S - $ - S 600 | $ 600 | $ 600
Howe Sound Marine Reference Guide (3 years
starting 2018) (Decision Pending) S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S 1,000
HMB Comm School Restorative Justice S - S - S - S 10,000 | S - S - S - S -
HMB Comm School Tween Night (Decision
Pending) S - S 2,700 | $ - S - S - S - $ - $ -
PH Community School $ 8,000 | $ - $ - S - S - S - S - $ -
2019 TOTAL DISCRETIONARY TO DATE S 39,491 | S 29,079 | S 5,465 | S 11,468 | S 12,435 | S 35,484 | S 19,061 | $ 25,121

*Figures have not been approved by SCRD Board to date.

SUBTOTAL: 2018 Surplus / Deficit S 4,22068 |S 9,23756 | S 36140 | S 306.56 | $ 2,511.30 (S 1,870.31 (S 7,079.06 | S 48.25
TOTAL: 2018 Surplus / Deficit S 4,22068 | S 9,237.56 | S 361.40 | S 306.56 | S 2,511.30 (S 1,870.31 (S 7,079.06 | S 48.25

Reduce 2019 Taxation

269




ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUNDING [531-535]
2019 Budget

Organization Name - Project Name Basis of Allocation 2019 Requests  Area A [531] AreaB [532] AreaD [533] Area E [534] AreaF [535] Totals Notes from 2019 Budget Process
Sunshine Coast Tourism - Destination Marketing Activities Previously Assessed Value 20,000.00 0.00
PH&DCC - Visitor Information Booth Ambassadors 8,000.00 0.00
PH&DCC - Visitor Information Booth Washrooms 5,150.00 0.00
PH&DCC - Tourism Sanitation Services (Portables) 2,550.00 0.00
PH&DCC - Economic Development 2,500.00 0.00
G&DCC - Visitor Services Centre (Gibsons and E&F) - Visitor Information Park Kiosk, Wayfinding
Map Info and Rest Stop) 6,100.00 0.00
G&DCC - Travel Ambassador Program 1,600.00 0.00
Coast Cultural Alliance - Sunshine Coast Art Crawl Previously Evenly Allocated 3,100.00 0.00
Coast Cultural Alliance - Arts and Cultural Calendar Previously Evenly Allocated 2,400.00 0.00
2019 Total Economic Development Funding Available 68,081.00 47,262.00 39,276.00 38,843.00 51,530.00 244,992.00

* Based on $300,000 Annual Contribution

Regional Economic Development Initiative MOU (2019 values included in the Funding 50%Asssessment/50% Population for Areas A, B, D, F
Available above amount) 37,589.00 33,941.00 30,733.00 20,228.00 33,089.00 155,580.00 |Assessment Only for Area E
2019 Total Discretionary Funds (2019 Discretionary plus MOU plus 2018 Surplus) 67,505.39 50,377.84 39,248.03 47,711.91 53,782.34 258,625.51
Operating Expenses (Support Services Allcoation) 3,532.00 2,487.00 2,087.00 2,066.00 2,704.00 12,876.00
Total Committed Discretionary Funds in 2019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Remaining Discretionary Funds (Uncommitted Discretionary Funds) 26,960.00 10,834.00 6,456.00 16,549.00 15,737.00 76,536.00
2018 Uncommitted Surplus 2,956.39 5,602.84 2,059.03 10,934.91 4,956.34

Used to offset 2019 Taxation

270




Summary of Budget Requests from Community
Partners and Stakeholders

Functions
643, 645, 646
640,646
646
643

121-129

125

531-535
531
531-535

531-535

TOTAL

*SCRD Portion of Funding Only

Area Participants
A B, &D
ToG,D,E&F
D
A

Regional-All
Regional-All

Regional-All

A, B,D,E F
A,B,D,E,F,
ToG,DoS

Regional (except F-
islands)

Regional (except F-
islands)

Regional (except F-
islands)

Regional (except F-
islands)
Area A Grant-in-
Aid

Regional (except F-
islands)

Rural Area Ec-Dev
Area A Ec-Dev

Rural Area Ec-Dev

Rural Area Ec-Dev
(Typically E&F)

2018

SCRD 2018

2019

SCRD 2019

Change
over 2018*

% change

$628,472

$220,699

$712,687

$250,273

$29,574

$595,309

$610,309

$15,000

$13,500

$13,500

$0

$2,000

$9,548

$2,000

$9,548

$0

$86,275

$87,138

1.00%

$76,433

$32,200

$38,712

$77,961

$32,200

$39,486

0.00%

$10,000

$10,000

$10,000

$10,000

$35,000

$35,000

$10,000

$10,000

$32,000

$32,000

$8,000

$8,000

$82,000

$10,000

$20,000

$82,000

$10,000

$20,000

$17,750

$18,200

$5,500

$5,500

$7,700

$7,700

$7,700

$7,700

271

$1,290,233

$1,344,894

$54,661

$3,400

$54,661



	Agenda Cover
	ANNEX A - Gibsons and District Public Library
	ANNEX B - Sechelt Public Library
	ANNEX C - Sunshine Coast Museum and Archives
	ANNEX D - Skookumchuck Heritage Society - Egmont Heritage Centre
	ANNEX E - Halfmoon Bay - Chatelech Community School Association
	ANNEX F - Pender Harbour Community School - Community Recreation and Youth Programs
	ANNEX G - Sunshine Coast Tourism
	ANNEX H - Coast Cultural Alliance
	ANNEX I - Sunshine Coast Community Services Society - Youth Outreach Worker Program
	ANNEX J - Gibsons and District Chamber of Commerce
	ANNEX K - Roberts Creek Community Library
	ANNEX L - Pender Harbour Reading Centre
	ANNEX M - Sechelt Community Archives
	ANNEX N - Pender Harbour Health Centre
	ANNEX O - Sechelt Community Schools - Sechelt Youth Centre and Youth Programs
	ANNEX P - Roberts Creek Community School - Nights Alive
	ANNEX Q - Pender Harbour and District Chamber of Commerce
	Annex R - STAFF REPORT - Rural Areas Grant-in-Aid Balances and Economic Development Status



